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Financial Summary B 5 WE

. Revenue amounted to approximately RMB126,388 miillion, an increase of o & ZIW AL A ARK126,388F & T © 12
approximately 33.8%. K#933.8% °

. Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent amountedto o BEBRBARKRENEFINNENAEARE

i —

approximately RMB6,432 million, an increase of approximately 37.4%. 6,432B 87T ' BR437.4% -

. Basic earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.80, an increase of o HBREXEFNLAEARK080T  EELH
approximately 35.2%. 35.2% °

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In case of (EZEIRF : ABE D RIAPEFIH o 0P EXHE
inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail.) AZE  BARXEE-)



Chairman’s Statement
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of
the Company for the six months’ period ended 30 June 2021.

L.

Review of Operating Conditions

In the first half of 2021, adhering to the general keynote of seeking
progress while maintaining stability and sustaining high-quality
development, the Chinese government focused on the implementation
of “Six Priorities” and “Six Stability”. As a result, new growth drivers
developed rapidly with steady improvement in quality and efficiency. The
major macroeconomic indicators were within a reasonable range, and
the economic development showed a positive trend of strengthening and
improvement on the basis of stability. In the first half of the year, the gross
domestic product reached RMB53.2 trillion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 12.7%. The heavy-duty truck industry delivered sales volume
of 1,045,000 units, representing a year-on-year growth of 28.0%; the
construction machinery industry delivered sales volume of 617,000 units
(including forklift trucks using internal combustion engines), representing
a year-on-year growth of 33.0%.

During the Period, the Company upheld its strategy of being innovation-
oriented and going high-end. The dominant position of traditional
business has become more solid. The performance contribution of
overseas business has increased significantly. New business formats, new
energy and new technologies have continued to break through. The
Company's industrial structure, cycle structure and regional structure have
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

been further optimised. Its risk resistance capacity and comprehensive
competitiveness have been further improved. In the first half of the
year, the Company’s revenue increased by approximately 33.8% as
compared with that in the corresponding period of 2020 to approximately
RMB126,388 million. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the listed
company was approximately RMB6,432 million, representing an increase
of approximately 37.4% as compared with that in the corresponding
period of 2020. Basic earnings per share was RMB0.80, representing
an increase of approximately 35.2% as compared with that in the
corresponding period of 2020.

1. Power System Business

The Company sped up the pace of key technological breakthroughs
and led the industrial transformation and upgrade. Leveraging the
globally coordinated research and development (R&D) platform,
the Company built up its forward-looking design capabilities based
on its tool platform and its performance development capabilities
based on its segment markets. Our products achieved remarkable
results in terms of the reduction of costs, the lowering of fuel
consumption and light-weighting. Road-going China VI engines
have been in full compliance with the regulatory requirements
while non-road-going China IV engines have been under constant
upgrades by generations. Our WP2.3N engines have been listed on
the first environmental information disclosure list of non-road-going
stage IV products in China; the first commercial diesel engines in the
world with a thermal efficiency of over 50% were released, which
provided powerful technological reserves for the improvement
of thermal efficiency in our full series of products. The Company
focused on segment markets to consolidate the competitive
edges for full series of products. Market performance of engines
such as the WP8, WP10.5H, WP12 and WP13 were stable with
continuous increase in market share. The consistency of the N-series
engines continued to improve and the WP2.5N products were
officially released, the dynamics of which fully outperformed its
competitive products with all indicators comparable with the first-
class standards in China. After entering into the high-end pick-up
truck market, such products filled up Weichai’s gap in the area of
2L engines. Committed to creating synergy by combining resources
and speeding up the integration of the industrial chain, with power
system as its core, the Company took full advantage of systematic
matching of its products. The continuous breakthrough in the core
technologies of three new major powertrains, namely hydraulic
powertrains, CVT powertrains and new energy powertrains,
enhanced the level of autonomy of and control over our core
technologies.

During the Period, the Company’s powertrain business hit another
record high: sales volume of engines increased year-on-year by
42.8% to 671,000 units, in which the sales volume of heavy-
duty truck engines was 339,000 units, representing a year-on-year
growth in market share by 3.2 percentage points to 32.4%; sales
volume of gear boxes increased year-on-year by 32.4% to 802,000
units, in which the sales volume of heavy-duty truck gear boxes
was 782,000 units, representing a year-on-year growth in market
share by 2.8 percentage points to 74.9%; sales volume of axles

o ()
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

increased year-on-year by 19.5% to 638,000 units. At the same
time, our high-end strategic products continued to develop, with
sales revenue of large-diameter engines achieving RMB520 million,
representing a year-on-year growth of 24.2%, and sales revenue of
high-end hydraulic products achieving RMB290 million, representing
a year-on-year growth of 27.3%.

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE
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Complete Vehicles and Machineries Business

Upholding a strategy driven by complete vehicles and machineries,
the Company sped up the coordination of resources and the
optimisation and upgrade of the industry chain, and further
enhanced its comprehensive strengths. Focusing on customers’
demand and keeping up with the upgrade of laws and regulations,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited (BRFREA /FEH
FR/A7]), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, promoted the
adjustment and optimisation of its product structure thereby
achieving a stable improvement in operational results with a
total heavy-duty trucks sales volume of 117,000 units in the
Period, representing a year-on-year growth of 32.4%. Seizing the
opportunity of China VI and consolidating the leading advantage,
the Company determined to win the “five critical battles” of
elimination of China V, introduction of China VI, breakthrough in
long-distance standard cargo capacity, improvement in regional
targets and marketing guarantee support. The Company delivered
high-quality products with high customer satisfaction in an efficient
manner; it continued to maintain the industry’s leading edge in
the segment markets of tractor economic market, port tractor
market, and sand and gravel transportation market. Upholding
an innovation-driven approach to create new competitive edges,
Delong X6000, a new generation of high-end product platform,
performs significantly well in fuel saving, comfort, safety and
intelligence, precisely meeting the demand of high-efficiency
logistics such as fast delivery and point-to-point express. The
Company accelerated the effective combination of management
of customers’ demand with the internet throughout the life
cycle of trucks, and launched the SIC-PILOT platform to create
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

automatic driving solutions under different scenarios. Meanwhile,
the fuel battery project has successfully passed the examination
of the National Ministry of Industry and Information. The capacity
expansion for heavy-duty trucks and the improvement projects
for quality inspection capabilities have been steadily progressing,
accumulating new momentum for development.

= ()
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Intelligent Logistics Business

KION Group AG (“KION"), an overseas controlling subsidiary
of the Company, is a globally leading supplier in the area of
intralogistics, and has two major businesses of Industrial Trucks
& Services and Supply Chain Solutions. In the first half of 2021,
benefitting from the recovery of Industrial Trucks & Services and the
continuous growth of Supply Chain Solutions, KION has delivered
an outstanding performance in various operating indicators and
realised a sales revenue of EUR4.968 billion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 26.5%. In particular, the sales volume from the
business of Supply Chain Solutions (represented by Dematic Group)
had a substantial year-on-year increase of 52.8%. A net profit of
EUR290 million was realised, representing a year-on-year growth of
4.8 times. With the recovery of global economy, it is expected that
KION will continue to stage a revival in sales volume in the second
half of the year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

New Business Format, New Energy and New
Technology

The Company actively implemented the new energy development
strategy of China by continuously expediting the development of
industry layout and making breakthroughs in core technologies,
with a view to facilitating the re-engineering of the industrial
chain and the upgrade of value chain. The Company mastered key
technologies and took lead in industry development. The strategic
cooperation with Switzerland-based FISCHER Spindle Group AG
further extended the vertical layout of fuel cell industrial chain,
strengthened the core competitiveness of fuel cell powertrain and
made up for the shortcomings in the hydrogen-fueled batteries core
components in China. The Company built an internationally quality
fuel cell industrial park which integrates functions including R&D,
testing, inspection and trial production, providing comprehensive
industrial chain testing capability covering aspects including “basic
materials — single cell — voltaic pile — key components — engines —
power system — complete vehicles” of hydrogen-fueled batteries.
We supported the launch of 29 fuel cell specialized bus routes in the
country with a total mileage of over 8 million kilometres. This year
in March, the nation’s only National Fuel Cell Technology Innovation
Centre (RZFARIE b E T RIFTH L) was established in Shandong,
as led by Weichai Power. Supported by the new generation of
information technology, the Company sped up the pace of digital
transformation. Focusing on our customers and leveraging big data
and digitisation, we used new technologies including “big data,
intelligent technologies, mobile network, cloud computing and
internet of things (IoT)” to promote the digitisation of business,
realise intelligent R&D, intelligent supply chain, intelligent service
and intelligent operation, develop artificial intelligence and internet
of vehicles businesses and expedite the development of artificial

intelligence technologies to achieve “business scenario + Al”.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

I1I1.

Dividends and Capitalisation of Reserve

On 28 June 2021, the Company’s 2020 profit distribution proposal was
considered and approved at the Company’s 2020 annual general meeting.
Based on the 8,726,556,821 shares in total, the Company distributed to
all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB2.33 (including tax) for every 10
shares held, without any capitalisation of reserve.

On 30 August 2021, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the Board considered and approved the distribution to
all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.85 (including tax) for every
10 shares held, based on the total number of shares of the Company of
8,726,556,821 shares, without any capitalisation of reserve. Please refer
to the announcement issued by the Company on 8 September 2021
for details on the closure of registers of members in determining the

shareholders who are eligible for the 2021 interim dividend.

Outlook and Prospects

Looking into the second half of 2021, the global economy is expected
to recover gradually. The recovery of the world’s economies will show a
diversified pattern. On one hand, the international trade landscape will
continue to undergo adjustments with uncertain inflations and more
external instabilities and uncertainties. On the other hand, from the
perspective of the domestic situation, making progress while maintaining
stability will remain the general keynote. The overall internal driving
force for the economy will continue to strengthen and market entities
will be constantly motivated. Affected by factors including the emission
standard upgrade of China VI products, normalisation of the regulations
of oversize and overloading and increase in investment in infrastructure,
it is expected that the development of the heavy-duty truck industry will
be driven jointly by the updated and new demands. Sales volume of light-
duty truck industry will be stable due to increasing logistics demands in
segments including e-commerce, urban distribution and cold chain and
the accelerated compliance progress of light-duty truck industry. The “new
infrastructure” will lead to expansion of 5G applications and acceleration
of construction of industrial internets and data centres, which will boost
the rapid development of various related industries with increasing
demand for electricity and bring positive prospects to the electricity
market. The commencement of online trading of the national carbon
market together with the environmentally-friendly and low-carbon trend
in industrial structure and energy consumption will bring opportunities for
the high-quality developments of the Company’s new energy and other

strategic businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

Adhering to the principle of aiming at customer satisfaction, the Company
will seize opportunities in segment markets, speed up the development
high-end products and keep enhancing the level of operation, with a view

to consolidating the core competitive advantage of the Company.

Focusing on achieving the annual sales target, the Company will strive
for market expansion. By adhering to a customer-oriented approach and
giving full play to the advantage of comprehensive full-series products,
the Company will target at strategic markets and emerging markets
and steadfastly capture market demands and secure orders. We analyse
customer demand accurately and offer good product portfolios by
focusing on key segment markets such as express and freight delivery
and urban logistics. By paying close attention to the transition to China
VI products, we will improve on our shortcomings and weaknesses to
achieve independence and controllability over the industrial chain and
supply chain. By strengthening the expansion in non-road-going markets
such as construction machinery, agricultural equipment and industrial
power, we speed up the application of large-diameter engines to the
high-end markets such as big data centers and emergency power supply
for mining. We will conduct systematic analysis on emission regulations
and industry trends to adjust structures, remedy shortcomings and
coordinate product and technology planning. Adhering to the innovation-
driven approach, the Company will accelerate its pace in the move to
the middle and upper end of the value chain. Through maintaining high
standards and making significant investments in R&D, we will put our
globally coordinated R&D resources to good use and make breakthroughs
in key core technologies, with a view to maintaining our leading position
with reference to indicators including product affordability, reliability and
power performance. We will take the lead in green development with
continuous improvement in the thermal efficiency of all series of engines
and accelerate development of 51% thermal efficiency. We will promote
strenuously the development of hydraulic power system for construction
machineries and agricultural equipment CVT powertrain to break through
the technology blockades of foreign countries and gain an edge in
terms of product differentiation. We will accelerate the development
of electric control system of engine, new energy and hydraulics with
a focus on getting beyond the stage of cooperation for development
in the production of key chips in China. The Company will focus on
improving quality and efficiency and enhancing the quality of operation
comprehensively. We will carry on cost reduction work during the courses
of processing, design, procurement and manufacturing and take multiple
measures to enhance the profitability of different series of products. The

Company will rely on indicators and data to strengthen the digging of
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

IV.

internal and external operating information and support the innovation
of business model with digitalisation capabilities. We will promote the full
coverage of the WOS system and, as guided by the quality management
system, build a management system which integrates the quality of R&D,
production, sales and management, with an aim of realising standardised
management of the entire chain. We will step up on the construction
of an eco-system for innovation and achieve a new height in business
and entrepreneurship. We will strengthen the talent-pool building
and introduce high-level talents from domestic and overseas high-end
talent markets to match the construction of talent-pool with industrial
development. The Company will launch a system of personal undertaking
and implement innovative incentive systems including virtual stimulation
of production value, upfront incentives and results-sharing, for the
purpose of motivating technical staff to be innovative and creative. The
Company will also create an atmosphere which shows respects to labour,
knowledge, talents and creation, with a view to fundamentally activating
the potential and vitality of talents and achieving mutual growth and
development of our employees and of the Company, thereby fully

enhancing the core competitiveness of the Company.

Appreciation
Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and

support, as well as to all of our staff for their hard work and dedication!

Tan Xuguang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 August 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of
the results of operations of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021 (the

“Period”) as follows:

I. Industry Analysis
The Company is one of the vehicle and equipment manufacturing
conglomerates in the PRC with the best comprehensive strengths. It is
a leading company in the markets of powertrain, complete vehicles and
machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics and
parts and components and is equipped with the most comprehensive
golden industrial chain of engines, gear boxes and axles, and offers
related aftersales market services. Meanwhile, with its leading advantages
in intelligent logistics, the Group can provide the most comprehensive

logistics solutions to its customers.

1. Commercial Vehicles and Construction
Machinery Industries
In the first half of 2021, with the commencement of COVID-19
vaccination in various countries, global economic activities have
gradually resumed. However, the appearance of variants of
COVID-19 in many countries and the discrepancies in the supply of
vaccines and the governments’ capabilities to provide policy support
have caused regional differences and uncertainties in the recovery
of the world economy. The Chinese government adhered to the
implementation of “Six Priorities” and “Six Stability”, leading to
a steady recovery in the epidemic control and economic growth.
In the first half of the year, the gross domestic product of the PRC
reached RMB53.2 trillion, representing a year-on-year increase of
12.7%.

Benefitting from the favourable factors such as upgrade of emission
standards, normalisation of overloading control, national investment
in fixed assets and new infrastructures, and the promotion of the
application of big data and 5G, the domestic commercial vehicles
and construction machinery industries operated at a high level.
During the Period, the heavy truck market achieved a sales volume
of approximately 1.045 million units, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 28.0%; the construction machinery
industry (including forklift trucks using internal combustion
engines) achieved a sales volume of approximately 617,000 units
in the first half of the year, representing a year-on-year increase of

approximately 33.0%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

2. Forklift Truck and Supply Chain Solutions
Industry
During the Period, the global economy had a better performance
than the corresponding period in 2020. The Chinese economy
continued to grow with the pandemic under control, while due
to the fragmented and slow progress of vaccination as well as
the travel restrictions in some cities, the pace of recovery of the
Eurozone economy has been slow. With the gradual recovery
of economy, the order size of industrial forklift trucks increased
significantly by 72.3% to approximately 1,217,500 units as
compared to approximately 706,400 units in the same period of
the previous year. In particular, the increase recorded in China,
North America, Western Europe and Eastern Europe was over
70%. Driven by the e-commerce, food and consumer goods retail
industries, there has been an increase in demand for automation
and intelligence in warehouses and distribution centres, leading
to continuous and steady growth in the supply chain solutions

industry.

II. The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group’s business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following is an overview of the

operating conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Powertrain, Complete Vehicles and Machines
and Key Components
The Group had the most comprehensive powertrain system covering
engines, gear boxes and axles. With the advantages of the globally
coordinated R&D platform, the Company sped up on making
breakthroughs in core technologies. With powertrain as the core,
the Company took full advantage of systematic matchings. The
Company strengthened its capabilities of research and development
based on segment markets and achieved outstanding results in
different aspects including reduction of costs, lowering of fuel
consumption as well as light-weighting. We continued to improve
the core competitiveness of products and sped up the integration
of industrial chain. In the first half of 2021, the Company sold a
total of approximately 671,000 units of engines and approximately
802,000 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 42.8% and approximately 32.4%, as compared
with their respective sales of approximately 470,000 units and
approximately 605,000 units in the corresponding period last year.
The engines segment contributed approximately RMB32,979 million
to the Group's sales revenue during the Period, representing a year-

on-year increase of 47.4%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

During the Period, orientated by customers’ needs and guided
by upgrades in laws and regulations, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited (FRPAEA!TEFR A F]), a controlling subsidiary
of the Group, optimised its product structure and seized market
share. During the Period, the Group’s aggregate sales of heavy-
duty truck engines amounted to approximately 117,000 units,

representing a year-on-year growth of approximately 32.4%.

Intelligent Logistics

During the Period, the Group's sales of industrial forklift trucks
in China and the North America outperformed the market. Sales
order for forklift trucks increased from approximately 88,900 units
in the corresponding period last year to approximately 155,500
units, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
74.8%. The total value of order intake for the first half of the year
increased significantly by approximately 51.0% to approximately
EUR4,021 million. In addition, the Company continued to receive
big-ticket orders from e-commerce customers for supply chain
solutions, leading to the total value of order intake of approximately
EUR1,869 million in the first half of the year, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 7.2%. Intelligent logistics services
contributed approximately RMB38,706 million to the Group's
sales revenue during the Period, which increased by approximately
28.7% as compared with approximately RMB30,082 million in the

corresponding period last year.

ITI. Financial Review

The Group’s Results of Operations

a. Revenue
In the first half of 2021, the Group’s revenue amounted
to approximately RMB126,388 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB31,893 million or 33.8% from
approximately RMB94,495 miillion in the corresponding period
in 2020, largely benefitting from the fact that the global
economy gradually recovered and the domestic commercial
vehicles and construction machinery market operated at a
high level. Revenue from principal operations amounted to
approximately RMB120,523 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB29,453 million or approximately 32.3%
from approximately RMB91,070 million in the corresponding

period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated profit from principal
operations in the amount of approximately RMB23,433
million, representing an increase of approximately RMB5,202
million or 28.5% from approximately RMB18,231 million
recorded in the corresponding period in 2020. It was
mainly driven by the substantial increase in sales of engines
and the rapid recovery of intelligent logistics business.
Although prices of commodities rose during the Period, we
maintained a stable profit margin from principal operations at
approximately 19.4% under the Company'’s strict control of

costs.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

The distribution and selling expenses increased by
approximately RMB1,000 million or 18.8% from
approximately RMB5,313 million in the corresponding period
of 2020 to approximately RMB6,313 million during the
Period. The increase of distribution and selling expenses was
primarily attributable to a substantial increase in revenue, as
well as the increase in both the costs of freight and packaging
and the after-sales and repair fees. With the effective
control over expenses by the Company, the distribution and
selling expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased to
approximately 5.0% during the Period from approximately

5.6% during the corresponding period last year.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB813 million or 23.9% from approximately
RMB3,397 million in the corresponding period of 2020 to
approximately RMB4,210 million during the Period. The
increase in general and administrative expenses was mainly
due to business resuming expansion, which led to increase
in staff costs and external support fees, while the overall
expenses were under effective control and the general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue decreased
from approximately 3.6% in the corresponding period last

year to approximately 3.3% during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT)

During the Period, the Group’s EBIT was approximately
RMB10,503 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB3,210 million or 44.0% from approximately RMB7,293
million in the corresponding period last year. The increase
in EBIT was primarily attributable to the significant increase
of contribution by engine and intelligent logistics segments
during the Period, increasing EBIT margin of the Group from
approximately 7.7% in the corresponding period of 2020 to
approximately 8.3% during the Period.

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses decreased from approximately RMB166
million in the corresponding period of 2020 to a net finance
income of approximately RMB196 million during the Period.
This was mainly due to the increase in net interest income by
approximately RMB177 million and the increase in foreign

exchange gain.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses increased by 71.3% from
approximately RMB1,003 million in the corresponding period
in 2020 to approximately RMB1,717 million during the
Period, which was mainly attributable to increase in total
profit. During the Period, The Group’s increase in offshore
profits led to the increase in the average effective tax rate
from approximately 15.0% in the corresponding period last

year to approximately 17.2% during the Period.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group’s net profit for the Period was approximately
RMB8,255 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB2,553 million or 44.8% from approximately RMB5,702
million in the corresponding period last year. Net profit
margin for the Period was approximately 6.5%, which
increased by 0.5 percentage points from approximately 6.0%

in the corresponding period last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated net operating cash
flows of approximately RMB7,151 million and cash inflow
from financing activities of approximately RMB 15,922 million.
A portion of such proceeds was applied to repaying debts,
paying investment monies and paying for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment for the expansion of
the Group’s business. As at 30 June 2021, the Group's
gearing ratio (interest-bearing debts/(interest-bearing debts
+ shareholders’ equity)) was approximately 21.5% (31
December 2020: approximately 26.6%).

2. Financial Position

a.

Assets and Liabilities
As at 30 June 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB304,182 million, of which approximately
RMB 184,238 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2021,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB77,393 million (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
RMB62,216 million). On the same date, the Group’s total
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB203,165 million,
of which approximately RMB142,150 million were current
liabilities. The current ratio was approximately 1.30x (as at 31

December 2020: 1.23x).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) R e B A ()

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB101,018 million, of which approximately
RMB69,770 million was attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the balance was minority interests. Interest
attributable to minority interest holders included the perpetual
bonds in the principal amount of US$775 million issued in
September 2017. The borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2021 amounted to approximately RMB27,640 million, which
included bonds of approximately RMB7,027 million and bank
borrowings of approximately RMB20,613 million. The bank
borrowings included approximately RMB3,057 million of fixed
interest rate bank borrowings and approximately RMB17,556
million of floating interest rate bank borrowings. Borrowings
repayable on demand or within a period not exceeding one
year were approximately RMB8,647 million; borrowings
repayable within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years were approximately RMB679 million;
borrowings repayable within a period of more than two years
but not exceeding five years were approximately RMB10,596
million; and borrowings repayable within a period of more
than five years were approximately RMB691 million. Other
than Euro denominated borrowings, USD-denominated
borrowings and GBP-denominated borrowings equivalent to
approximately RMB15,690 million, approximately RMB1,190
million and approximately RMB248 million respectively, the
borrowings were Renminbi-denominated borrowings. The
revenue of the Group is mainly in Renminbi and Euro. To
prevent exchange rate risk arising from the fluctuation of
the USD exchange rate, contracts have been entered into
with financial institutions to swap the USD775 million USD-
denominated perpetual bonds issued in September 2017 to
Euro, and thus the Group does not consider the currency
risk facing its future general cash outflow significant. As a
policy, the Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debts and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2021, bank deposits, notes receivable and
receivable financing of approximately RMB30,915 million (as
at 31 December 2020: RMB24,429 million) were pledged
to banks to secure the Group's notes payable, letters of
guarantee, acceptance bills and letters of credit, etc. issued
by banks. The pledged bank deposits carry prevailing bank
interest rates. The pledge will be released upon the settlement
of the relevant bank borrowings. The fair value of the bank
deposits as at the balance sheet date was approximately the
same as the carrying amount. Certain other assets were also

pledged by the Group to secure the Group’s borrowings.

Contingencies

As at 30 June 2021, the Group provided certain distributors
and agents bank guarantee amounting to approximately
RMB3,699 million (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
RMB3,587 million) to secure their obtaining and use of

banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group provided guarantee for joint
liabilities in respect of potential failure of the leasees under
finance leases to settle instalment payments plus interest with
a risk exposure amounted to approximately RMB4,205 million
(as at 31 December 2020: approximately RMB3,550 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

e. Commitments

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately RMB5,208 million (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB3,285 million), principally for the capital
expenditure in respect of acquisition of property, plant and

equipment. The capital expenditure will be financed by

internal resources.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no external investment

commitments (as at 31 December 2020: approximately

RMB682 million).

3. Other Financial Information
a. Employees

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had approximately 87,000
employees (including approximately 37,700 employees of
KION). During the Period, the Group had paid remuneration
of approximately RMB27,071 million. The emolument policy
of the employees of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)

on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competence.

b.  Major Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not have any major investment, acquisition or

disposal during the Period.
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the shareholders of the Company, the Board considered
and approved the distribution to all shareholders of
cash dividend of RMB1.85 (including tax) for every 10
shares held, based on the total number of shares of
the Company of 8,726,556,821 shares, without any
capitalisation of reserve.

(i) On 13 July 2021, the Company approved the proposal
concerning the Company’s acquisition of part of the
equity interest of Wechai Lovol Heavy Industry Co., Ltd
(“Weichai Lovol”) on its sixth provisional Board meeting
in 2021. The Company acquired 38.62% of the shares
in Weichai Lovol held by Arbos Technology (Group)
Co., Ltd. and 0.69% of the shares in Weichai Lovol
held by Qingte Group Co., Ltd. in cash respectively,
at a total acquisition price of approximately RMB985
million. Upon completion of the share acquisition, the
Company holds a total of 39.31% of the shares of
Weichai Lovol, making it the second largest shareholder
of Weichai Lovol.

Use of proceeds

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 24 December 2020, 25 January 2021, 26 January
2021, 29 January 2021, 12 April 2021, 23 April 2021 and
26 May 2021 (collectively, the “Announcements”), and the
circular (the “Circular”) of the Company dated 11 January
2021, in respect of, inter alia, the non-public issuance of A
Shares.

The reasons for the non-public issuance of A Shares include
to raise funds for the specific investments projects detailed
in the table below and to replenish working capital, which
will strengthen the capital capability of the Group and lay a
sound foundation for the Group’s further expansion of its
operations, and, in turn, enable it to realise breakthrough in
its development and enhance its competitive strength.

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) PR T B B (A8
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The non-public issuance of A Shares of the Company was
completed on 31 May 2021 and the relevant new A Shares
were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 1 June 2021.
A total of 792,682,926 A Shares of RMB1.00 each (with an
aggregate nominal value of RMB792,682,926) were issued
to 25 subscribers which are in compliance with the relevant
requirements of the “Measures for Administration of Issuance
of Securities by Listed Companies” ({ R RIFEHFEITE
%)) and the “Implementation Rules for the Non-public
Issuance of Shares by Listed Companies” ({_ F A AIIEAF
BEITIREZE H4H8]) ) and are third parties independent of
the Company and its connected persons at the issue price of
RMB16.40 (and net price of approximately RMB16.38) per A
Share.

The issue price of RMB16.40 per A Share represents a
premium of approximately 9.26% to the benchmarked
price of HK$18.02 (equivalent to approximately RMB15.01),
such benchmarked price being the closing price of H
Shares on the date of the Company’s acceptance of the
subscriptions involving the non-public issuance of A Shares
under the relevant general mandate. The total proceeds
of the non-public issuance of A Shares amounted to
RMB12,999,999,986.40. The status of the use of such

proceeds as of 30 June 2021 is set out below:
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B o w B AT (A
RMB million
AR¥BEER
Total

investment The amount
Name of the investment project amount of The amount of proceeds
BREEBERE the relevant of proceeds applied as of
Project name Sub-project name project to be applied 30 June 2021
Bi2021%F
6A30AH
ER BER4E¢ BERE®
HEEH FTEEEB BRELE BRASE ERALHE
Fuel Cell Industry Chain Hydrogen-fueled cell and key 712.28 500.00 0.09

Development Project components industrialisation project

MEEERRERIER M RERTHHERIER
Solid oxide fuel cell and key components 1,512.50 500.00 -

industrialisation project
EESRNE D RBRENESE
o=

Key components of fuel cell powertrain 1,479.27 1,000.00 0.36

research and development and
construction capabilities project

KRR B BRI DT AR

UiEae NERIER
Full Series of H Platform High-end New million units digitalised power 5,625.85 3,000.00
Road-going Engines of China VI industry base stage | project
or above Emission HEBRHTHBHEZEN
Standards Project —HER

2 RFIBS A EHRURE
HY B ERAEHEBHIER



Interim Report 2021 FHidRkE 27

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) R e B A ()
RMB million
AR¥EER
Total
investment The amount
Name of the investment project amount of The amount of proceeds
BREEBERE the relevant of proceeds applied as of
Project name Sub-project name project to be applied 30 June 2021
Bi2021%F
6H30AH
EH R4S BERE®
HEEH TEEEB BRESE BEASE 2RAEE
H platform engines intelligent 1,100.00 1,000.00 0.06
manufacturing upgrade project
HEREEKE S REFRIAR
Large Diameter High-end Engine Large diameter high-end engine 1,395.00 1,075.00 0.10
Industrialisation Project laboratory project
AIEERESRER(CIRE AIEEREDRERERRIEAR
High efficiency and high speed self- 998.42 685.00 3.80
owned brand engine industrialisation
project
BEmBAN RS REES(IAR
Large diameter high-end engine 1,847.84 1,240.00 240
development project
AR BgRRER
Full Series hydraulic pressure powertrain and large-scale continuously variable 3,134.08 3,000.00 3.89
transmission (CVT) powertrain industrialisation project
2 RIRES HEKAMARBCVTH N EKEZEIIER
Replenishment of working capital 1,000.00 1,000.00 -
BRRBES
Total A3t 18,805.24 13,000.00 10.70
It is expected that the remaining proceeds, being EHSRTEEE2B(AE 1L
approximately RMB12.98 billion in aggregate, would ARM129.8F L) BEERARN
continue to be used for the relevant investment projects as N ERPEHEEEIRIER - &
set out above. The Board considers that the proceeds from EREARBITESEESE
the issuance of A shares had been and will be applied in ST 18 & 1k BR 5% 3B 1K BT 3 BE /Y
accordance with the specific uses and expected timeline as BT RS RIEERRIZA -
disclosed in the Circular.
For further details of the non-public issuance of A Shares, MIERRBITARME — 5

please refer to the Announcements and the Circular. B BRRERNEREME -
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Auditors” Review Report

Deloitte

Deloitte Shi Bao (Yue) Zi (21) No. R00052
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. (“Weichai Power”) which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 30 June 2021, the consolidated and company
income statements, consolidated and company statement of changes in equity
and consolidated and company cash flow statement for the period from 1
January to 30 June 2021 and notes to the financial statements (“interim financial
statements”). The management of Weichai Power Co., Ltd. is responsible for the
preparation of these interim financial statements. Our responsibility is to issue
our review report on these interim financial statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance
with the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32
Interim Financial Reporting in any material respect, or do not fairly reflect the
consolidated and company financial position of Weichai Power as at 30 June
2021 and the consolidated and company operating results and consolidated and
company cash flow of Weichai Power for the period from 1 January to 30 June
2021 in any material respect.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Shanghai, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Wang Lixin

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Sui Chuanxu

30 August 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2021 Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

[tem
HH
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aHEER

Note
f

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial assets held for trading
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Receivable financing
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories
Contract assets
Assets held for sale

Non-current assets due within one year

MENEE

E¥ES
RHMEMEE
e

& o Bl 3R

FE YRR R E
B HIA

H fth & YK
A

EREE
RBEREEE

Va1
VH2
VA3
VH4
VA5
VH6
VHh7
VHS
VH9

—FREPHIERBEE VAIO

Other current assets HimehEeE VA1
Total current assets MEEESG
Non-current assets EMEEE
Long-term receivables & B FE R VAaI12
Long-term equity investments REIRERE VH13
Investment in other equity instruments HiERmTAKRE VE14
Other non-current financial assets HM3EnshemaE VE15
Investment property WA MEEHE VH16
Fixed assets & E & E VAa17
Construction in progress fEEIR VH18
Right-of-use assets FREEE VA 19
Intangible assets BILEE VE20
Development expenditure FEEH VE21
Goodwill P VH22
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER VEH23
Deferred tax assets RIEFTISHEE
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE VH24
Total non-current assets ERBEEART

Total assets

BEHT

30 June 2021
202156 HA30H

77,393,443,999.19
4,917,751,327.84
23,346,257,317.44
21,902,543,811.60
17,733,512,053.73
1,246,484,060.19
1,065,860,622.32
28,087,094,842.09
2,559,721,715.06
98,037,161.20
3,405,809,023.40
2,481,558,952.52

184,238,074,886.58

9,770,920,339.80
6,067,863,961.68
3,605,581,549.65
393,215,096.97
678,985,024.38
32,322,226,927.40
6,138,097,648.34
6,561,931,812.33
22,704,078,223.17
292,997,391.98
24,135,171,117.50
268,486,237.51
6,168,544,035.32
836,143,432.61

119,944,242,798.64

304,182,317,685.22

AR

20216 H30H AR%T

31 December 2020
2020%F12A31H

62,216,111,509.25
5,852,397,849.29
19,296,491,612.98
15,421,878,611.33
9,483,678,101.82
1,095,016,121.17
1,409,858,869.61
31,226,156,809.77
1,385,150,902.30
24,237,289.50
3,179,721,675.00
1,924,109,398.31

152,514,808,750.33

9,622,504,650.00
4,944,359,514.39
2,411,112,072.96
243,013,050.00
682,163,758.85
31,722,827,681.55
5,046,193,396.84
7,714,233,013.45
23,825,708,656.91
287,116,831.24
24,665,842,392.79
252,157,738.41
6,251,213,473.80
566,913,969.77

118,235,360,200.96

270,750,168,951.29
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) G EEAER (8

30 June 2021 Expressed in Renminbi Yuan 20216 H30H ARKT
[tem Note 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
THHE MosE 202156 H30H 2020912 A31H
Current liabilities mEaE
Short-term loans HHER VH?25 5,798,662,332.31 5,731,086,536.96
Financial liabilities held for trading RBMEHEE VE26 124,042,424.87 57,504,235.74
Notes payable P B4R VF27 |2l S| 22,970,493,736.20
Accounts payable JERTER X VI28 | e AESEE IR 45,449,924,996.39
Contract liabilities ARAE VFE29 R ARG 15,547,391,077.33
Payroll payable P {1 B8k T 357 T VA30 5,891,332,723.61 5,490,721,420.68
Taxes payable JERZ T & VA3 2,856,217,330.92 2,180,739,782.32
Other payables H Ath FE A 3K VEnEyIl 12,904,625,259.93 8,408,305,895.50
Non-current liabilities due within one year —ERNIBOIEREEMGE VE33 | AR E A 11,274,647,277.08
Other current liabilities Hipneh & & V34 6,878,832,882.20 6,601,767,024.57
Total current liabilities mEBESE R ISP 123,712,581,982.77
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Long-term borrowings RAAER VE35 [t seied | 12,026,638,367.24
Bonds payable R ESH VA36 Seflaeytik | 8,702,767,425.04
Lease liabilities HEBE VE37 5,971,105,520.73 7,235,898,107.78
Long-term payables RAERFERTAR VE38 7,298,856,562.84 7,004,697,931.12
Long-term payroll payable = B AT B8 T 57 VE39 [ ERIa Sl 14,200,680,302.61
Accruals and provisions B8R VEH40 450,632,464.94 509,080,971.37
Deferred income R AE Y VA 41 4,638,079,295.97 4,996,880,280.64
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMSHEE 4,710,720,570.52 5,049,832,969.04
Other non-current liabilities HinIEnsaE VE42 7,370,129,245.13 6,877,782,237.66
Total non-current liabilities FRBEESS SNEERAEIES 66,604,258,592.50

Total liabilities

BEAF

203,164,555,846.63

190,316,840,575.27




Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

30 June 2021 Expressed in Renminbi Yuan
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A EEAER (E)
20216 H30H AR%T

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
20216 H30H 2020%F12A31H

8,726,556,821.00 7,933,873,895.00
12,377,868,307.28 180,552,538.58
G EEERCEN . (2,250,826,767.79)
253,995,150.16 223,430,167.81
1,630,243,076.46 1,630,243,076.46
CTARET AR R 43,485,047,330.89

Cepaerelailoiei i 51,202,320,240.95
SRl 29,231,008,135.07

(R H RS 80,433,328,376.02

[tem Note
UEgE gz
Shareholders’ equity IR A 2
Share capital fi& 2 VE43
Capital reserve BEARRNIE VE44
Other comprehensive income Hiira e V45
Special reserve HIA# B Vh46
Surplus reserve BHBAE VE47
Retained earnings & 9 B FE VT48
Total equity attributable to the shareholders BENEATIREERS T
of the parent
Minority interests D ER R S V49
Total shareholders’ equity [z 5T
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMBEERERS AT

SRR R G PA S 270,750,168,951.29

The notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 29 to 287 have been signed by:

Legal representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EEREKA TEGHIEEEA

Tan Xuguang Qu Hongkun

BB i

B ot A B 7 3R R A ALK R 2

FOEEF7EMPHEHRERHATIEEAETE

Head of accounting department:

BRHBEEEA

Qu Hongkun
fify 2t 38
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Consolidated Income Statement

1 January to 30 June 2021

Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

& P HE %

2021F1A1HZ6H30HILAIE AKE T

[tem Note
UEgE P 5E
I Revenue — EERA VES50
Less: Cost of sales W ERR
Taxes and surcharges ﬁﬁ&mbﬂ VA5
Distribution and selling expenses HEE VHS52
General and administrative expenses = ;%?FH VH53
Research & development expenses hEsEH VES54
Finance expenses B E A VAS55
Incl:  Interest expenses Hep: fIB B VHS55
Interest income FE LI&)\ VAS55
Add: Other income s HEAnldgas VE56
Investment income & W= VAS57
Incl:  investment income from Hop o HEEE AN
associates and joint ventures EEEN
& E W
Profit or loss on change of fair value AREEEZEHER VES58
Impairment loss of credit BERREERR VA59
Impairment loss of assets BERBERX VH60
Gain on disposal of assets EEREWS
Il. Operating profit = EEFE
Add: Non-operating income o EESNIEA VAH61
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINT V62
lll. Total profit = MEmE
Less: Income tax expenses W TSR ER VE63
IV. Net profit g SE A E
(I) Breakdown by continuity of operations (—) REERFEES S

1. Net profit from continuing operations

(I) Breakdown by attributable interests
1. Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent

2. Minority interests

(Z) BB REEE
1. BEREAT

A% 3R )5 A1

2. PHRRER

Incurred during

this period
HAEE LR

126,387,895,407.53
(1ol 102,577,192,315.17

514,469,920.14
6,313,354,418.08
4,209,967,630.95
3,567,138,773.13
(195,695,584.74)
530,844,869.16
738,609,251.70
170,467,047.18
389,934,991.55

158,322,273.68

95,693,340.02
(146,140,135.64)
(111,541,299.28)

85,570,514.65

9,885,452,393.28
139,140,290.99
52,451,379.51

9,972,141,304.76
1,717,240,768.31

8,254,900,536.45

8,254,900,536.45

6,431,644,827.88
1,823,255,708.57

Incurred in
previous period

LHABE AR

94,494,559,093.69
75,989,643,182.24

432,628,178.50
5,312,502,799.91
3,397,396,172.54
2,582,307,532.57
166,195,298.85
587,977,422.15
619,198,001.23
139,144,077.13
271,836,921.75

144,700,622.61
129,675,563.76
(358,619,232.21)
(199,053,610.17)
26,894,701.14

6,623,764,350.48
126,832,763.37
46,006,159.00

6,704,590,954.85
1,002,756,749.99

5,701,834,204.86

5,701,834,204.86

4,680,231,806.93
1,021,602,397.93
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Consolidated Income Statement (Continued) & AR ()
1 January to 30 June 2021  Expressed in Renminbi Yuan 202115 1HZ26H30H IFFRE AR T

Incurred during Incurred in
[tem Note this period previous period

HA B E R EHIEAR

V. Net other comprehensive income after tax T “E b4 & WSR2 %48 1,614,465,664.45 (331,312,309.12)
Net other comprehensive income attributable FEREARREAEA

to shareholders of the parent after tax o NGtz okt et IVl 1,148,655,833.80 (99,048,575.45)

(I) Those other comprehensive income not to (=) TeENHEBZE

be reclassified into profit or loss g H A 4R A W
1. Changes arising from re-measuring of 1. EFFEREX SRR

defined benefit plan ElEeE kS 534,286,612.60 (165,032,896.28)
2. Other comprehensive income not to be 2. EmETTREEER

reclassified into profit or loss using the 7 H A 4R A M

equity method (4,480,204.89) 11,509,465.23
3. Change in fair value of investment in other 3. H{b##z T AR &

equity instruments AREBEEES 437,675,163.14 103,773,209.63

(I) Those other comprehensive income to be (Z) BEHEERRED

reclassified into profit or loss Hiira s
1. Other comprehensive income to be 1. BEET A EIERN

reclassified into profit or loss using the Htira s

equity method 1,094,492.00 2,185,414.02
2. Cashflow hedging reserve 2. BeR=EHHER 6,152,104.98 51,933,276.56
3. Exchange differences on foreign currency 3. INESEITEERRITE

translation =& 173,927,665.97 (103,417,044.61)

Net other comprehensive income attributable FERN DR H A

to minority interests after tax FAEWREOT R IFEE 465,809,830.65 (232,263,733.67)
VI. Total comprehensive income N AW ESERE 9,869,366,200.90 5,370,521,895.74
Total comprehensive income attributable to FERAYARIRERN
the shareholders of the parent LA BB 7,580,300,661.68 4,581,183,231.48
Total comprehensive income attributable to FERLERERN
minority interests AW =B 2,289,065,539.22 789,338,664.26
VII. Earnings per share + BRI VH64
() Basic earnings per share (=) EXFR K= 0.59
() Diluted earnings per share (=) BESkRKE 0.59




34 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 4B HIRHERA A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity E 1 B R R 4 At ) R

1 January to 30 June 2021  Expressed in Renminbi Yuan 2021F1A1HZ6A30HILHIE ARKE T
Incurred during this period
KEREE
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
SERSNARRER
Other
Share Gapital ~ comprehensive Spedcal Retained Minority Total
Item Note capital reserve income reserve earnings Subtotal interests equity
BR i B E50E EeiahE SRR : AARAR it HEBRER RRERA
1. At beginning of period - REENHE 7933,873,895.00 18055253858 (2250826,76779) 22343016781 163024307646 4348504733089 5120232024095  29,231,008,135.07  80433328,376.02
1. Movements n current period o REAREEEE
() Total comprehensive income (-)GehatE - 114865583380 6,431,644827.88 758030066168  2,289,005539.22  9,869,366,200.90
(I ncton and reduction (Z) REEAT) BR
1. Cepitalnjecton from shareholders 1. RERAZE GTER  792682,92600 1219537435447 12,988,057,280.47 54294898 13033486,77031
2. Amountofshare-ased payment 2 REEMARRERS
taken to owners’ equity x| Xt= 1,185,11438 1,185,11438 1,435,081.02 262019540
3. Acquition of minorty neretsin 3 BETREVERRRE
Subsicares
4. Repurchase and transferof s 4 FREEERERARA
shares by subsidiaries - - - -
5. Others 5. i 756,299.85 756,299.85 717,96387 147626872
(1 Proft approprizion (=) HB0E
1. Distbution toshareholders 1. HERASE Vg (2033287,73909)  (2,033.287,739.09)  (40,774,81467)  (2274,062,553.%)
2. Distrbution to hodersof L HPRAEMERIE
other equty nsruments of KEENAR
subsiaries (04.297,065.73)  (94,297,065.73)
(V) Specialresene (m) 2EGR
1. Appropriationdurng the period 1. AEER VLdh 671,161 BENIEL 606 D00

2. Used durng the perod 1 1ERR Vio (28,106,179.08) (18106,17908)  (18996,09448)  (47,10227356)

Il At end of period = FEERAE 872655682100 1237786830708 (1,102,170,933%9) 2539915016 163024307646 4788340441948  69,769,896,84039 3124786499820 101,017,761,838.59




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

B O IR
2021F1A1HZ6H30HILAIE AKE T

Incurred in previous period

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

i S B R (A1)

LogEg
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent
SENENTRRER
Other
Share Capital less: comprehensive Specal Surplus Retained Minoriy Tota
Ifem Note capital fesenie  Treasury shares income Teserve Teserve eamings Subtota inerests equty
R [iFd i EARE HoEER EtEeds 2EER BYDE FARHE Ig o JERREE  BREAAH
1. At beginning of period - FHETHRE 193387389500 118896,726.65 - (127803083658 19300947145 9737282076 3728237338543 d5,03.941,06271 24550,784367.77 69,774,125,43048
Il Movements in curent period o REERELE
() Total comprehensive income (-) ehage - - - (99,04857545) - - ARR023180693 458118323148 78933866426  5,370521,895.74
(1) njection and reducton () RERAMRSEE
1. Capttlinection from shareholders 1. RERAER - - - - - - - - IBSIEUST 13388763457
2. Amount of share-besed payment aken 1 ROEREARR
foouners'equity EaNLE - - 156651832 - - - - - 15651832 19146B50 348115182
3. Acquition of minorty inerest n 3 BETRENE
subsicaries REhE - (3597,542.29) — = B - 50936929 (512691158 (3786047735 (8298738893
4, Repurchase and tranfer o s shares 4 FRAEERER
by subsicaries L) - 119069441 — = B = = 119069441 1455,203.17 2,645,98758
5. Others 5. Ef B 376,365.26 — = = = = 376,365.26 46307503 5,007,11549
(1) Profit appropriztion () HEE
1. Distbution toshareholders 1. HREMAR Va8 - - — = B - (1,079,006,849.72)  {1,079,006,849.72) - (1,079,006,849.72)
2. Disrbution to holders o other equity 1 HFRAEMER
insruments of subscaies TARBENAE - - - - - - - - (1017765936 (101,776,5%.36)
(V) Speci esenve (|)2REE
1. Appropigion during the period I BEER - - - LTk IENE - - ONIBB BB T348436816
2. Used during the period 1 1THEE B B — - (607362 = - (A8%60736) (1658975284 (41,445.826.46)
II. Atend of period = FEERHE 193387389500 11843276235 - (137707921203 21621377656 9737282076 4084208897335 48707,238415.99  25351298506.38 740585369237
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36 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRE D RHBRAF

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

1 January to 30 June 2021

[tem

HH

Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

B & | #R
2021F1A1HZ6A30HILHIE ARKE T

Incurred during
Note this period

B aE FHBER

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales of goods or rendering

of services
Refunds of taxes

Other cash received relating to operating

activities

REEHELN
REnE

HERMR  RHSH
WEIER S

W B H B R IE

BB Bt G E
BRENHRE

93,878,500,119.31
305,430,519.13

VH65 1,154,522,050.38

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

BETHRSMANG

95,338,452,688.82

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of
employees
Cash paid for all types of taxes

Other cash paid relating to operating

activities

BEEMm EREK
XNHRE

X EBIARRRT
XNHRE

XM EERE

XA A RE RS
BENHRE

63,211,789,927.78

14,875,584,136.89
4,970,120,075.43

VH65 5,129,660,519.88

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating

RERBHRIMM NG

88,187,154,659.98

V66 7,151,298,028.84

activities
Net cash flows from operating KEESEERNEER
activities 258
. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES - REEYPELEN
Renme

Cash received from sale of investments
Cash received from return on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing

activities

fEERERENE S

BGHRE W K E 1
Be

REETEE EVE
EMEMRREER
[ R € FE

VIR b
ARHNRE

15,740,125,820.60

220,157,728.47

89,736,794.71

5,996,252.60

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

REZHHEMANE

16,056,016,596.38

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for acquisition of investments
Net cash paid for acquisition of subsidiaries and

other business units

Other cash paid relating to investing activities

BRETEE EBVE
ENMEMRREES
ESEA

REXNMRE

BREFRAREMER
BUXNNREFE

XEMEREEE
AHNRE

2,674,778,808.12
17,555,263,317.79

VH66 92,531,480.80

72,942,004.27

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

REZDHREIME N

20,395,515,610.98

Net cash flows from investing activities

RERBELN
Ren&83#

(4,339,499,014.60)

Incurred in
previous period

ik gk

77,144,590,755.47
154,073,579.79

703,473,184.51

78,002,137,519.77

52,771,668,915.78

13,277,623,744.32
3,737,555,657.38

4,179,440,711.52

73,966,289,029.00

4,035,848,490.77

9,751,992,122.53

100,212,406.78

42,669,880.12

330,612,707.58

10,225,487,117.01

2,965,029,597.87
15,859,971,710.55

803,532,290.74

19,628,533,599.16

(9,403,046,482.15)
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FHBRERER ()

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

1 January to 30 June 2021

Item
1ER
= BETYEAW

RAeneE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
P ers=tr el kiikn

Cash received from capital contributions
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from capital HErh FRARRKADH
fR R 1% B U F
HRE

contributions of minority shareholders
RS ERKE SRS

REEMEREEEDAE
HHRE

EERPRADMANG

Cash received from borrowings
Other cash received relating to financing

activities

2021F1A1HZ6H30HILAIE AKE T

Incurred during Incurred in

this period previous period

T AT oL
106,090,633.91

13,029,243,557.76

106,090,633.91

39,243,571.36
18,686,603,445.21

2,846,212,899.51
119,185,404.24

46,073,900.42
18,911,879,483.36

15,921,530,357.69
15,149,868,431.77

3,390,061,907.90

EEEKXNNES

Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities

892,267,810.55 665,844,276.19

DB~ FIEREN

Cash repayments of borrowings
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or profits
and for interest expenses FEZNMHRE
Incl: Cash paid to minority shareholders for Hep: FRAIIMNGED
distribution of dividends or profits by LG &R0l
subsidiaries A~ F 492,150,289.45 316,220,541.43
Other cash paid relating to financing TR EMEEE
activities EHENRE V65 856,728,791.69 1,012,757,177.68
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities ER8TEHRE L/t 5,139,058,510.14 16,828,469,885.64
Net cash flows from financing BEEHEENRS
activities mEAE 10,782,471,847.55 2,083,409,597.72
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATEON 1« [EXEFHUHH S KH S
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EBYNTE (94,087,741.29) (47,830,401.62)
V. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND h BEeRBESEEYMFIE
CASH EQUIVALENTS MO )& 13,500,183,120.50 (3,331,618,795.28)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of m:ByBEerReSE
period BY)eisE 52,734,052,691.24 42,285,584,925.16
VI CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF N BERBREEREEEY
#HEE V166 66,234,235,811.74 38,953,966,129.88

PERIOD




38 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. LB HIRDBER AT
/\ ﬂ v ,lez
Company Balance Sheet A F EEAER
30 June 2021 2021465304
RMB
AR BT
[tem Note 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
HAE ih=2 202156 A30H 2020412 A31H
Current assets mENE E
Cash and cash equivalents BH¥ES® ARSI 32,482,779,665.43
Financial assets held for trading RHGMNEMEE 112,904,277.02 112,904,277.02
Notes receivable FE U E 1% XV+T1 | el P e il 22 933,423,164.99
Accounts receivable JE Uk BR 3R pOaws:wM 2,737,885,717.67 741,273,166.54
Prepayments FE RUA 174,711,351.87 162,769,708.16
Other receivables H fth iE X XV+T3 268,434,383.35 575,869,058.22
Inventories FE 2,248,539,266.71 4,640,893,547.51
Other current assets HthmEEE 8,776,165.20 31,193,507.32
Total current assets MBEESST 00 ek 61,681,106,095.19
Non-current assets ERBEE
Long-term equity investments RERERE XV+H4 e e A 13,846,095,781.88
Investment in other equity instruments HitEm TAKRE 1,022,264,624.95 289,420,200.00
Investment property KEEEE 1,402,555,604.79 1,313,231,046.42
Fixed assets EE & E 4,444,853,215.52 3,845,082,810.18
Construction in progress FETRE 2,338,040,624.02 2,709,380,692.43
Intangible assets BVEE 705,172,543.72 765,289,848.81
Goodwill FEES 341,073,643.76 341,073,643.76
Deferred tax assets RIEFTSREE 1,957,731,334.51 1,433,691,827.97
Other non-current assets HMIERsEE 3,861,863,346.11 3,319,760,362.50
Total non-current assets ERBEESE S0} S kP i 27,863,026,213.95

BE®ES

Total assets

110,698,879,490.86

89,544,132,309.14
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Company Balance Sheet (Continued) AFAEEAMER (B
30 June 2021 202146 H30H
[tem Note 30 June 2021
HE e 202196 H30H
Current liabilities mBaE
Financial liabilities held for trading XHEEMBE 1,946,619.00
Notes payable DS 12,299,808,532.12
Accounts payable JE - BR X 18,636,222,275.19
Contract liabilities ARAE 6,064,305,619.36
Payroll payable JE 1< B8 T 357 B 983,686,958.92
Taxes payable X E 783,112,264.81
Other payables H{th FE 3R 4,491,117,847.80
Other current liabilities HErshasE 2,077,590,596.85
Total current liabilities mEBBESS 45,337,790,714.05
Non-current liabilities EmBBE
Long-term payables REFFE IR 3,429,641.24
Long term payroll payable £ HA A< B3 T 35 M 68,277,713.59
Deferred income RIEW 2 1,176,909,044.75
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTEHRAE 10,959,426.11
Total non-current liabilities FEREBEaESS 1,259,575,825.69
Total liabilities B &R 46,597,366,539.74
Shareholders’ equity MR A
Share capital R& 2K 8,726,556,821.00
Capital reserve BEARNTE 12,891,053,586.28
Other comprehensive income Hibir s Wz 86,591,619.96
Special reserve HIEFEE 129,448,367.15
Surplus reserve B NTE 4,263,872,010.04

Retained earnings

R EHE

38,003,990,546.69

Total shareholders’ equity

BRERAR

64,101,512,951.12

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMBR DR

110,698,879,490.86

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

1,946,619.00
10,792,728,129.90
16,618,894,133.35
7,534,474,203.01
849,289,374.57
305,435,720.64
2,401,621,771.41
1,886,059,206.68

40,390,449,158.56

3,812,880.19
47,448,706.50
1,159,091,139.04
6,653,805.68

1,217,006,531.41

41,607,455,689.97

7,933,873,895.00
695,679,231.81
43,129,170.00
117,118,730.74
4,263,872,010.04
34,883,003,581.58

47,936,676,619.17

89,544,132,309.14
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40 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRE D RHBRAF

Company Income Statement
1 January to 30 June 2021

I 7R 2

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

Incurred during

[tem Note this period
IHH M5 REA B
. Revenue — EERA ol 34,116,548,485.94
Less: Cost of sales B B EER R ULl 25,094,375,937.40
Taxes and surcharges i R BT an 230,249,349.13
Distribution and selling expenses HEZA 1,209,110,240.71
General and administrative expenses EEER 717,877,224.28
Research & development expenses (kg 1,540,769,312.15
Finance expenses % & A (266,171,246.44)
Incl: Interest expenses He: FEER =
Interest income FLEWA 265,463,233.95
Add: Other income e Bl 58,225,908.51
Investment income AW XV+EH6 141,169,540.13
Incl: Investment income from Hep o HEE
associates and joint ME &R
ventures ESobge
W& 34,377,054.52
Impairment loss of credit ERREEX (39,799,650.15)
Impairment loss of assets BEREEXKX (19,720,218.67)
Gain on disposal of assets BERBEKS 78,316,945.07
Il Operating profit — EEFE 5,808,530,193.60
Add: Non-operating income o EINRA 18,619,258.65
Less: Non-operating expenses o EEINT 6,134,363.02

Total profit =
Less: Income tax expenses

GDEREE
B ST E R

5,821,015,089.23
666,740,384.83

. Net profit

(I) Breakdown by continuity of operations
1. Net profit from continuing

e illE

(=) REERFEMELR

1. FHEKE

5,154,274,704.40

operations b 5,154,274,704.40
V. Net other comprehensive income after tax A EHAMERAEWER
Biig 58 43,462,449.96
(I) Those other comprehensive income not to (=) TReEDFEEER
be reclassified into profit or loss K EMar & s
1. Change in fair value of investment 1. Hih#E=mT A
in other equity instruments BERRE
vk 43,462,449.96
VI. Total comprehensive income N okralEmeE 5,197,737,154.36

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LHELEE

28,549,475,904.20
22,028,328,311.24

164,650,122.59
472,713,585.15
417,765,528.79
1,016,381,743.73
(168,515,258.61)
173,754,591.04
84,267,920.62
586,862,228.07

70,189,156.45

(72,494,053.03)
(2,039,052.28)
2,162,165.20

5,216,911,079.89
26,800,887.28
1,279,984.31

5,242,431,982.86
600,449,881.46

4,641,982,101.40

4,641,982,101.40

(42,539,119.55)

(42,539,119.55)

4,599,442,981.85




Company Statement of Changes in Equity

1 January to 30 June 2021

Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

3 ) IR 4

B

EIES

20214F1 B 1HE6H30HIF5E ARE%T

Incurred during this period
ABRER
Other
Share Capital comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained
Item Note capital reserve income reserve reserve earings Total equity
R i3 k& LI | EfpGauE SRR AN RARAA RRERA:
. Atbeginning of period - FEENRE 7,933,873,895.00 695,679,231.81 43,129,170.00 1711873074 426387201004  34,883,003581.58  47,936,676,619.17
I Movements n current period o REEREDLE
() Total comprehensive income (=) BakzsE 43,462,449.96 515427470440  5,197,737,154.36
(I Injection and reduction of (2) RERARFAER
share capital
1. Injection of share capital 1. RREAER Vi3 792,682926.00  12,195,374,354.47 12,988,057,28047
() profit appropriation (Z) FiAsR
1. Distribution to shareholders 1. 4RENHAR Vi48 (2033,287,739.9)  (2,033,287,739.29)
(V) Spedl reserve (m) ZmkE
1. Aporoprizton during the 1. RERD
period 17,923,506.90 17,923,506.90
2. Used during the period 2. T5ER (5,593,870.49) (5,593,870.49)
Il Atend of period = KHHRRE 8726,556,821.00  12,891,053,586.28 86,591,619.9 12944836715 426387201004 3800399054669  64,101,512,951.12
Incurred in previous period
HREE
Other
Share Capital less: comprehensive Special Surplus Retained
Item Note capital resee  Treasury shares income Teserve Teserve eamnings Total equty
&R i jies BA0E HoERR  EbBAYE By BYLE APEMR  REERAH
. Atbeginning of period - FEHNRE 793387389500 69567923181 - (119983,030.10) 9489984580 360735715434 3124345781425 43,455,284,911.10
I Movements in current period o FEEREDEE
) Total comprehensive income () GekhngE - - - [5%9195) - - 464198210140 4509,442981.85
(I Injection and reduction of share capital (Z) RERARBLER - - - - - - - -
() Profit appropriation (2) #EsE
1. Distibution o shereholders 1. HERHAE V4 - - - - - - (1,079006,849.72)  (1,079,006,849.72)
(V) Special reserve (m) ZEER
1. Appropriation during the period 1. RERR = = = - 153461962 = - 153461962
2. Used during the period 2. THEH = = = - [(3857.48200) - - (3857.48200)
I, Atend of period = FEHRRE 793387389500 695,679,231.81 - (16252214965 10627698342  3,607357,154.34  34,806,433,065.93 46,987,098,180.85
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472 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

Company Cash Flow Statement

1 January to 30 June 2021

Item
|

HRE D RHBRAF

Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

o~ F) B4R i B AR

2021F1A1HZ6H30HILAIE AKE T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from sales of goods

or rendering of services

Refunds of taxes

Other cash received relating to operating activities

RERPEANRERE

HERM  RHSH
W RS

W B 0B B R IE

LEIEY )
BRENRE

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating activities

RERBRDMANG

Cash paid for goods and services
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Cash paid for all types of taxes
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

BERm EXEH
XfHRE

X EB T AR BRI
XHRE

XHNEERE

XA R EEEEE
BRNRE

Subtotal of cash outflows from operating activities

RETHREM MG

Net cash flows from operating activities

RERBELN
RengFaE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from return on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets

REZHEANRERE

DERERZRINRS

REBETEE EBVEE
MEMEREEKRED
REFR

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing activities

RERBHRSMANG

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, intangible assets

and other long-term assets

Cash paid for acquisition of investments
Other cash paid relating to investing activities

BREETEE BFEE
MEMRRAEES TN
R

REXHRE

IR EEEEE
BRNRE

Subtotal of cash outflows from investing activities

REZDRE MM/

Net cash flows from investing activities

RELBELNRERE
HE

Incurred during
this period
FEB AR

29,266,853,758.97
23,286,580.67

343,107,707.40

29,633,248,047.04

20,837,906,193.85

1,311,103,942.15
2,549,055,635.95

656,892,632.98

25,354,958,404.93

4,278,289,642.11

271,300,485.26

22,628,302.06

293,928,787.32

931,474,648.47
1,379,636,797.55

542,102,983.61

2,853,214,429.63

(2,559,285,642.31)

Incurred in
previous period

THBRLER

21,427,765,023.50
4,358,780.04

298,405,420.11

21,730,529,223.65

20,666,914,413.27

1,027,043,884.25
1,539,148,213.68

807,402,722.45

24,040,509,233.65

(2,309,980,010.00)

275,575,906.91

1,986,400.00

277,562,306.91

1,375,331,490.56
412,518,858.22

322,119,988.38

2,109,970,337.16

(1,832,408,030.25)




Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021 Expressed in Renminbi Yuan

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

AFBERER (H)

2021F1A1HZ6H30HILAIE AKE T

Item
HE
Il CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -, EEIHELAMNELLE
Cash received from capital contributions WU & W B3R &
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing activities EEFEBHHRLSMANG
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or SEREF - MBS
profits and for interest expenses FlesHmEe
Other cash paid relating to financing activities S EMEREEES
BREmRS
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing activities EEEHELEE /i
Net cash flows from financing activities EREHELN
REREFR
IV. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE M. EXFHHReERS
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EEymnYe
V. NETINCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND A BeRELZEYER
CASH EQUIVALENTS R4
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at mn: BHyREeRES
beginning of period E@EYHE
V. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT X BABELRESL

END OF PERIOD

Incurred during
this period
A4

12,989,999,986.40

12,989,999,986.40

41,612,965.98

2,659,268.29

44,272,234.27

12,945,727,752.13

(6,307.82)

14,664,725,444.11

32,355,590,939.01

47,020,316,383.12

Incurred in
previous period

ik ek

38,762,115.42

38,762,115.42

(38,762,115.42)

101,358.76

(4,181,048,796.91)

26,404,688,200.32

22,223,639,403.41
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44 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #%E HRHER A A

Notes to Financial Statements

1 January to 30 June 2021

L.

Corporate Background
Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited

by shares incorporated in Weifang, Shandong on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered address of
the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street, High
Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province.
The Company operates in the transportation equipment manufacturing
industry. The major scope of operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) covers: design, development, production, sale,
repair, import and export of engines and auxiliary products, automobile,
automobile axle and components, gear boxes and components and other
automobile components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic
valves, gears and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting
products of hydraulic components, internal combustion engines, new
energy powertrain systems and ancillary products; technical consultation
and technical services; leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel; business
management service; forklift trucks production, warehousing technology
and supply chain solution services. For the aforesaid scope of operation,
operating permit(s) should be held for those operations requiring

administrative permission.

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

holding company of the Group, respectively.

These consolidated interim financial statements of the Company were

approved by the board of directors of the Company on 30 August 2021.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes in this period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II.

Preparation Basis of the Financial Statements
Preparation basis

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial
Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”). In addition,
the Group also disclosed relevant financial information in accordance
with relevant disclosure requirements of Compilation Rules No. 15 for
Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the Public —
General Requirements for Financial Reporting (2014 Revision) and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group’s important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2020.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements of the Group for the year 2020.

Continuing operations

The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

Basis of book-keeping and principle of
measurement

The Group adopts the accrual basis as the basis of book-keeping in
accounting. Other than certain financial instruments, these financial
statements have been prepared at historical costs. A disposal group held-
for-sale is carried at the lower of carrying amount or the net value of
fair value less selling expenses. If the assets are impaired, corresponding

provisions for impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

Under historical cost method, the amount of assets was measured at the
fair value of cash or cash equivalents or consideration paid at the time
of purchase. Liabilities were measured at the amount of money or assets
due to the current obligations actually received, or a present obligation
of the contract amount, or the measurement of cash or cash equivalents
in accordance with daily activities to repay the liabilities of the amount

expected to be paid.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II.

I1I.

Preparation Basis of the Financial Statements
(Continued)

Basis of book-keeping and principle of
measurement (Continued)

The fair value refers to the amount, at which both willing parties engaged
to an orderly transaction who are familiar with the condition sell their
assets or transfer their liabilities. Whether the fair value is observable or
measured by valuation techniques, the measurement and disclosure of the
fair value in these financial statements were all based on it.

For financial assets with transaction prices as the fair value upon initial
recognition and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals to the
transaction price.

Fair value measurements are categorized into three levels based on the
degree to which the inputs of the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates

Accounting policies and accounting estimates are formulated based on
the actual characteristics of production and operation. These are reflected
in the identification of leases, provision for credit losses in respect of
receivables, classification of fixed assets and depreciation estimation,
classification of intangible assets and long-term pre-paid expenses and
estimation of amortization.

1. Accounting period
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. The accounting period for these interim
financial statements is from 1 January to 30 June.

2. Business cycle
Business cycle refers to the period from the purchase of assets used
for processing to the realization of cash and cash equivalents. The
business cycle of the Group is twelve months.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Functional currency

Renminbi (RMB) was the currency used in the major economic
environment in which the Company and its domestic subsidiaries
operate the business. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries
used RMB as their functional currencies. The Company’s overseas
subsidiaries may determine their own functional currencies based on
the currency used in the major economic environment in which they
operate the business. In preparation of these financial statements,

the Company adopted RMB as the functional currency.

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
involving enterprises not under common
control

Business combinations include business combinations involving
enterprises under common control and business combinations

involving enterprises not under common control.

4.1 Business combinations involving enterprises under
common control
A business combination involving enterprises under common
control is a business combination in which all of the
combining enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same
party or parties both before and after the combination, and

that control is not transitory.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained in a business
combination shall be measured at the carrying amounts on
the financial statements of the acquiree as at the combination
date. The difference between the carrying amount of the net
assets obtained by the acquirer and the carrying amount of
the consideration paid for the combination (or the aggregate
face value of shares issued as consideration) shall be adjusted
to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital reserve
is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be

adjusted against retained earnings.

Costs that are directly attributable to the combination are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
involving enterprises not under common
control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control and goodwill

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all of the
combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties before and after the combination.

Combination cost refers to the fair value of assets paid,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued
by the acquirer for acquiring control of the acquiree. For
business combinations of enterprises not under common
control achieved in stages through multiple transactions, the
combination cost shall be the sum of the consideration paid
on the date of acquisition and the fair value, as at the date of
acquisition, of the equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition.

The fees paid to intermediaries including audit, legal services,
appraisal and so forth and other related administrative
expenses incurred by the acquirer for the business
combination are charged to profit or loss for the current
period when incurred.

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
acquiree qualifying for the conditions of recognition acquired
by the acquirer in the business combination are measured
at fair value on the date of acquisition. When the business
combination contract provides that, upon the occurrence of
multiple future contingencies, the acquirer shall require the
return of consideration paid for the business combination,
such contingent consideration as set out in the contract
shall be recognised as an asset by the Group as a part of
the aggregate consideration transferred in the business
combination, and be included in the cost of combination
at the fair value at the date of acquisition. Within twelve
months after the acquisition, if the contingent consideration
needs to be adjusted as new or further evidences are
obtained in respect of circumstances existed as of the
date of acquisition, the amount previously included in the
goodwill shall be adjusted. A change in or adjustment to the
contingent consideration under other circumstances shall
be measured in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition and Measurement
of Financial Instruments and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies. Any change or
adjustment is included in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

The accounting treatment of business
combinations involving enterprises under
common control and business combinations
involving enterprises not under common
control (Continued)

4.2 Business combinations involving enterprises not
under common control and goodwill (Continued)
Where the combination cost is larger than the portion of
fair value of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired
in the business combination, the difference is recognized
as goodwill as an asset, and initially measured at cost. For
those with combination cost lower than the portion of fair
value of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired in the
business combination, re-verification is first carried out on
the measurement of the fair value of all identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities as well as the combination
cost. For those with combination cost lower than the portion
of fair value of net identifiable assets of acquiree acquired
in the business combination after re-verification, they are
charged to profit or loss for the current period.

If either the fair values of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired in a combination or the cost of
business combination can be determined only provisionally
by the end of the period in which the business combination
was effected, the acquirer recognizes and measures the
combination using those provisional values. Any adjustments
to those provisional values within 12 months after the
acquisition date are treated as if they had been recognized
and measured on the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising from the business combination shall be
recognized separately in the consolidated financial statements
and measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is
determined on the basis of control. Control refers to the power of
an investor over an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of its returns.
Once the relevant facts and situation which alters the elements that
define control change, the Group shall perform re-evaluation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

5.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control

of the subsidiary.

For a subsidiary acquired through a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control, the operating results
and cash flows from the date of acquisition (the date when the
control is obtained) are included in the consolidated income

statement and consolidated cash flow statement, as appropriate.

No matter when the business combination occurs in the reporting
period, subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
involving enterprises under common control or the party being
absorbed under merger by absorption are included in the Group's
scope of consolidation as if they had been included in the scope
of consolidation from the date when they first came under the
common control of the ultimate controlling party. Their operating
results and cash flows from the beginning of the earliest reporting
period or from the date when they first came under the common
control of the ultimate controlling party are included in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated cash flow

statement, as appropriate.

The significant accounting policies and accounting periods adopted
by the subsidiaries are determined based on the uniform accounting

policies and accounting periods set out by the Company.

The effect of all intra-group transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries and among subsidiaries on the consolidated financial

statements is eliminated on consolidation.

The portion of subsidiaries’ equity that is not attributable to the
Company is treated as minority interests and presented as “minority
interests” in the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. The portion of net profits or losses of subsidiaries
attributable to minority interests is presented as “minority interests”
in the consolidated income statement below the “net profit” line

item.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

5.

Basis for preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders exceeds their share of the opening balance
of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess shall be allocated

against minority interests.

Acquisition of minority interests or disposal of interest in a
subsidiary that does not result in the loss of control over the
subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction. The carrying
amounts of the interests attributable to the parent and minority
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. The difference between the amount by
which the minority interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is adjusted to capital reserve. If the
capital reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, the excess is

adjusted against retained earnings.

Classification of joint arrangements and
accounting treatments for joint operations

Joint arrangements include joint operations and joint ventures. The
classification is determined by considering the structure, legal form
and contract terms of the arrangement according to the rights
and obligations of the joint parties in the joint arrangements. A
joint operation refers to the arrangement whereby the parties have
rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the
arrangement. A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the

parties only have rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement.

The Group adopts equity method for computing the investments
n joint ventures. For details, see Note Ill. 13.3.2 Long-term equity

investment calculated by equity method
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

6.

Classification of joint arrangements and
accounting treatments for joint operations
(Continued)

The following items should be recognized by the Group in relation
to its sole and shared ownerships in the joint operation: solely held
assets, as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely
assumed liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to
its share; income derived from its entitled share of production of
the joint operation; income derived from the sales of production of
the joint operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses,
as well as expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its
share. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses related to the joint
operation are computed according to requirements applicable to

specific assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

If the Group invests or sells assets, etc. to the joint operation (except
when the assets constitute business), the part pertaining to other
participants in the joint operation among the profit or loss due to
the transaction will be recognized only before the assets are sold
to a third party by the joint operation. Where asset impairment
losses are incurred in respect of assets invested or sold, the Group

recognizes the losses in full amount.

If the Group purchases assets, etc. from the joint operation (except
when the assets constitute business), the part pertaining to other
participants in the joint operation among the profit or loss due to
the transaction will be recognized only before the assets are sold to
a third party. Where asset impairment losses are incurred in respect
of assets purchased, the Group recognizes the losses to the extent

of its share.

Recognition criteria for cash and cash
equivalents

Cash comprises the Group'’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-term
(usually mature within 3 months from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
8. Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

8.1

Foreign currency operations

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial
recognition, in the functional currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate prevailing
on the transaction dates. On the balance sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are translated into Renminbi using
the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising from the difference between
the spot exchange rate on that day and on the date of initial
recognition or the previous balance sheet date are taken to
profit or loss in the current period except for the following:
(1) The exchange difference in respect of special borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies that meet the criteria for
capitalization are capitalized during the capitalization period as
a cost under the relevant assets; (2) The exchange difference
in respect of hedging instruments used for hedging for
avoiding foreign exchange rate risks is accounted for using
hedge accounting; (3) For monetary items classified as at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI),
exchange difference arising from the change in other gross
carrying amounts other than amortized costs is taken to other

comprehensive income.

Non-monetary foreign currency items measured at historical
cost shall still be measured at the amount in the functional
currency translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing on
the transaction date. Non-monetary foreign currency items
measured at fair value are translated at the spot exchange
rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference between the amount in the
functional currency after translation and the amount in the
original functional currency is accounted for as fair value
change (inclusive of exchange rate change) and is taken to
profit or loss for the current period or recognized as other

comprehensive income.

Interim Report 2021 FRHAZRE

S S W R MY R (A

2021F1/A1HZE

64304 1 B

= 2 HBOR K| atk Al wt

(%)

8. IBEBMIEHERITE

8.1

PE S
INER ZEARHERR - 8RB
A2 5% & B ) BN R BE X 1§ 41 i
ERNERTRAUERE -
REEBEXRB  HRINEE
BEUBEERBEEREXRAR
HEXFEA/ARE  BZAB
HY B HA BE o B2 1) 6 FE SR B S E
A—BEERERANMEXRT
FIMELHELZR B (1)
HEERNIGEMINEEPIE
RHE R ZRAEE N HE T
AER{LEt AHH BB E MK
R ()R T R SNE R 1T
ENNERTANELZ/ER
EHERIERE  Q)NER
NAnBEFAEBEZEIHTA
Hipr A Wam BB MHEA K
%%WﬁZ%%E@%E%%
EPELINEN ZETARMD
Imalash - BF A BB -

NESERAGTENINEIEEE
HIHBMARSEEBWEIH
PR EM AN St
B -URnBEFENINEIE
EREEE KA ARBERE
ERHBMMERTE - FHER
WERALE S EERLERER
NESHENER FRAAE
BEEH(SEXEFH)EE
AERBRREAERREMESR
W 2

BX

o

53



54 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. #Se8) HIRHDER L T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
8. Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)
8.2 Translation of foreign currency financial statements
To prepare the consolidated financial statement, the financial
statements denominated in foreign currency of a foreign
operation are translated to RMB in compliance with the
following requirements: all assets and liabilities on the balance
sheet are translated at the spot exchange rate prevailing
at the balance sheet date; all equity items are translated at
the spot exchange rates at the dates on which such items
arose; income and expenses and profit appropriation items
in the income statement are translated at the spot exchange
rate at the date of transaction; all exchange differences of
assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity resulting from the
translation are recognized as other comprehensive income

and taken to shareholders’ equity.

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the spot exchange rate
as of the date on which the cash flows occur. The effect
of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents is
presented separately as an adjustment item under “effect of
changes in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents” in

the cash flow statement.

The opening balances of the year/period and prior
year's/period’s figures are presented according to the translated

amounts of the financial statements of the prior year/period.

When control over the Group’s foreign operation is lost
due to the disposal of ownership interests of foreign
operation or partial disposal of equity investment or
other reasons, exchange differences of foreign currency
statements attributable to the shareholders of the parent
company related to such foreign operation and presented
under shareholder’s equity item in the balance sheet are all

transferred to profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

9.

Foreign currency operations and foreign

currency translation (Continued)

8.2 Translation of foreign currency financial statements
(Continued)
In partial disposal of the equity investment or other reasons
that lead to the reduction of the proportion of interests
in foreign operation but there is no loss of control over
such foreign operations, the difference of foreign currency
translation related to the part of foreign operation disposal
will be attributed to minority interests and will not be taken
to profit or loss for the current period. In partial disposal of
equity interest in an overseas associate or joint venture, the
foreign currency translation difference related to the foreign
operation shall be taken to profit or loss for the current
period according to the proportion of the disposal of the

foreign operation.

Financial instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

Where financial assets are purchased or sold in a regular way, assets
to be received and liabilities to be borne for it are recognized on the
date of transaction, or sold assets are derecognized on the date of

transaction.

The financial assets and financial liabilities were initially recognized
at fair value. For the financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) for the current
period, related transaction expenses are directly taken to the profit
or loss for the current period; for other types of financial assets
and financial liabilities, related transaction expenses are included
in the initial recognized amount. For accounts receivable excluding
significant financing components or regardless of financing
components of contracts less than one year initially recognised
based on Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No.14-
Revenue (“Standard on Revenue”), they are initially measured at

transaction price defined based on the Standard on Revenue.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method is the method that is used in the
calculation of the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and in the allocation and recognition of the interest income
or interest expense over the accounting periods.

Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Group shall estimate the expected
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
assets or liabilities (for example, early repayment, extension, call and
similar options) but shall not consider the expected credit losses.

Amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount
at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount
and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss allowance.

9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets
After initial recognition, the Group shall measure different
types of financial assets at amortized cost, FVTOCI or FVTPL.

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows, the
Group shall classify the financial asset into a financial asset
measured at amortized cost. Such financial assets mainly
include: cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable, accounts
receivable and other receivables etc.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.1

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

If the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
and the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows and sell such
financial assets, the Group shall classify the financial asset
into a financial asset at FVTOCI. Notes receivable classified as
at FVTOCI upon acquisition by the Company are presented as

receivable financing.

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets classified
as at FVTPL and those designated as at FVTPL which are
presented in held-for-trading financial assets. Those due over
one year and expected to be held for over one year since
the balance sheet date are presented in other non-current

financial assets.

° A financial asset which does not satisfy the criteria
for a financial asset classified as being measured at
amortized cost or a financial asset at FVTOCI shall be

classified as a financial asset at FVTPL.

° At initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting

mismatch (expected credit losses).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.1

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

On initial recognition, the Group may, based on an individual
financial asset, irrevocably designate a non-trading equity
instrument investment which is non-contingent consideration
and recognized in business combination not involving
enterprises under common control as financial asset
measured at FVTOCI. Such financial assets are presented as

investment in other equity instruments.

The Group’s purpose of holding the financial assets is for

trading if one of the following conditions is satisfied:

o The Group's purpose of holding the relevant financial

assets is primarily for recent sale.

° The relevant financial assets are, on initial recognition,
a part of the centrally-managed identifiable financial
instrument portfolio, and objective evidence indicates

that short-term profit model exists in the near future.

° The relevant financial assets are derivative instruments.
However, derivatives that meet the definition of
financial guarantee contracts and those designated as

effective hedging instruments are excluded.

9.1.1 Financial assets at amortised cost

The financial asset at amortized cost is subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. Gain or loss arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortization is recognized in profit or

loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. $RTH(E)
9.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets 91 T RMEEMDHEHEGE
(Continued) (%)

9.1.1 L ARG 2R 2 G

9.1.1 Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

The Group recognizes interest income on financial
assets measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. The Group calculates interest income
based on the gross carrying amount of financial
assets multiplied by the actual interest rate, unless the
financial assets become credit-impaired financial assets
in subsequent reporting period. For those financial
assets, the Group shall apply the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset in subsequent reporting period. If the
financial assets no longer has credit impairment during
the subsequent period as a result of an improvement
in its credit risk, and this improvement may be linked
to an event that occurred after the application of the
above regulations, the Group calculates interest income
based on the gross carrying amount of financial assets
multiplied by the actual interest rate.

9.1.2 Financial assets classified as at FVTOC!

Impairment gains or losses on a financial asset classified
as at FVTOCI and the interest income calculated using
the effective interest method and exchange gains and
losses shall be recognized in profit or loss. Except for
them, changes in fair value of such financial assets shall
be recognized in other comprehensive income. The
amount of such financial asset recognized in profit or
loss of each period is equal to the amount deemed as
measured at amortized cost all the time and recognized
in profit or loss of each period. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
transferred from other comprehensive income to profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9. Financia

| instruments (Continued)

9.1 C(lassification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

9.1.2

9.1.3

Financial assets classified as at FVTOC! (Continued)

After designating a non-trading equity instrument
investment as a financial asset at FVTOCI, the changes
in fair value of such financial assets are recognized
in other comprehensive income. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are transferred from other comprehensive income to
retained earnings. During the period that the Group
holds these non-trading equity instrument investments,
the Group has established the right of collecting
dividends, whose economic benefit will probably flow
into the Group, and the amount of the dividends can
be reliably measured, then the Group will recognize

dividend income in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL shall be subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses from change in
fair value and dividends and interest income related
to such financial assets shall be recognized in profit or

loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.2

Impairment of financial instruments and other items
The Group shall recognise a loss allowance for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost, financial
assets classified as FVTOCI, a lease receivable, contract assets
and financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The Group makes a loss allowance against amount of lifetime
expected credit losses of the receivables and contract assets
arising from transactions adopting Standard on Revenue
and the lease receivables arising from transactions adopting
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21 —
Leases.

For other financial instruments, at the balance sheet date,
the Group assesses changes in credit risk of relevant financial
instruments since initial recognition. If the credit risk of the
above financial instruments has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures loss allowance based
on the amount of lifetime expected credit losses; if credit risk
of the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group recognises loss allowance
based on 12-month expected credit losses of the financial
instrument. Increase in or reversal of credit loss allowance is
included in profit or loss as loss/gain on impairment. Except
financial assets classified as at FVTOCI, allowance for credit
losses decreases the carrying amount of the financial assets.
For financial assets at FVTOCI, the Group recognises credit
loss allowance in other comprehensive income and does not
decrease the carrying amount of such financial assets in the
balance sheet.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.2

Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

The Group measures loss allowance at the full lifetime
expected credit losses of the financial instruments in the
previous accounting period. However, at the balance sheet
date, for the above financial instruments, if significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition no longer
applies, the Group measures loss allowance for the financial
instrument at 12-month expected credit losses at the balance
sheet date for the current period. Relevant reversal of loss
allowance is included in profit or loss for the current period as

gain on impairment.

9.2.1 Significant increases in credit risk
The Group assesses whether or not the credit risk
of the relevant financial instruments has increased
significantly since the initial recognition at each balance
sheet date. While determining whether the credit risk
has significantly increased since initial recognition,
the Group takes into account the reasonable and
substantiated information that is accessible without
exerting unnecessary cost or effort, including qualitative
and quantitative analysis based on the historical data
of the Group, external credit risk rating, and forward-
looking information. Based on the single financial
instrument or the combination of financial instruments
with similar characteristics of credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of default of financial instruments
on the balance sheet date with that on the initial
recognition date in order to figure out the changes
of default risk in the expected lifetime of financial
instruments. For financial guarantee contracts, the
date that the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition in the application of criteria related to the

financial instrument for impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. &R IA(HE)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 @MIAKHMIERRE
(Continued) (%)

M=

9.2.1 Significant increases in credit risk (Continued) 9.2.1 FHEREEEN(E)

Criteria for judging significant increases in credit risk

When triggering one or more of the following
quantitative and qualitative criteria, the Group believes
that the credit risk of financial instruments has

increased significantly:

o Quantitative criteria are primarily that the
probability of default of the remaining duration
of the reporting date rises by more than a certain

proportion compared with the initial recognition

o Qualitative criteria primarily include major
adverse changes in the debtor’s business or
financial position, the debtor’s internal credit
rating is actually lowered or is expected to be

lowered, etc.

At the balance date, the Group assumes that credit
risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the Group
determines that the financial instrument is only exposed
to lower credit risk. If the risk of default of a financial
instrument is low, the borrower is highly capable of
meeting its contract cash flow obligations in the short
term, and the financial instrument is considered to have
a lower credit risk even if there is an adverse change
in the economic situation and operating environment
over a longer period of time, but it may not necessarily
reduce the borrower’s performance of its contract cash

obligations.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

9.2.2 Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired include

observable data about the following events:

(1) Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
debtor;

(2) A breach of contract by the debtor, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

(3)  The creditor, for economic or contracted reasons
relating to the debtor’s financial difficulty,
granting to the debtor a concession which
will not otherwise be granted in any other

circumstances;

(4) It becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganizations;

(5)  The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties of

the issuer or the debtor.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. &R IA(HE)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items 92 @MIAKHMIERRE
(Continued) (%)

M=

9.2.3 TR Bk mTEE

9.2.3 Recognition of expected credit losses

The Group assesses the expected credit losses of
financial instruments based on individual and group
basis. The Group recognises the credit loss on
receivables, lease receivables, contract assets, etc., of
significant amount and insignificant amount but with
special credit risk on an individual asset basis, and
otherwise recognises credit loss of relevant financial
instruments on a group basis. The Group considers
the credit risk characteristics of different customers
and evaluates the expected credit losses of accounts
receivable on the basis of groupings by age, by quality
of credit history and by overdue age. The Group
considers various credit risk characteristics including
instrument type, credit risk ratings, collateral type,
date of initial recognition, remaining term to maturity,
industry, geographical location of the debtor and the

value of collateral relative to the financial asset, etc.

The Group determines expected credit losses of
relevant financial instruments using the following

methods:

o For financial assets, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group

expects to receive.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.2 Impairment of financial instruments and other items
(Continued)

9.2.3

9.24

Recognition of expected credit losses (Continued)

o For lease receivables, a credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group under
the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive.

o For a financial guarantee contract, credit loss
is the present value of difference between the
expected payments to reimburse the holder for a
credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the
Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

o For credit-impaired financial assets at the balance
sheet date, credit loss is the difference between
the gross carrying amount of financial assets and
the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at original effective interest rate.

The Group’s measurement of expected credit losses of
financial instruments reflects factors including unbiased
probability weighted average amount recognised by
assessing a series of possible results, time value of
money, reasonable and supportable information related
to historical events, current condition and forecast
of future economic position that is available without
undue cost or effort at the balance sheet date.

Write-off of financial assets

The Group shall directly reduce the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition of the relevant financial
asset.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €M I AE(E)
9.3 Transfer of financial assets 93 SREEMNER

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

J

The Group shall derecognise a financial asset when one of
the following conditions are satisfied: (1) the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, (2)
the financial asset has been transferred and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset is
transferred to the transferee; or (3) although the financial asset
has been transferred, the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset but has not retained control of the financial

asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, and it
retains control of the financial asset, the Group will recognize
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
in the transferred financial asset and recognize an associated
liability. Relevant liabilities are measured using the following

methods:

o If the transferred financial asset is measured at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of relevant
liabilities is the carrying amount of continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset less the
amortized cost of the rights retained by the Group (if
the Group retains rights for the transfer of the financial
asset) plus the amortized cost of the obligations
undertaken by the Group (if the Group undertakes
relevant obligations for the transfer of the financial
asset), and the relevant liabilities are not designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.3 Transfer of financial assets (Continued)

o If the transferred financial asset is measured at fair
value, the carrying amount of relevant liabilities is the
carrying amount of continuing involvement in the
transferred financial asset less the fair value of the
rights retained by the Group (if the Group retains rights
for the transfer of the financial asset) plus the fair value
of the obligations undertaken by the Group (if the
Group undertakes relevant obligations for the transfer
of the financial asset), and the fair value of the rights

and liabilities is measured on a stand-alone basis.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, for financial assets classified
as at amortized cost and financial assets at FVTOCI, the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset transferred and the sum of the consideration received
from the transfer and accumulated amount of the fair value
changes originally taken to other comprehensive income
corresponding to the derecognized part shall be taken to
profit or loss for the current period. Where the financial
asset to be transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity
instrument investment designated as at FVTOCI, accumulated
gains or losses previously taken to other comprehensive
income are transferred out from other comprehensive income

and taken to retained earnings.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & it B & & & 5114 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. €M I A(H&)

9.3 Transfer of financial assets (Continued) 93 SREEMNHEE(E)

For a part of transfer of a financial asset that satisfies
the derecognition criteria, the carrying amount of the
transferred financial asset is allocated between the part
that is derecognized and the part that is continuously
involved, based on the respective fair values of those parts
on transfer date. The difference between the sum of the
consideration received for the part of the derecognition and
the accumulated amount of the fair value changes originally
taken to other comprehensive income corresponding to the
derecognized part and the carrying amount on the date of
derecognition for the derecognized part shall be taken to
profit and loss for the current period. Where the financial
asset to be transferred by the Group is a non-trading equity
instrument investment designated as at FVTOCI, accumulated
gains or losses previously taken to other comprehensive
income are transferred out from other comprehensive income

and taken to retained earnings.

For a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety that does not
satisfy the derecognition criteria, the Group will continuously
recognize the transferred financial asset in its entirety.
Considerations received should be recognized as a financial
liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments

Financial instruments or their constituent parts issued by

the Group are classified into financial liabilities or equity

instruments on initial recognition on the basis of the

substance of the contractual arrangements and the economic

nature but not only its legal form, together with the definition

of financial liability and equity instruments.

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
On initial recognition, financial liabilities are classified
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial

liabilities.

9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL consist of financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivative
instruments of financial liabilities) and those
designated as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities at
FVTPL are presented as held-for-trading financial
liabilities or other non-current liabilities according

to their liquidity.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

= 2 BOR K| atk A wt

LRI A (&)

TRHBENERTAND
8
AEBREMBETESHIAN
ARGHREEMRBENEER
BEMmIEENERER  #£6%
BMEENESTANTESE &
MisERBEZem T ARE
ERFBrDEREBARBLR
mILHE-o

9.4.1 B EHNT R E
T BB BT A HE AR B &)
DRARAEEFERE
BHHATHBRENESR
BEMEMLERAE -

91T LA BEFEER
HE8i AE 88
mHE AR
RAanEEFER
HE&Ht AgHE
TmHEeBMBE B
Ex5HEEmAadE
(EERemAEN
PHEITE)NMEER
RAanEEFER
HE&Ht AEHE
mHEMEE N
AREEFEAE
2HAEHER
HeRABERER
RBUEIRAERS
MEpBEIEHAM
EMRBEIE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities
(Continued)
9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

If one of the following conditions is met for
a financial liability, it suggests that the Group

recognises financial liability held-for-trading:

o The purpose of undertaking the relevant
financial liability is mainly for the purpose

of repurchasing in the near future.

° The relevant financial liability is, upon initial
recognition, a combination of identifiable
financial instruments that are centrally
managed and there is objective evidence
that the Company has recently adopted

short-term profit-making methods.

° The relevant financial liability is a derivative
instrument, except for derivatives that
qualify for financial guarantee contracts
and derivatives that are designated as

effective hedging instruments.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

(Continued)
9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

The Group designates a financial liability as FVTPL
on initial recognition when the financial liability
satisfies one of the following criteria: (1) such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
accounting mismatch; (2) The financial liability
forms part of a group of financial liabilities or a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the documented risk management
or investment strategy of the Group, and
information about the grouping is reported to
key management personnel on that basis; (3) The
qualified hybrid financial instrument combines

financial liability with embedded derivatives.

Held-for-trading financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value, and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
and any dividend or interest income earned on
the financial liabilities are recognised in profit or

loss.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. R IE(H&)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 TRIBEMEZTAEND
instruments (Continued) fB(E)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 941 R ABEH S HEREE
(Continued) (%)

9.4.1.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) 9411 LA REEFEER

HEBHAEEAE

mHERMAaE(E)
For the financial liabilities designated as FVTPL, HRWEEERAR
changes in fair value arising from changes in the nRBEFEREEE
Group’s own credit risk are included in other it AEBHEZN
comprehensive incomes and other changes TRAE Zeom
in fair value recognised in profit and loss. BERAEER S

Upon derecognition of the financial liabilities, EARREES| -

cumulative changes in fair value arising from MAREBEZES

changes in the own credit risk previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred and included in retained earnings.
Dividends or interest incomes earned on the
financial liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
If the impact of the change in credit risk of such
financial liability dealt with in the above way
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, the Group shall present all gains
or losses on that liability (including the effects of
changes in the credit risk of that liability) in profit

or loss.

N R g
Hih R EBEZS
FASEHER - Z
THMmABERIEER
B 2 BIE A EHAD
ZeElar B8 &=
A = b & & 5| 8 /Y
HAnBERANE
BHEEALTEK
HZEemE
@E’]fo'ﬁzﬂ
HP 48
LLEﬁ
SRAEN
[ Bz % &)
LETRES
LEX&TEKTE &
VEEHEEBCE - K
SEKZEMAE
B 2 #B 15 kB K
BEE HERRR
BN ESHE)G
ANEHER o

o

T 1

i)
el

or mh Bk

Xt

WE D 4R DI EE

I m o B
W
LN

il

E

A

—~

i

il



74  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments (Continued)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

(Continued)
9412 Other financial liabilities

The Group shall classify all financial liabilities
as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities, financial guarantee
contracts that arise when a transfer of a financial
asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies,
and gains or losses arising from derecognition or
amortisation are recognised in profit or loss for
the period.

When the contractual cash flows are changed
due to the renegotiation or modification of
the contract made between the Group and
the counterparty and the renegotiation or
modification does not result in the derecognition
of the financial liability that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost, the Group shall
recalculate the carrying amount of the financial
liability and shall recognised related gains or
losses in profit or loss. The carrying amount of
the financial liability shall be recalculated as the
present value of the renegotiated or modified
contractual cash flows that are discounted at the
financial liability’s original effective interest rate.
Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying
amount of the modified financial liability and
are amortised over the remaining term of the
modified financial liability.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. R IE(H&)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 TRIBEMEZTAEND
instruments (Continued) H(E)
9.4.1 Classification and measurement of financial liabilities 941 R ABEH S HEREE
(Continued) (%)
9412 Other financial liabilities (Continued) 9412 Hh o RBE(E)

94121 Financial guarantee contracts 112 MG ERER

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder of the
contract for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL,
or arise when a transfer of a financial asset
does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach,
are measured at the higher of amount
of loss provision and the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation
amount determined based on the relevant
requirements under the Standard on

Revenue upon initial recognition.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity

instruments (Continued)

9.4.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of

it) when the underlying present obligation (or part of it)

is discharged. An agreement between the Group (the

debtor) and the creditor to replace the original financial

liability with a new financial liability with substantially

different terms is accounted for as a derecognition of

the original financial liability and the recognition of a

new financial liability.

When the Group derecognises a financial liability or
a part of it, it recognises the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability (or part of the
financial liability) derecognised and the consideration
paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or new

financial liabilities assumed) in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
9. Financial instruments (Continued) 9. R IE(H&)
9.4 Classification of financial liabilities and equity 9.4 TRIBEMEZTAEND
instruments (Continued) H(E)
9.4.3 Equity instruments 943 EmTA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences Hm T AZREERER

AEBEEMBRAERER

a residual interest in the assets of the Group after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
(including refinanced), repurchased, sold or cancelled
by the Group are recognised as changes of equity.
Changes of fair value of equity instruments is not
recognised by the Group. Transaction costs related to

equity transactions are deducted from equity.

The Group recognises the distribution to holders of the
equity instruments as distribution of profits. Dividends

paid do not affect total amount of shareholders’ equity.

The Group is entitled to extend the term of the
perpetual bonds issued by the subsidiaries of the
Company for an indefinite number of times. The Group
is also entitled to defer payment of coupon interest
on its perpetual bonds. The Group is not contractually
obliged to pay cash or other financial assets. The
perpetual bonds are classified as equity instruments
and presented as minority interests in the consolidated

financial statements.

MEETHNRSGERNA
Rl - REHHT(EHR
&) M\ hENGEH
BT AEREGNEE
BEIE o NEEAERE R
TEMAAREEES - &
REMZHHENRHE
PR R 2 R HRL -

AEEHESTAKES
®) 2 BL 1F & FR 9 BL 8
B BRORERN TR
WL RE RS 4 RE o

HRARRFRARETH
KEE AEEERTR
REEY - YRKBEER
EAE » AEBARELT
XY ARBEYEARE
BXNHEEHEMERE
B ROKEESBAER
TH AEAHFRKRTT
BB R A



78 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Financial instruments (Continued)

9.5

9.6

Derivatives and embedded derivatives

Derivatives include forward foreign exchange contracts,
cross currency swap and interest rate swap instruments,
etc. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value at the
date when the derivative contracts are entered into and are

subsequently re-measured at fair value.

For hybrid contract constituted by embedded derivatives
and host contract, if the host contract is a financial asset,
the embedded derivative is not separated from the hybrid
contract, and the hybrid contract shall be taken as a whole
to which the accounting standards on the classification of

financial assets apply.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Where the Group has a legal right that is currently
enforceable to set off the recognised financial assets and
financial liabilities, and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the financial asset and settle the financial liability
simultaneously, a financial asset and a financial liability shall
be offset and the net amount is presented in the balance
sheet. Except for the above circumstances, financial assets
and financial liabilities shall be presented separately in the

balance sheet and shall not be offset.

10. Receivable financing

For notes and accounts payables classified at FVTOCI with a maturity

of less than one year (inclusive) are included in receivable financing.

Please refer to Note II1.9 for the related accounting policies.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

11.
1.1

Inventories

Classification of inventories

The Group’s inventories mainly include raw materials,
finished goods, materials under entrusted processing, self-
made semi-finished goods and work-in-progress and second-
hand forklift trucks etc. Inventories are initially carried at cost.
Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of

conversion and other costs.

11.2 Calculation of cost of inventories transferred out

11.3

The actual cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by
using weighted average method, first-in-first-out method or

specific identification method.

Basis for determining net realisable value of inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the
lower of cost or net realizable value; provisions for inventory
write-down are made on the excess of its cost over the net

realizable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale and relevant taxes. Recognition of the net realizable
value is based on the verified evidences and considers the
purpose of holding inventories and the effect of post balance

sheet events.

Provision for decline in value of other inventories is made
based on the excess of cost of inventory over its net realisable

value on an item-by-item basis.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

11.

12.

Inventories (Continued)

11.3 Basis for determining net realisable value of inventories
(Continued)
Following a provision for impairment of inventories is made, if
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in
value of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable
value is higher than the carrying amount, the amount of
the write-down is reversed. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

11.4 Inventory system

The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

11.5 Amortisation method of low-value consumables
Low-value consumables are amortised in full when received

for use.

Assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset or disposal group shall be classified as held
for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction (inclusive of non-monetary asset swap with

commercial substance) rather than continuous use.

A non-current asset or disposal group classified as held for sale
must also satisfy the following conditions: (1) according to the
practice of disposing of this type of assets or disposal groups in a
similar transaction, a non-current asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition; (2) the sale will likely
occur as the Group has made a resolution in respect of a disposal
plan and obtained a firm purchase commitment from a buyer, and

the sale is expected to be completed within one year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

13.

Assets held-for-sale (Continued)

The Group measures the non-current assets or disposal groups
classified as held for sale at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Where the carrying amount is higher
than the net amount of fair value less costs to sell, carrying amount
should be reduced to the net amount of fair value less costs to sell,
and such reduction is recognised in impairment loss of assets and
included in profit or loss for the period. Meanwhile, provision for
impairment of held-for-sale assets are made. When there is increase
in the net amount of fair value of non-current assets held for sale
less costs to sell at the balance sheet date, the original deduction
should be reversed in impairment loss of assets recognised after the
classification of held-for-sale category, and the reversed amount is
include in profit or loss for the period, except for the impairment
loss of assets recognised before classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held-for-sale are
not depreciated or amortized. Interest and other costs of liabilities in
disposal groups classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Long-term equity investments

13.1 Basis for determining joint control and significant
influence
Control exists when the investor has power over the
investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect its returns. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic
activity, and exists only when decisions relating to the
activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies. When
determining whether an investor is able to exercise control or
significant influence over an investee, the effect of potential
voting rights of the investee (for example, warrants and
convertible debts) held by the investors or other parties that
are currently exercisable or convertible shall be considered.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
13.2 Determination of initial investment cost
For a long-term equity investment acquired through a
business combination involving enterprises under common
control, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment is the attributable share of the carrying amount
of the shareholders’ equity of the acquiree on the date of
combination in the consolidated financial statements of
the ultimate controlling party. The difference between the
initial investment cost and the carrying amount of cash
paid, non-cash assets transferred and liabilities assumed
adjusted to capital reserve. If the balance of capital reserve
is not sufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained earnings.
For issuing equity securities as consideration, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment is the
attributable share of the carrying amount of the shareholders’
equity of the combining party on the date of combination
in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party. The aggregate face values of the shares are
accounted for share capital. The difference between the initial
investment cost and the aggregate face values of the shares
issued is adjusted to capital reserve. If the capital reserve is
insufficient to be written down, the retained earnings shall be

adjusted.

As for the long-term equity investment acquired through
business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control, the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment shall be taken as the merger cost on the

acquisition date.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

13. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 13. REARERE (&)
13.2 Determination of initial investment cost (Continued) 132 VIR ER AT (8)

The intermediary fees such as auditing, legal services,
appraisal and consultation and other related administrative
expenses incurred by the combining party or the acquirer for
business combination shall be taken to profit or loss of the

current period when incurred.

The initial measurement of the long-term equity investment
obtained by means other than the long-term equity
investment formed by business combination shall be
accounted for at cost. Where additional investment results
in significant influence or joint control (but not control) over
the investee, the cost of long-term equity investment is the
sum of the fair value of the original equity investment plus
the additional investment cost determined in accordance with
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 —

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments.

13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement

and profit or loss

13.3.1 Long-term equity investment calculated by cost
method
The Company’s financial statements adopt the cost
method to calculate long-term equity investment in
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries refer to investees which can

be controlled by the Group.

The long-term equity investment calculated by cost
method is measured at the initial investment cost.
Adding or recovering investment adjusts the cost of
long-term equity investment. The current investment
income is recognised according to the cash dividend or

profit declared to be distributed by the investee.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement

and profit or loss (Continued)

13.3.2

Long-term equity investment calculated by equity
method

The Group’s investment in associates and joint
ventures is calculated by equity method. Associates
refer to invested entities to which the Group can exert
a significant influence, and joint ventures are joint
arrangements in which the Group has only the right to

the net assets of the arrangements.

When equity method is adopted, if the initial
investment cost of long-term equity investment is
greater than the fair value share of identifiable net
assets of the invested entity, the initial investment cost
of long-term equity investment shall not be adjusted;
If the initial investment cost is less than the fair value
share of the identifiable net assets of the invested
entity, the difference shall be recorded into the current
profits and losses, and the long-term equity investment

cost shall be adjusted at the same time.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

13. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 13. REIRERE (&)

13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement 133RBEFHERERBRAE

and profit or loss (Continued) (&)
13.3.2 Long-term equity investment calculated by equity 1332 B m I E R R AR
method (Continued) BIRE(HE)

When equity method is adopted, the investment
income and other comprehensive income shall be
recognised respectively according to the share of
net profit and loss and other comprehensive income
realised by the invested entity, and the carrying amount
of long-term equity investment shall be adjusted at
the same time; the carrying amount of long-term
equity investment shall be reduced accordingly by
calculating the portion to be enjoyed according to the
profit or cash dividend declared by the invested entity;
the carrying amount of long-term equity investment
shall be adjusted and included in the capital reserve
for other changes in the owner’s rights and interests
of the invested entity except net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution. When
recognising the share of the net profit or loss of the
invested entity, the net profit of the invested entity
shall be adjusted and recognised on the basis of the
fair value of the identifiable assets of the invested
entity at the acquisition date. If the accounting
policies and periods adopted by the invested entity are
inconsistent with those of the Company, the financial
statements of the invested entity shall be adjusted in
accordance with the accounting policies and period
of the Company. The investment income and other
comprehensive income shall be recognised accordingly.
For transactions between the Group and associates
or joint ventures, the assets invested or sold do not
constitute business, and the gains and losses of internal
transactions are offset by the shareholding attributable
to the Group. On this basis, the investment gains
and losses are recognised. However, the unrealised
internal transaction losses between the Group and the
invested entity shall not be offset if they belong to the
impairment losses of the transferred assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
13. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
13.3 Recognition method for subsequent measurement

and profit or loss (Continued)

13.3.2 Long-term equity investment calculated by equity

method (Continued)

The Group discontinues recognising its share of net
losses of the investee after the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its
net investment in the invested entity is reduced to
zero. If the Group has incurred obligations to assume
additional losses of the investee, estimated liability is
recognised according to the expected obligation, and
recorded as investment loss for the period. Where net
profits are subsequently made by the invested entity,
the Group resumes recognising its share of those
profits only after its share of the profits exceeds the

share of losses previously not recognised.

13.4 Disposal of long-term equity investment

At the time of the disposal of long-term equity investment,

the difference between its carrying amount and the actual

consideration obtained shall be taken to profit or loss for the

current period. For long-term equity investment calculated by

equity method, the same basis as that adopted in the direct

disposal of assets or liabilities by the invested entity shall be

adopted and the part that would otherwise be taken to other

comprehensive income is accounted for proportionally.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
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14. Investment property 14. REMEME
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital HEMFEE  ZEARDESNE
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right KIGEE SAMEREMEBENEM
that is leased out and a building that is leased out. EpEcHEAn tERE o
THEVEEEY) -
An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the B MR Hh B BB AR AN 1T WA B
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably E - HEREUEEMEABNEES
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs o NRERZEERBHKENZR
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment AR A BEKAEE M A SFHELE
property. Subsequent costs other than that are recognized in profit BIEF AR E R ER A o K I LASN
or loss for the period in which they are incurred. MEMEBESH  ERARTTASH
B o
The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its AREBHEAKRAERGREEEME
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on BITRENE  EHEERSHAKRA
the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows: ERAFHIRITE S - 5 RmT -
Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
TBEHEA TaEHEE
Item EHH g (F) EE(%) FHEER(%)
Land use rights {5 FR 4 48.5-50.0 0 2.00-2.06
Houses and buildings FEEREEY 14.5-30.0 0-5 3.17-6.90
Fixed assets 15. BEEE

15.

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held for production or
supply of goods or services, rental or for administrative purposes
with useful lives over one accounting year. A fixed asset is
recognized only when the economic benefits associated with the
asset will probably flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. Fixed assets are initially measured at cost.

If the economic benefits relating to a fixed asset will probably flow
in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent expenditure
incurred for a fixed asset shall be included in the cost of the fixed
asset, and the carrying amount of the component of the fixed asset
that is replaced shall be derecognized. Subsequent expenditure
other than that shall be recognized in profit or loss for the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
15. Fixed assets (Continued)
Other than fixed assets arising from the use and appropriation of
safety funds, special reserve offset against the cost of fixed assets,
and equivalent amounts of accumulated depreciation recognized;
the straight line method or double-declining balance method is

adopted for the depreciation of fixed assets of the Group.

The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual

depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows:
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Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
EEH A AR FEE
ltem HHE s (F) B3 (%) FHEER(%)
Land ownership + 5P A Indefinite
fEHARR 0 0
Houses and buildings EEEEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00
Machinery and equipment B 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33
Electronic equipment BT 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Vehicles EHR 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AR NEREE
leased out (long-term) (Note) (=8 (&) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment AR NEREE
leased out (short-term) (Note) (28 (51) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Others H 1t 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00

Note: For self-owned fixed assets leased out by the Group as lessor under
operating lease, those leased for a period of not more than 12 months are
presented under forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) and
those leased for a period of more than 1 year are presented under forklift
trucks and equipment leased out (long-term).

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and makes adjustments if necessary.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

16.

17.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant
expenses. No provision is made for construction in progress. A
construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset is

ready for its intended use.

Contract asset and liability

Contracts with customers will be presented in the Group’s balance
sheet as a contract liability or a contract asset, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the customer’s

payment.

17.1 Contract asset
Contract assets refer to the Group’s right to receive
consideration for the transfer of goods to its customers,
which depends on factors other than the passage of time.
The Group’s unconditional (i.e., depending only on the
passage of time) right to collect consideration from customers

is shown separately as receivables.

The Group’s method for determining and accounting for
expected credit losses which are related to contract assets are
detailed in Note II1.9.

17.2 Contract liability
A contract liability is presented in the balance sheet where an
amount of consideration has been received or is receivable by
the Group prior to the Group performing by transferring the

related good or service to the customer.

The Group offsets the contract assets and contract liabilities
under the same contract and presents them on the balance

sheet as a net amount.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
18. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of

the following conditions are satisfied:
(1)  expenditures for the asset are being incurred;
(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset

for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are

recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
18. Borrowing costs (Continued)

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be

capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

M

where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds or any
investment income on the temporary investment of those

funds.

where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in

which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying

asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to

prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption

is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs

incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the

current period until the acquisition, construction or production is

resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

Il. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B & & & 51 16 5
Estimates (Continued) (74)
19. Intangible assets 19. B &E

19.1 Valuation method, useful life, impairment test for PNEEEESFELE £

intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is
probable that the economic benefit associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initially
at cost. However, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with a fair value that can be measured reliably
are recognized separately as intangible assets and initially

measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according
to the period over which it is expected to generate economic
benefits for the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as
having an indefinite useful life when there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to

generate economic benefits for the Group.

The expected useful lives of the intangible assets are as

=0 RERH

BREEECEREGRANER
MERAERANER H AR
AR SEMhEt 2K A T LA
R - WA AN AT ) A A
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BE EAonrEEENA S
FEN NEBEI/ENE
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BREERREGERAEE
REEBEMAR ) BREEERT
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RENGSHRNERERE®
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REBVEAENRIERSS

follows: wnr

[tem Expected useful lives (years)
HH RS ®(F)
Patents E-w=Esy ) 3-20
Trademark rights PEAZFE A 10, /indefinite NHEE
License TR 3-15
Land use rights T b fE AR 30-50
Orders on hand EFETE 1-25
Customer relationship EEBRE 2-17
Software LIg e 2-10
Others =i 3-10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
19. Intangible assets (Continued) 19. M EE (&)
19.1 Valuation method, useful life, impairment test for PNEEEESAELE £

intangible assets (Continued)

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants
that are developed and constructed by the Group, and
relevant land use rights and buildings, are accounted for as
intangible assets and fixed assets, respectively. Payments
for the land and buildings acquired are allocated between
the land use rights and the buildings; if they cannot be
reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and buildings

are accounted for as fixed assets.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful
life and amortization method at least at each year-end and

makes adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This
category of intangible assets will not be amortized and will
be reviewed every accounting period based on its useful life.
If evidence indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will
be accounted for in accordance to the policy for intangible

asset with definite useful life stated above.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

19.

Intangible assets (Continued)

19.2 Expenditure on an internal research and development

Expenditure on the research phase is recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which it is incurred.

Expenditure in the development phase is recognised as

intangible asset when the following criteria are met.

Expenditure on the development phase which cannot met all

of the following conditions are recognized in current profit or

loss:

(1

)

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible

asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use

or sell it;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits. Among other things, the Group can
demonstrate the existence of a market for the output
of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself
or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the

intangible asset;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and the

ability to use or sell the intangible asset; and

its ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
19. Intangible assets (Continued) 19. M EE (&)

19.2 Expenditure on an internal research and development
(Continued)
If the expenditures cannot be distinguished between research
phase and development phase, the Company recognizes
all expenditures into current profit or loss. The cost of the
internally developed intangible assets only include the total
expenditures incurred from the point of time at which the
conditions for capitalisation are met until the intangible assets
are ready for intended use. No adjustment is made to the
costs already expensed in the profit or loss incurred by the
identical intangible asset before it satisfies the conditions for

capitalisation in the development phase.

20. Impairment of assets

The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets,
contract assets, assets classified as held-for-sale, other current assets

and lease receivables using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

20.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss of assets is recognized, it cannot

be reversed in subsequent accounting periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)
21.

22.

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have incurred but
shall be amortized over the current period and subsequent periods
of more than one year. Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized

using straight-line method with amortization period as follows:
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Amortization period

ltem (years)
IHE BHER(F)
Industrial mould fee THEEAS 1-5
Industrial equipment fee THhEFEE 5
Expenditure on improvement of fixed assets HMABREEERR T The shorter of useful life and lease term

leased in FRSmEASENE
Payroll 22. B TN

22.1 Accounting treatment for short-term remuneration
Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the
accounting period in which the staff members provide
services are recognized as liability and taken to the profit and
loss for the current period or the costs of the relevant asset.
The Group recognises the amount of employee benefits that
actually occurred and charged to profit or loss for the current
period or cost of relevant assets. Employee benefits are non-

monetary benefits measured at fair value.

During the accounting period in which employees render
service, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and other social security contributions
and housing provident fund paid by the Group, as well as
labour union funds and employees’ education expenses
extracted by requirement are taken into account in
determining the amount of staff remuneration based on
the required accrual basis and proportions and in turn the
corresponding liabilities, which are charged to profit or loss

for the current period or cost of relevant assets.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
22. Payroll (Continued)

22.2 Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are classified into defined
contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

22.2.1

2222

Defined contribution plan

In the accounting period in which employees render
services, the amount payable under the defined
contribution plan is recognised as liability and charged
to profit or loss for the current period or cost of
relevant assets.

The employees of the Group participate in pension
insurance and unemployment insurance administered
by local governments, as well as annuity plan. The
relevant expenditure is recognized, when incurred, in
the costs of relevant assets or the profit or loss for the
current period.

Defined benefit plan

The benefit obligation under defined benefit plan
based on the formula determined by projected unit
credit method would be vested to the service period of
the staff and charged to current profit or loss or cost
of relevant assets. Some overseas subsidiaries of the
Group operate defined benefit pension plans, under
which contributions shall be made to a separately-
administered fund.

The service costs and the net interest on the net
liabilities or net assets under the defined benefit plan
would be taken to the current profit or loss or cost of
relevant assets. The changes generated from the re-
measurement of the net liabilities or net assets under
the defined benefit plan (including actuarial gains or
losses, return on assets under the plan, less the amount
included in the net interest on net liabilities or net assets
under defined benefit plan, changes under the effect
of maximum assets, less the amount included in the
net interest on net liabilities or net assets under defined
benefit plans) would be taken to other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (74)
22. Payroll (Continued) 22. BT HE (&)
22.2 Accounting treatment for post-employment benefits R2EBrENNETRES

(Continued)

2222 Defined benefit plan (Continued)
Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities
or net assets under the defined benefit plan with the
discount rate. Changes in the net obligations under the
defined benefit plan are recognized under cost of sales,
selling expenses, general and administrative expenses,
research & development expenses and finance expenses
in the income statement. Costs of services include costs
of services for the current period, costs of services for
previous periods, and gains or losses on settlement.
Net interest includes interest income accrued upon
assets under the plan, interest expenses incurred due
to obligations under the plan, and interest under the
effect of maximum assets.

22.3 Accounting treatment for severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its
employees, payroll payable arising from such severance
benefits are recognized on the earlier of the following dates
and included in profit or loss for the current period: when
the Group is unable to unilaterally withdraw the severance
benefits provided under its plan to terminate working
relationship with employees or redundancy plan; or when the
Group recognizes costs or expenses relating to reorganization
involving the payment of severance benefits.

22.4 Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits, the items conforming
to the conditions of defined contribution plan are treated
according to the requirements in the defined contribution
plans, whereas the rest are recognised and measured as net
liabilities or net assets under other long-term staff benefits
according to the defined benefit plan. At the end of reporting
period, staff costs under other long-term staff benefits are
recognised as three components, namely service cost, net
interest on net liabilities or net assets under other long-term
staff benefits and changes upon re-measurement of net
liabilities or assets under other long-term staff benefits. The
total net amount of these items is included in profit or loss
for the current period or the cost of relevant assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

23.

24,

Accruals and provisions

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations involving entities not
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;
(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognized for
provisions above; and the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with

the principle of revenue recognition.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

24,

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value
of equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which
are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant
costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the
capital reserve is credited accordingly. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions

have been fulfilled, and etc.

No cost or expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,

provided that all non-market conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the

instrument granted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
24. Share-based payments (Continued)

25.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. If the right may be exercised immediately after the grant,
the fair value of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall, on
the date of the grant, be included in the relevant costs or expenses,
and the liabilities shall be increased accordingly. If the right may
not be exercised until services are completed or until the specified
performance conditions are met during the vesting period, the
services obtained in the current period shall, based on the best
estimate of the information about the exercisable right, be included
in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall be increased
accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to settlement of
the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the fair value of
the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value is taken to
profit or loss for the current period.

Revenue

The Group recognises revenue based on the transaction price
allocated to such performance obligation when a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. A performance obligation represents the commitment
that a good or service that is distinct shall be transferred by the
Group to the customer. Transaction price refers to the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange of transferring goods or services to a customer, excluding
the amount received on behalf of third parties and the amount that
the Group expects to return to a customer.

It is a performance obligation satisfied during a period of time if
one of the following conditions is met: (1) the customer obtains and
consumes economic benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs; (2) the customer is able to control goods
in progress during the Group's performance; (3) goods generated
during the Group’s performance have no alternative use, and
the Group is entitled to payments for performance completed to
date. Otherwise, the Group will recognise revenue at the point in
time when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods or

services.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
25. Revenue (Continued)

The Group adopts the input method to determine performance
schedules, namely according to the Group’s input into the
performance of contractual obligations. When the performance
progress cannot be determined, the Group is expected to be
reimbursed for the costs already incurred and recognize the revenue
based on the costs already incurred until the performance progress

can be reasonably determined.

If there are two or more of performance obligations included in
the contract, at the contract inception, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each single performance obligation based on
the relative proportion of stand-alone selling prices of goods or
services promised in single performance obligation. However, if
there is conclusive evidence indicating that the contract discount
or variable consideration is only relative with one or more (not the
whole) performance obligations in the contract, the Group will
allocate the contract discount or variable consideration to relative
one or more performance obligations. Stand-alone selling price is
a price at which the Group would sell goods or services separately
to a customer. The stand-alone selling price cannot be observed
directly, the Group estimates the stand-alone selling price through
comprehensive consideration of all reasonably acquired relative

information and maximum use of observable inputs.

Variable consideration

Where variable consideration exists in the Group’s contracts, the
best estimate of variable consideration is arrived at using either
an expected value or most likely outcome method. Transaction
price comprising the variable consideration does not exceed the
amount that it is highly probable that there will not be a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized when
the uncertainty is resolved. On each balance sheet date, the Group
re-estimates the amount of variable consideration that should be

included in the transaction price.

Consideration payable to customers

Where consideration payable to customers exists in a contract, it is
set off against transaction price and is applied against revenue for
the current period at the later of the point at which the relevant
revenue is recognized and the point of payment of (or commitment
to pay) consideration to customers, unless the consideration payable

is for obtaining other distinct goods or services from the customers.

RNEBBRARAERTRBAEE - A
BEREEABITEAESEIRARE
TRAOEE - EBRAEETRSEBE
TR BEBEMNKRATEEMEE
WEN  AEBRBDEEENMRAR
SEERRA - HRBLEEENE
BRERIL -

BRTEEMEBENSZRBEHEREH -
AEEEARMBR  RRIEBEE
RWEBAERmEARBNEFEE
MASLD  SRXZERIBESE
HEHNE - BEEEREFBERAS
RNk EHEEEAR P AL
ZHR(MIF2M) BEOEBKHEBL
AREEKZA RIS HED#
EHE-AXZEBENRE - EBE
B ~ZHEASEREPEEHHERM
HRBOERE - EREBELEERS
B ARBHFEZEERSERE
M2 EAEREES - WERAREHRA
BN EGEREE-

QE 206

BRPFEAZHESN  AEBEIRR
HEEAKAEELSHERENEY
ENREMRTH - BaWEHENR
HERK - THBEARR T HEE 1 HRR
RRFTEBARABAIETERLESE
REOWeE S—EEREXRA
AEBEH AR ARZEHRAOT

BHESE -

e B P 4HE
ERTFEENEFPHER @ BRIFZ
HERR/TATFISEAM A AERE
DEmBAMBH - AEERZENE
ERRZ ZER - WAEEZHEREA
HX (AR TP HE_E
B B s B R 2 B



104 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. L8 IR D BRA T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)

25. Revenue (Continued)
Sales with quality assurance terms attached
For sales with quality assurance terms, if the quality assurance
provides a separate service to the customer other than ensuring
that the goods or services sold meet the pre-determined standards,
the quality assurance constitutes a single performance obligation.
Otherwise, the Group will account for the quality assurance
obligation in accordance with the Accounting Standards for

Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies.

A principal/an agent

The Group determines whether it is a principal or an agent at the
time of the transaction based on whether it owns the control of
the goods or services before the transfer of such goods or services
to the customer. Where the Group is in control of that good or
service prior to transferring the same to a customer, the Group
is a principal, and revenue shall be recognized based on the
total consideration received or receivable. Otherwise, the Group
is an agent, and revenue shall be recognized at the amount of
commissions or service charges expected to be entitled to collect,
and such amount shall be determined based on net amount of total
consideration received or receivable less amounts payable to other
related parties, or based on the pre-determined commissions or

proportions.

Except for the income arising from contracts with customers,
income of the Group includes interest income and lease income
from daily operating activities. For details of relevant accounting

policies, please refer to Note Ill. 28.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

26.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. Government
grant is classified as asset-related government grant and income-
related government grant. Government grant for purchasing,
building or otherwise forming long-term assets is recognized as
one related to assets. Otherwise it is recognized as one related to

income.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of monetary asset,
it is measured at the amount received or receivable. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of non-monetary asset, it is
measured at fair value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is

measured at a nominal amount.

An asset-related government grant is recognized as deferred
income and recognized in profit or loss by stages over the useful life
of the related assets in a reasonable and systematic way. However,
a government grant measured at a nominal amount is recognized
directly in profit or loss for the current period. A government grant
related to income is accounted for as follows: if the grant is a
compensation for related costs expenses or losses to be incurred
in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred income,
and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which the related
costs are recognized; if the grant is a compensation for related costs
expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized immediately in

profit or loss for the current period.

Government grant related to daily operations is recognized in
other income. Government grant not related to daily operations is

recognized in non-operating income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

27.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, except that it is a goodwill adjustment arising from business
combination, or transactions or events recognized directly in
shareholders’ equity or other comprehensive income, in which case
they are recognized in shareholders’ equity or other comprehensive

income.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using
the liability method.

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

(1) where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: the transaction is not a business
combination; and at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

(2)  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
27. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years
and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

(1) where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

(2)  in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
a deferred tax asset is only recognized to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will be reversed
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be

utilized in the future.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)

27.

28.

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax
assets previously written down are reversed to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease at inception/modification date. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are

subsequently changed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting

Estimates (Continued)

28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee
28.1.1 Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date on
which the leased asset is made available by the lessor
for the Group’s use. The right-of-use asset is initially

measured at cost. This cost includes:

° the initial measurement amount of the lease
liabilities;
o any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less the relevant amount
of any lease incentives received (where lease

incentives are available);

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the

lease.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued)

28.1.1

2812

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group made provisions for depreciation of right-
of-use assets in accordance with the depreciation
requirements under the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 4 — Fixed Assets. Right-of-
use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term is depreciated over the
remaining useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated over the shorter of its remaining useful life

and the lease term.

The Group determines whether impairment has
occurred in the right-of-use asset and accounts for the
recognised impairment losses according to Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 8 — Assets

Impairment.

Lease liabilities

Except for share-term leases and leases of low value
assets, at the commencement date of a lease, the
Group initially measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the interest rate implicit in the lease as
discount rate. If the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing

rate will be adopted as discount rate.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (74)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE (&)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued) 28 1V AEEERAMAE)
28.1.2 Lease liabilities (Continued) 2812 HEBE(E)

Lease payment refers to the amount paid by the Group
to the lessor relating to the right to use an underlying
asset during the lease term, including:

o fixed payments and in-substance fixed payments
less the relevant amount of any lease incentives
(where lease incentives are available);

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or arate;

o the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group;

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate;

o amounts expected to be paid by the Group
under residual value guarantees.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a ratio, are initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date of a lease. Variable lease
payments that are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability are recognised in profit or loss or
related asset costs when incurred.

Upon commencement of the lease term, the Group
calculates the interest expense of the lease liabilities for
each period of the lease term based on a fixed periodic
interest rate, and recognized in profit or loss for the
current period or the costs of the relevant asset.
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HRBORHAERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued)

28.1.2

2813

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date of the lease, the
Group re-measures the lease liabilities and adjusts
the corresponding right-of-use asset in the following

circumstances:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the Group re-measures
the lease liabilities by discounting the present
value of revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate;

o the expected lease payments under a guaranteed
residual value or the index or rate determining
the lease payments change, in which cases
the Group re-measures the lease liabilities by
discounting the present value of revised lease
payments using the original discount rate.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group elects not to recognize the right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases and
low-value asset leases of vehicles, machinery and
equipment and office buildings. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. A lease of low value asset refers to a single
lease asset which, when new, is of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised in profit or loss or the cost of
underlying assets on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE(8H\)
28.1 The Group as lessee (Continued) 28 1 AEEERAMAE)

2814 Lease modifications 8l14THESE

If the lease changes and meets the following
conditions, the Group will account for the lease

modification as a separate lease:

o the lease modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or more

leased assets;

o the consideration increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group re-allocates the consideration
in the revised contract, re-determines the lease term
and re-measures the lease liability by discounting the
present value of the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the lease

modification.

If the lease change results in a reduction in the scope
of lease or the term of lease, the Group reduces
the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets and
recognises the related gains or losses on the partly
or fully terminated lease in the current profit or loss.
If other lease changes result in the re-measurement
of the lease liability, the Group adjusts the carrying

amount of the right-of-use assets accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor

2821

2822

Separating components of a lease

For a contract that contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group shall allocate the consideration
of the contract by applying Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.14 — Revenue in respect of
allocation of transaction price, on the basis of their

respective stand-alone selling prices.

Classification of leases

Leases that substantially transfer all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases; otherwise, it is an

operating lease.

2822.1 The Group records operating leasing business as
a lessor
The Group recognises lease payments from
operating leases as lease income on a straight-
line basis in different periods over the lease term.
The Group capitalises initial direct costs incurred
in relation to an operating lease and apportions
such amount over the lease term on the same
basis as that used for lease income. Such amount
will be taken to profit or loss for the current

period by stages.

The Group recognises any variable lease
payments relating to operating lease not included
in the lease payments as income, in profit or loss

for the current period as incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

J

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE(8H\)

28 2R EEEREMEAE)
2822 MEH) 7 (4)

28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)

28.2.2 Classification of leases (Continued)

28222 The Group records finance leasing business as a BLLAEEIEALEA
lessor iR A E X
On the commencement date of the lease, the RESEHMA®BA -
Group adopts the net lease investment as the AEBNBRERE
recorded value of the financial lease receivables FEEREREE

and derecognises the finance lease assets.
The net lease investment is the sum of the
unguaranteed residual value and the present
value of outstanding lease payments at the
commencement date of the lease which are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the

lease.

Lease payments refer to the amount that the
Group should collect from the lessee for the
purpose of transferring the leased assets during

the lease term, including:

° fixed payments and in-substance fixed
payments required to be paid by lessee,
less any lease incentives (where lease

incentives are available);

° variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate;
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II1.

Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)
28.2.2 Classification of leases (Continued)
28222 The Group records finance leasing business as a

lessor (Continued)

. the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the

lessee;

° payments for exercising the option to
terminate the lease, if the lease term
reflects that the lessee will exercise an

option to terminate the lease;

° any residual value guarantees provided to
the Group by the lessee, a party related to
the lessee and an independent third party
that is financially capable of discharging

the obligations under the guarantee.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)
28.2.2 Classification of leases (Continued)
28222 The Group records finance leasing business as a

lessor (Continued)

Variable lease payments that are not included in
the measurement of net lease investments are
recognized in profit or loss for the current period

as incurred.

Interest income in each period during the lease
term are calculated and recognized by the Group

using the fixed periodic rate of interest.

2823 Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the

lease payments for the new lease.

If the finance lease changes and meets the following
conditions, the Group accounts for a lease modification

as a separate lease:

o the modification expands the scope of the lease
by increasing the right to use one or more leased

assets;

o the consideration increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
28. Leases (Continued)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued)

28.23 Lease modifications (Continued)

If the modification of the finance lease is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group will account for the

lease modification in the following cases:

If the lease is classified as an operating lease
when the modification becomes effective at
the commencement date, the Group begins
accounting for the lease modification as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification
and uses the net lease investment before the
effective date of the lease modification as the

carrying value of the leased asset;

If the modification is effective at the
commencement date and the lease is classified
as a finance lease, the Group accounts for such
modification in accordance with the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 —
Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Instruments in respect of the modification or re-

negotiation of contracts.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
28. Leases (Continued) 28. HE(8H\)
28.2 The Group as lessor (Continued) 28 2R KEERAHBEAE)

2824 Sale and leaseback transaction 2824 EEHBIX S

The Group as a seller and lessee

The Group determines whether the asset transfer in
the sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale
in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No.14 — Revenue. If the transfer of assets
is not a sale, the Group continues to recognize the
transferred assets and recognizes a financial liability in
equal amount to the transfer income, and accounts for
the financial liabilities in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 22 — Recognition
and Measurement of Financial Instruments. Where the
transfer of assets is a sale, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets formed by the sale and leaseback
based on the portion of the original asset’s book value
that is related to the use rights obtained from the
leaseback, and only recognizes the relevant gains or

loss that relates to the rights transferred to the lessor.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5 B %K & & 51 6 5
Estimates (Continued) (74)
29. Hedge accounting 29. EMEE

29.1 Basis of hedge accounting and accounting treatment 9. 1B EHETNKENRS

To manage the risk exposure caused by specific risks such
as foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group
has designated certain financial instruments as hedging
instruments for hedging. The Group applies hedging
accounting for a hedge that satisfies the prescribed
conditions. Hedging activities of the Group include fair value
hedges and cash flow hedges. For the hedges for foreign
exchange risk with firm commitment, the Group treated them

as cash flow hedges.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group’s hedging is

classified as follows:

(1) Fair value hedges refer to the hedging against the risk
of fair value change in respect of definite commitments
which are not yet recognized (other than exchange rate

risks) of assets and liabilities already recognized.

(2)  Cash flow hedges refer to the hedging against the
exposure to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognized asset or liability or a highly probable
forecast transaction, or a foreign currency risk in an

unrecognized firm commitment.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = & % & 5 B R & & 51 1 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued) 29. EMEE(E)
29.1 Basis of hedge accounting and accounting treatment 9. KB EHETNKENRS

(Continued)
Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting

are accounted for as follows:

Fair value hedges
The Group’s fair value hedge is a hedge against interest
rate risk (risk of fair value change) of the fixed rate debt

instruments.

Gains or losses arising from a hedging instrument are
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. Gains or
losses in respect of the hedged item attributable to hedged
risk are recognized in profit or loss and the carrying amount
of the hedged item that is not measured at fair value is
adjusted.

For fair value hedge relating to debt instruments carried at
amortized cost, the carrying amount of the hedged items is
adjusted and amortized to profit or loss over the remaining
term of the hedge using the effective interest rate method.
Amortization begins on the date of adjustment but no later
than the point when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted

for hedging gains and losses.

Where the hedged items are firm commitments not yet
recognized, upon designation of the hedging relationship, the
accumulated change in fair value arising from the hedging
risk of the firm commitments are recognized as an asset or
a liability, and related gains and losses are taken to profit or
loss for the current period. When the Group obtains assets
or undertakes liabilities by performing firm commitments,
the initial recognised amount of the assets or liabilities is
adjusted to include the accumulated change in fair value of

the recognised hedged items.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued)
29.1 Basis of hedge accounting and accounting treatment

(Continued)

Cash flow hedges

The Group's cash flow hedge include hedges of the expected
sales/procurements, foreign currency financial instruments,
foreign exchange risk on firm commitments and interest rate
risk of variable rate debt instruments (exposure to variability

in cash flows).

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognized in other comprehensive income,

while the ineffective portion is recognized in profit or loss.

If the expected transaction being hedged is subsequently
recognized as non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities,
or when the expected transaction of non-financial assets or
non-financial liabilities becomes the firm commitment under
applicable fair value hedges, the amount of cashflow hedging
reserve originally recognized in other comprehensive income
is transferred out and taken to the initial recognized amount
of that asset or liability item. For other cashflow hedges,
during the same period in which the expected cashflow being
hedged affects profit or loss, for example when the expected
sale occurs, the cashflow hedging reserve recognized in other
comprehensive income is transferred out and taken to profit

or loss for the current period.

When the Group no longer applies hedging accounting
to cashflow hedges, if the future cashflow being hedged
is still expected to occur, the amount previously taken to
other comprehensive income is not transferred out until the
expected transaction actually occurs or the firm commitment
is performed; if the future cashflow being hedged is no
longer expected to occur, the accumulated amount of
cashflow hedging reserve shall be transferred out from other
comprehensive income and taken to profit or loss for the

current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

II. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting = - % & 5t B & & & 51 6 5t
Estimates (Continued) (%)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued) 29. EMEE(E)
29.2 Effective evaluation of hedging 292 EERE MR 0%

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting,
the risk management objective and the risk management
strategy. The documentation includes identification of
the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of
the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument's effectiveness in offsetting the exposure
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. Besides, the Group assesses
on an ongoing basis whether such hedging relationships
are complying with the hedge effectiveness requirements
as at the commencement date and in subsequent periods.
The Group recognises that the hedging relationships meet
hedge effectiveness requirements when they meet all of the

following requirements:

° There is an economic relationship between the hedged

item and the hedging instrument.

. The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value

changes that result from that economic relationship.

° The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same
as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to

hedge that quantity of hedged item.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Accounting
Estimates (Continued)
29. Hedge accounting (Continued)

29.2 Effective evaluation of hedging (Continued)
If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge
effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but
the risk management objective for that designated hedging
relationship remains the same, the Group rebalances the
hedging relationship and adjusts the quantity of the hedged
items or hedging instruments having existed in the hedging
relationship to make the hedge ratio conform to the hedge

effectiveness requirement again.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised (with the exception of rollover of the hedging
strategic component or unfulfilled replacement), if its
objective of risk management changes, so that the
hedge relationship no longer satisfies the objective of risk
management, or if the hedge no longer fulfills the other
conditions under the accounting requirement of a hedge, the

Group will cease the adoption of such hedge accounting.

30. Profit appropriation

31.

Interim and final cash dividends of the Company are recognized as

liabilities upon approval by shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

= %};@%ﬁﬁ%&’@%ﬂﬁ%
H
29. EHgst (&)

29 2EHB MR E(E)
ENEEABRERLENRER
mMABNTAERARIERK
BREZEMBENERE R
BIRR A Er » AEEKE
TEHHEBTE HEKRF
ENERBEATKRENER K
EMTENHEETHE M
EEHLEERTAERER
BN

MREHITADIH B
& ARKLRETEEER
EMREAEAKE D MR BLE
‘RSN - AR EER S
E8{ BREMBETHER
RRBEEREBER  XEZREH
THREEREIENEM
G AEBRKRITERES

&t o
=H A

30. FE 2 &

31.

RRARWHRERERERE A -
RAEHERERRAE -

JiNiEe

RREEE
RBRERDNZE2EEE @ 7T AR
FEmMKANKE iR - RKETA
HIEMHE  ERABROEEEKEE
BENHIETRE  BREAMXH
B BRI BIARE - WKEEE
EH - BEMEENH  KNEDRE
EAE AR EREEEE - R
HREERERFERBLEASFERNT
=



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32.

33.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2) its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3)  the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.1 Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements.

Confirmation of functional currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing
its functional currency, multiple factors are taken into
consideration to recognize the major economic environment
of their operating locations. Under circumstances with
multiple factors and no obvious functional currency, the
Group uses judgment to confirm its functional currency. Such
judgment is the best to reflect economic influence of the
underlying transactions, events and environment.

Sale and leaseback sub-leases

Leasing of forklift trucks is the principal business of KION
GROUP AG (“KION"), which includes 3 categories: direct
leasing, sale and leaseback sub-leases and indirect leasing.
To fund leases, industrial forklift trucks are generally sold
by KION and its subsidiaries (“KION Group”) to finance
partners. The industrial forklift trucks are then leased back
to companies under KION Group (head leases), which sub-
lease them to external end customers (described below as
"sale and leaseback sub-leases”). These head leases generally
have a term of four to five years. Taking into account the
fact that the finance partners can only lease the industrial
forklift trucks to KION Group, at rental rate determined based
on transfer income plus an agreed rate of return, and the
leased assets are to be owned by KION Group upon expiry
of the term of the head leases, the management of the
Group considers that under the sale and leaseback sub-leases
arrangements, the control over the respective leased assets
incidental to the head leases are retained by KION Group, the
asset transfer is not considered as a sale. As such, the Group
continues to recognize the transferred assets and at the same
time recognizes a financial liability that corresponds to the
amount of the transfer income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EAEFTHE MG (E)
estimates (Continued)

33.1 Judgments (Continued) 33.1 HER (%)

Indirect leasing arrangement

KION Group sells industrial forklift trucks to finance partners,
who then lease them to external end customers (abbreviated
below as “indirect leasing”). Taking into account the contract
terms and historical commercial practice, KION Group
repurchases from finance partners the transferred industrial
forklift trucks at agreed prices or market prices when the term
of indirect leasing expires, the management of the Group
considers that KION Group still maintain control over the
corresponding leased-out assets, and asset transfer under the
indirect leasing arrangement is not considered a sale. As such,
the Group continues to recognize the transferred assets, and
the present value of the Group’s obligations to repurchase is
recognized as a liability. The difference between the transfer
income and such liability is accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 21 —
Leases.

Method of ascertaining of performance progress for contracts
(only applicable to situations where control is transferred
within a period of time)

The input method is adopted by the Group to ascertain
the progress of performance of contracts. In ascertaining
performance progress, products for which control is not
yet transferred to customers are deducted. Specifically, the
performance costs actually incurred on a cumulative basis
as a percentage of estimated total costs is used to ascertain
progress of performance. Performance costs actually
incurred on a cumulative basis include direct and indirect
costs incurred by the Group in the course of fulfilling its
performance obligations, but does not include costs that are
not proportional to the performance progress of the Group,
such as costs of products or materials not yet installed, used
or consumed. The Group considers that contract prices
are ascertained on the basis of performance costs, and the
adjusted costs actually incurred as a percentage of expected
total costs can essentially reflect truly the performance
progress of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.1 Judgments (Continued)

Indirect leasing arrangement (Continued)

As the period of validity of such contracts is relatively long
and may span over a number of accounting periods, the
Group shall review and revise budget as the duration of the
contracts continues, and adjust the amount of recognized

revenue accordingly.

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the business model of the Group’s management
of financial assets. In judging the business model, the Group
considers corporate appraisal, methods of reporting the
results of financial assets to key management members, risks
affecting the results of financial assets and its management,
as well as the methods of remunerating relevant business
managers and so forth. In assessing whether the objective is
to collect contractual cash flows, the Group needs to analyze
and judge the reasons for disposing of the financial assets
before maturity, time, frequency and value of the financial

assets and so forth.

Contractual cash flow characteristics

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. When it is necessary to judge whether the
contractual cash flow is only the payment of the principal and
the interest based on the outstanding principal, including the
assessment of the correction of the time value of money, it
is necessary to judge whether there is a significant difference
compared with the benchmark cash flow. For financial
assets with early repayment features, it is necessary to judge
whether the fair value of the early repayment features is

minimal.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

= E}@
33. EAEH MBI A GE ()

at BOSR B 1 wt A Wt

33.1 HE (&)

FIEBE L (&)
ERNZEARFENERE
FIRE S M A E e IR 0 A&

CREARMNEEEZLE
Ji#’$EﬂWWA$WW
e

XHERA
CREENTIRERSND R
BARAEBERCMEEN
%%@f’ﬁﬂ%%%ﬁﬁ
5o AREEERRAEEF
BEMEMEREEAERESH
BEXENTA FEIRE
EXANERNREEETT A
NAMEBER AR EFHRHN
T AE - ERHEZ S AWER
éﬁﬁiméﬁﬁﬁk'$%
FEHEREEI AR
ﬁ%@l B~ SREAMEE
SHEIT I -

ERBEETERFH
CREERVRERRND L
HAREGHMEENARRSES R
ERNE FEHEHARBRESR
ERGEAHASMUAREN
e BEBOF BN
éiji%MHTFﬁE{QEﬁ{‘KIE
S R EHEEEER
fLteEAFREE
RATERFENS
%U@ﬂxﬁlt 743
GHEFNE -

J

B @
3'l_:
oF
H.

g

Wﬁ}rﬂlm
- @

>t

=1
=]

éHii w

2@
= m
™

<P

e}

B



Interim Report 2021 FHiFRE 129

T 7 2% BT G (48
2021F181HZ6H30H 15 R
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1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EAEFTHE MG (E)
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty

33. 2 fhETM N E 1T

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

future accounting periods, are discussed below.

Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to assess
the impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets.
The application of the expected credit loss model requires
significant judgments and estimations, and all reasonable
and evidenced information, including forward-looking
information, should be considered. In making such judgments
and estimations, the Group infers the expected changes in
the debtor’s credit risk based on the historical repayment
data in combination with economic policies, macroeconomic

indicators, and industry risks.

Provision for losses in respect of accounts receivable and
contract assets is measured at the amount of the lifetime
expected credit losses. Regarding the accounts receivable and
contract assets for which impairment matrix is applied (on a
group basis) to determine credit losses, the Group relies on
common risk profiles to classify them into different groups.
Such common risk profiles include ages, overdue ages, credit
risk rating and so forth. Regarding receivables and contract
assets which are individually significant or are individually
insignificant but have special credit risks, impairment testing is

conducted individually.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of accounts receivable and contract assets
(Continued)

Where the result of re-estimation is different from the
existing estimation, the difference will affect the profit of the
period of changes in estimates and the carrying amount of

the accounts receivable and contract assets.

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial
assets (other than goodwill and trademark rights with
indefinite useful life)

At the balance sheet date, the Company makes its judgment
as to whether there is any evidence indicating potential
impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful life shall be tested
for impairment when there is any indication of impairment
in addition to the annual impairment testing. Other non-
current assets other than financial assets shall be tested
for impairment if there is any evidence indicating that their
carrying amount cannot be recovered. When the carrying
amount of an asset or asset groups is higher than the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the net amount
of its fair value less costs of disposal and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
it indicates impairment. The net amount of the fair value less
costs of disposal is determined by making reference to the
price in a sale agreement in an arm’s length transaction or
the observable market price less the incremental costs directly
attributable to such assets disposal. In projecting the present
value of future cashflow, the management is required to
estimate the projected future cashflow of the asset or asset
group and select an appropriate discount rate for determining

the present value of future cashflow.
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III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B R & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. ERGFHERN&E (&)
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued) 33.2hETA A REE M ()

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks with indefinite
useful life

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademark
rights with indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the asset group or group of asset groups including
the goodwill and trademark rights. Estimating the recoverable
amount requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the asset group or group of
asset groups and also to choose a suitable discount rate in

order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes net liabilities
under defined benefit plans based on calculating model
of the present value of the defined benefit obligations less
fair value of the assets under the plan. The present value of
defined benefit obligations comprises of various assumptions,
including term of benefits and discount rate. Inconsistency
between the future events and such assumptions may subject
the net liabilities under defined benefit plans on the balance

sheet date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair
value on the financial statements. The aforesaid measurement
is on the basis of some assumptions. Fair value may differ

significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and deductible
losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profit together with future tax planning

strategies.

Provision for decline in value of inventories

Provision for decline in value of inventories is recognized
on the basis of the net realizable value of inventories. The
management’s judgments and estimates are required for
determining the net realizable value of inventories on the
basis of clear evidence, taking into consideration of purpose
of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events and
other factors. The difference between the actual outcome
and original estimate will affect the carrying amount of
inventories and provision or reversal of decline in value of

inventories during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of accruals and provisions related to quality
warranty of products

The Group estimates the obligation related to quality
warranty of guaranteed products based on contractual
terms, current knowledge and historical experience. The
Group reasonably estimates maintenance fee charge and
makes relevant provision based on all relevant data including
historical data on and current situation of maintenance,

product upgrade and market changes.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = & % & 51 B K & & 51 4 5t
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. EAEFTHE MG (E)
estimates (Continued)
33.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued) 33.2fhETA A REE M ()

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets
and intangible assets at least once at the end of the year.
Estimated useful lives are determined by the management
based on historical experience of similar assets and expected
technological advancement. Corresponding adjustment to
depreciation and amortization expenses for future periods will

be made in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.

Limitations on the estimation of variable consideration

In estimating variable consideration, the Group considers all
such information as shall be reasonably obtained, including
historical data, current data and projected data, thereby
estimating the amount of possible consideration and the
probability to the extent of such quantities as shall be
reasonable. If it is estimated that multiple outcomes are
possible for the contracts, the Group estimates the amount of
variable consideration based on the expected value approach.
If it is estimated that only two outcomes are possible, the
variable consideration is arrived at using the most likely
outcome method. Variable consideration is included in the
transaction price to the extent it is highly probable that there
will not be a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized when the uncertainty is resolved. In
assessing whether it is highly probable that there will not be
a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized when the uncertainty relevant to the variable
consideration is resolved, the Group also considers the
possibility of reversal of income and the ratio of reversed
amount. On each balance sheet date, the Group re-assesses
the amount of variable consideration, including re-assessing
whether the estimation of variable consideration is limited, to
reflect the circumstance as at the end of the reporting period

as well as changes during the reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W R B G ()
1 January to 30 June 2021 2021417 1H26H30H I1F 5
IV. Taxation g i IE
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. TEHERHE
rates
Value-added tax (VAT) — For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, output VAT is calculated by applying
12 (E R 13%, 9% and 6% to the taxable income for normal taxpayers, but the

Group may pay it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current
period.
REBBREANFRA—MARNARERBANI3% ~ 9% ~ 6%HIF =X
STEEHEN - WIRNMKREHAFENNEENE RN E BT EUEE
B °

— The basis of computation and applicable rate of VAT primarily applicable to
major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out below:
REBIFINF AR EEEBEIGENATRE EBR RS RIAT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
Bk BRABEXR =
Amount of taxable added-value Germany 19%
e B E 2R =

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax
laws and regulations in force in the respective countries.
HBEREENNEEBE MR EEERETE -

City maintenance and construction tax — Itis levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

is
I T AR R AR REBRGMNE) MBI %35% T4
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IV. Taxation (Continued)
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g A E ()

1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEBERBE(E)

rates (Continued)

Education surcharge

B B

Local education surcharge

#7525 B 0

Corporate income tax

EEMEH

It is levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

RERBMERERN3 % -

It is levied at 2% on the actual turnover taxes paid.

HERBMARNRER 2% -

It is levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that for overseas
subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax rate of the countries or regions
in which the subsidiaries operate.

RBIINFRBIREERR - HREEER RN - CEMEHIR
JEMBLFT1S R 15% 525 % R4

The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income tax
primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out
below:
AEEBHNFEFRATEFEANCEMGRA KR AR ES
UM

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
B AR B BRBEXR B=
Amount of taxable income Germany 30.70%
JEATL PG 3R R
Amount of taxable income United States 21.00%
e PTG EE of America

EE

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws and
regulations in force in the respective countries.
HBIRAMGHH R BB E MBI EEERETE -

Certain oversea subsidiaries enjoy tax benefits pursuant to the local tax
policies.
FEFINFRARIEREMTRMBR=ZIHBESR -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits

Preferential corporate income tax for the Company

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008. The Company continued to be recognized as a
high-tech enterprise in 2020 and is therefore entitled to enjoy a

preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2022.

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd., Hande Axle (Zhuzhou) Gear Co., Ltd.,
Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Weichai Torch Technology Co., Ltd.
(HESe MBRIB AP BBE A 7)), and Tsintel Technology Co., Ltd.
("Tsintel Technology”) were recognized as high-tech enterprises
in 2018 and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% from 2018 to 2020. The Group expected that
the abovementioned companies will continue to enjoy a 15%
preferential tax rate for corporate income tax in 2021. Weichai
Power (Weifang) Reproduction Company Limited was recognized as
high-tech enterprises in 2019 and are therefore entitled to enjoy a

preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2019 to 2021.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Huainan Special
Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Torch Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine
Co., Ltd., Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co., Ltd.,
Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd., Shengrui Transmission
Corporation Limited (“Shengrui Transmission”) and Linde Hydraulics
(China) Co., Ltd. were recognized as hightech enterprises in 2020
and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of
15% from 2020 to 2022.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

o B IE (%)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of Cai Shui [2019] No. 13, Shaanxi
Fast Automotive Components Import and Export Company Limited,
Weichai Digital Technology Co., Ltd., Weichai (Weifang) Venture
Capital Co., Ltd. (#iZ€ C#ith) BIZIEE BRAF]) and Weifang
Internal Combustion Engine Quality Inspection Center Company
Limited (457 POMALE 15 7R 0B R 2 7)) may apply the inclusive
tax deduction and exemption policies for small enterprises and are
subject to corporate income tax at the reduced rate of 20% based
on their taxable income which is taken as 25% of their income.
In 2021, pursuant to the Notice of the Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Taxation No. 12 [2021], the aforesaid
companies enjoyed a further reduction of 50% enterprise income
tax on the basis of the preferential policies specified in Article 2 of
Cai Shui [2019] No. 13

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice of the Continuation
of the Enterprise Income Tax for Implementation of Exploration
and Development of Western Region promulgated by MOF, State
Administration of Taxation and National Development and Reform
Commission No. 23 [2020], dated 23 April 2020, the following
companies have implemented preferential tax policy of 15% for the

Western Development:

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Hande Axle Co.,
Ltd., Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Automobile
Xinjiang Motor Co., Ltd, Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Xi'an Fast
Auto Drive Co., Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Fast Eaton (Xi’an)

Power Transmission System Co., Ltd. and Fast Eaton (Baoji) Light

Transmission Co., Ltd.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Preferential corporate income tax for the domestic
subsidiaries of the Company (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Announcement concerning the
Cancellation of 22 Matters of Approvals About Non-administrative
Permissions to be Sought for Taxation Issues numbered 58 of 2015
issued by the State Administration of Taxation on 18 August 2015,
for those companies entitled to the preferential tax treatment at
15% under the western development strategy of China, only filing is

required instead of approval.

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements

1.

Cash and cash equivalents

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

IR
2.

JH (%)

HWEE(E)
RRARBRAFRAIBEMSEH
BE(E)
BIE2015F8AISHERMEARA
£2015F FE585 XN A M EEUH
M22 BB 55 IETT IR AR Al | L S IH
NEINHRTE  ZXAIPARAE15%
WHRBRERBRN AR THEEEH]R
EHE -

h G OF I R I H R

1.

ERES

RMB
ARET

[tem

HH

Cash at bank EFEE
Bank deposits H|ITIFR
Other cash and cash equivalents EpEtkEss
Total A&

Incl: total amount deposited overseas
Amount restricted for use due to

security or pledge K SRIE B 58

Hep : FAERIN IR
R - EHSEHHERBR S

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for fixed deposits vary from 1 day to 3 years and may be withdrawn
in advance depending on the cash requirements of the Group, and

earn interest income at respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

2,842,994.69
66,103,541,327.31
11,287,059,677.19

77,393,443,999.19

2,988,066,059.55

11,159,208,187.45

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

2,870,023.35
52,640,456,229.62
9,572,785,256.28

62,216,111,509.25

3,170,314,512.10

9,482,058,818.01

RITE BT FRIRIBRITIE PERA F
MEHNEWA - ERFROFREAE
TREIFAE  ARAKENRS
FRMEEAI X - WIRIRAE R IRTT
TR EESF B IA ©



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
Financial assets held for trading

2.

[tem
ER

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(

2.

Classified as financial assets at fair value

DEBURS BB E A RS

through profit or loss FTAEHERNEREE
Incl.: Other debt instrument He: HihfEB T A
Forward foreign exchange contracts RHASME S XY
Structured deposits EREFR
Contingent consideration of hESHREHE
business combination
Total &&F

As at 30 June 2021, structured deposits of the Group with title
restrictions amounted to RMB916,456,438.36 (31 December 2020:

RMB501,702,083.33), please refer to Note V.67.

Notes receivable
Classification of notes receivable

ltem
BH

Bank acceptance bills

Commercial acceptance bills

IRITHRSESR
[HESIE S

Total

Att

)

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

162,578,502.40
70,786,933.11
4,571,481,615.31

112,904,277.02

4,917,751,327.84

REMEMEE

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

173,484,450.00
120,607,725.00
5,445,401,397.27

112,904,277.02

5,852,397,849.29

MR2021%F6 4308 - AEEMAE
FERENEBEETRNEDEES
ANE#916,456,438.36 7T (2020 FF
12A31H : AR¥501,702,083.33
JL)  FERMER 67

EWERE

FEU SRR D 18

30 June 2021
2021%6A30H

23,260,785,217.52
85,472,099.92

23,346,257,317.44

RMB
-

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

19,187,372,264.36
109,119,348.62

19,296,491,612.98
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it & 2 I H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
3. Notes receivable (Continued) 3. EWEE(HE)
Notes receivable pledged by the Group as at period end HARAEBE DB EWEIE
RMB
ARET
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
IEH 202146 H30H 2020912 831H
Bank acceptance bills RITHEAIESR 12,069,034,579.16 10,674,221,892.99
Commercial acceptance bills BEALEE 85,472,099.92 29,286,642.01
Total &5t 12,154,506,679.08 10,703,508,535.00
Notes receivable endorsed or discounted as at period end HRAEED SR AR
and not yet expired as at the balance sheet date BEEBEAEXB AR HAEK
===3
B
RMB
ARET

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

Derecognized Not derecognized

RIERR RELEHER

Bank acceptance bills BOKLESR 2,952,062,619.68

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had not transferred any notes R2021F6 8300  AEEEALE
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31 NEHBATASZEE A RE IR
December 2020: Nil). Z45 (2020128318 - &) -

As the Group considered that the credit rating of the bank REBRRIERORITELERE
acceptance bills was relatively high and the credit quality of ASBRITERFEARS - IRHENE
acceptors of all commercial acceptance bills held by it was good, FEERGEZNEAEAGERARIRLY
there was no significant credit risk. Therefore, no provision for THEEERHEARR - BEARFHE

losses was made. BRERE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4.

Accounts receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period for credit customers is generally one to

twelve months. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

TSP BB IE H s R

(78)

4. FEWBRR
FEBRESHNE S ERAEER
5ABE  A-—REXFELENZR
R RN R RET - BEESH
EEEEEAIE2EA - EREX
FTEE -

FEUBR SR BR PR IR B B BR i 47 40

presented as follows:

™

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

21,457,534,731.44
739,805,086.64
855,432,405.84
1,113,399,404.76

Age

BRER

Within 1 year 1 AR
1 to 2 years 1824

2 to 3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FE
Gross carrying amount BREEREE

24,166,171,628.68

Less: Provision for credit loss

B ERBRER

2,263,627,817.08

Carrying amount

REEE

21,902,543,811.60

RMB

ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

14,839,830,771.42
1,444,600,946.65
205,578,596.71
1,075,242,691.44

17,565,253,006.22

2,143,374,394.89

15,421,878,611.33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)

Disclosure by category of provision for credit losses:

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R
(%)
4. FBEWERFR (&)

BERBARADEZDBHRE

RMB
AE®T
30 June 2021
2021%6A30A
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for  Percentage Gross carrying
[tem amount (%) credit losses (%) amount
L6l =A HE2g]
EH REGE (%) BAERE (%) EHEE
Items assessed for expected credit losses BEIERBERRL
individually 3,023,145,770.16 1,556,615,529.27 51.49 1,466,530,240.89
Items assessed for expected credit losses by REBEBEHMAAL
group with distinctive credit risk characteristics &8I E BB % 21,143,025,858.52 707,012,287.81 334 20,436,013,570.71
Total At 24,166,171,628.68 2,263,627,817.08 9.37  21,902,543,811.60
RMB
AE®T
31 December 2020
2020%12A318
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage Gross carrying
[tem amount (%) credit losses (%) amount
gl 5l SHELA
= RESE (%) BXRER (%) REEE
Items assessed for expected credit losses BETHEEREREL
individually 3,050,636,605.02 17.37 1,497,880,782.50 49.10 1,552,755,822.52
ltems assessed for expected credit losses by R ARRSHEA
group with distinctive credit risk characteristics 578 {2 F i 2% 14,514,616,401.20 82.63 645,493,612.39 445 13,869,122,788.81
Total At 17,565,253,006.22 100.00  2,143,374,394.89 1220 15,421,878,611.33




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s accounts receivable assessed for

expected credit losses individually are presented as follows:

Customers

'F

Customer 1
EP1
Customer 2
‘P2
Customer 3
®P3
Customer 4
‘P4
Customer 5
®P5
Customer 6
%P6
Customer 7
®P7
Customer 8
EP8
Customer 9
®P9
Customer 10
%F10
Others
HAh

Total

&t

Gross carrying

amount

SRR

797,843,467.74

109,207,518.83

ERTAREIRY)

72,904,639.10

61,493,300.24

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

41,456,048.62

40,516,068.59

37,449,568.86

1,680,317,251.70

3,023,145,770.16

S5 R WA o (A

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE
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(%)
4. BUWER(E)

MR2021F6HA308 + AEEEIRETH
TEHERBERNERERERAT

Provision for

credit losses

FEREAER

478,983,700.00

109,207,518.83

75,871,191.17

43,742,783.46

61,493,300.24

56,927,140.00

49,159,575.31

41,456,048.62

40,516,068.59

37,449,568.86

561,808,634.19

1,556,615,529.27

Percentage
(%)
R B
(%)

60.03

100.00

100.00

60.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

RMB
ARET

Reasons

FTRE

Bad repayment ability
EEENE

Long credit age
RERIR

Bad repayment ability
EEENE

Bad repayment ability
EEENE

Long credit age
RERIR

Long credit age
RERIR

Bad repayment ability
EEENE

Long credit age
RERIR

Bad repayment ability
EEENE
Liquidation
REFES

Long credit age, etc.

RERE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f B % $it 3 1 B0H H 5:

Statements (Continued) (7))

4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4, BRIRM (&)
As at 30 June 2021, the Group's accounts receivable for which R2021F6A30H » REBERER
credit losses are provided for using impairment matrix based on HRREEETIREREEXREENE
aging analysis are presented as follows: WRRFBERAT

RMB
ARBT

30 June 2021
20216 A30H

Carrying amount Lifetime Expected

estimated to be expected credit

Age in default credit loss loss rate (%)
fhEtBEEY EEFHEBS BEHER

IR iR HY BR T 81 2R AMEREX BRE(%)

Within 1 year 1A 9,542,329,459.14 214,065,198.12 2.24
1 to 2 years 18224 208,073,561.28 36,361,434.57 17.48
2 to 3 years 2E3F 72,983,418.92 22,042,496.77 30.20
3 to 4 years 3E44F 34,774,537.21 19,118,662.92 54.98
4 to 5 years 4354 50,559,138.72 46,626,103.17 92.22
Over 5 years S5 E 298,763,530.63 298,763,530.63 100.00

Total A 10,207,483,645.90 636,977,426.18 6.24
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERI(E)
As at 30 June 2021, the Group's accounts receivable for which H2021F6A30H - AREEKA B
BREIIEAERARRESEGIREREX
EFEH R RE RO T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

credit losses are provided for using overdue ages as credit risk

characteristics are presented as follows:

RMB
ARET

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

Overdue ages

BRI

7

Not yet overdue or overdue K@ B g m B/ R
for less than 90 days 90k
Overdue for more than 90 days % Hi A7 90K B

Carrying amount

estimated to be
in default

At BEEN
HY B 1 B4 2R

8,944,123,001.57

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
EEFHEBS
BHERBX

36,656,271.02

but less than 180 days PNA180K 228,801,559.71 4,486,616.81
Overdue for more than wHEI KR 180K

180 days 296,188,320.45 8,973,233.61
Total &5 9,469,112,881.73 50,116,121.44

As at 30 June 2021, provisions for credit losses for the Group's

accounts receivable with good credit history are presented as

Expected
credit

loss rate (%)
BEHRER
BRE(%)

MH2021F6A30H » AEB A
BENEWRBEAS R EABLE

follows: HHOERAT :
RMB
AR
30 June 2021
202156 H30H
Carrying amount Lifetime Expected
estimated to be expected credit
Item in default credit loss loss rate (%)
T REEYD BEFEBD EHREHA
HH B9 BR T 87 58 BAHEEREX BRE(%)

Accounts receivable with good 12 FHEE 818 & HY

credit history Y RIBEHEE

1,466,429,330.89

19,918,740.19
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f B % $it 3 1 B0H H 5:

Statements (Continued) (7))
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. FEWERM(E)
As at 30 June 2021, top five balances in respect of accounts MR2021F6A30H - BARFHE
receivable by closing balance are presented as follows: B BACR 82 58 A 1 2 MY FE MR BR FRIB R 10
™
RMB
AE®T
Gross Provision
Name of entity carrying amount Proportion (%) for credit losses
BluEE BREBA R L B1(%) ERBRAER
First place F—% 797,843,467.74 3.30 478,983,700.00
Second place EF-F 509,879,287.46 2.11 149,998.70
Third place =% 475,667,198.00 1.97 4,636,899.57
Fourth place FHH 473,775,267.79 1.96 11,464,209.68
Fifth place EREZ 408,035,356.10 1.69 120,037.77
Total A% 2,665,200,577.09 11.03 495,354,845.72
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F B % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (74)
4. Accounts receivable (Continued) 4. EBUWERM(E)

ERBXERZDHER -

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

Movements in provision for credit losses:

RMB
ARET
Lifetime Lifetime
expected expected
credit loss credit loss
(without (with
impairment impairment
Provision for credit losses of credit) of credit) Total
B {81745 5 BIAFEH
TEHIEREX TREAE B X
(REEAE (BE4E
ERBRER ERRIE) ERRE) a5t

Balance as at

2020912 A31H

31 December 2020 FRER 1,149,438,426.26 993,935,968.63  2,143,374,394.89
Balance as at 202012 A31H

31 December 2020 in the SREEIEANHR

current period
— Transferred to receivables —EABRLEERBE

with impairment of credit (4,845,523.46) 4,845,523.46 -
— Reversal of receivables —ERIRELERRE

without impairment of credit - - -

Provision for the period AHIEHR 158,013,138.42 59,700,154.84  217,713,293.26
Reversal during the period 7K B8 [0 (76,501,753.80) (788,653.54) (77,290,407.34)

Transferred out during the period 7 B & $4

Written-off during the period 7k B4 $4 = (7,330,684.05) (7,330,684.05)
Adjustment for exchange [E 5 = RE A

differences (12,825,913.92) (12,865.76) (12,838,779.68)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 202156 A30H &:%8 1,213,278,373.50  1,050,349,443.58  2,263,627,817.08

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no restricted accounts
receivable (31 December 2020: Nil).

MR2021F6 8308 r AEEEME
R B[R 5 80 FE U BR 5k (20206 12 A

318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W R B G ()
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # ~& 0f B % #t 3% £ 2 IH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Receivable financing 5. ERRERE
Classification of receivable financing FEU R TE R & 8
RMB
AE®T
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
BH 202146 H30H 2020912 831H
Bank acceptance bills at fair value AR BETENRITENEEZ B EE P EEE 9,483,678,101.82
Receivable financing pledged by the Group as at period HARAREEDEHaERE
end &
RMB
AR T
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
BH 202166 H30H
Bank acceptance bills at fair value

2020912 831H

AR5 BT B 0BT FCLER

7,601,718,488.07 4,243,638,346.92
Receivable financing endorsed or discounted as at period

HARAEBECEESHURET
end and not yet expired as at the balance sheet date EEBEXRBEARI A EK

IR E

RMB
AR
30 June 2021
20216 H30H
ltem Derecognized Not derecognized
T H #IETER RRIETER
Bank acceptance bills at fair value AR BETENRTEAREZ BRI ENY




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

6.

Prepayments

An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows:
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RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)

6.

B IR
BRRENERATMT -

RMB
AE¥T

30 June 2021 31 December 2020

2021%6H30H 202012 A31H
Age Amount Proportion (%) Amount  Proportion (%)
KR kx| (%) i L 1(%)
Within 1 year 1 URA 1,098,781,452.84 88.15 978,976,997.26 89.40
110 2 years 1226 77,776,358.26 6.24 55,217,911.20 5.05
2 to 3 years 2E3F 53,795,023.22 4.32 50,740,316.99 4.63
Over 3 years 3FLE 16,131,225.87 1.29 10,080,895.72 0.92
Total B 1,246,484,060.19 ORI 1,095,016,121.17 100.00

Description of the ages of prepayments: Prepayments with ages
over 1 year represent primarily those outstanding amounts prepaid

to suppliers for raw materials.

As at 30 June 2021, there was no significant prepayments with an

age of more than one year (31 December 2020: Nil).

As at 30 June 2021, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments
amounted in aggregate to RMB218,703,633.17 (31 December
2020: RMB249,843,932.90), representing 17.55% (31 December
2020: 22.82%) of the total closing balances of all prepayments at

period end.

B RIERE AR - RERBIB1F
MBNRETERBNHERREE
B R RER o

R2021F6 A30H » EERE —F LA
FWEZENFIE(20205F12 A 31
H :/%\{E\%\)o

R2021F6A308  HHEAAEEHN
ENRIENRARAREETRARE
218,703,633.17 £ (20205 12 A 31
B : AR#249,843,932.907T) -
HEMNRBHRGEATEHDO L
Bl A17.55% (2020412 B 318 :
22.82%) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
7. Other receivables
Presented by categories

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R
T S0P B R R EIEH s R
(78)
7. HAMEWK
2k VlmN
RMB
AR

[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
5B 2021%6H30H 2020412 A31H
Interest receivable FEUR B 116,091,703.72 18,120,356.78
Dividend receivable JFE L2 % ) 42,834,919.90 53,353,905.03
Other receivables H th JE UK 906,933,998.70 1,338,384,607.80
Total a5t 1,065,860,622.32 1,409,858,869.61
Interest receivable & L F) B,

RMB

AR

ltem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
IH B 2021%6H30H 2020412 A31H
Fixed deposit TEHTF 116,091,703.72 18,120,356.78

Dividend receivable

[tem
ER

& U5 B R

RMB
AR

30 June 2021
202146 H30H

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
Others

BRISETREEBERNBR
Efh

N 36,795,713.90

6,039,206.00

44,154,856.68
9,199,048.35

Total

42,834,919.90

53,353,905.03




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

7.

Other receivables (Continued)
Other receivables

Other receivables are disclosed by ages as follows:
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G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
7. HttEWE (&)
H A & WK
S PR M R B 3R
RMB
ARHT

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

Age

BRER

Within 1 year 1 AR
1 to 2 years 1824

2 to 3 years 2E3F
Over 3 years 3FE
Gross carrying amount BRI A RE

849,907,309.40
35,667,902.22
8,882,508.51
44,029,853.01
938,487,573.14

Less: Provision for credit loss

B ERERERS

31,553,574.44

Carrying amount

FREEE

906,933,998.70

Classification of gross carrying amount of other

receivables by nature

Nature
HE

H1
BB\

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

Corporate lending and payment on behalf

EEEERRANAK

324,614,566.12
160,693,077.33

40,691,599.23
412,488,330.46

Deposit bl
Reserve fund HERe
Others HAh
Total =

938,487,573.14

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

1,309,803,754.85
9,199,134.26
14,825,977.20
37,823,950.55
1,371,652,816.86

33,268,209.06

1,338,384,607.80

& Wi R R TED 2R BB R BRR

RMB
AR

31 December 2020
2020912 831H

453,664,621.42
151,492,718.00

32,092,917.10
734,402,560.34

1,371,652,816.86

151
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
7.

Classification of gross carrying amount of other
receivables by nature (Continued)
Change in the provision for credit losses in respect of other

receivables based on 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

T S0P B R R EIEH s R
(78)
Other receivables (Continued) 7.

H 8 WO (4R
HAth 18 R B T R AR 1R R B
EoaEn(E)

1t 7 e 12 A RIS

5 R AE 7 AR TR S AR A R

expected credit losses is as follows: ERIBLREFNESHNT
RMB
AE®T
Stage 3
Stage 2 Lifetime
Stage 1 Lifetime expected expected
Expected credit loss credit loss
credit loss (without (with
for the next impairment impairment
[tem 12 months of credit) of credit) Total
EREE F=RBE
BAFERS BEFES
—BE EHERERX HHERERX
5&%5121&% (REE (B&E
JEE HHERERX FARE) ERAE) CEl
Balance as at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H#AE 9,653,501.59 - 23,614,707.47  33,268,209.06
Balance as at 31 December 20209124318
2020 in the current period BREATE A
— Transferred to Stage 2 —BAF K - - - -
— Transferred to Stage 3 —HAE=RE - - - -
— Reversed to Stage 2 —EEE = - - -
— Reversed to Stage 1 —HEE R S - - -
Provided for the period AHEEHR 7,421,190.68 - - 7,421,190.68
Reversed during the period RNEE @ (6,022,783.51) - (3,079,452.48)  (9,102,235.99)
Transferred out AEEH
during the period - - - -
Written off during the period NEAIZ - _ = .
Adjustment for exchange difference  [& ¥ =58 (33,589.31) - - (33,589.31)

Balance as at 30 June 2021 202196 A30H % 11,018,319.45

- 20,535,254.99 31,553,574.44




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
7.

Other receivables (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the top five balances in respect of other

receivables by closing balance are presented as follows:

Customers

BUAR

First place F—4%
Second place F-4
Third place =%
Fourth place EJup
Fifth place ERIE
Total A%t

Nature

RENHEE

Deposit
ik
Lending
TER
Lending
TER
Lending
TER

Interest subsidy

from government

BFREE

Closing

balance

117,375,960.20

46,117,200.00

28,127,534.85

22,246,871.15

20,000,000.00

233,867,566.20

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
7.

H 1t R WK (4]

R2021F 68308 ' IMRKAFER
BARAREAT A 0 B fb EURER B R 10

T

R

Within one year
15 5R

Within one year
15 5R

Within two years
2FHR

Within two years
2FHR

1-2 years

1225

Percentage of
atotal other
receivables

(%)

LS e
BMARBBETH
HILL Bl (%)

12.51

4.91

3.00

2.37

2.13

RMB
ARET

Closing balance
of provision

for credit losses

EREXER
MR EE

153
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

* (iﬁﬁtﬂa‘i’%%ﬁi@i%ﬁi H iR

8. Inventories 8. ®EE
Classification of inventories FED
RMB
AR
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
2021£6A30A 20205128318
Gross Provision Gross Provision
qarrying for decline Carrying qarying for decline Carrying
[tem amount in value amount amount in value amount
1 BERE HEER BEER FEHRE HEER GAEE
Raw materials R 8,225,579,872.16 595,775,990.33 7,629,803,881.83 7,605,055,014.81 577,771974.49 7,027,277,04032
Finished goods EfR 16,889,968,331.51 554,417,762.93 16,335,550,568.58 20,724,154,663.53 624,972,616.34 20,099,182,047.19
QOEM materials ZENIHE 171,214,500.17 2,996,579.85 168,217,920.32 837,401,447.19 2,820,743.80 834,580,703.39
Seff made semi-finished goods & 244 @ L
and work in progress Ef 3,257,540,475.32 80,116,676.55 3,177,423,798.71 2,543,104,047.43 71,790,628.56 2,465,313,418.87
Second-hand vehicles -8 959,620,840.01 183,522,167.42 776,098,672.59 979,136,769.47 179,333,169.47 799,803,600.00
Total At 29,503,924,019.17 1,416,829,177.08 28,087,094,842.09 32,688,851,942.43 1,462,695,132.66 31,226,156,809.77




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE
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G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

Statements (Continued) (%)
8. Inventories (Continued) 8. FE(#)
Provision for decline in value of inventories FTEUEEE
RMB
AEET
Increase during
the period Decrease during the period
BN A&RD
Adjustment of
Reversal or exchange
Item 31 December 2020 Charge transferred out differences 30 June 2021
%R 2000512318 i ansEs EREEL N 202156A30A
Raw materias RitH 577,777,974.49 68,363,559.11 27,987 475,82 20,378,06745 595,775,990.33
Finished goods ERd 624,972,616.34 21943371207 280,499,929.99 9,488635.49 554,417,762.93
OEM materils ZAMIfH 282074380 204,819.97 - 11898392 2,9%,579.85
Seff made semi-finished goods BEERAR
and work in progress EER 77,790,628.5 14,780,72057 1020921812 2,245454.46 80,116,676.55
Second-hand vehicles k3 179,333,169.47 18,607,132.16 6,657,889.31 7,760,244.90 183,522,167.42
Total At 1,462,695,132.66 321,479,943.88 32535451324 41,991,386.22 1,416,829,177.08
9. Contract assets 9. ERAEE
RMB
AR T
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
2021%6A30A 20205128318
Provision for Provision for
Gross carrying impairment Gross carrying impairment
Item amount of credit  Carrying amount amount of credit  Carrying amount
BE BEBE BEER KEEE RARE BEER FEEE
Supply chain solution services R H R
(Note) R () 2,440,829,672.00 pYIRILYPXVIN 1,301,943,900.00 - 1,301,943,900.00
Others i 118,892,043.06 118,892,043.06 83,234,617.96 27,615.66 83,207,002.30
Total Al 2,559,721,715.06 PACERPAWAEY I 1,385,178,517.96 27,615.66  1,385,150,902.30
Note: the amount in respect of supply chain solution services was the net i HEMESBRTRBRBEBANESER

amount of receivable from customers after offsetting contract assets and
contract liabilities under the same contract under the supply chain solution
services of the Group. The Group recognized the work performed as a
contract asset, and reclassified the contract asset recognized at the point
of time when it settled the amount with the customer into receivables.

AEEHBHEBRDTEZRBER—A
ATAREERGRAEEHEEZNE
WEPHFE - ARBEBEHTH
TEERIR—HAREE  £ERE
FPRESENSEEEANAREE
ENRERYSRER

155
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
10. Non-current assets due within one year

11.

Item
ER

HERE (Note V.12)
36 Wz 12)

Finance lease receivables

Other current assets

30 June 2021
202156430

Gross Carrying

amount

RASE

3,421,573,419.60

Provision for

credit losses

EREXER

15,764,396.20

Carrying

RERE

3,405,809,023.40

[tem

HE

Input tax credit to be deducted 2wk
Prepaid expenses THER
Prepaid corporate income tax A
Others Eth

Total A&t

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

* ‘é‘zﬁﬁ?ﬁ\a‘%iﬁﬁigiﬁﬁﬁﬁ
(ll‘:H)
10. —"FRIYPWERDEE

RMB
ARET
31 December 2020
20205128318
Gross Carrying Provision for Carrying
amount amount credit losses amount
BEHE EREXER EHERA
3,194,022,225.00 14,300,550.00  3,179,721,675.00

1. EEREBEE

30 June 2021
202166 H30H

700,533,099.75
688,778,949.73
392,225,110.09
700,021,792.95

2,481,558,952.52

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

925,131,871.56
381,261,616.83
587,996,308.31

29,719,601.61

1,924,109,398.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f B % it & £ IH H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
12. Long-term receivables 12. REAEWRK
RMB
ARMTT
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
2021%6A30A 20206124318
Gross Carrying Provision for Carrying Gross Carrying Provision for Carrying
Item amount credit losses amount amount credit losses amount
EE FEGE ERRAER FEEE FAHBE EREXER KHEE

Finance lease receivables  BLETRERIE 13,236,912,309.20 60,182,946.00  13,176,729,363.20 ERVERYENEESININ 5525212500 12,802,226,325.00
Incl: Finance income not yet - 2 : KERE 7
realized e (1,133,822,106.80) ((REERIPRICEIN  (1,124,607,450.00) - (1,124,607,450.00)
Less: Finance lease receivables & : HEE—%
dlassified as due within Ak

one year BERE
e 3,421,573,419.60 15,764,396.20 3,405,809,023.40 3,194,022,225.00 14,300,550.00 3,179,721,675.00
Total At 9,815,338,889.60 44,418,549.80 9,770,920,339.80 9,063,456,225.00 40,951,575.00 9,622,504,650.00
Provisions made for credit losses of long-term receivables (inclusive REAEEZ(E—FREE)ERBX
of the portion due within one year) are as follows: EHELSEIFNR -
RMB
AR T
Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
credit loss credit loss
(without impairment (with impairment
Provision for credit losses of credit) of credit) Total
BEEFES B EFES
BHEREX BHEREX
ERIBAER (RBEEERRE) (BEEEERRA) Bt
Balance as at 31 December 2020 202041231 B &% 55,252,125.00 - 55,252,125.00
Provision for the period REEHR 7,398,295.03 - 7,398,295.03
Reversal during the period AN Hi 82 (o] - - -
Transferred out during the period 7 Hi#2 44 = - -
Written off during the period RERZ 88 & - -
Adjustment for exchange differences [& i, 7= %8 3§ % (2,467,474.03) - (2,467,474.03)

Balance as at 30 June 2021 202156 H30R R 60,182,946.00 60,182,946.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

D B B R T IH H AR R

ti.

(%

)

13. Long-term equity investments 13. RERERE
RMB
AR#T
(Change during the period
5829
(Gains and losses
oninvestment Other Exchange Among which,
Increase Decrease underequity  comprehensive Other Declaration of Provision for differences closing provision
Investee enty 31 Decernber 2020 ininvestment ininvestment method income ~ equity changes cash dividend impairment (others)  WEIBITUPAPARE  for impaiment
ERET iy if 5% i EX A
REAE 20205128318 e RORE RERE Gala E2EY RekA REEE  2E(ih) PUEGEEN #rEEEE
|. Joint ventures — AP
Xian FC Intellgence EREHELEY
Transmission Co, Lid. BRAT 126,287,642.19 - - 267339165 - - - - B 148,961,033.84 -
KAMAZ Weichai LLC FEHELERAA 40,955,77040 - - (123,806.55) - - - - B 40,831,963.85 -
Fischer Weichai (Weifang) 4 (35 )kt
Fuel Cell Compressor EHEERAR
Company Limited (Note 1)~ AT(51) - 7041900000 - - - - - - B 70,419,000.00 -
Sub-total Nt 16724341259 70419,000.00 - 2254958510 - - - - B 260,211,997.69 -
1. Associates o BERE
Shandong Heawy Industy ~ LURET£EE K
(Group Finance Co,, Ltd. BRAR 1,139,793,000.28 - - 9289537 - - - - B 1,236,905,895.65 -
Shanzhong Finance LEREREERAR
Leasing Co, Ltd. 529,862,771.32 - - 24971199 - - - - B 552,354491.22 -
Ballrd Power Sstems e, BAEBNZGER
ol 1,030,160,912.60 - - (3337745379) - - - - (4260345992) [EINEREKS) -
Deewin Tiania Co,, Ltd BERTROERAR 30082148800 - - 1688444637 - - - - B 317,705,93431 -
Other associates EBELE 177647792960 1,083,644,156.11  (44,961416.05)  32,661,080.73 4,948,667.40 - (8331842980) B YRRV NEIN 2 746,505,643.86 484409133
Sub-total It 477711610180  1,083644,156.11 (4496141605 135,772,68858 4,948,667.40 - (1331842980) - (10554980405 ERUAFIRIEEE] 484409133
Total At 494435951439 115406315611 (4496141605 158,322,273.68 4,948,667.40 - (8331842980) B LR R XY 6,067,863,961.68 484409133
Note 1:0n 5 March 2021, the Company signed a joint venture agreement with 51 R202143A5H © K"A A HEFischer

Fischer Fuel Cell Compressor AG (hereinafter “FFCC") in relation to the
joint investment and establishment of Fischer Weichai (Weifang) Fuel
Cell Compressor Company Limited (GREE#ELE (ML) WARIE b 22 B4
ABRAA)("“Fischer Weichai”). Fischer Weichai is held by the Company
as to 40% and by FFCC as to 60%. The board of directors of Fischer
Weichai comprised of five directors, two of which will be appointed by the
Company and three will be appointed by FFCC. Pursuant to the articles
of association of Fischer Weichai, material resolutions of the board of
directors shall be approved by at least four directors, among which at least
one of them shall be appointed by the Company. As such, Fischer Weichai is
considered as a joint venture of the Company.

Fuel Cell Compressor AG(LAT T
[FFCC#ERIE B - HARKRER
RABI(ATEBIRREE] - AD
BB RIRAMLEA0% MR - FFCCHA
FRIRAELEOC0%RIE - RRMLERS
HAREREK  ERMEHAAA
ZE - ZRMBFFCCERIT - RIBREH
LERNE SEEFEGRETLE
LNEEEHIE BREBREEL—
FBARNAREFRROE - B I TRGR M 5
BRARRIGERE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
14. Investment in other equity instruments

Investee entity

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

+. ‘ﬁiﬁﬁjiﬁiﬁi@igiﬁ H 5k
14. HttERZ TARKRE

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

30 June 2021
202156H30H

2,242,162,280.70
717,513,224.95
A 276,000,000.00
369,906,044.00

1,780,324,204.98

252,000,000.00
378,787,867.98

Wik A B

XCMG Construction Machinery BIEE TRREWRG
Co., Ltd. BRAF]

Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. [L/# TI2#mMAR 5 B R A

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. AREARERNERA

Others Eth

Total A&

3,605,581,549.65 2,411,112,072.96

Investment in other equity instruments

Dividend income
recognized

Investee entity during the period

AR

REEEN RAMA

RMB
AEBT
Reason for transfer
from other
comprehensive
income 1o

retained eamings
during the period

Amounts
transferred
from other

comprehensive
income to
retained eamings

Reason for
designation
atv1odl

ek
NinBE:TE
BEEHHALf
FRURHRR

Accumulated
gainfloss

Afpiraka
E\ERAE
Zitlfs/ B% HeH

Kt
UL N
FRENRR

XCMG Construction Machinery
Co, Ltd.

BISBIREARAERAA 36,795,713.90

Shantui Construction Machinery Co,, Ltd. WETERERRAERAR -

Beigi Foton Motor Co, L. LARRAERNERAR =

Others -0 2,000,000.00

Investment in
equity investments
3 strategic
investment
EalERER
ERRE
Investment in
equity investments
a strategic
investment
BRIERAR
HERE
Investment in
equity investments
3 strategic
investment
ERIERER
HRRE
Investment in
equity investments
a strategic
investment
BRIERER
HEiRE

1,042,622,007.56 -

35,801,094.07 =

82,000,000.00 =

(3.017,847.91) =

Total At 38,795,713.90

1,157,405,253.72 =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

15. Other non-current financial assets

[tem
HH

Financial assets at FVTPL for the
current period
Investments related to the pension
plan of subsidiaries
Cross currency swap and interest rate

swap contracts

UARBEAEEEES
FRAEHEaNEREE
B RNEIRIREEE

AR E
XX EWE ;R
BEBEH

Total

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

Bin é;ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%*ﬁ%%iglﬁ ERER
(%)
15. Rt ERBEMEE

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

232,668,960.20

160,546,136.77

393,215,096.97

RMB
AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

222,910,425.00

20,102,625.00

243,013,050.00




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
16. Investment property

(1) Subsequent measurement under the cost model:

[tem
1HH

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

PO 5 i 3 I R (4)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R
(%)
16. REMEME
(1) REBRAMRETRET B

i

RMB

I Gross carrying amount

1.
2.

3.
4.

31 December 2020

Increase during the period

(1) Transferred from fixed
assets/construction in
progress

Decrease during the period

30 June 2021

Il Accumulated depreciation

and amortization

1.
2.

3.
4.

31 December 2020

Increase during the period

(1) Provision

(2) Transferred from fixed
assets

Decrease during the period

30 June 2021

lll. Accumulated impairment

provision

1.
2.
3.
4,

31 December 2020
Increase during the period
Decrease during the period
30 June 2021

IV. Carrying amount

1.
2.

30 June 2021
31 December 2020

- RERE

1.2020%12A31H
RIS E il
(KEEEE

ERIREA

3AHRD 2
4.20214F6 A30H

- REHTEMRGTEE

12020124311
2 R SR
(1)5HE

QRETEESEA

3AER L £
4.202146 H30H

- REPRERME

1.2020612A431R
2 RS
ERUNS VR e
4.2021%6 A30R

- REEE

1.202146 H30H
2.2020%12A31H

Houses and

buildings

EEEEN

897,026,131.82
47,160,778.68

47,160,778.68
27,770,260.82
916,416,649.68

296,409,967.84
26,097,248.08
23,273,585.59

2,823,662.49
4,827,735.25
317,679,480.67

13,447,824.67

13,447,824.67

585,289,344.34
587,168,339.31

Land use rights
TR

116,230,926.03

116,230,926.03

21,235,506.49
1,299,739.50
1,299,739.50

22,535,245.99

93,695,680.04
94,995,419.54

ARBT

1,013,257,057.85
47,160,778.68

47,160,778.68
27,770,260.82
1,032,647,575.71

317,645,474.33
27,396,987.58
24,573,325.09

2,823,662.49
4,827,735.25
340,214,726.66

13,447,824.67

13,447,824.67

678,985,024.38
682,163,758.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

16. Investment property (Continued)

(2) Investment properties not obtained title certificates:

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had the following investment

properties not obtained title certificates:

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R
(%)
16. REMEHE (&)
(2) FHEEMBEHRAMEML
EBR

MR2021F6 8308 » REEK
ESEHEFNREEEIHE
mr

RMB
AR

Reasons for failure to

Item Carrying amount obtain title certificate
1HH REEE ARXERIENRR
Plants for special vehicle projects EREBEARE 5,220,601.28 In progress
EEHES
17. Fixed Assets 17. BEEE
Presented by categories DERY|R
RMB
AR #T
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
HH 2021¥6H30H 2020912 A31H
Fixed Assets EFEEE 32,319,598,427.16 31,720,416,229.10
Disposal of fixed assets BEEESE 2,628,500.24 2,411,452.45

Total

a5t

32,322,226,927.40

31,722,827,681.55
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F B % it 3% £ B IH H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
17. Fixed Assets (Continued) 17. B EEE (&)
Fixed assets EE&EEBA
RMB
AR T
Forklift trucks Forklift trucks
Houses, and equipment and equipment
buildings and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
Item [and use rights equipment equipment Viehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others
BEERENR BLHRER AL HRBR
R TifEE BERE E1%% EaRk RE(RE) (D) 4]
I, Gross carrying amount - EARE
1. 31 December 2020 1.2008124318 1499188581497 21,703,786,477.53 2,354,094,067.02 492,352,855.16 8,281,372,951.66 4,731,054,296.24 2,785,508,209.94  55,340,054,672.52
2 hhesseduingtheperiod 2 AHEMNSE 662,988,072.49 794.828416.77 436,164,01837 1433716424 246523514032 1,104403,610.88 200825,6946  5,698,782,119.53
(1) Addition (EE 23,953,442.5 145,816,008.14 15,139,872.89 446412824 2,307,815,919.52 964,371,177.28 173,185,456.05 3,634,746,004.37
(2) Transfer from () ERIEEA
construction-in
progress 614,279,732.21 645,441,991.19 121,024145.48 9,873,036.00 40,165,013.62 1,730,783,918.50
(3) Increase n business (3)LEAHED
combination 2345340 - - - 157,419,220.80 140,032,433.60 7,348,732.00 304,823,839.80
(4) Internal recassfication ~~ (4) NEEAE - - - - . - - -
(5) Other transfer in DEGEIN 24,731,444.63 3570417.44 - = = = 12649479 28,428,356.86
3. Decrease during the period 3 AE 48 222,230,111.87 738,756,793.74 27,519,647.24 11,046,093.68 1,230,583 471.60 855,697,545.08 24,818,623.36 3,110,652,286.57
(1) Disposals or (1) REZHE
refirements 207,885,378.11 716,538,606.14 27,519,647.24 11,046,093.68 1,230,583,471.60 855,697,545.08 24,818,623.36 3,074,089,365.81
(2) Decrease in disposal ) REFRIEL
of subsidiaries - - -
(3) Other tensfer out (3) At 143473316 221818750 36,56292076
4 Adustmentforexchange 4 EFZESE
differences (135,323,693.68) (155,271,174.40) (2,828,079.84) (307,011.54) (224,176,976.85) (147,982,374.69) (69,397,239.25) (735,286,550.25)
5. 30 June 2021 5.2021564308 15,297,320,081.91  21,604,586,926.16 2,759,910,358.31 495,336,914.18 9,291,847,643.53 4,831,777,987.35 291211804379 57,192,897,955.23
I Acoumulated deprecation = + Z347E
1. 31 December 2020 120205128318 4,574,689,606.88  13,524938,936.33 1,694,987,738.11 346,235,554.31 263,685,911.61 1,400931,824.77 1,239,774867.18  23,045,244,439.19
2 Increase during the period 2. K EE 4% 362,257,903.33 807,954,834.45 120,364,771.56 36,409,006.66 1,049,128,027.96 355,108,647.87 244,829,836.40 2,976,053,028.23
(1) Provision ()35 360,639,941.48 806,438,181.25 120,364,771.56 36,409,006.66 1,049,128,027.96 355,108,647.87 244,829,836.40 2,972,918413.18
(2) Other transferin ESEIN 1617,961.85 1516,653.20 = - - - = 3,134,615.05
(3) Intemal eclassffication ~~ (3) AFESE - - - - - - - -
3. Decrease during the period 3 AE 48 44,140,155.11 582,549,166.06 23,892,781.23 8,757,17490 557,165,997.40 271,793,880.88 17,353,310.79 1,505,652,466.37
(1) Disposalsor (1) REZHE
retirements 41,316,492.62 582,502,259.26 23,892,781.23 8,757,17490 557,165,997.40 271,793,880.88 17,353,310.79 1,502,781,897.08
(2) Dectease n disposal () RETATED
of subsidiaries - - -
(3) Other tensfer out (3) £t 28236629 1690680 287056929
4 Adustmentforexchange 43 ZERE
differences 15,751,301.79 (78,508,161.61) (268,614.66) (155,482.93) 17,856,689.99 (42,038,735.34) (18,859,342.48) (106,222,345.24)
5. 30 June 2021 5.2021564308 4,908558,656.89  13,671,836,443.11 1,791,191,113.78 373,731,903.14 773,504,632.16 1,442,207,856.42 1,448,392,050.31  24,409,422,655.81
II. Provsion for impaiment =+ iEEfE
1. 31 December 2020 120206128318 354,319,485.65 155,020,658.59 6,994,057.03 684,278.89 18,505,650.00 28,512,825.00 10,357,049.07 574,394,004.3
2 Increase duing the period 2. K EE NS % = 17,901,824.56 61,949.88 1587193 = = 496,864.98 18476,511.35
(1) Provision ()it - 17,901,824.56 61,949.88 15,871.93 - - 496,864.98 18,476,511.35
3. Decrease during the period 3. A %54 4% 75,824,80.20 39,896,409.35 61,949.88 33,3800 1,665,191.40 - 784,740.69 118,266,371.52
(1) Disposals or (1) REFHE
retirements 75,824,842.20 39,896,409.35 61,949.88 33,238.00 1,665,191.40 784,740.69 118,266,371.52
4 Adusimentforexchange 4 EJEERE
differences (6,311,032.80) (492,541.40) - - (307,442.40) (1,557,321.60) (2,058,933.60) (10,727,271.80)
5. 30June 2021 5.2021%6A308 272,183,610.65 132,533,532.40 6,994,057.03 666,912.82 16,533,016.20 26,955,503.40 8,010,239.76 463,876,872.26
V. Canying amount 0 kmEE
1. 30 June 2021 12021465308 10,116,577,814.37 7,800,216,950.65 961,725,187.50 120,938,098.22 8,501,809,995.17 3,362,614,627.53 145571575372 32,319,598,427.16

2. 31 December 2020 2202012318 10,062876,722.44  8,023,826,882.61 652,112,271.88 454330219  7,999,181390.05 330160964647 153537629369  31,720416,229.10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
17. Fixed Assets (Continued)

Fixed assets which are temporarily idle are presented as follows:

Gross

carrying amount

FE

386,118,015.33
518,425,151.31
41,619,967.90
786,865.50

[tem

JEH

Houses and buildings and EEREY I
land use rights T A

Machinery and equipment  #235%

Electronic equipment R

Transportation equipment EHHRE

Total G

946,950,000.04

Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is

presented as follows:

ltem
HH

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

T S0P B R R EIEH s R
(74)
17. BEEE(E)
THEENETEENT

RMB
ARBTT

Accumulated Provision for Carrying

amount

REEE

depreciation

R &

impairment

B

94,138,404.40 263,323,717.69
337,927,955.81 63,211,866.05
33,438,116.12 6,996,295.86

755,995.87 =

28,655,893.24
117,285,329.45
1,185,555.92
30,869.63

466,260,472.20 333,531,879.60 147,157,648.24

KEMHLBETEERTEEDT ¢

Electronic equipment

Machinery and equipment

Vehicles

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out
(long-term)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out

(short-term)

BFRME
R
R
MR ERR

M H) X ERER

(R8)

(52 59)

RMB

AR T

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202156 H30H 2020912 A31H
- 180,199.99

23,325,590.63 20,025,532.08
32,059,127.06 874,739.91

8,501,809,995.17 7,999,181,390.05

3,362,614,627.53 3,301,609,646.47

Total

11,919,809,340.39

11,321,871,508.50




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
17. Fixed Assets (Continued)
As at 30 June 2021, fixed assets for which title certificate has not

been obtained are as follows:

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

PO 5 i 3 I R (4)
2021F181HZ6H30H 15 R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R
(%)
17. BEEE ()

20216 A30H » RZE#ZSE
WEEEERBRAOT

RMB
ARET

Reasons for failure to

Item Carrying amount obtain title certificate
b= REEE AHIERIENREA
Buildings EEREY 1,419,465,795.38  In progress of applying
for the real property
ownership certificate
EFEMIB T B ERERE
Total A&t 1,419,465,795.38

As at 30 June 2021, fixed assets of the Group with title
restrictions amounted to RMB283,607,194.39 (31 December
2020: RMB301,806,904.98), please refer to Note V.67. Among
which, the pledge over fixed assets with carrying amount of
RMB84,831,877.29 had yet to be registered.

As at 30 June 2021, in view of the existence of idle fixed assets
and the fact that the recoverable amounts of some fixed assets
were lower than their carrying amount, according to the result
of impairment, provision for impairment in the amount of
RMB18,476,511.35 was made.

R202156 8308 » KEFHMAE
ZEBFHHOEATEERAEEAAR
#283,607,194.39 7T (2020912 A
318 : AR®301,806,904.987T) °
HAMER 67 Hep o BREEE
BARMS4,831,877 29 ETEE
B M ARIHRIEEER -

M2021F6 308  PLWEMETE
BEMNRESEEARETERE B
BRENRER  FTREABEEAR
#18,476,511.357T °

165
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it & 2 HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Construction in progress 18. EEIRZE
Construction in progress in aggregate EEIRESR
RMB
AR BT
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
HE 2021%6H30H 202012 A31H
Construction in progress EEIR 6,137,987,965.55 5,045,697,443.31
Materials used in construction IREYE 109,682.79 495,953.53
Total &5t 6,138,097,648.34 5,046,193,396.84
Status of construction in progress EREIEBR
RMB
AR BT
30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202156830 20205128318
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
Item amount  dedline in value amount amount decling in value amount
B il HEER FEEE SERE HEERE GHERE
Transmission project EyEE 867,402,107.72 867,402,107.72 488,732,727.30 - 488,732,721.30
Production line construction and TESRFWEREED
renovation project B 692,455,585.36 692,455,585.36 234,433.95 - 23443395
Production line construction and TEERFWEEEA
renovation project A 292,186,335.52 292,186,335.52 383,093,690.38 - 383,093,690.38
Factory area construction project ¢~ BIEEREEC 281,210,057.17 PRIANOEYAVAS  461,216,293.13 - 46121629313
Factory area construction project A- ~ FEEHEEA
R8D bilding S 212,582,680.06 DAPRYINEINES  141,386,168.17 - 141,386,168.17
Factory area construction project B BRZLEES 180,418,853.46 180,418,853.46 104,280,082.23 - 104,280,082.23
Trial room construction project C HBREEREAC 167,133 841.11 167,133 841.11 63,030,506.44 - 63,030,506.44
Trial room construction project A EEESHVE] 143,837,044.68 143,837,044.68 642,853,996.92 - 642,853,996.92
Factory area construction project .~ BEEBZIERE 102,656,248.49 102,656,248.49 91,330,313.98 - 91,330,313.98
Factory area construction project D~ BEEZEED 81,419,767.39 81,419,767.39 40,953,140.83 - 40,953,140.83
Production line construction and TEERFWEREE
renovation project - Tria -FEL
production centre 70,117,002.07 - 70,117,002.07 91,293,059.20 - 91,293,059.20
Factory area construction project A BREREEA 74,830,038.12 70,611,873.18 4,218,164.94 104,070,633.38 70,611,873.18 33,458,760.20
Trial room construction project B EEEHVED = - = 167,392,613.55 - 16739261355
Materials used in construction TRME 109,682.79 - 109,682.79 495,953.53 - 495,953.53
Others Eih 3,042,921,123.02 57084544 3,042,350277.58  REIIVEEY 57084544 2,336,441,657.03

Total Aif 6,209,280,366.96 7,182,71862  6,138,097,648.34  [ERNWAIIANEY 7118271862 5,046,193,396.84




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
18. Construction in progress (Continued)

Movement in key construction-in-progress is presented as follows:

Item

B8

Production fine construction and
renovation project B

Factory area construction
project €

Factory area construction
project A - R&D building

Trial room construction project A

Transmission project
- Infrastructure
Factory area construction
project B - Phase I

Production line construction
and renovation project

- Trial production centre

BE
[3:3: 288 Ll 2,241,890,500.00
HERTERC 780,000,000.00
EE 1,305,090,000.00

RUEVY

HRERIARA 996,000,000.00
R -5R 507,440,000.00
HEERERS 723,876,400.00
EESRINE 221,560,000.00

BE-HgnD

Total

A 6,775,856,900.00

Opening balance

B8E

234,433.96

461,216,293.12

141,386,168.17

642,853,996.92

47,828,559.3

71,830,384.48

91,293,059.20

1,456,642,895.08

Increase

during the period

AN

692,221,151.40

8,033,888.25

71,196,511.89

3,093,855.76

76,525,048.95

70,089,039.21

227,922.06

921,407,417.52

Fived asset
transferred in

during the period

ARBABERE

188,060,124.20

502,110,808.00

6,970,427.90

45,729,030.41

PARERYERF]

764,274,369.70

Interim Report 2021

PO 5 i 3 I R (4)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

B DR B Rk A E
(%)
18. ®Z TR (&)
EEERTREHNT :

Of which:
capitalized  Capitalization

Actual  Accumulated amount of rate of

costs asa amount of [IEE interest
Other percentage
of budget (%)

IRRAK

RELH(%

capitalized during the during the
interest

RERAL
bHER |

decrease Closing balance period

A RAHE
ExfeR

period (%)
¥y

0 7] 5748 EhLEM)

692,455,585.36 3

281,210,057.17

212,582,680.06

143,837,044.68

117,383,180.28

96,190,393.28 2,091,246.29

70,117,002.07

1,613,775,942.90 - 2,091,246.29

hHEIRE

H ke

RMB
ARBTT

Source of funding

EERR

Internal fund
LT 63
Internal fund
RA&E
Internal fund
ELS 6
Internal fund
LT 63
Internal fund
RA&E
Loans from
financial
institution/
internal fund
SHEREAR
EL -6
Internal fund

BRES
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

Statements (Continued) (7))
19. Right-of-use assets 19. EFEEE
RMB
AR T
Forklifttrucks ~ Forklift trucks
and equipment  and equipment
aftersaleand  after sale and
leaseback leaseback
Housesand ~ Machinery and subleases subleases
Item Buildings Equipment Viehicles (long-term) (short-term)
E4ER E4ER
EEENNE  BEANEY
kR BRERER
%A EEREEY KER% Elgk (=4 (5%) At
I, Gross carrying amount - BERE
1. 31 Decernber 2020 12008128318 BIAELE] 73,109,435.23 8879.907.27  2,005491,82967  3122,777,118.19  1,884,499,637.65 12,652,329,166.89
2. Increase during the perod LEHENSE 541,101,229.9 26384917 537864640 - 46841540 791,386,140.26
3. Decrease during the period IFEROEE 429,930,609.23 18,101,006.00 - 3B164154260 59219835000  153,604,134.40  1,575475,642.23
4. Adjustment for exchange LEREERE
differences (167,821,628.58) (2,611,193.63) (414511.28)  (72,060,12431)  (103714921.60)  (70,729,29843)  (417,351,677.83)
5.30 June 2021 LRIPAELRED ]I 5,500,920,230.36 52,661,084.77 1384404239 1,551,790,162.76  2,426,863,846.59  1,904,808,620.22 11,450,887,987.09
I Accumulated depreciation =~ B3t E
1. 31 Decernber 2020 (IO ESVRETIENN 2,464,084,206.04 47910,098.80 723304274 40340520478  1,045502,839.87  962,032,061.21  4,930,167,453.44
2. Provision for the period LEHREE 283,932,931.57 5,395,221.54 149302068 27341209892 35477176400  224663822.74  1,143,668,871.45
3. Decregse during the period JEEROEE 8202287318 18,093,188.20 - 31311852560  486,134.257.40  129,204,780.60  1,028,573,624.98
4. Adjustment for exchange LENEERE
differences (89,576,24582)  (1,723368.53) (304711.76)  (12015,127.42)  (23,709,448.86)  (36,571,588.36)  (163,900,490.75)
5,30 June 2021 CPIAEAN:ENIZI 2,576,418,024.61 33,488,769.61 842135166 351,683,65068 89043089761 1,020919,514.99  4,881,362,209.16
Il Provision for impairment = REEE
1. 31 Decermber 2020 120206127318 5954,550.01 197414999 7,928,700.00
2. Provison for the period LEEREE = . .
3. Decrease during theperiod 3 KEH 48 = . .
4. Adjustment for exchange LENERRE
differences (251,389.60) (83,344.80) (334,734.40)
5.30 June 2021 5.2021%64308 5,703,160.41 1,890,805.19 7,593,965.60
V. Canying amount M- EEEE
1,30 June 2021 (VAR S RN 2,918,799,045.34 19,172,315.16 542269073 1,200,106512.08 153643294898  881,998,300.04  6,561,931,812.33
2. 31 December 2020 NIVIEVEENEEI 3067,532,482.83 25,199,336.43 164686453  1,602,086,62489  2,077,27427832 92049342645 771423301345

REART A S BB /0 L SR 1B A 52 51
HE®M A AR 134,309,836.95
T EBEEEREERAAARE
10,528,480.257C °

During the period, short-term leasing fees through profit or loss
under the simplified approach amounted to RMB134,309,836.95
while low value asset leasing fee amounted to RMB10,528,480.25.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
20. Intangible assets

RMB
ARE T
Land use Trademark Orders on Customer
Item rights Patents rights License Software hand Relationship Others Total
L 1HERE ECET BERRRE K & ES)- EFBA it it
I, Original aset value - EERE
1.31 December 2020 [RIPIEVERITI 237641142319 2381862977.05  7943454077.13 112413064494 52801372668  338,202,684.16 1085208068336  8,007,964,848.63 33,552,121,065.14
2 Inrease during the period 2 AEENMEE 41,581,686.70 10,646,226.15 128593202 16047971618 (75,170,104.38) - 63,746,837.70  367522,59580  570,092,890.17
(1) Addition EE 41,581,686.70 10,646,136.15 - 19.911,936.60 57,570,630.88 - 396412110 33792440500  471,598,916.43
(2) Transfer from [LELEETN
internal R&D 90.00 2,449,109.65 949,735.74 27,52,85080 30,651,786.19
(3) Increase i business () EEAHEN
combination 1,285,932.02 2,082,043.13 150,265.00 59,782,716.60 4,581,23080 67,842,187.55
(4) Reclassification (WEHE - 13607662680  (133:840,736.00) - (2,235,890.80) -
3. Decrease during the period 3. A5V 2 14,003,865.00 6,405,365.69 6,199,515.40 1,229,02359 - 26,205,265.60 54,043,035.28
(1) Disposalsor retrements (1) RESHE 14,003,865.00 - 6,199,515.40 - - 26,205,265.60 46,408,646.00
(2) Others (2) 24 = 6,405,365.69 - 1,229,02359 - - 7,634,389.28
4 Adustment forexchange 4. EZ 2B EE

differences - (8,483,020.06)

5.30 June 2021
| Accumulated amortizaion  — + Z5tE
1.31 December 2020

2. Increase during the period

(1) Provision

3. Decrease during the period

2,403,989,244.89

341,648,468.18
21,709,15350
21,709,15350
396,384.13

(28.981,10835)
2,363,528,094.85

853,846,845.06
89,064,058.74
89,064,058.74

(320,746,211.62)
7617,588,431.84

32,6%,123.73
432005732
432005732

(32,179,151.14)
1,246,231,694.58

783,830,787.42
82,721,246.60
82,721,246.60

5,605,362.60

43,131,578.65

184,930,411.23
11,737,793.81
11,737,793.81

(14278,26410)
30392442006

180,940,295.34
16,295,319.56
16,295,319.56

(295,940,485.65)
10,619,887,035.41

4,29,937,102.67
387,891,866.41
387,891,866.41

(217,674,855.72)
8,131,607,323.11

2,297,575,796.51
419,784,588.80
419,784,588.80
25,196,769.40

(918,263,096.64)
33,149,887,823.39

8,972,405,830.14
1,033,524,084.74
1,033,524,084.74

31,198,516.13

(1) Disposals or retrements (1) REFHE 396,384.13 - - 5,605,362.60 - - - 51976940 3119851613
4 Adustment forexchange 4. EZ£EEE
(ifferences - (15,664,530.16) (96,246.39)  (22,045,755.50) (699,559.21) (1913255.10)  (142263,64643)  (62,466,485.84)  (251,149,478.63)
5.30 June 2021 5.2021£68308 362,961,23755  927,246,373.64 3691993466 83890091592 19596864583  189,322,359.80 454256532265  2,629,697,130.07  9,723581,920.12
Il Provision for impaiment =~ FEEE
1.31 December 2020 120008128318 33,705,000.00 7,447,200.00 6,395,925.00 1996620000  561,855,978.09 12463627500  754,006,578.09
2. Increase during the period 2. A MIAE = = = = =
(1) Provision (13t - - - - -
3. Decrease during the period 3. A V48 = = = = =
(1) Disposals or retrements (1) £ESBE = = = = =
4 Adustment forexchange 4. R 2B EE
differences (1,422,960.00) (314,406.40) (270,023.60) (842,934.40)  (23,720474.19) (5208,00940)  (31,778,897.99)
5.30 June 2021 5201564308 32,282,040.00 7,132,793.60 6,125,901.40 1912326560 53813550390 11942817560  722,227,680.10
N Netcaryingamount 19~ BREEE
1.30 June 2021 1.2011€68308 2,041,028,007.34 143628172121 754838645718 400,197,985.06  241,037,03142 11547879466  5539,186,208.86  5382,482,017.44  22,704,078,223.17
2. 31 December 2020 PRIVIEIVETIEI 203476295501  1528016,13199  7.877,052,95340 33285265752  336,687,390.45  137,96,188.82  5993,287,602.60  5585752777.12  23,825,708,656.91
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (74)
20. Intangible assets (Continued) 20. BIL &= (&)

During the end of the period, the proportion of intangible assets
from internal R&D to the remaining amount of intangible assets
was 26.16%.

As at 30 June 2021, the intangible assets for which the Group had
title restrictions had a carrying amount of RMB21,956,413.63 (31
December 2020: RMB22,245,313.81), please refer to Note V.67.

As at 30 June 2021, land use rights for which title certificate has

not been obtained are as follows:

7N HA B OR GB R N BB AT BT K R B
WEEWRETREESRBENLI A
26.16% °

202156 A30H - AEEFTAHE
XRGINEFEEFAEERAR
#21,956,413.6370(2020F 12 A 31
H: AR#22,245,313.815T) © ##
MR 67

202146 A308  AWZERZES
BT E A REE R T

RMB
ARET

Reasons for failure to

Item Carrying amount obtain title certificate
=] IREEE AHIERZENEREA
In progress of applying
for the title certificate
Land use rights T bR AR 28,326,607.52  LibFE HIEPHIEF

Other than the finite useful life of some of the trademarks held
by the subsidiaries of the Company, trademarks of the Group
are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The management
of the Group are of the opinion that the Group has both the
intention and ability to renew the trademarks continuously. As
a result, the useful life of the trademarks is considered by the
management of the Group as indefinite because the trademarks are
expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash inflows indefinitely.
The trademarks will not be amortized unless their useful life is
determined to be finite. Instead the trademarks will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that they

may be impaired.

BARRZFRARFAENID HIRE
AEBsERIN  AEEBEMHES
TEHEARZERAEE R - AEHE
EEERR  AEEEEABRENT
MEEZEHE - BirREREE
KARKEBELERSRAFRE - &
o AEEEREBRAZEFARER
B THRE - RIFZSFAFENAER
FRERERER  BATSHETH
#HoHR BESESFEREERD
KRENFERERETRENR



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

21. Expenditure on development

Capitalized expenditure on development of the Group is presented

31 December
2020

20205
128318

223,897,817.26
16,491,375.00
46,727,638.98

287,116,831.24
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Increase
during

the period
REE
Expenditure
on internal
R&D

nE
BEXH
700,309.22
26,556,616.80
9,275,420.91

36,532,346.93

31 December 2020
2020%
128318

as follows:
[tem
ER
Hybrid project REBNER
Hydraulics project REER
Others Efb
Total at
22. Goodwill
(1)  Gross carrying amount of goodwill
tem
R
Merger with TAGC BHENE 531,226,252.68
Merger with Linde Hydraulis A5 EREABLE
GmbH & Co. KG
Merger with KION AHKION
Merger with Dematic Group A f#Dematic Group
Merger with Tsintel Technology ~ 4658 R
Merger with Shengrui Transmission & (25 8)
Others A
Total At

851,162,761.07
6,814,359,042.12
15,345,108,075.00
303,417,137.96
405,423,901.83
653,216,622.13

24,903,913,792.79

Increase during the period

RHEN
Business
combination
involving
entities not
under common
control
FRE-#HT
LEAH

65,820,699.00

65,820,699.00

EEHE

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
21. BABXH
REBEERMEMFHEHNAT -
RMB
ARET
Decrease during the period
KRS
Recognition
as intangible 30 June
assets  Other changes 2021
BRA 2021%
BYEE At H 6A30H
- - 224,598,126.48
27,252,850.80 - 15,795,141.00
3,398,935.39 52,604,124.50
30,651,786.19 292,997,391.98
22. A&
(1) WmERERE

Adjustment
for exchange
differences

Ex

Disposal

RE

Decrease during the period

KHED

Adjustment
for exchange
differences
EX
ERAE

35,934,441.79
287,689,077.07
246,890,201.40

25,978,248.03

596,491,974.29

RMB
ARBTT

30 June

2021
2021%
6A30H

531,226,252.68

815,228,313.28
6,526,669,965.05
15,098,217,873.60
303,417,137.96
405,423,901.83
693,059,073.10

24,373,242,517.50

171
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it & 2 HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
22. Goodwill (Continued) 22. BE (&)
(2)  Provision for impairment of goodwill (2) BEEMEEE
RMB
AR
Increase during Decrease during
Item 31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
BR 2020%€12R31A REEm PN 2021%6H30H
Merger with TAGC AIRNE 238,071,400.00 238,071,400.00
Balance as at 30 June 2021 mainly represented goodwill 20216 A0 M EHKRTEE
arising from merger with TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH ERAETRNE - HMEBRE
& Co. KG, KION, Dematic Group, Tsintel Technology and A% 1% - KION * Dematic
Shengrui Transmission. Goodwill arising from merger would Group * BEBEMEIGES
be allocated to asset group units to test for impairment on an MEEANEE AEEGFE
annual basis. HEZECESHEENEE

MASETHERENR -

Carrying amount of material goodwill and trademarks is EZRENRASBEIEEE

allocated to the following asset group units as follows: EHAEENERAT

e asset group unit A: major automobile components o EEMMAEA: ABERE
other than automotive and engines BHIN EZ BT M

. asset group unit B: manufacture of hydraulic pumps, e HEEMMBER: EERRE
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other R -REFBE REH
components FI-EamEkAEeZTHMHE

e asset group unit C: forklift trucks production, e EBEHMBAEC: XBAE
warehousing technology, intelligent supply chains and E - BERMREEMtE
automation solutions R B EEBRT R

e asset group unit D: intelligent supply chains and e HEMMBAED: HeeftrE
automation solutions WM BB LRATR

e asset group unit E: driving assistance system and e HZEMHMBESE: EREY
automatic driving solutions Ao RABRRBATR

e asset group unit F: 8AT gear boxes e BEEMMBEEF:SATER

il



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
22. Goodwill (Continued)

(2)  Provision for impairment of goodwill (Continued)
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The carrying amount of material goodwill is allocated to the

asset group units as follows:

(%)

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

22. BE (&)

(2)

BB EER(E)
EEHENREASHEIREA
EREANERLMT

RMB
ARBTT

Carrying amount of goodwiill

BENRESHE

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

293,154,852.68
815,228,313.28
6,526,669,965.05
15,098,217,873.60
303,417,137.96
405,423,901.83

293,154,852.68
851,162,761.07
6,814,359,042.12
15,345,108,075.00
303,417,137.96
405,423,901.83

Asset group units BEMAAS
Asset group unit A BEMABEA
Asset group unit B BEMEAEB
Asset group unit C BEMABEAC
Asset group unit D BEMAMAAED
Asset group unit E BEMABAE
Asset group unit F BEMEAEF
Total a&t

23,442,112,044.40

23. Long-term prepaid expenses

31 December
2020

2020
12R31H

[tem

EH

Industrial mould fee TEEAE

Industrial equipment fee T

Expenditure on improvementof T AEFEE
fixed assets leased in MR

151,344,159.14
53,093,347.70

47,720,231.57

Total

ait

252,157,738.41

Increase

during the

24,012,625,770.66

23. REIFEER

Amortization
during the Other
decrease

period period

RMB
ARBTT

30 June
2021
20215

NGl
24,480,393.99
13,256,786.60

6,325,888.41

44,063,069.00

LN §
11,618,864.48
11,361,206.59

4,754,498.83

27,734,569.90

EthiEd 6A30R

164,205,688.65
54,988,927.71
49,291,621.15

268,486,237.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

HRE D RHBRAF

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

24. Other non-current assets

25.

Item
ER

30 June 2021
202156430

Provision for

Gross carrying

amount

RASE

impairment

AEER

Scheme assets under defined benefitplan BEFH 2|7 HEAE
=t
F

Input tax credit to be deducted HMEENE

Prepayment for construction equipment B ff T123R &A1+ 403

535,174,733.60
96,546,358.20

190,959,899.10
13,462,441.71

and land
Others £t
Total A3t

836,143,432.61

Short-term loans

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

Bin ‘é‘zﬁﬁ?,ﬁa‘iﬂﬁ%igiﬁ ERER
(ll‘:H)
24. EMERBEE

RMB
AR T

31 December 2020

20205128318
Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carying
amount amount impairment amount
FEEE i AEER EHEE
SEENILTEERIINS  404,058,750.00 - 404,058,750.00
96,546,358.20 77,152,350.00 - 77,152,350.00
190,959,899.10 72,095,422.83 - 72,095,422.83
13,462,441.11 13,607,446.94 - 13,607,446.94
836,143,432.61 566,913,969.77 - 566,913969.77

25. EHIER

RMB
AR®B T

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

150,000,000.00

2,329,456,634.00
3,319,205,698.31

[tem

BH

Pledged borrowings (Notes 1 and 2) BIRER(GE - 2)
Secured borrowings HIRER
Guaranteed loans (Notes 3 and 4) REBER(FE3 - 4)
Credit loans =RER

Total &5t

5,798,662,332.31

As at 30 June 2021, the above borrowings and loans carried
interest at rates ranging 0.50%~8.79% (31 December 2020:

0.40%~5.22%) per annum.

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

89,900,000.00
2,953,761,750.00
2,687,424,786.96

5,731,086,536.96

M2021F6 8308 it fE A FF|
R 50.50%~8.79% (2020412 A 31
H :0.40%~5.22%) °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
25. Short-term loans (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

As at 30 June 2021, among the short-term loans, RMB75,000,000.00
(31 December 2020: Nil) represented the entrusted loans obtained by
Shengrui Transmission, a subsidiary of the Company, from Weichai Group
Holdings Limited through Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. Pursuant to the loan agreement, such loan amount is secured by the
pledge of equity interest in Shengrui Transmission and other companies
held by minority shareholders of Shengrui Transmission.

As at 30 June 2021, among the short-term loans, RMB75,000,000.00
(31 December 2020: Nil) represented the entrusted loans obtained by
Shengrui Transmission, a subsidiary of the Company, from Sinotruk Jinan
Special Vehicle Co., Ltd through China Merchants Bank, Jinan Branch.
Pursuant to the loan agreement, such loan amount is secured by the
pledge of equity interest in Shengrui Transmission and other companies
held by minority shareholders of Shengrui Transmission.

As at 30 June 2021, among the short-term loans, EUR153,070,000.00
(equivalent to RMB1,176,526,634.00)(31 December 2020:
RMB1,228,386,750.00) represented the loans obtained by Weichai Power
Hong Kong International Development Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, from BNP Paribas, Hong Kong Branch, for which the Company
provided guarantee for joint liabilities.

As at 30 June 2021, among the short-term loans, EUR150,000,000.00
(equivalent to RMB1,152,930,000.00)(31 December 2020:
RMB1,203,750,000.00) represented the loans obtained by Weichai Power
Hong Kong International Development Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, from Australia and New Zealand Banking, Hong Kong Branch,
for which the Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities.

26. Financial liabilities held for trading

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

2021F1/A1HZE

6 H30H 1 77

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
25.
1

2

GER

4

SECREEE D)

M2021F6 A30H » BHERFAR
#75,000,000.007C (2020412 A 31
B:&) AREEREEARAQA
BBIIRETEENBFARD A @A
RAZFATRBRHEESHRENETE
HoBBERBROT - ZEERHA
BInEHN LB R AL ORI
EHREBARREERER -

M2021F6A30H » BHERFAR
#75,000,000.007C (2020412 A 31
A: &) AHEHEEAEEEMEHR
BEARARBBBEBRTERDITNR
RATZ FRARGEDRHUNET
BX - BEBEERBEOE - ZEEK
ERHEIOOHERREULFT R
HESREMARIREEREA -

B202156 308 » GHERP K
JC153,070,000.007C * A ARE
1,176,526,634.007C(2020% 12 A31
A : ARK%1,228,386,750.007T) *
BREEBERRITEAIITARRAT
RAHLEFH (BB BBEERERR
RIRERER - BARRREESE
FRFBER -

B2021%56 308 » GHERP K
JL 150,000,000.00 7T * & A R#
1,152,930,000.007C (2020412 A 31
A : ARK#1,203,750,000.007T) *
BRFBRITEALTAARRAZFA
RIMLE (BB EBRERER AR
REOER  AAARRHESET
IREBIER -

26 REMEMEE

30 June 2021
202146 H30H

122,095,805.87

1,946,619.00

[tem

=

Forward foreign exchange contracts RHIIMNES K

Contingent consideration of business %4 #f 5 A HHE
combination

Total &t

124,042,424.87

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
202012 A831H

55,557,616.74

1,946,619.00

57,504,235.74

175
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

HRBORHAERDE

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
27.

28.

Notes payable

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)
27. EHEE

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

292,798,643.46
29,508,818,158.04

[tem

HAE

Commercial acceptance bills B AN ESR
Bank acceptance bills HRITHEH ER
Total a5t

29,801,616,801.50

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no outstanding notes payable

which were due (31 December 2020: Nil).

Accounts payable

RMB
AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

72,701,616.78
22,897,792,119.42

22,970,493,736.20

M2021F6H308 - AEBEELHK
e ER (2020128318

&) -

28. EFER

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

43,499,338,123.90
6,420,811,903.66
781,442,053.54
764,450,961.88

[tem

HAE

Within 3 months 3@ A AR

3 to 6 months 3f A E6MEA
6 to 12 months 618 A= 1218 A
Over 12 months 1218 A LA E
Total A

51,466,043,042.98

Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

within three to six months.

As at 30 June 2021, there was no payable which was material and

aged over one year (31 December 2020: Nil).

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 831H

38,941,972,550.33
5,140,360,453.02
619,577,261.89
748,014,731.15

45,449,924,996.39

BNERTHE  WEEEIZ6(E

HRIBE -

MR2021FE6A308 @ EIRIEE—F A L
MEZMEMNSFIE(2020F12 A31

A:&)o
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f B % it & £ IH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

29. Contract liabilities 29. 5E&EE

RMB

AR BT

[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020

HAH 20216 H30H 2020912 A31H
Supply chain solutions services (Note) HpEEE R T ERE () 3,298,086,930.40 3,524,676,300.00

Sales and other services SHE M E M AR S 10,723,667,617.36 12,022,714,777.33

Total A&t 14,021,754,547.76 15,547,391,077.33

Note: The contract liabilities associated with the supply chain solutions services He HEHEEEATEREEENERE

BERETTARTENEFOGRE -
ERNENERBENRBRREANEE
REVMARS - LR ©

are the balances payable to the customer under the performing contract.
The balance is generated when a specific milestone payment exceeds the
revenue recognized as a result of the input method.

30. Payroll payable

30. R THEA

RMB
AR T
Increase during Decrease during
ltem 31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
ER 2020%12A31H AHE KHES  2021%6A308
Short-term remuneration BEEM Y PIRRY LRI 12,389,186,102.85  12,184,615,986.89 4,925,227,344.84
Post-employment benefits BRERN(RTRE
(defined contribution plan) HED) 1,700,808,516.87 1,713,262,180.26 391,035,518.05
Severance benefits due within —EWH R FRET
one year (Note V.39) GESREL) 79,065,651.33 8921352667 261,403,110.02
Cash-settled share-based payment ~ —FREIHEAHS
due within 1 year (Note V.39) BEROROIA
(W33 - 39) 206,186,657.20 37,439,171.60 196,674,485.60
Other long-term payroll due — R H
within 1 year (Note V.39) ORI EMH
(MsER ~ 39) 284,679,612.95 234,784,372.85 116,992,265.10

Total

At

5,490,721,420.68

14,659,926,541.20  14,259,315,238.27

5.891,332,723.61
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
30. Payroll payable (Continued)

Short-term remuneration is presented as follows:

[tem
BH

31 December 2020
2020128318

Salaries, bonuses, allowances and
subsidies
Staff welfare
Social security
Incl: Medical insurance
Work injury insurance
Supplementary medical insurance
Housing funds
Labor union operating funds and
employee education costs

Other short-term remuneration

1% %2 2N

1B

BIRANEZ

HERBRE

A BERRE
IBRRE
BRBRERR

EZN

TEEBNET

YEKE

E i S

3,508,943,179.85
82,217,165.04
109,188,731.65
78,510,666.27
13,855,182.94
16,822,882.44
27,643,521.47

751,137,464.53
241,527,166.34

Total

4,720,657,228.88

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)

30. BNBITHM(R)
EEHHMT

Increase during

the period
AH

10,865,368,372.92
257,126,531.06
788,726,899.67
680,530,541.24
46,041,676.36
62,154,682.07
220,061,141.41

102,544,689.57
155,358,468.22

12,389,186,102.85

Decrease during
the period
8-}

10,713,434,628.32
213,614,423.47
790,088,595.70
685,252,233.70
44,416,095.53
60,420,266.47
220,399,358.70

59,004,982.39
188,073,998.31

12,184,615,986.89

RMB
ARBTT

30 June 2021
202146 A30H

3,660,876,924.45
125,729,272.63
107,827,035.62
73,788,973.81
15,480,763.77
18,557,298.04
27,305,304.18

794,677,171.71
208,811,636.25

4,925,227,344.84




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
30. Payroll payable (Continued)

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan) is presented as

31.

follows:

[tem 31 December 2020
BH 2020%12A31H
Basic pension insurance EABERR 321,546,848.15
Unemployment insurance KERRE 15,485,562.13
Contribution to pension fund rEFLHE 66,456,771.16
Total Bt 403,489,181.44

Taxes payable

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)

30. BB T &M (48)
BRAEAN (REIREHEMT -

Increase during

Decrease during
the period
AH

the period
KD

1,293,867,347.90
110,549,439.87
296,391,729.10

1,288,513,816.79
110,845,544.48
313,902,818.99

1,700,808,516.87 1,713,262,180.26

31. EXHE

30 June 2021
202166H30H

RMB
ARBTT

30 June 2021
202146 A30H

326,900,379.26
15,189,457.52
48,945,681.27

391,035,518.05

RMB

AR BT

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

1,339,016,713.19
1,019,108,499.70
307,336,882.10
37,377,244.74
19,194,965.62
11,362,637.31
11,061,162.20
10,406,645.08
101,352,580.98

[tem

UEl=

Corporate income tax EFREH
Value-added tax EER
Individual income tax [EPNZIESE)
Property tax BEM
Educational surtax A BN
Stamp duty ENFERL
Land use tax T AR
City maintenance and construction tax 3 7 4 E 3R
Other taxes E A8
Total A&F

724,745,336.22
901,032,696.99
364,067,826.69
20,830,227.26
8,312,913.08
22,083,051.18
15,921,944.09
11,634,211.84
112,111,574.97

2,856,217,330.92

2,180,739,782.32
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
32. Other payables

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)
32. HMEMNSR

30 June 2021 31
2021466 H30H

RMB
AR

December 2020

2020512 A31H

79,894,920.05
2,115,812,631.06

10,708,917,708.82 7,

[tem

EA

Interest payable JE 1 1) 8
Dividend payable JEA<F A
Other payables H th FE 5 5K
Total a5t

71,075,433.98
384,173,120.51
953,057,341.01

12,904,625,259.93 8,

Interest payable

ltem
HH

408,305,895.50

FEASFI B

30 June 2021 31
202166 H30H

Interest on medium term notes

Interest on borrowings

hHIRER B

RS

RMB
ARBTT

December 2020

2020912 831H

49,844,572.70
30,050,347.35

14,456,768.89
56,618,665.09

79,894,920.05

71,075,433.98

JE& A BRI

30 June 2021 31
2021%6H30H

Total a&t

Dividend payable

[tem

]S

Dividend payable on ordinary shares JE 1<) 3 38 A% AR R

Interest payable on perpetual bonds

(Note 1)

EROKEERE (1)

RMB
ARET

December 2020

2020512 A31H

2,058,340,507.77

57,472,123.29

Total

327,808,933.22

56,364,187.29

2,115,812,631.06

384,173,120.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
32. Other payables (Continued)

Other payables H b B 5K
RMB
AR®ET
Nature 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
L1 202146 H30H 2020%12A831H

RESRAS
e TR R EE B ERBER

Guarantees and deposits 5,179,070,111.89 2,977,914,546.38
Payables for purchase of construction

and fixed assets 485,105,002.30 523,318,371.42
After-sale expenses and repair and

maintenance expenses

443,892,560.76

400,198,075.21

Sales discount HEE 341,387,423.16 609,892,254.38
Commission He 281,985,247.27 279,315,537.83
Transportation expenses BE 152,968,355.27 137,066,418.20
Technology development expenses g & 49,789,765.08 160,946,256.34
Others Hih 3,774,719,243.09 2,864,405,881.25
Total Ast 10,708,917,708.82 7,953,057,341.01

Note: As at 30 June 2021, pursuant to the relevant agreement, Weichai
International Hong Kong Energy Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, had perpetual bonds with a coupon interest in the amount
of RMB57,472,123.29. The distribution of such interest will be made to
holders of perpetual bonds on 14 September 2021.

As at 30 June 2021, there were no other payables in significant

amount aging over one year (31 December 2020: Nil).

CARRABZFRABMEBER(EE)

BEREEARARIKBIEBRZEL
E o B 1E2021F 6 A30H - B
REMAIFNKBEEZEARY
57,472,123.297C * % 2 B #%712021
FORVARMKEBEH AL RE -

R2021F6 A30H » EERE —F A
FHEZMNEME[TK(2020612A4
318 : &) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

33. Non-current liabilities due within one year

[tem
HH

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

(%)

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

Long-term payables due

within one year
Long-term borrowings due

within one year
Lease liabilities due within one year
Bonds payable due within one year
Other non-current liabilities due

within one year

—FRBHREMK
3,191,160,359.10

—FAREHHRBER
2,848,045,028.17
2,006,462,371.75
710,673,738.20

—FRIHNEERE

—F N ENES

—FRIHOEMIERBRIE
3,650,388,332.99

Total

Bt

12,406,729,830.21

Long-term borrowings due

within one year include:
Mortgage loans

(Note V.35 — Notes 9 and 10)
Guaranteed loans

(Note V.35 — Notes 2, 4, 7 and 8)
Credit loans
Other loans (Note V.35 — Note 11)

Hep : —F R HRIMER

HIRER(HER ~ 35

#$910) 18,000,000.00
REBR(HEER - 35 ¢

$2+4-7-8) 1,766,235,068.05
EREBEX 1,059,809,960.12

HE B (MR 35 5E11) 4,000,000.00

34. Other current liabilities

34. HbRBHEE

Item 30 June 2021
HE 2021466 H30H
Product quality assurance deposit EREERES 3,631,934,908.24
Loans from leasing institutions THE IR 1,957,010,283.70
Short-term commercial paper HHRES 500,000,000.00
Others Hith 789,887,690.26
Total S 6,878,832,882.20

A P B B AR R IH H AR
33. ~FRIHHFERBAE

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

2,954,756,850.00

2,760,330,394.83
2,368,437,362.56

3,191,122,669.69

11,274,647,277.08

18,000,000.00

2,288,465,175.00
449,865,219.83
4,000,000.00

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

3,403,818,750.95
1,870,916,400.00
500,000,000.00
827,031,873.62

6,601,767,024.57
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f B % it & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
35. Long-term borrowings 35. REABRK

RMB

AR BT

[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
=)= 2021466 H30H 2020912 A31H
Mortgage loans (Notes 9 and 10) HREZ(ZE9 - 10) 31,000,000.00 40,000,000.00
Guaranteed loans (Notes 1~8) REBEMEFH(FE1~8) 10,418,404,684.01 10,433,914,067.40
Credit loans = RER 1,373,481,854.85 1,409,724,299.84

Other loans (Note 11)

Hp R (E11)

143,000,000.00

Total

11,965,886,538.86

Long-term borrowings are classified according to maturity dates as

143,000,000.00

12,026,638,367.24

RHERRIBBEEADWMT

follows:
RMB
AR T
Maturity 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
I 202156 H30H 2020412 H31H
Due within 1 year 166 A 31 HA 2,848,045,028.17 2,760,330,394.83
Due within 1 to 2 years 18)2F N3 Hp 679,430,240.26 831,666,081.88
Due within 2 to 5 years 255 A 5| H] 10,595,456,298.60 10,583,972,285.36
Due over 5 years 5F L 691,000,000.00 611,000,000.00
Sub-total INEF 14,813,931,567.03 14,786,968,762.07

Less: Long-term borrowings classified

as due within one year

o DR FREIHIN

RHEMER

2,848,045,028.17

Total

11,965,886,538.86

As at 30 June 2021, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging
from 0.57% to 7.24% (31 December 2020: 0.57% to 7.45%) per

annum.

2,760,330,394.83

12,026,638,367.24

R2021F6A308 @ it & aFF|
R B0.57%~7.24% (2020412 A 31
H :0.57%~7.45%) ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of EUR353,000,000.00 equivalent to
RMB2,713,228,600.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2020: RMB2,832,825,000.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, from China Development Bank, for which the Company
provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term borrowings will
mature on 15 October 2024.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of EUR201,500,000.00 equivalent to
RMB1,548,769,300.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2020: RMB1,617,037,500.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, from ANZ Singapore, for which the Company provided
guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term borrowings will mature
within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of EUR129,000,000.00, equivalent
to RMB991,519,800.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2020: RMB1,035,225,000.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, from Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited, for which
the Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term
borrowings will mature in stages on 28 October 2024. Among others,
no amount will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of EUR30,000,000.00 equivalent
to RMB230,586,000.00 under long term borrowings (31 December
2020: RMB276,862,500.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, from The Export-import Bank of China, for which
the Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The long term
borrowings will mature in stages on 21 June 2023. Among others, an
amount of EUR7,500,000.00 equivalent to RMB57,646,500.00 (31
December 2020: RMB96,300,000.00) will mature within one year.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)

35. RMER(R)

ool

F2

w3

4

B2021%56A308 - EHMERPK
JC 353,000,000.00 @ #1 & A B #
2,713,228,600.007T (2020912 A 31
A : AR%2,832,825000.007t) &
B RFERTRAARDRZ TR AL
FH(EBEBEERABRQAEERN
BN AARIHEHESEETREE
R ZERBERKN2024F 108
158 E| 8 -

M2021%F6 A308 » REERPE
7¢ 201,500,000.00 * #r & A R ¥
1,548,769,300.007C (2020412 A 31
H: AR#%1,617,037,500.007C) A&
SRATRITHNE D TRAARRZFA
RIAEE N (BB ERERER AR
RENER  ARARRHESSET
RBER - R —FRNEIE -

M2021%F6 A308 » REERPE
7L 129,000,000.00 * #r & A R ¥
991,519,800.00 7T (20204 12 A 31
B : AR#%1,035,225,000.007T) &
FEBIT(EB)BRARMARAZ
FREBES N (BB BRERE
RARREOER - AARARRME
BETRBER - ZERBEFBR
2024F 10 A28 HATH EAR|H - Heh
m-FRESHeE -

B2021%F6 A308  KEERF
Bt 7T 30,000,000.00 * T & AR
230,586,000.00 7t ( 2020 & 12 A
318 : AR %276,862,500.00 7T )
APHEEHORTARNRRZ TA
RIMEE H (FEAH ) BREREGRA
RAIRENER  AAQRREES
ERRBER ZERBETBER
2023F6 21 HAT D HE|H - H A
B 7T 7,500,000.00 @ A AR
57,646,500.00 7t ( 2020 4 12 A 31
A : AR#96,300,000.007T) 7R —
FREBIHE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Note 9:

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of GBP27,767,540.78 equivalent
to RMB248,279,480.13 under long term borrowings (31 December
2020: RMB246,856,075.45) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, from Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
Luxembourg Branch, for which the Company provided guarantee for
joint liabilities. The long term borrowings will mature on 2 December
2024.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of EUR785,658,755.00 under long-
term borrowings equivalent to RMB6,038,730,322.68 (31 December
2020: RMB5,783,286,508.87) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, from Australia and New Zealand Banking, Hong Kong
Branch, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited,
Agricultural Bank of China Limited Hong Kong Branch, DBS Hong Kong
Branch, Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd. Weifang Branch, for
which the Company provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan
will mature within one year in stages on 21 September 2025. Among
others, no amount will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of USD44,181,000.00 equivalent
to RMB285,420,353.85 under long term borrowings (31 December
2020: RMB288,286,658.08) was loan(s) provided to Weichai Power
(Hong Kong) International Development Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
the Company, from Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Limited, for which provided guarantee for joint liabilities. The loan will
mature in stages by 7 November 2024. Among others, an amount of
USD4,909,000.00 equivalent to RMB31,713,372.65 (31 December
2020: Nil) will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of EUR16,667,000.00 equivalent to
RMB128,105,895.40 under long term borrowings (31 December 2020:
RMB200,625,000.00) was loan(s) provided to Weichai (Germany)
Real Estate GmbH, a subsidiary of the Company, from Bank of China
Frankfurt Branch, for which the Company provided guarantee for joint
liabilities. The loan will mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of RMB22,000,000.00 (31 December
2020: RMB26,000,000.00) under long-term borrowings was loan(s)
provided to Shengrui Transmission, a subsidiary of the Company, from
China Construction Bank Corporation Weifang Branch, secured by
intangible assets with a carrying amount of RMB21,956,413.63 and
fixed assets with a carrying amount of RMB57,887,271.10 of Shengrui
Transmission pursuant to the borrowing agreement. The long-term
borrowing will mature in stages by 23 October 2023. Among others,
RMBS8,000,000.00 (31 December 2020: RMB8,000,000.00) will mature
within one year.
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B2021F6 A308  KEERF
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B2021F6 A308  KEERF
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#31,713,372.6570 (20204 12 A 31
B E) R —FREIE -

$2021F6 A30H  KREERF
Bt 7T 16,667,000.00 © #r & AR
128,105,895.40 7t (2020 4 12 A 31
B : AR#%200,625,000.007T) & F
BRITEABZEBAITAARRAZTA
AL (ER)BIEGRARRHN
B HAARREESTEFTREFE
R WHER—FREE -

M2021F6A308 » REIERFPAR
#22,000,000.007C (20204 12 A 31
B :26,000,000.007T) AF BEZZE
TRNBRABRITDITRALRRZ
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
35. Long-term borrowings (Continued)

Note 10:

Note 11:

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of RMB27,000,000.00 (31 December
2020: RMB32,000,000.00) under long-term borrowings was loan(s)
provided to Shengrui Transmission, a subsidiary of the Company,
from China Construction Bank Corporation Weifang Branch, secured
by land and properties held by minority shareholders of Shengrui
Transmission, pursuant to the borrowing agreement. The long-term
borrowing will mature in stages by 13 October 2023. Among others,
RMB10,000,000.00 (31 December 2020: RMB10,000,000.00) will
mature within one year.

As at 30 June 2021, an amount of RMB147,000,000.00 under long-
term borrowings (31 December 2020: RMB147,000,000.00) was loan(s)
provided to Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
from CDB Capital Co., Ltd., and the loan agreed in the loan agreement
were used in medium-duty and light-duty gear boxes and new energy
transmission system projects. This long-term borrowing will mature
in stages by 22 October 2030. Among others, RMB4,000,000.00 (31
December 2020: RMB4,000,000.00) will mature within one year.

36. Bonds payable

[tem
HH

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)

35. REFERK (&)
10 :R202156A308 - RHMERF A

|

R 27,000,000.00 7T (2020412 A
310 : AR%32,000,000.007%) A
FEERBITROBRAR AT DT
MARRZ FRAAIBRHEHREN
B BRBHELOT ARG EE D
FREFANEM AR THAEE
ERIKE - ZE RHEEFRER 2023
FI0A13BR S HBE  HPAR
#10,000,000.007T (20205 12 A 31
A : AR¥10,000,000.007T) i1 —
FNEH -

CR2021F6 A30H 0 RESfE R A

E #147,000,000.00 7t ( 2020 4F 12
A318 : AR%147,000,000.007T)
ARERERESBRARMARAZ
FRAREETHERERETAA
RENER  EXRHEHTHEER
ARPEAZRERFNERED R
HIEB - X FERBERBR2030F
108228 D HEIE - HR AR
4,000,000.007C (2020412 A318 =
AN #4,000,000.007T) R —F R
ZIHf -

36. EfSES

30 June 2021
20216 H30H

Bonds payable

FEfHE R

6,316,672,884.05

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

8,702,767,425.04
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
36. Bonds payable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows:

REATR ¢
RMB
AR T
Exchange
gain or loss/
Atthe Fair value Adjustment
beginning Issued during  Accrued nterest Repaid during hedging forexchange  Less: due within At the end
[tem Face value Issuing date  Bond period Issued amount of period the period during the period Amortization the period adjustments differences one year of period
MMEE EifE
58 BE B88  E5ER 828 288 LEo] KEHRAE bbb KERE Ehae EXzEsE B-FE Hx4E &
[STEUT O = R 736730400000 2017528218 H130473136000  2857,203995.09 1948092099 22593420 (1,305,57260000) < (B TIOEBIRA  TA4514920
[(ETUT O B 150/,120,000.00 218568 TE 150035970000 1,492,820851.10 SELK0E 21689840 (33,66633305)  (60,38661.00 - 138G
Nedumtemroe  BHEE 906,834,300.00 1954 TE 9052540400 38469442500 392874361 4590680 (16,241,845.20 368,499,486.60
Coputebonds S I 3.67,200,000.00 20597 SE 396120000000 396604815385 BONIVN 45N (167,5%,73845) - 3805007,19280
Tol A 13745,498,800.00 1371754548400 8,702,767425.04 6533460 TOR20680 (130557260000  (3E663B5) (BBATE  TIOEFBTBA 631667288405
Note 1:  KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with =1 RARZFARKION - R2017F2
total par value of EUR1,010 million in February 2017, which will mature ABETRELFRI101ERTHH
in May 2022, April 2024 and April 2027, at floating interest rate based HEE - 5501K20226548 ~ 2024
on EURIBOR (Euro Interbank Offered Rate). In April 2021, KION early FA4RM2027F 485N FE AL
redeemed part of the bonds payable in 2024 and repaid EUR167 EURIBOR (B 7T #R 77 Al 47 18 1 & )
million, equivalent to RMB1,305,572,600. On 30 June 2021, KION BEERZEA R o R2021F48 -
repaid EUR92,461,000, equivalent to RMB710,673,738.20, which will KION$E A1 {8 18 #F 5 #2024 4 B 8 fie
be mature within one year. &S - EESBER/1.67EBRT - #7
& AR#1,305,572,6007T © 72021
F6H308 * Br92,461,000 - 4
AR710,673,738.207T  #§H —4F
REIH o
Note 2:  KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with 2 AABZFABKION - R2018F6A4
total par value of EUR179 million in June 2018 with bond period of 7 BT EEABRE A TIER TR EZE
years. Nominal amount of EUR100 million of such notes are at floating B EHEHRAETF  ZEZEBEPIER
interest rate based on EURIBOR while the other nominal amount of JUEREF) = A LAEURIBOR (BT ERTT A
EUR79 million are at fixed interest rate. EFREMNE) REENZHHE - 5
0.79EBUTEAEFIE BEEF X -
Note 3:  KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued medium-term notes with 3 ARQAAZFAAKON: R2019%F4
total par value of EUR120.5 million in April 2019 with bond period of 7 ABTEMATBEA1. 2058 THH
years, at floating interest rate based on EURIBOR. HZEE  EH5HREA7E - FXAEB
EURIBOR(ERTLERITRIEIFER X)) B
BEER)FEFIE -
Note 4:  KION, a subsidiary of the Company, issued corporate bonds of principal 4 KRQARAZFRAKION » ®B20204%F

amount of EUR500 million in September 2020, with a nominal interest
rate of 1.625%, and maturity of 5 years The bonds will be mature in
2025.

IARTEMSEASBR TN E
&%  EHHBRAESF  EEMRE
1.625% ' ZEEHR2025F 55 -
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1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

H -~

Statements (Continued)
37. Lease liabilities

38.

2 M Ak ()

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

é;ﬁ?ﬁa‘%%ﬁ%%iglﬁ SR
(%)
37. HEEE
RMB
ARBT

{0V =loPa s 31 December 2020
202146 HA30H 2020%12A31H

TAETIEESTE A 9,604,335,470.34

WGP EEVAITAT S 2,368,437,362.56

[tem
|
Lease liabilities HEAR
Less: Lease liabilities taken to non-current liabilities 3 : #F A —F A 2| HIR3E7%
due within one year (Note V.33) BENHEERE
(MisEH ~ 33)
Total il

Sper A EPAER S 7,235,898,107.78

As at 30 June 2021, the balance of unrecognized finance
costs in lease liabilities amounted to RMB508,083,713.46
(31 December 2020: RMB623,427,598.02).

Long-term payables

R202146 8308 - BEHE A EHE
BOARERRNEERNBREARARE
508,083,713.46 7T (20204 12 A 31
H: AR%623,427,598.027T) °

38. RHIEAR
RMB
ARE®T

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202156 H30H 20205128318

Item
JHE
Long-term payables RHEENRK
Special payables ZIHERK

7,272,426,921.60 6,977,885,050.93
26,429,641.24 26,812,880.19

Total i

7,298,856,562.84 7,004,697,931.12
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~# ff i % #it & 3= B IH H &

Statements (Continued) B(H)
38. Long-term payables (Continued) 38. REAFEE(T R (&)
Long-term payables by nature: BREME N REEENK
RMB
AR #T
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
1EH 202166 H30H 2020 12A31H
Government grants for national debt projects — BI{&I8 B BT & & 5,500,000.00 5,500,000.00
Balance of indirect lease guarantee BMEHEERRE 1,304,610,778.99 1,496,839,050.00
Financial liabilities related to sale and leaseback &% EIAMCHE & 5,962,316,142.61 5,475,546,000.93
Total A&t 7,272,426,921.60 6,977,885,050.93
Special payables by nature: WHREMEY REIE RN
RMB
AR ®T
Increase during Decrease during
ltem 31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
ER 2020%12A31H AR H 32 0 HES  2021%6A30H

Interest subsidy for liquid fund granted % Bt BB B 897 &)
by provindial finance office BEeERME 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
Compensation for relocation FERHER 3,812,880.19 2,206,329.04 2,589,567.99 3,429,641.24

Total A 26,812,880.19 2,206,329.04 2,589,567.99 26,429,641.24
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1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
39. Long-term payroll payable

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)

39. REAFE(TER T & i

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

10,958,273,391.43
732,796,877.19

314,918,986.40
861,696,193.00

12,867,685,448.02

[tem

=

Defined benefit obligations HREX=EB

Long-term severance benefits REREGRIE A

Cash-settled share-based payments AT & B E R D 217
(Note X) (B E+—)

Other long-term payroll payable H b K BB T M

Subtotal NET

Less: Long-term payroll payable due B —FAREH R

within one year JRE A<F 58 T 55 P
Among which: Severance benefits He o BRET

Cash-settled share-based
payments

Other long-term payroll payable

AR S B E RO A

Ho At £ H B T %5 B

575,069,860.72
261,403,110.02

196,674,485.60
116,992,265.10

Total

At

12,292,615,587.30

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

12,840,459,812.53
694,341,321.39

180,377,925.00
852,076,254.05

14,567,255,312.97

366,575,010.36
271,550,985.36

27,927,000.00
67,097,025.00

14,200,680,302.61




Interim Report 2021 FHEIFRE 191

PO 5 i 3 I R (4)
2021F181HZ6H30H 15 R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R
(%)
39. RIIEMB T HM (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some
overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. The scheme requires
that contribution be made to an independently administered fund.
Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit

provided for under defined benefit of the plans.

The Group’s defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
after termination of service. The scheme requires that contribution
be made to an independently administered fund. The scheme is
administered by an independent trustee in the legal form of a fund.
The assets held under the fund is held separately with assets of the
Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment strategies of

the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

BRI
REEBHRINFRERE
BTEEE TREX@aT
ERkmMBLIERNESHT
ZarEl N BEIARER
A TE BRIRER] -
REENREZT @At
®atEl - ZatE
SHEFBR - %5
= - IE%LX%AE B ﬁ%
ENEENAEENEEER SR -
XA ERELTINRESR

i o

H

XFAANBZENERKF - ZEZ
BREE-AEBECRRBNRERR
BEERE - XEARBFEEZNG
RRERBIFH -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it & 2 HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 39. REAEFRBE T H MM (48)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) REXmEB(E)
The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as TREEEABGBRBMEANTIER
at the balance sheet date: HiRE -

Key actuarial assumptions 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
TEREBR 2021 6H30H 2020912 A31H
Discount rate (%) P R(%) 0.80-2.85 0.39-2.55
Expected rate of salary increment (%) EHHFSEER(%) 0.00-2.98 0.00-2.98
Expected growth rate of future pension 78 85K 3Rk & B F
expenses (%) R E(%) 0.00-4.25 0.00-4.25
Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below: EAERTERNEBAEAT
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem the period previous year
HH A A
Current period cost of service = HA AR 5 Ak AN 228,938,450.07 209,583,608.10
Previous cost of service iR K AR 7% A AR 1,274,301.40 -
Net interest M EFEE 33,874,260.61 70,928,073.72
Net amount of the cost of BERR 18 12 P AVF 58
post-employment benefit 264,087,012.08 280,511,681.82
Taken to cost of sales AEAEERA 134,880,503.40 123,806,776.10
Taken to distribution and selling SAEEER
expenses 37,689,613.80 34,764,936.50
Taken to general and administrative SAEEER
expenses 41,530,148.47 36,934,626.70
Taken to research and development AR ER
expenses 16,112,485.80 14,077,268.80
Taken to finance expenses sTA IS E A 33,874,260.61 70,928,073.72

Total A5t 264,087,012.08 280,511,681.82
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair

REXGEBEHNAENEELIAE

value of assets under the scheme are as follows: BEEHET
RMB
AR®E T
Present value of Net liabilities/
defined benefit Fair value (Net assets)
scheme of assets of defined
[tem obligations under the scheme benefit scheme
REZ @ TE FEEE RES &t &
EH EBRE AREE  FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance HYBE 19,438,125,178.73 (7,001,724,116.20) 12,436,401,062.53
Taken to profit or loss in the current SHAEHRER
period 310,930,239.07 (46,843,226.99) 264,087,012.08
Cost of services PR A A 230,212,751.47 - 230,212,751.47
Net interest AINSNER 80,717,487.60 (46,843,226.99) 33,874,260.61
Taken to other comprehensive income 5t A Efth#54 Uas (1,614,901,204.71) (58,356,607.64) (1,673,257,812.35)
Actuarial gains or losses BERGHEX (1,614,901,204.71) - (1,614,901,204.71)
Return on assets under the scheme HEIBERR
(net of amount included in net interest)  (5F AR 8 F&EARKRI) - (58,356,607.64) (58,356,607.64)
Other changes Hin 8 (823,574,818.67) 219,443,214.24 (604,131,604.43)
Benefits paid B X THEH (227,815,603.08) 158,800,064.68 (69,015,538.40)
Contribution from employers EBXaE - (22,871,689.87) (22,871,689.87)
Adjustment for exchange differences BE N EFE R (617,586,513.19) 105,342,137.03 (512,244,376.16)
Others Hib 21,827,297.60 (21,827,297.60) -
Closing balance HARHBE 17,310,579,394.42 (6,887,480,736.59) 10,423,098,657.83
Note: As of 30 June 2021, the assets under the scheme amounting in aggregate F R2021F6A30BEIEEFRH £t

to RMB535,174,733.60 (31 December 2020: RMB404,058,750.00) were
accounted for under other non-current assets.

AR535,174,733.607C (20204 12
A31H : AR%¥404,058,750.007T)
HRMIERDEEFZE -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
40. Accruals and provisions

41.

[tem
HH

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R
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(%)
40. EFTEE

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

Pending litigation
Product quality assurance deposit
Others

g
b1
=

N
/

B
& B ¥
fin
|
?u'*
k>

52,223,848.86
279,783,560.87
118,625,055.21

Total

450,632,464.94

Deferred income

ltem
HH

41. EEW

30 June 2021
202166 H30H

Government grant

Deferred income of indirect leasing

BT 6 Bh
R E RS 2 BTN

2,292,704,541.77

2,030,909,253.60

314,465,500.60

business

Deferred income of sale and leaseback &% HEB BEMHER 2
sub-leases IR E W =

Total A

4,638,079,295.97

RMB
AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

59,306,527.55
293,159,881.98
156,614,561.84

509,080,971.37

RMB

AR T

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

2,218,813,065.64

2,391,883,350.00

386,183,865.00

4,996,880,280.64




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
41. Deferred income (Continued)

42.

As at 30 June 2021, the items related to government grant are as

follows:
Increase during
Item 31 December 2020 the period
&R 2020812A318 AREN
Land-related government grant £ £ ¥ iR EIRV B
T 975,719,587.43 22,500,00000
Special funds for industry EXRANHN

106,403,285.00

50,259,000.00

1,850,000.00

18,584,950.00

revitalization and technological  EEE S
renovation 785,627,677.18
Special assistance fund EEEYES
255,977,764.06
National debt special fund GlEEY-E g
1,992,202.79
Position-based allowances for BB A7 BHH
project teams fi2a% 197,396,182.94
Others Eft
2,099,651.24
Total At 2,218813,005.64

199,597,235.00

A AR YE

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

(%)

41. EEWE (&)
M2021F6 8308 @ W REBFMBIE

BRI

Taken to other
Other
decreases

HitEd

income during

the period

(9,801,157.53)

(47,445,965.81) (24,020,640.00)

(37,537,420.66)
(996,101.40)
(5,522,664.86) (330,238.07)

(51,570.54) =

(101,354,880.80) (24,350,878.07)

30 June 2021
2021%6A30R

988,418,429.90

820,564,356.37

268,699,343.40

996,101.39

193,393,280.01

20,633,030.70

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

RMB
AR

Related to
assetsfincome

HEE/WEAR

Related to assets
HEERE
Related to
assetsfincome
HEE/WERE
Related to
assetsfincome
HEE/ Wz iE
Related to assets

HEERE
Related to income
06y
Related to assets

HEERE

2,292,104,541.77

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

5,891,898,825.00

356,976,075.00
106,661,529.92

39,218,175.00
483,027,632.74

Other non-current liabilities 42. HiuEREBEE
[tem 30 June 2021
HE 20216 H30H
Asset securitization financing BEZEFLRE 6,475,508,207.00
Long-term liabilities of indirect leasing ~ BEIEAEXK s RHEE

business 343,035,106.00
Interest rate swap contracts FEEREHL 27,712,490.37
Put options F bk HAE 37,562,459.40
Others Hith 486,310,982.36
Total =R 7,370,129,245.13

6,877,782,237.66

195
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f B % $it 3 1 B0 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
43. Share capital 43, A
RMB
AR
Changes during the period
.y byt b
New shares Capitalisation
Item 31 December 2020 issued Bond issue of reserve Others Sub-total 30 June 2021
L] 2020812A31R RTHR R AEEER B NE 2021568308
I, Restricted circulating shares - AREKHRA 1,746,518,070 792,682,926 2,876,293 795,559,219 2,542,077,289
1. State-owned legal person shares 1 BEEARR 1,642,531,008 199,451,216 - 199451216 1,841,982,24
2. Shares held by other domestic entities 2~ EtAEER 103,987,062 387,195,128 2,876,293 390,071,421 494,058,483
including: Shares held by domestic EdBREARR
legal persons 387,195,128 387,195,128 387,195,128
Shares held by domestic BRARARR
natural persons 103,987,062 - 2,876,293 2,876,293 106,863,355
3. Shares held by foreign entities 3 MR R - 206,036,582 - 206036582 206,036,582
including: Shares held by overseas EdENEARR

legal persons 206,036,582 206,036,582 206,036,582
Shares held by overseas EaRARR
natural persons

. Non-restricted circulating shares Z. ERERERD 6,187,355,825 (2,876,293) (2,876,293)  6,184,479,532
1. RMB ordinary shares NEELER 4,244,315,825 (2,876,293) (2,876,293)  4,241,439,532
2. Overseas listed foreign shares B E TSN ER 1,943,040,000 - - 1,943,040,000

lI Total number of shares Bk 7933,873,895 792,682,926 792,682,926 8,726,556,821

Note: As approved at the tenth provisional meeting of the board of directors in Hr ARAARE200FFE+ABREES
2020, the third provisional meeting of the supervisory committee in 2020, BERARE 202005 FE=Z RGN
and the first extraordinary general meeting in 2021, and approved by the EEERREAN2021EFE KK
CSRC (Zheng Jian Xu Ke No. [2021]1407), the Company intended to issue BEREACSH RS TKEES
792,682,926 RMB-denominated ordinary shares (A Shares) with a par % ofE (3B B FF 1 (2021]1407 5% ) -
value of RMB1 per share to target subscribers by way of non-public issuance MEEREEFAFBTEREE
and increase its capital share by RMB792,682,926.00 and capital reserve RARBITHARBELTBR(AK)
fund by RMB12,195,374,354.47. The aforesaid non-public issuance has 792,682,9260% - A MBRAAR
been verified by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants #792,682,926.00 T * #ME AR
LLP, which has issued the Capital Verification Report on the Non-public BAR®12,195,374,354.47 70 ° &
Issuance of RMB-denominated Ordinary Shares (A Shares) (De Shi Bao (Yan) MIERBIEBES D LB EXG T
Zi (21) No. 00218) on 11 May 2021. MEBAERETRER)ER IR

20215 A1MBE A T(EARELT
ARBEBR(AR)BREBRERS)
(1=Eh R (5 ) F(21)55002185%) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
44. Capital reserve

RMB
AR
Increase during Decrease during

[tem 31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
BR 2020%12A31H AR H 2 i KEHS  2021F6A308
Share premium (Notes V.43) M;‘ﬁfg(ﬁﬁﬁiﬂ < 43) 29,726,142.07  12,195,374,354.47 12,225,100,496.54
Other capital reserve (Note 1) HiEARNE(GE 73,826,396.51 1,941,414.23 75,767,810.74
Wholly state-owned capital reserve BEEZER /N% 77,000,000.00 - 77,000,000.00
Total At 180,552,538.58  12,197,315,768.70 12,377,868,307.28

Note 1:KION, a subsidiary of the Company, made an equity-settled share-based FH1: ARBZFARKIONUEZZEEN

Bein X5l E A RTEE AR
1,185,114.387T °

payment, leading to an increase of RMB1,185,114.38 in capital reserve.

45. HipiR e s
AHEEABRTRBABATINE
oA ek BEHAEE

45. Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable to

the parent as shown in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:

RMB

Incurred during the period
18358
Less: Amount
recognized
in other
comprehensive
Incurred income in
before the previous period Attributable to
income tax and recognized Less: Attributable to v
31 December forthe in profitor loss Income tax parent company interests 30 June
Item 2020 current period in current period expenses affer tax after tax 21
B R
W0F KAHERE EUEETE HABER HABRR WE
58 128318 2 HLLIN o HEHER B47 HERR 64308
| Those other comprefensiv income not o be recassfiedinto pofitorloss —~ T BB XA EREANE (978,252,179.09) 2,180,609,402.46 - 568,362,609.21 967,481,570.85 644,765,222.40 (10,770,608.24)
Changes arisng from re-measuingof defined beneft plan B ERRR R EADE (1372,079,480.28)  1,673,257,812.35 - 491,991,810.55 534,286,612.60 £46,979,389.20 (837,992,867.68)
Other comprehensie income not to e recassfed into rofit r loss
1sig the eqity method EEETTERRNAMEAYE (147,444,220.30) (6,043,159.40) . = (4,480,204.89) (1,562,954,51) (151,924,425.19)
Change i far vale of investment i oter equity nsruments EERRTAREDNARESD 54147152149 513,394,749.51 - 76,370,198.66 437,675,163.14 (651,2129) 979,146,684.63
1. ther comprehensiv income to be recassfied nto proft oross T BERBREANAREAKE (1,272,574,588.70) 17,041,710 17,313,720.00 (2,384,880.00) 181,174,262.95 (178955,391.75)  (1,091,400,325.75)
Other comprehensie income to be recasified nto proftorloss
using the equity method BRETASEMNENEANE 38.927,05835 1,094,492.00 - - 1,094,492.00 - 40,021,503
Cashfiow hedging resene RenEEHE (10,501,515.24) 17,764,180.86 17,313,720.00 (2,384,880.00) 6,152,104.98 (3.316,764.12) (4,349,410.26)
Bchange diferenceson foreign curency tenslton AeahaEnELE (1,301,000,131.81) (1,710,961.66) - - 173927,665.97 (175,638621.63)  (1,127,012,465.84)
Total of other comprehensive income i (2,250,826,767.9) 2,197,757,113.66 17,313,720.00 565.977,729.21 1,148,655,833.80 465,809,830.65 (1,102,170,933.99)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial Fi ~& 0f B % $it 3 1 B0 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (7))
46. Special reserve 46. BIEMFE
RMB
ARET
Increase during Decrease during
[tem 31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
BE 2020%12A31H AHIE KEHS  2021F6A308
Safety funds TEEESD 223,430,167.81 58,671,161.43 28,106,179.08 253,995,150.16
47. Surplus reserve 47. B#AAE
RMB
AR T

Increase during Decrease during
[tem 31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
HE 20205124318 A XEHES 2021564308

Statutory surplus reserve FEERBAE 1,630,243,076.46 - 1,630,243,076.46




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
48. Retained earnings

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

TSP BB IE H s R
(74)
48. K2 BRI

RMB

AR T

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

= AHA A FEREE AR
Retained earnings at the beginning BRI R 2 B A1) E

of the period

Net profit attributable to shareholders of 78 & A 7] A% 3 &3 K|
the parent

Less: Dividend payable on ordinary B RS R AR S AR A

shares in cash

Acquisition of minority interests in BETARDERERE
subsidiaries

Retained earnings at the end of HASR R o i A1)
the period

43,485,047,330.89 37,282,373,385.43

6,431,644,827.88 4,680,231,806.93

2,033,287,739.29 1,079,006,849.72

41,529,369.29

47,883,404,419.48 40,842,068,973.35

On 28 June 2021, the Company’s 2020 profit distribution proposal
was considered and approved at the Company’s 2020 annual
general meeting. Based on the total share capital of 8,726,556,821
shares, the Company distributed to all shareholders a cash
dividend of RMB2.33 (including tax) for every 10 shares held,
without any capitalisation of reserve. Cash dividend amounting to
RMB2,033,287,739.29 was distributed.

M20214%F6 A28H8 © AR F 2020
FERRAFAEEZBIBT2020
FEMBEIEAR  AQRNER
78,726,556,821 % A E & - A2
EREFIORKERSALNAR
233 (&R)  TEHELAESR
EIERA - HRERSBRINARE
2,033,287,739.297T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 2021417 1H26H30H I1F 5

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it & 2 HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
49. Minority interests 49. LR RER
RMB
AR T
Item 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
ER 202146 A30AH 2020%12H31H
Minority interest attributable to BERERRBERERNES
ordinary share holders 26,194,587,756.51 24,177,730,893.38
Minority interests - perpetual bonds DEREER - KERE 5,053,277,241.69 5,053,277,241.69
Total A& 31,247,864,998.20 29,231,008,135.07
On 14 September 2017, Weichai International Hong Kong Energy R2017F9F8 148 » KRR ZFAH
Group Co., Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, issued perpetual MBI (BB REREEER AR &
bond of par value of USD775 million, nominal interest rate of 3.75% TEAEBERT.7SEETL  EEAE
and with interest payable every six months. Total net proceeds after 53.75% N ESEE A6E A8 KE
deduction of issue expenses amounted to RMB5,053,277,241.69. B HIRBTERREEESERA
AR®5,053,277,241.697T °
The perpetual bonds were issued with the guarantee provided ZENKBERARANRFRAAMLEER
by the Company for its subsidiary Weichai International Hong B(EB)eEREEERAEEER
Kong Energy Group Co., Limited, without maturity date, without 1T WEARA  BERE - BHK
conversion right, and dividend distribution may be deferred for REFBEARARRWIBELS - B TER
an indefinite number of times at the discretion of the Company. HRH - KRB ERENR2022F9A14
The Company is entitled to redeem such perpetual bonds on 14 ABEZEKER -

September 2022.



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
50. Revenue and cost of sales

Revenue

WA

120,522,675,438.40
5865,219,969.13

126,387,895,407.53

(1) Revenue and cost of sales
[tem
R
Revenue from principal operations &7
Other revenue ELES)
Total =
(2) Reporting segment
Item
HE
Classified by major regions BIELEmRHE
of operation:
Including: Mainland China ~ E e : REI KK
Other countries and regions A ER MR
Total =5
Classified by time for BWARZERS B
recognition of revenue:
Including: Transferred at X KEER
a certain point
of time
Provided over EE-BEA
a certain period Rt
of time
Revenue arising from the HEP NG RES
contracts with customers ol NI
Revenue under the Standard &8 U A

on Lease

Total

Interim Report

PO 5 i 3 I R (4)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

2021 FRERSRE

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
50. EXRWARKA
(1) EEWANMEEKRFR
RMB
AR T
Incurred during this period Incurred in the previous period
THRER THEER
Revenue Cost
7% WA A
97,089,581,433.04 91,070,191,344.94 72,839,210,382.86
5487,610,882.13 3,424,367,748.75 3,150,432,799.38
ZTAREPIER A 94,494559,093.69  75,989,643,182.24
(2) WEDE
RMB
AR T

Engines

B0

30,729,216,478.17
2,249,285,938.45

32,978,502,416.62

32,874,730,961.69

79,327,122.96

32,954,058,084.65

24,444,331.97

32,978,502,416.62

Automobiles
and automobile
components
AER
REEHH

51,932,021,611.02
2,771,492,123.51

54,703,513,734.53

54,668,569,763.97

15,763,512.82

54,684,333,276.79

19,180,457.74

54,703,513,734.53

Intelligent
logistics

BRAR

2,393,800,148.59
36,312,079,107.79

38,705,879,256.38

19,486,650,792.41

15,477,256,502.85

34,963,907,295.26

3,741,971,961.12

38,705,879,256.38

85,055,038,237.78
41,332,857,169.75

126,387,895,407.53

107,029,951,518.07

15,572,347,138.63

122,602,298,656.70

3,785,596,750.83

126,387,895,407.53
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
50. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued)

3)

Performance of obligations

The supply chain solution services provided by the Group
belong to the performance obligation satisfied over a certain
period of time. The performance costs actually incurred on
a cumulative basis as a percentage of estimated total costs
is used to ascertain progress of performance of supply chain
solution services contracts. As at 30 June 2021, some of the
Group's supply chain solution services contracts were still in
the process of performance, the transaction price allocated
to the outstanding (or partially unperformed) performance
obligations is related to the performance progress of each
supply chain solution services contract, and will be recognized
as revenue in the future performance period of each supply
chain solution services contracts based on the performance

progress.

51. Taxes and surcharges

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)

50. ERWARKA (&)

(3)

JB 495 5 1) 554 R
REBREOEEREBERT R
BEBREX —BEANBITH
BHEY  RBRTERELE
BB AR A G TE AT R AN R B
BDlEE HIEEB AT ZRBEA
RIMBAEE - HIE202156
A308 ' AEBEI S HIEGEER
ARARREHEBITBIZR
DEEHRBIT(XBOKRE
TIBRHBRBHR S EREIEE
P SR AR R 7 R AR ) JB 403
[EAEREE - WA AR R AR
R RRIEE AR RBL AN IE
BAEEERBUA o

51. B & XM

RMB
ARET

Incurred in the

[tems

1HAE

City maintenance and construction tax 32
Educational surtax B BN
Property tax BEH
Stamp duty ENTERL
Others At

Total A&F

Incurred during

this period
AHIBRAER

175,564,018.89
131,222,576.83
101,285,436.81
57,470,390.31
48,927,497.30

514,469,920.14

previous period

EHIEARR

133,928,314.59
98,313,548.74
76,149,490.37
44,442,522.00
79,794,302.80

432,628,178.50




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

52. Distribution and selling expenses

53.

Interim Report 2021 FHiFkE 203

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)
52. SHEEH

Incurred during

this period

AR

2,592,109,116.79
823,206,129.87
1,405,064,462.93
212,351,365.60
367,448,207.53
95,187,938.72
59,852,127.61
49,917,223.71
708,217,845.32

[tem

EH

Staff costs 8 TR
Freight and packaging BEEBERBESE
After-sales and repair fee —BRkERREER
Marketing expenses %A E R
Depreciation and amortization & K 5
Travel expenses ERE

Lease expenses HE®

Office expenses MAER
Others Eh

Total a5t

6,313,354,418.08

General and administrative expenses

53. EEEH

Incurred during
this period
AHIBRAERE

2,506,943,028.33
378,322,588.65
387,106,490.71
152,576,729.03
27,851,580.83
49,292,885.86
69,574,764.18
638,299,563.36

[tem

UEl=

Staff costs 8 IR
Depreciation and amortization E R#H
External support fee INERSZ 45 B
Office expenses /N
Travel expenses ERE
Repair expenses ERE
Lease expenses HEE
Others EAh

Total =¥

4,209,967,630.95

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

EHIZARR

2,302,334,424.14
638,422,453.63
595,448,989.53
451,314,802.66
344,073,017.85
119,788,603.81
49,358,679.71
48,230,860.85
763,530,967.73

5,312,502,799.91

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LA

1,853,104,518.90
328,667,234.24
242,502,434.12
171,490,641.49
42,095,349.89
34,877,409.92
28,712,600.50
695,945,983.48

3,397,396,172.54
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

HRBORHAERDE

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
54. Research & development expenses

55.

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)
54, T8 A

Incurred during

this period
AHEBER

1,619,260,582.68
698,547,731.36
303,520,058.33

366,248,333.54
257,856,618.46
92,099,100.10
30,005,997.82
199,600,350.84

3,567,138,773.13

55. B & A

Incurred during
this period
AHIBRAERE

530,844,869.16

738,609,251.70
(1,320,264.57)
13,389,062.37

[tem

HH

Staff costs = DN

Technology development costs KRB

Testing costs ERSas

External intellectual property and HNEB R Rk EE R K
published documents licensing costs i i S8R 15 PR 2

Depreciation and amortization e R

Fuel and Utilities fee WAL R EhEE %

Travel expenses ERE

Others Efth

Total a5t

Finance expenses

[tem

=

Interest expenses (Note) FE X (GE)

Less: interest income o FEUWA

Exchange gains and losses M KB

Handling fees and others FEBRHEAM

Total A&t

(195,695,584.74)

Note: Among which, interest expenses of lease liabilities for the period between
1 January 2021 and 30 June 2021 was RMB250,836,258.67 (for the
period between 1 January 2020 and 30 June 2020: RMB270,100,306.99).

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period
FHiE A

1,115,919,896.78
486,953,141.70
359,897,464.90

252,000,372.03
118,887,255.75
58,815,216.80
19,280,020.35
170,554,164.26

2,582,307,532.57

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LA

587,977,422.15
619,198,001.23
153,774,657.13

43,641,220.80

166,195,298.85

Hr HEAF O 2021F1A1HZE202156A
30BILEM  HEAENFEERA
AR #250,836,258.67 7T (2020 4 1
A1HZE2020F6 A30H LR « A
R#270,100,306.997T) °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
56. Other income

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

G OF B AR R IEH H AR R

(%)

56.

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

Incurred during Incurred in

this period previous period

THRER iipa ]

66,966,158.66 42,324,627.47

101,354,880.80 94,670,770.06

2,146,007.72 2,148,679.60

[tem

EH

Income of financial subsidies BB B M A
Amortization of deferred income 1Ay £
Others Hip

Total =5

170,467,047.18

57. Investment income

[tem
HH

57.

Gain on long-term equity investments
under the equity method

Investment income during the period
in which the financial assets held for
trading were held

Investment income during the period in
which the investments in other equity
instruments were held

Gain on interest rate swap and exchange
gains and losses realized in cross
currency swap and interest rate
swap contracts

R AZENRYBERE
Yeas

RpheBmEERSEHRREG
% A W

Hipg s TAREER A B
MEMRE W

RXXNEBEHRENEEBAH
REERAF BB
BE 5 188

Investment income arising from disposal Bz & & BA % 1 1% & & £ HY
of long-term equity investments 158 W =

Others Efth

Total =Xy

H b U 55

FRAEHEEMNBURMBNT

Related to
assets/income

REE/RiERH

Related to income
HINRER
Related to

assets/income
HEE/WEHE
Related to income

SR HEE

139,144,077.13

REW S

Incurred during
this period
AH AR

158,322,273.68

135,900,998.91

38,795,713.90

47,937,788.76

(4,337,291.63)
13,315,507.93

389,934,991.55

RMB
ARET

Extraordinary
profit and loss
taken as incurred
during the period
SARE A
FEEHER

66,966,158.66

101,354,880.80

2,146,007.72

170,467,047.18

RMB
ARET

Incurred in
previous period

LHIZARR

144,700,622.61

78,889,136.87

51,391,050.74

(3,143,888.47)

271,836,921.75
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

58. Profit or loss on change of fair value

59.

[tem
HH

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

(%)

Incurred during

this period
AHAEE R

Cross currency swap and interest rate
swap instruments at fair value through
profit or loss for the current period

Structured deposit

Forward foreign exchange contracts at
fair value through profit or loss for the

o OB R B IH H kR
58. XREELSE RS

RMB
AR

Incurred in
previous period

L HAE AR

NarBEAEAEZHA
EHEENRINEE TR R
MEEMTH

BBETES

NarBEAEAEEHA
RS ERIINEA L

173,952,490.84
(522,761.45)

100,138,247.02
21,055,998.12

8,481,318.62

129,675,563.76

RMB
ARBT
Incurred in

previous period
HAgE A

current period (77,736,389.37)
Total A&t 95,693,340.02
Impairment loss of credit 59. ERAREERX

Incurred during

ltem this period
HH AH R
Impairment loss of credit from JE W BR R M5 AR (E 1R 25

accounts receivable (140,422,885.92)
Impairment loss of credit from H b W = R E 1B 5k

other receivables
Impairment loss of credit from
long-term receivables

1,681,045.31
RE RS RRLA 1B K
(7,398,295.03)

Total

(351,283,979.37)

(7,335,252.84)

(146,140,135.64)

(358,619,232.21)
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f I % it & £ IH H 5 &
Statements (Continued)
60. Impairment loss of assets

61.

[tem
HE

(%)
60. EERERX
RMB
A R#T
Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
AHA AR FHRE AR

Loss due to decline in value of inventories 17 & k(& 18 &

(CENEPRIERT)] (197,811,017.02)
(18,476,511.35) (1,242,593.15)
27,615.66 -

Impairment loss of fixed assets B E&EERBEEX
Impairment loss of contract assets EREERERK
Total a5t

(111,541,299.28) (199,053,610.17)

[tem

HH

Non-operating income

Reversal of provision for other liabilities & E & FEE D

Others

Hity

Total

A
=R

_‘_

61. EEIMKA

RMB
ARBT

Extraordinary

profit and loss

Incurred during Incurred in taken as incurred

this period previous period during this period
STARH B LB
rHBLER FERE AR FREEER

6,136,973.00 12,550,458.89 6,136,973.00
133,003,317.99 114,282,304.48 133,003,317.99

139,140,290.99 126,832,763.37 139,140,290.99
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& f i % it & 2 HIH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
62. Non-operating expenses 62. EEINIZH

RMB
ARBTT

Extraordinary

profit and loss

Incurred during Incurred in taken as incurred
[tem this period previous period during this period
AR EEN
EH AHRER LEAEEE FREMBR
Donation expenditure HIMERE 630,000.00 2,160,790.00 630,000.00
Others B 51,821,379.51 43,845,369.00 51,821,379.51
Total A 52,451,379.51 46,006,159.00 52,451,379.51
63. Income tax expenses 63. FIEHEH
RMB
AR #¥r
Incurred during Incurred in the
[tems this period previous period
= REA B KR FHAB A
Current tax expenses EHMRETER 2,556,839,137.37 1,932,214,146.17
Deferred tax expenses RIEFRS L E A (839,598,369.06) (929,457,396.18)

Total &t 1,717,240,768.31 1,002,756,749.99
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(74)
63. FTSHEMR(E&E)
Fristi& A BN HRAEMNE R RN

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
63. Income tax expenses (Continued)

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

™

RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in the
[tems this period previous period
EH AHRAER LHRER
Total profit plpekate 9,972,141,304.76 6,704,590,954.85
Tax at statutory tax rate REEREFENTE Note 15E1 2,493,035,326.19 1,676,147,738.71
Effect of different tax rates applicable to ARARFELEFAREATE  Note 252
the Company and some subsidiaries MEH 2 (707,143,408.52) (684,883,163.22)
Effect of tax rate change on opening balance R EEHEAIRIT ISR AR
of deferred income tax ga (6,853,813.93) (8,028,073.49)
Effect of adjustments to tax of previous periods ~ FBEARIEARFTE AT E (39,593,003.17) (17,349,765.33)

Profits and losses attributable to associates FERBEMA S0 EMERS

and joint ventures (35,610,693.71) (21,602,451.59)
Income not subject to tax BT A (53,891,096.87) (39,095,451.57)
Expenses not deductible for tax TENNER 75,628,814.09 67,464,398.56
Tax incentives on eligible expenditures HA BTN EaREE (314,295,417.67) (206,771,432.11)
Utilization of deductible losses from prior years — FIF LARI4F E &) AT H0E 12 (4,684,886.11) (4,383,035.85)
Unrecognized deductible losses KRN AEER 292,635,666.54 201,427,965.99
Effect of unrecognized deductible temporary RERHNAENEHEZER

difference = 15,993,980.72 37,777,444.71
Others Hip 2,019,300.75 2,052,575.18

BASEERHEHER
FSHER

Tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate

Note 1:The Company is subject to a statutory tax rate of 25%.

Note 2:The PRC income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated
taxable income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising from
the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable tax rate
according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the country in
which the Group operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group

had no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the Period.

1,717,240,768.31

1,002,756,749.99

1 ARBEEMER25% ©

72 AKREEFBERAMSHEZNENGE
RAEMTM SRR ERRER - R
A E A b [ JE 4% B2 P 1S RO BIRIR IR AR
SEREMERRNRITER - RE
REMES - RREABXRGFE -

HRAKRERARER L EETA
B BRIEL B BN SHARE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
64. Earnings per share (EPS)

65.

The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current
period attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows:

[tems
HH
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64. BRI E
HEASRYABBREBRART LR
AR RSB 0 % ESE R - B LABE AT AE SN
3 RR 60 NFE T B

EASRKEMAEETENT

RMB
ARBT

Incurred in

Incurred during

this period
AHIBRAER

previous period

EHIEAR

Earnings &
Net profit of the current period
attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the Company

6,431,644,827.88 4,680,231,806.93

8,065,987,716.00 7,933,873,895.00

Shares 8]

Weighted average number of the RABEITEINEBR
ordinary shares outstanding of the B DNAE 15 80
Company

Basic EPS (RMB/share) BRI/

0.80 0.59

The Group holds no potential shares that are significantly dilutive.

Notes to items in cash flow statement
Other cash received relating to operating activities

AEBESAMELEER

65. BEREREEIZRE
W | B qh B4 & E BB B RV IR

AN
kvl

RMB
AR

Incurred during Incurred in
this period

A A

previous period

CHEAE

[tem

IHH

Interest income FEWA
Government grants BT+ B
Others HAb

380,642,953.13
244,358,523.31
529,520,573.94

357,767,141.46
130,792,795.55
214,913,247.50

Total &5

1,154,522,050.38

703,473,184.51
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
65. Notes to items in cash flow statement (Continued)
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

AN
k7l

RMB

AR T

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HH AHA A HREE AR
Cash settlement of RABRBRETR

bonded warehouse business 1,139,579,122.37 291,439,300.00

After-sales and repair fee =P REMRE 790,898,438.94 446,979,275.04

Freight and packaging BEENBRE 799,297,687.85 613,728,839.04

Marketing and external support fee MEARBRINDSZFE 716,757,134.92 557,270,090.25

Travel expenses EZiRE 149,939,525.62 179,480,337.93

Office expenses

Rr

g
>
v
/

203,546,111.88

227,768,396.33

Others HAth 1,329,642,498.30 1,862,774,472.93
Total A5t 5,129,660,519.88 4,179,440,711.52

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

NXNEMEZEEEHEHNIEA

7

RMB

AR T

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period

HH AHAEB A FEREE AR

Lease liabilities HEAaR 571,862,773.33 527,293,890.70
Handling fee for guarantee for EBRERRRUFEE

borrowings and letters of guarantee 18,876,293.55 346,861,838.61

Acquisition of minority interests in BETFARLERE

subsidiaries - 81,552,693.67

Others H A 265,989,724.81 57,048,754.70

Total 5% 856,728,791.69 1,012,757,177.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
66. Supplement to cash flow statement
Supplement to cash flow statement

(1)

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

long-term prepaid expenses
Gain on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and
other long-term assets
Loss on retirement of fixed assets
Finance expenses
Investment income
Gain on change of fair value
Increase in deferred tax assets
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax
liabilities
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Increase in operating receivables

Increase in operating payables

[tem
HH
Net profit b
Add: Impairment loss of credit o ERREERK
Impairment loss of assets BERMEEX
Increase in special reserve EHIEFFEAIE N
Depreciation of fixed assets, FEE  REMEH
investment properties and ERFREEETE
right-of-use assets
Amortization of intangible assets A
Amortization of REARFEE B A Y

REETEE &
A B E MR Ef
& E MR

B & EREEL

M%ER

& W

AR BEBEIKZE

IEIE TS & 5 0

EIEFTSH AR
Rt A>) 5 hn

TFE e (38)

4 W TE B 5938 0
4 e A< I B B9 1200

Net cash flow from operating

activities

2

RBELNRE

mEEE

(1)

Incurred during

this period
AHIRAER

8,254,900,536.45
146,140,135.64
111,541,299.28
45,845,646.93

4,141,160,609.72
1,033,524,084.74

27,734,569.90

(85,570,514.65)
6,384,185.52
599,410,678.47
(389,934,991.55)
(95,693,340.02)
(500,485,970.54)

(339,112,398.52)
3,087,960,950.31
(23,522,449,437.22)
14,629,941,984.38

7,151,298,028.84

Bin ‘é\zﬁﬁ,ﬁa‘i%%ﬁi%iglﬁ ERER
(%)
66. BEEREXRBEER

RernskExEr

RMB
ARBTT

Incurred in
previous period

EHIEARR

5,701,834,204.86
358,619,232.21
199,053,610.17
32,038,541.70

3,228,082,045.90
1,033,842,085.35

28,449,078.35

(26,894,701.14)
390,038.41
655,726,127.17
(271,836,921.75)
(129,675,563.76)
(1,063,311,015.54)

133,853,619.36
(1,670,064,593.31)
(13,346,721,816.78)
9,172,464,519.57

4,035,848,490.77




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

66. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)

(1)  Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued)

Non-cash payment of material investment and

financing activities:

Item
EH
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(%)

66. REREBERBRER (F)

(1) RenEXRMAENE)
FTHRRASHEARENEE

mE

Incurred during

this period
AEBER

Acquisition of long-term assets from the

endorsement of bank acceptance bills

HEmM - RESHKE®
RITERAEREE

received from the sale of goods and wEREE RHEE
provision of services 560,898,290.93
Incurred during

[tem this period
HA AREJE A5
Net change in cash and cash HeNREEBYEEE -

equivalents:
The closing balance of cash and ReRRSEEBYH

cash equivalents HIR#AEE 66,234,235,811.74

Less: The opening balance of cash

B ReERREEBYN

52,734,052,691.24

and cash equivalents iR ES X5
Net increase (decrease) in cash RekAEEEYMF
and cash equivalents EmOHD )5

13,500,183,120.50

RMB
AR
Incurred in

previous period

EHIZARR

708,949,348.25

RMB
ARBT

Incurred in
previous period

LHIEARR

38,953,966,129.88

42,285,584,925.16

(3,331,618,795.28)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
66. Supplement to cash flow statement
(Continued)
(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of
major subsidiaries and other business units
Information relating to disposal of major subsidiaries

and other business units

ltem
1HA
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202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R
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(%)
66. RERBREAEN(H)

2) MBHBREETZTRAIN
HibZ2REUES
MEXTEFRAIREMBEREE

(VAESS)

RMB
ARBT

Incurred in

Incurred during

this period
AHIBRAER

previous period

EHIEAR

Consideration for acquisition of
subsidiaries and other business units ~ #J{E 1%

Cash and cash equivalents paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries and other
business units

Less: Amount of cash and cash

BB FARREMEEEN

BB FARREMEEEN
SNBSS MRS EEY

W RS FAT R

108,667,209.00 978,977,835.50

93,001,209.00 889,905,867.90

equivalents in subsidiaries and BAFAENRSH
other business units acquired BeEBY 469,728.20 86,373,577.16

Net cash paid for acquisition of

XASHR 2 F R

subsidiaries and other business units

MEFREMEMEEEN

92,531,480.80 803,532,290.74
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
66. Supplement to cash flow statement
(Continued)
(3) Cash and cash equivalents

RMB
AR T
Item 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
HA 202166 H30H 2020912 A31H
Cash e 66,234,235,811.74 52,734,052,691.24
Incl: Cash at bank Hoh : EFEHS 2,842,994.69 2,870,023.35
Bank deposits on demand AIRER AN
BRI TIF R 66,103,541,327.31 52,640,456,229.62
Other cash equivalents AR AR
on demand MEMEEES 127,851,489.74 90,726,438.27
Cash and cash equivalents MR\ LB FEYHRE
at end of period 66,234,235,811.74 52,734,052,691.24
RMB
AR #oT
Item 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
EH 20216 H30H 202012 A31H
Cash and cash equivalents HiREEEHTE

at end of period
Less: Balance of restricted cash
and cash equivalents

B R B R
ERESHE

Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents at end of period

HRASRES
FEMHRER

77,393,443,999.19

11,159,208,187.45

66,234,235,811.74

62,216,111,509.25

9,482,058,818.01

52,734,052,691.24
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

HRE D RHBRAF

67. Assets with restrictions in titles or use rights

[tem
BH

Cash and cash equivalents

k&S

Bills receivable

e

Financings receivable
JEW IR R E

Financial assets held for trading

RHUEREE

Fixed assets

BEE & E

Intangible assets
BIVEAE
Long-term receivable

£ HA iR Wk

Total

At

11,159,208,187.45

12,154,506,679.08

7,601,718,488.07

916,456,438.36

283,607,194.39

21,956,413.63

5,762,167,357.40

37,899,620,758.38

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
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67. Fr B RS A X 2R &l
MEE

RMB
ARBTT

Reasons for restrictions
PR R

Used in security monies for special
accounts such as letter of guarantee,
bank acceptance bills and letter of credit.
FARIHRRE - RITRRFER - ERAIEHE,M
EENRER
Used in securing issued notes payable
ARG IR AR R o
Used in securing issued notes payable
ARG R AR R o
Used in securing issued notes payable and bonded
warehouse business
ARERRAARNEE IR LB ER -
Used in securing bank borrowings and
pledge to guarantee the obligations
under the staff retirement benefit
RREMEVGRITESR - BB TIRIEN THED
PRAELR -
Used in secure to secure bank borrowings
RIS IRTTE
Used in asset securitization financing

ARBERSLRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
68. Hedges

Cash flow hedging

KION, a subsidiary of the Company, conducted cash flow hedging
on forward currency contracts designated to the exchange rate risk
of forecast sale, forecast purchase and firm commitment. The total
cash flow of the hedged item amounted to RMB3,294,174,654.60
(EUR428,583,000.00), of which the amount due within 1 year was
RMB2,856,414,819.80 (EUR371,629,000.00), and the remaining
portion will become due in the second half of 2022. The hedged
items would affect the profit and loss for the period of 2021 to
2022. There was no material invalid hedge for the current period.
During the period from 1 January to 30 June 2021, the loss on
fair value changes of the hedging instrument included in the
other comprehensive income amounted to RMB43,041,793.27
(EUR5,288,000.00) and income transferred to profit or loss for the
period amounted to RMB16,356,233.60 (EUR2,128,000.00).

The cash flow hedging on interest rate swap contracts designated
to the interest rate risk of the floating-rate borrowings for acquiring
Dematic Group (a subsidiary of the Company) by KION (a subsidiary
of the Company) will be mature in 2027. There was no material
invalid hedge for the current period. During the period from 1
January to 30 June 2021, the gain on fair value changes of the
hedging instrument included in the other comprehensive income
amounted to RMB51,922,011.97 (EUR6,379,000.00). There was no

amount transferred into profit or loss for the period.

ReEmnEEH

F 2 AIKION #& & BRI E & [ 48 5F
YT E - TEAD RS DA R R R
FHNEZRBEEINERBRETR SR
EEH -WHEHPEARSR=LE
T8 A AR M 3,294,174,654.60
7t ( BX JT 428,583,000.00 T )
HF1FRIHEHNSEAAR
# 2,856,414,819.80 7t ( B It
371,629,000.00 5t ) + ¥l % B o
R 2022F T HFEH - HEH
BERHEEZEROEMER2021
FE02F - AHBEETAEHE
MEEE S 2 20211 A1HZE6A
30B IEEIM c ZEBHIAGAH
e Wam A BEEHEX
B AR 43,041,793.27 T (B T
5,288,000.007T) - HHAE I EHE &
ik =2 A ARK16,356,233.60
7t (B7t2,128,000.007T) °

FRABIKIONKFIEERE K48 TE 4
U B F A RlDematic GroupH),;Z#)
MEEROFNERRBRETRERSE
EH o BR2027F 28 - AffES
REHEBME D - 2021F1A18
Z6HA30R LA - ZEHIT A
AHMEEREN AR EEEHK
m A AR®S51,922,011.97 T (BT
6,379,000.007T) * & BAm EEE AR
mHEEE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~& 0F i % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (748)
68. Hedges (Continued) 68. EHj(E)

Cash flow hedging (Continued)

On 15 January 2020, Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International
Development Co., Limited (“Hong Kong Power”, a subsidiary of
the Company) used the interest rate swap instrument as hedging
instrument, and conducted cash flow hedging on the floating-
rate borrowings amounting to EUR241 million against the cash
flow fluctuation incurred by change in interest rates. The hedged
items would affect the profit and loss for the period of 2021 to
2024. There was no material invalid hedge for the current year.
During the period from 1 January to 30 June 2021, the gain on
fair value changes of the hedging instrument included in the
other comprehensive income amounted to RMB8,883,962.16
(EUR1,134,495.15). There was no amount transferred into profit or

loss for the period.

Fair value hedging

On 31 December 2018, KION, a subsidiary of the Group, signed
interest rate swap contracts to conduct fair value hedging on
the interest rate risk of fixed-rate medium-term notes issued
this period of par value of EUR100,000,000.00. As at 30 June
2021, the aforesaid hedged items of the Group were presented
as bonds payable in the financial statement with a book value of
RMB632,635,749.60 (EUR82,308,000.00). During the period from
1 January to 30 June 2021, the book value of the changes and
adjustments of fair value of hedged items accrued to hedged items
was RMB33,666,333.05 (EUR4,081,699.52). There was no material

invalid hedge for the current period.

ReEREEHE)

20201 A158 © FRB#HLEE N
(R BEBRERERAB([EFED
NNEMNEEHTE/EAERTA
FEEH2 41ERTHZB FIEE K S
MR EFEF 5| RN MEREET
ReneEl WwEMHEEBRHZE
BHMHIEA2021FE2024%F - &K
Hms REREMHNLS - 202151
A1BE6A308 LEHE ZEHT

Bt AEAM RS RGO AR BEE

451?&2%AE5§58,883,962.167_E(@7_E
1,134,495.1570) * EHi M EE AIE
WmHEEE o

AREEEH
M2018F12A31H » A%£BETA
NEFTTHEREREL %aﬁa”ﬂ
?”f ) E {& & B 7T 100,000,000.00
TOH) B E R X E R & R = & b
ETAREBEENR - M202146A4
308 - ANEE Rt ERIER A
BHREPIRABEMNES  REE
BEA AR 632,635,749.60 T (BT
82,308,000.007T) * 20211 A1H
Z6H30B LMW ERIBR A R(E
BEEHABRNF AHERELENKRE
BE A AR¥33,666,333.05 0 (&
J04,081,699.527T) - NEAEE RE
Him e o

~



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

VI. Change in Scope of Consolidation

Consolidation of businesses involving entities not

under common control

KION, a subsidiary of the Company, formerly held 21% equity interest of
Hans Joachim Jetschke Industriefahrzeuge (GmbH & Co.) KG (“Joachim”).
Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreement entered into by KION and
former shareholders of Joachim, KION acquired the remaining 79% equity
interest in Joachim at a consideration of RMB108,667,209.00 (equivalent
to EUR13,873,000.00). On 1 February 2021, KION gained control over the
relevant activities such as the financial and operation policies of Joachim.

The acquisition date is determined as 1 February 2021.

VIl.Interest in Other Entities
Interest in subsidiaries

1.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

presented as follows:

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE
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N~ D o Y 5 )
FE—EHTREEH

ANAT ZFARKIONFREEFHHans Joachim
Jetschke Industriefahrzeuge (GmbH &
Co.) KG(LAT M Joachim])21% &)
f4E - BIEKIONE Joachim K B A% B %
ERCRBEEZEBHZE)  KIONKAARYK
108,667,209.00 7t ( B 7T 13,873,000.00
TL) VBB U B oachim 879 % B0 A 4 -
KION# 202142 A 18 ES T #Joachimff
BMEE MR FRBSTDEGE BE
BB A2021F2H18 -

£ 78 A 388 R RE AR

1. EFRARAPHER
ARTEETATNERMT -

Place of key Place of Nature of Percentage of
Item operation registration business shareholding (%) Way of acquisition
1HE TELE i EBME FRELBI(%) BEAR
Direct Indirect
E# 5t
(1) Weichai (Weifang) Material Forming and Shandong Shandong Manufacturing 100.00 - Through establishment or
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. industry investment
HROE) MR RREER DERAA W W3 RER BRRUIREENA
() Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai Manufacturing 100.00 - Through establishment or
Development Co., Ltd. industry investment
BEEN(LE)RMEERERAT g I BUEX  100.00 - BRRUIREZHA
(3)  Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Jiangsu Jiangsu Manufacturing - 71.06  Through establishment or
Co., ltd. industry investment
BEGNGNEAEEREARR L& Ik HiE% - 71.06 BRRVAREEZAR
(@) Weichai Power (Beijing) International Beijing Beijing Project  100.00 - Through establishment or
Resources Investment Co., Ltd. Investment investment
BRI (R ERERREERAA iR IR ERKE 100,00 - BRRUIREESA
(5) Weichai Lux Luxembourg Luxembourg Project - 100.00  Through establishment or
Investment investment
RRERE ERE ERE BRRE - 10000 BERUXRESHA
(6)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International Hong Kong Hong Kong Services 100.00 - Through establishment or
Development Co., Ltd. investment
HEEN(ER)ERERERAR &b A k&% 100.00 - BBRVIREZHA
) Shandong Heavy Industry India India India Manufacturing - 97.68  Through establishment or
Private Limited industry investment
WRETIHEEREERR 0 HE HE% - 97.68 BBRVAREZAR
(8)  Weichai Ballard Hydrogen Energy Technology Shandong Shandong Manufacturing 51.00 9.75  Through establishment or
Company Limited industry investment
HEENETERRER AT W W5 HiEE 5100 9.75 BBRUIREZHA
(99 Weichai (Angiu) Material Forming Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong Manufacturing - 100.00  Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
BR(RE)WHEEERAR WE W BER - 100.00 FRE—EHTEEAH
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

HRBORHAERDE
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G ARl T P AR 2 (AF)

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFATIRHRERE(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are KRAREZEFRANBERAT : (8)
presented as follows: (Continued)

Place of key Place of Nature of Percentage of
[tem operation registration business shareholding (%) Way of acquisition
ER TELEH i ¥BnE R B(%) REFR
Direct Indirect
HE 554
(100 Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing 51.00 - Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
REEXEERAT A R BEZX 51.00 - FR-BHTRERH
(1) Hande Axle Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing 3.06 94.00  Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
EEHR i RA REE 3.06 94.00 ZFER—#HITREAH
(12)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing - 100.00  Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
KA REEERAT i R Higx - 10000 HRE—-EHITAEAH
(13)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi Manufacturing 51.00 - Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
REEZTRERERELAT A R BEZ 51.00 - FR-BHTRERMH
(14)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing 86.37 - Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
HNARBERELAT il i HEEX 8637 - FR-EHTREAH
(15)  Weichai Torch Technology Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan Manufacturing 99.95 0.05  Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
BENERBRHERRA il il HEZX 99.95 0.05 ¥RE—ZHTRESH
(16)  Société International des Moteurs Baudouin France France Manufacturing - 100.00  Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
FEEHZBNERERAT % A BiEkx - 10000 HRE—-EHTEEAH
(17)  KION Germany Germany Manufacturing - 45.23  Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
KION fZE ZE RER - 4523 FR-EHTLEAHM
(18)  Weichai America Corp. USA. USA. Manufacturing 100.00 - Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
HRILE %H X HEZ 10000 - ER-BHTEEAH
(19)  Shengrui Transmission Shandong Shandong Manufacturing 38.00 - Through business combination
industry involving entities not under
common control
EHE WE W 2EE 3800 - FR-BHTREAH
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRTHHIER(E)
Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in the period are FTEFRABWEARAKREFELEE LR
detailed as follows: RIS

RMB
AT
Increase in Decrease in
31 December 2020 the period the period 30 June 2021
Name of subsidiary ARAR 2020512318 KR 202156 A30H
Weichai Ballard Hydrogen Energy WP ET AR 809,502,207.02 80,043,571.36 889,545,778.38
Technology Company Limited BRAR
Weichai Torch Technology Co.,. Ltd. WM ERIBR G 282,480,000.00 17,520,000.00 300,000,000.00
BRRA

FESELHEREDZN T RAAW

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as

follows: T

RMB

AR T

Percentage of Accumulated

shareholding of Attributable to Dividends paid to minority interests

minority shareholders minority interests  minority shareholders  at the end of period

SERE BELH AHERER HR 25

Name of subsidiary SNSES R LB kRER S ARF LERFER

KION KION 54.77% 1,160,154,361.37 240,469,862.95 14,711,822,270.19

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. RAEZRTBERAT 49.00% 250,322,245.83 - 4,096,394,635.95
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. REEZTHEBER

EfRA 49.00% 496,685,988.79 - 5,574,214,257.53

Total Bt 1,907,162,595.99 240,469,862.95  24,382,431,163.67
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R
VIl Interest in Other Entities (Continued) -t ﬁ Hofb g RERS (4)
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) EFRRRHIRER(E)
The following table illustrates the key financial information of TRIRT EMFRABEZEMBE
the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any B gz AREBRNZTLEZH
intercompany eliminations: HERIBATHEEE -
RMB
AR
30 June 2021
2021%68308
Current assets  Non-current assets Totalassets  Currentliabilities  Non-current liabilities Total liabilities
Name of subsidiary Th7%8 THEE FHBEE BEGH ik gt FHBEE BRAH
KION KION 30,351,735,41820  74112,043,716.86  104,463,779,135.06  33,145307,806.80  44,537,598,045.52  77,682,905912.32
Shaand Heawy-duty Motor Co, Ltd. ~ BIEERSEER
Al 52,263,059,471.55 7506,194,44950  59,769,253,921.05  48,934,197,222.40 1,956,800,006.58  50,890,997,228.98
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, L. RELTHERER
BN 17,618,785,071.44 3937,849,639.03  21,556,634,710.47 9,314,160,061.07 396,919,640.37 9,711,079,701.44
Total A3t 100,233579.961.19  85,556,087,805.39  185,789,667,766.58  91,393,665,150.27  46,891,317,69247  138,284,982,842.74
RMB
AR
31 December 2020
20205127318
Currentassets — Non-current assets Total assets Current liabiliies  Non-current liabilties Total liabilties
Name of subsiciary TRAER YR FRHEE EEAH il FRaBE BER
KION KION 27200,280.075.00  75,766973919.38  102,967,25399438  29,339,255,550.00  50,052,992,522.28 79,392,248,072.28
Shaanxi Heawy-duty Motor Co, Ltd. ~ FEEREER
1] 42,374,668,069.81 6,096,375,32857  49,071,04339838  38,481540,661.94 2,247,207 538.09 40,728,748,200.03
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. REELERER
GO 16,814,760,741.66 346734190315 20,282,102,644.81 9,077,142,470.96 337,612,815.08 9,414,755,286.04

Total At 86,380,708,88647  85,930,691,151.10  172,320,40003757 7689793868290 5263781287545 129,535,751,558.35
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Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

1.

Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)
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1. EF2 AP AERS(E)

RMB
AT
Incurred during this period
LR
Total

comprehensive Cash flows from

Revenue Net profit income  operating activities

Name of subsidiary FAREH EEWA AR REREAE LEIBRLNE

KION KION 38,769,764,274.80 2,111,328,413.44 3,010,299,581.97 3,422,077,776.20

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. [ GiEpi b =R =1 NI 42,214,965,434.25 517,915,594.26 517,915,594.26 (458,413,332.85)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. REEZTHERER

EARH 11,898,658,744.01 1,006,966,772.21 978,079,381.12 (157,194,657.55)

Total At 92,883,388,453.06 3,636,210,779.91 4,506,294,557.35 2,806,469,785.80
RMB
AR T

Incurred in previous period
THBLE
Total
comprehensive Cash flows from
Revenue Net profit income operating activities
Name of subsidiary FAREH ELON R TakmaE RERYHENE
KION KION 30,158,049,772.81 58,642,391.30 (428,512,990.22) (20,602,020.60)
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. RAERSEARAG  32,478,594,903.01 905,894,695.59 905,894,695.59 5,735,148,788.49
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. RELZTHERER

EARAH 9,211,068,149.38 881,268,951.30 879,953,625.56 312,333,348.05
Total S 71,847,712,825.20 1,845,806,038.19 1,357,335,330.93 6,026,880,115.94
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 2021417 1H26H30H I1F 5
VIl Interest in Other Entities (Continued) L e H A R A RE LR ()
2. Interest in joint ventures and associates 2. EEELENBELES
HY R 2
Particulars of the principal joint venture and associates of the RRTREEZAEREMBEPENS
Company are presented as follows: SR
Accounting
treatment for
Place of key Place of Nature of Percentage of the joint venture
Name of joint venture or associate operation registration Business  shareholding (%) or associate
HEegbER
BEPEREN
RELESHEDELT TELEN it EBHE FREABI(%) BHERER T
Direct Indirect
H#E LiEE3
Joint venture
AEhE
(1) Xi'an FC Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing - 51.00 Equity method
industry
BLER BREG i BlE% ERE
Associates
HEhx
(1) Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beijing Beijing Finance lease 16.36 16.36 Equity method
LWEREHEEER QA bR Sl MEHE E@x
(2) Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Shandong Shandong Finance 31.25 6.25 Equity method
Co., Ltd. company

WRET&EMBEERATF IIES IIES IR NG R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)
Interest in joint ventures and associates

2.

(Continued)

Key financial information of principal joint venture:

£ AR Al T P R R AR (A
2. ERELCXNBELET

Ky ()

BEERECENTIBEYHBRER

RMB

ARET

SlOIUa=lPk A 31 December 2020/

Incurred during Incurred in

[tem this period previous period
202156 H30H,  HAYLESPIENI=Dd

HH AHIRAERE FEREE AR
Xi'an FC Xi'an FC

BREE (i 35

Current assets
Incl: Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets

MENEE
Hp - ReMB2EHEY
FREBEE

339,683,930.77
34,538,938.54
177,219,514.20

256,261,039.77
9,427,504.02
187,482,221.96

Total assets BEAE 516,903,444.97 443,743,261.73
Current liabilities wmEBEE 209,586,251.41 181,210,978.49
Non-current liabilities EREBEE = -
Total liabilities BEAE 209,586,251.41 181,210,978.49
Minority interests DB R R -

Shareholders’ equity attributable to

BENE QAR RER

the parent 307,317,193.56 262,532,283.24
Share of net assets based on percentage IZ3FARLL ISt E ) FEEM T

of shareholding 156,731,768.72 133,891,464.45
Adjustments FEREEIE
- Others —HAth (7,770,734.88) (7,603,822.26)

Carrying value of investment in joint

venture FREEE 148,961,033.84 126,287,642.19
Revenue EERA 279,157,409.06 180,566,395.87
Finance expenses % ER 61,315.11 1,789,504.47
Income tax expenses Frisfi & A = -
Net profit 75 A 44,457,630.69 28,275,885.33
Other comprehensive income Hipir e W= = =
Total comprehensive income AW EEE 44,457,630.69 28,275,885.33

Dividends received from joint ventures in ZKBRUK B )2k B & DX

the current period

il
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

VIl.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

2.

Interest in joint ventures and associates
(Continued)

Key financial information of principal associates:

The Group holds 37.50% equity interest of Shandong Heavy
Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Co."), which provides the Group with services of deposits,
credit lending, settlement and other financial services. It is a key
associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity method in

the Group's accounts.

The Group holds 32.73% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides
the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is
a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity

method in the Group’s accounts.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

+t 7
2.

At = 88 v A R A (A
EEELEMBEREHR
ARz ()

EZBAMENTIEVKES

AEEFELRETEEUBAERA
AI(TIUREIMB AR L)37.50% K
B WWRETHBRAR AR EERMH
FH- 28 #EREMESHRE
RASEEEZMNHELE  AEEY
ZHECERAEREZRE o

AEEBELEREREERAA
(ML EREFE 1)32.73%MH - 1
5 B 2 7 5 (B TR B B 1 4 3
BIEEBARTEHRY  SAEE
STMHELYE  AEEHZBLE
$IRBRAERE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

current period

2. Interestin joint ventures and associates 2. EEEENHBELESD
(Continued) Rz (E)
Key financial information of principal associates: (Continued) SEHMECENTENBEE  (B)
RMB
AR T
30 June 2021/ 31 December 2020/
Incurred during this period Incurred in previous period
202156300 /AYREHE 20209128318 / L EIBAE
ltem Shandong Heavy Shanzhong Shandong Heavy Shanzhong
Industry Finance Co. FIENCEERNGES  Industry Finance Co. Finance Leasing
HE LWREIHBAF LEREHE WRETIHBEAR LWEREHRE
Current assets RYAE 35,711,083,066.31 LA 30,303,798,047.85  4,648,052,697.10
Incl: Cash and cash equivalents = : REMREFEY 9,356,117,587.54 ILIWEINEELEN 5 393,645,595.96 252,496,695.87
Non-current assets FRBEE LN REVVER LN EN I 6736591,22697  3,05,841,518.53
Total assets BEAH NSNS PR 37,040389.274.82  7,853,894,215.63
Current liabilities RBRE 38,847,328,090.61 UPEVTENBIIES  34,088,946,628.61 3,813,812,682.89
Non-current liabilities FRBAR 4,164,30538  3,533,950,822.70 5,867,096.76  2,408,554,001.12
Total liabilities AfRAt 38,851,492,395.99  10,768,428,998.94 VXV IR IER/LIN /AN YPE X - IAN
Minority interests PEBRRER - -
Shareholders’ equity BRI R EMRRER
attributable to the parent 3,204,543,270.43 DCIROEEG  2,945,575,549.45 1,631,527,531.62
Share of net assets based on ~ FA IRLL IR B A
percentage of shareholding FRENE 1,201,703,726.41 553,452,918.10 1,104,590,831.04 533,953,278.33
Adjustments HESR
- Others —Hfth 35,202,169.24 (1,098,426.89) 35,202,169.24 (4,090,507.01)
Carrying value of investment HREARERREN
in associates FERE 1,236,905,395.65 552,354,491.22 1,139,793,000.28 529,862,771.32
Revenue BEIA 373,619,025.23 351,158,896.26 288,507,108.68 183,597,089.35
Finance expenses HBER - (3,119,854.72) - -
Income tax expenses FSHER 86,322,573.66 22,147,732.18 (66,319,436.58) (11,379,444.53)
Net profit AR 258,967,720.98 59,582,365.03 198,958,309.74 34,137,833.58
Other comprehensive income Rt s - - - -
Total comprehensive income 72 i 8 258,967,720.98 59,582,365.03 198,958,309.74 34,137,833.58
Dividends received from REBEIMREHE M EH
associates in the el
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1 January to 30 June 2021

HRE D RHBRAF

Vll.Interest in Other Entities (Continued)

2.

Interest in joint ventures and associates

(Continued)

Summary financial information of non-material joint ventures and

associates:

[tem

B H

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

£ AR Al T P R R AR (A
HEgLENBELESP

2.

Joint ventures

Total carrying value of investments

The total amount of the following

o

NS

RERmEES

IO BIRFF L fFT B B

calculation based on the ST 8
percentage of shareholding
— Net loss —FEE
— Other comprehensive income —Hihgr & s
Total comprehensive income — (R R
Associates B s b 2
Total carrying value of investments HEREEEBEAG

The total amount of the following

THIBERFE R PG E R

calculation based on the EETE
percentage of shareholding
— Net profit — A
— Other comprehensive income —Hithgr &l
Total comprehensive income —reakanesE

Ky (&)

TEENALEREMBELRNER

MIBER

Closing balance/

incurred during

this period
HAREREE
AE LR

111,250,963.85

(123,806.55)

(123,806.55)

4,018,391,577.12

16,168,073.31
4,948,667.40

21,116,740.71

RMB
AR

Opening balance/
incurred in
previous period
HygheE,
HAE A

40,955,770.40

3,107,460,330.20

42,191,687.27
31,664,994.19

73,856,681.46
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

VIl Interest in Other Entities (Continued) L e H A R A RE LR ()
2. Interestin joint ventures and associates 2. EEELENBELES
(Continued) R (F)
Excess loss on joint ventures or associates: EEPEABECETENBES
8 -
RMB
AR BT

Unrecognized

Cumulative

unrecognized loss in

loss for the period

(or net profit shared

Non-cumulative

unrecognized loss

Name of joint ventures or associates the previous period in the period) in the period
AHRBRH
R R BX(SEH KR E5
RELESBECEAR HHRFBRA PERENE) RERHBK
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. AR AR TER D

BRAR 94,767,600.64 6,170,893.62 100,938,494.26

Baoding Shangi Tianma RERARSTEER
Automobile Co., Ltd. NG 7,750,463.68 - 7,750,463.68

HRASEERARSFIERDE
RABFRERAREZEERAQF
TEERESEIMELRET - Bt
REDEHERENFEER - ARH
R ENREBEEAREMES £
BREHEFRENRIABRRRLES
limited to zero. PR o

As the Group takes no responsibility for additional losses incurred
by Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd. and Baoding Shangi Tianma
Automobile Co., Ltd. in recognizing its share of the net losses
incurred by both companies, the writing-off of carrying values
of long-term equity investments and other long-term interests

constituting effectively net investments in both companies are
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets

Transferred financial assets that had been not
derecognised in their entirety

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had long-term receivables amounting
to RMB5,762,167,357.40 (31 December 2020: RMB5,598,400,500.00)

which had been transferred but not derecognised in their entirety.

Transferred financial assets that had been
derecognised in their entirety but continuously
involved

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had outstanding endorsed or discounted
acceptance bills with a carrying amount of RMB18,159,549,356.15 (31
December 2020: RMB32,426,320,835.90). As at 30 June 2021, they were
due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks dishonor the bills, endorsees
shall have the right to turn to the Group for recourse (“Continuing

Involvement”) according to the Law of Negotiable Instruments.

The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the bills have
been transferred. Therefore, the Group derecognized the bills and the
book values of related accounts payable that have been settled. The
maximum loss and undiscounted cash flow of continuing involvement and
repurchase were equal to the book value of the bills. The Group considers

the fair value of continuing involvement not significant.

The Group did not recognize any significant profit or loss at the date of
transfer for the period. The Group had no current or accumulated gain or
expense arising from the continuing involvement in financial assets which
had been derecognized. The endorsement and discount were incurred

evenly throughout the period.

CEBREREBRLIBERNS
mEE

MN2021F6 4308  AEBEEZR
ABBEIITERANKRBAERKRIAEARE
5,762,167,357.407C (2020412 A318 :
AR#5,598,400,500.007T) °

CEBRIBIREEES AW
CERBEREE

R2021F6A30R  AEBKRIBHHE
EFURNANERNRABELSA
F#18,159,549,356.157C (20204 12 A
318 : AR#%32,426,320,835.907T) °
M2021F6A30H - EFEHBAA1E12ME
A BB(EBREVEBERE - BERANEIT
ERNRE  ERFBEABRARNEERER
(TEEPAN]) -

2

Ix

AEERL  AKECRKREB THETMH
BryRE AR - Fit - R IEERE KSR
ZHMANEAERNEROEDEER - &
BEARBBENRRKERMANRRESR
ESZPREREEERE AKERR EEY
ARARBELAERKX -

FHAREBRMPEES B BRANFGREL
YAREKR - AEEEREED AT KL
REMEEEMMAFA ANV ANE
A BEMMBRERNPABHH L -
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IX. Disclosure of Fair Value

1.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1.
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URAREBEFENEEFN
afE

RMB

ARET

Fair value as at the period end

HRAAEE

Level 1 fair value Level 2 fair value Level 3 fair value

Item measurement measurement measurement Total
ER E-BR EZER N
NEETE NAEREME MEETE A
. Recurring fair value measurements - BENLAERRE
() Financial assets held for trading (-)RFEeHEE - 4,804,847,050.82 112,904,277.02  4,917,751,327.84
(I Investments in other equity instruments (Z)EtERTARE 295,084,834.60 2,959,675,505.65 350,821,209.40 3,605,581,549.65
(Il Receivable Financing (Z)ENGERE - 17,733,512,053.73 - 17,733,512,053.73
(V) Other non-current financial assets (W) At Eraas
EE - 393,215,096.97 - 393,215,096.97
Total asset measured at fair value on BEUAR BEER
a recurring basis BEBTE 295,084,834.60  25,891,249,707.17 463,725,486.42  26,650,060,028.19
(V) Financial liabilities held for trading (R)R5UeHEE - 122,095,805.87 1,946,619.00 124,042,424.87
(Vl) Other non-current liabilties (R)EEnaae - 27,712,490.37 37,562,459.40 65,274,949.77
Total liabilities measured at fair value SEUAR BEER
on a recurring basis Bt - 149,808,296.24 39,509,078.40 189,317,374.64
Fair value of financial assets and financial 2. FHUAREBETFENEA
liabilities not measured at fair value EENESRAEEBENAIRE
EfFR
The management of the Group considers that, the carrying values AREBERERR  BFAA

of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost in the financial statements approximate the fair values of
those assets and liabilities, except for the corporate bonds (Note
V.36) of KION, a subsidiary of the Company, with a fair value of
RMB4,055,239,120.00 (equivalent to EUR527,600,000.00) as
at 30 June 2021 and carrying amount of RMB3,805,007,192.80
(equivalent to EUR495,044,000.00).

K|ONE@A¥1§%‘%(W%£ +36)

20216 A0 AAEES
A B ¥ 4,055,239,120.00 ( B 7T
527,600,000.00 7t ) * R @ & (&
A A R % 3,805,007,192.80 (B J©
495,044,000.007T ) LASN + BFFS R 3=
FLUBSRKATENeRmEER SR
BENREHEERIZSEERAR
WAREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward exchange contracts, cross currency swap and interest
rate swap instruments, some structured deposits and other debt
instruments of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the fair value
estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and the most

appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according
to quote prices on the market. For listed equity instruments for
which circulation is restricted, fair values are determined based on
quoted prices on the market with necessary adjustments. The fair
values of investments in non-listed equity instruments are estimated
using the valuating model of market comparison or income
approaches, and the assumptions adopted are not supported
by observable market price or interest rate. The Group needs to
estimate unobservable market parameters such as price-to-book
ratio or cash flow. The Group believes that the fair value and its
changes estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and the

most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
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2 SR AR R B B (4)

-

3.

NAEBEME
TRHEE/ ¢REBEANER
AEENTFEERBRMBEIFIEBEA
EHE BRI EERIAEAARGEES
ENBEMEF - WBEEBKEEZERE

EVBENEAZESRE - BEE
EBEXA UBEES TR IA
BEZY  HEHEBD ﬁﬁﬁ']iz:ziﬂj]\
B HERENERCEFEVBE
AL o

NARBESELAZEFTAZHE

ENEREE SRHEBERETET
REIMEMIMNES Y RXNEBEHR

RMEEBMTE - Ao &BEERR
HMEB TR - NEBEMEE - UAEE
BRitfEstmanBERAGEN XA
TrRREEBBXRBERAENERE -

FTEHERTARE  UMBRERER
hfEE - LT ERABIBEMNERZT
B UM REAKEMRVUENAERE
BWEARBE FLMOERTAR
& RAmS A A ER
A AREE  KANBRHKILIES
ABRMGERIMNELZR - AEE
FERMFRABE S REEST AL
M2 EL GG - AEERE - U
HERTETOAABERELE
ABEH TATRREEAERA
REHEKEE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)

4.

Unobservable inputs

The key unobservable inputs of Level 3 fair value measurement are

summarized as follows:

[tem

R

Financial assets

tHEE

Xiamen Fengtai Bus and Coach
International Co., Ltd.

EMERERNERIEERD

Huarong Xiangjiang Bank

ERRIR

Zhejiang EP Equipment Co., Ltd

o

Zhejiang EP Equipment Co., Ltd

Contingent consideration from
business combinations

CEAHAFYE

Others

Hif

Financial liabilities

tRER

Put option

B

Contingent consideration from
business combinations

LEAHRAHE

Fair value as at

the end of period

4,220,000.00

39,748,600.00

105,001,178.20

112,904,277.02

201,851,431.20

37,562,459.40

1,946,619.00

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE
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Ju -~ AR R B R ()
4. FHEER@WAE

MTREZEBRAAEBEFENER

FABEEAERL
RMB
AR T
Fair value as at the Range
beginning of period Valuation technique Unobservable inputs (weighted average)
HEER
HORAEE  RERE FIEEEAE (M ¥ 1(E)
5,120,000.00 Income approach Cash flow
Wik Reing
39,748,600.00 Market comparison approach Price-to-Book ratio 1.0
MALRE kS
104,878,725.00 Income approach Cash flow
Yz Reig
112,904,277.02 Monte Carlo simulation method ~ Revenue from principal business
FHRRERE TERBUA
208,881,742.98
39,218,175.00 Binomial options pricing model  Volatility of equity value
“REHETERY REBErs=
1,946,619.00 Black-Scholes Option Pricing Volatility of equity value
Model REEERHE

e - B e AR

233



234 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. 48 HIRDER AT

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

IX. Disclosure of Fair Value (Continued)
5. Reconciliation for fair value measurement

The reconciliation for the recurring Level 3 fair value measurement

are as follows:

Total current profitloss
EEfGIERLE

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

Ju -~ SRR R ()
5. RABEEFENFEES
BENEZBRL A EET BH0BD

EEMT :
RMB
AR T
Acquisiion, issuance, sale and settlement
BR i HEAEE
Changes of

unrealized current gain/

Recognized loss of assetsiabltes

Recognized  through other Foreign eld at the end of period

Transferito ~ Transferout ~~ through profit ~ comprehensive exchange recognized through

Item 1 January 2021 Level3 of Level 3 orloss income ~ Acquisition Issuance Sale Settlement gainfoss 30 June 2021 profitloss

BRnENEE/

AfETARRH

AR ERRERAAT

%8 WIEIRIE BASZER  BEEZEX itARE faka BE ¥ & L EXBE  2021%6A308 BRNEY
Financial asets held for trading HELRER 112,904,277.02 - - - - - - - - - 112,904,277.02
Investment in equity instruments BRIARE 358,629,067.98 - - - (7,807,858.58) - - - - - 350,821,209.40
Financial iabites held or trading RBELRARE 1,946,619.00 - - - - - - - - - 1,946,619.00
Other non-current financil fabilties AbgraenaE 3921817500 - - (1,655,715.60) - - - - - - 37,562,459.40

6. The level change in the fair value
From 1 January to 30 June 2021, there were neither transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of
financial assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3 (1
January to 30 June 2020: nil).

6. AABEEXER
2021F1A1AE6A30H ILHARE -
AEBEVTHESBEENESREELAR
BEFEES - BAME_ELZHE
MR TESANEHE-BRN
1B (2020F1 B1HE6A308 L
A 41&) °©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 2021417 1H26H30H 1F 7R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions - ~B 5 7 B & X KRR 5

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the AYBEHRETRENERSEBELES
related parties under Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and STEAR R TEMNREE S heRIEPEHES
related parties under the information disclosure requirements of China EBERZES([BET HMRINBESLR
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”) and Shenzhen Stock SFEEERERERAENBEH S -
Exchange.

1. Parent 1. 8§47

Proportion of Proportion of

ownership voting
interest in power in
Company Place of registration Nature of business Registered capital the Company the Company
BARR HALT
A7 it BHE EREA BRuA TAELA
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial quarantee investment RMB1,200,000,000.00 1630 16.30
HEEREEERLE Shandong Province advisory planning and organization/coordination A &1,200,000,000.007C
WEE#SD and management of production operating
activities of corporates under the Group
IMREERRRESREES/
HRERE AR R AR ED
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller AARMEEERAFABLRETSE
of the Company. BRAA] -
2. Subsidiaries 2. FAH
Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1. FRAMEEBFRAMEE 10
3. Associates and joint ventures 3. BMELENMEEDLE
Details of associates and joint ventures are set out in Note VII.2. HECEMGECEFENTEL

20
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1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group

Name of related party

HBam s 58

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

+ B B 5 B AR B A2 5 (A1)

Hub B 5 B 5

Relationship with us

Hitb B 5 AR B &

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
RS EROBRA T

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
MR ERRID AR A A

Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd
HEBENHZEERAF

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
HBNEERERMNAERAA

Weichai (Yangzhou) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
HRBMN)HEEBRAQF

Weichai Lovol Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.
HEERETIRMDBRAF

Dezhou Degong Machinery Co., Ltd.
EMEIERMAER AR

Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
it TRt B IR A A

Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
WEBZEER QA

Shandong Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
ERTERERR A A

Linyi Shan Zhong Excavator Co., Ltd.
FomLEZREER AR

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
AREARERMNERAA

XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
RIEETEEWRNBRA R

Suzhou Foresight Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
# N 75 R AR BRI AR A 7]
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
PRESEEERNDBRA A

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.
B AT R AEEDHEREGRAE QA

Common control by parent
SN E ]

Common control by parent
CEESNSIE ]

Common control by parent

A 5 B 2\

Common control by parent
EESSYNCIEE |

Common control by parent
EERSNS EZE |

Common control by parent
EESSTNSIEZS |

Same ultimate controller

Al — B AR AE AR A )

Same ultimate controller

il T3S 2 /N]

Same ultimate controller

il TS 2 /NC]

Same ultimate controller

il TS /NC]

Same ultimate controller

[F] — AR YERR A 7

Same key management personnel
F—FRERASR

Same key management personnel
FA—FRERASR

Associate

NN

Minority shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRARZLHBKR

Minority shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FREZVBERR

BAEEBLEEARIH
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi i 7 B 182 R A2 5 (7))
(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4, RAEBEBEEARIN
entered into material transactions with the HaMEEAFER (&)

Group (Continued)

Name of related party

Hb g s 578

Relationship with us

Hi B 5 E AR

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
PRATEEEBRAF

Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and
Components Co. Ltd.

PREE T AETEHHERAA

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.

PREGEZE WA RA A

Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle Equipment Co. Ltd.

BRAEHRETEERARAR

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.

RO EZNETHHTERAR

Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
PrEiE N ERAEEREMEAR

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

RAEREHHAR DA

Shaanxi Automotive Group
Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.
POAkERHAEGRA A
Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co. Ltd.
ERBMEEEBRAT

Shaanxi Huazhen Industry and

Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
PREEZR TERBERA R
Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd
PREREEE T R AR BRA R
Shaanxi Huazhen Automobile

Filtration System Co., Ltd.
PREEEZRTERIZRAERAR]

Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAEERR 2 @A T
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEZRE 2B AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAEERR 2B AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRBIEERR 2@ AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAEERR Z@HAT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEZRE 2B AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2B AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR 2@ AL
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAIEERR 2@ AT
Related party of substantial
shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FRAAEZMRZEBAL

Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEEMR BB AL

Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)

FREEEMRZBABAL
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1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Name of related party

HBamg s 28

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

+ BRI O B AR R AR 5 (#)
HEAKERLEEARZH
HibBAM 5 BR ()

Relationship with us

Hit B 5 AR

Shaanxi Yuanxing Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.
PRERITHEREEERAA
J. Eberspaecher (Xi'an) GmbH & Co. KG
®EAFHEREAM () BRAF
Xi'an Deshi Vehicle Components Co., Ltd.
AZELIETHHAREERA
Xi'an Oude Rubber and Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.
ARBRERERMER AT
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PREEAERAERRRAA
Shaanxi Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking
Information Technology Co., Ltd.
PRERITIRER B E SR ER AR
Qinchuan Machine Tool & Tool (Group) Corp.
BRI ASERS AR
Shaanxi Deshi Electronic Equipment Co., Ltd.
PREECEFREBEREERT

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

HSETDEI IR N BER A F]

Xi"an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.

L EAMTEEEAR A A

CIMC-SHAC (Xi"an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
hERAER(AR)EREARAA

Ballard Power Systems Inc.
BRESHHESER QT

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

PR ER A R A EE AR B IR A A

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PROISEERAERRARA

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

PRin@IE )T E YR AR A A
Xi"an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd.
AL EREREEESHER AR

Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR BB AL

Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR BB AL
Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERE 2B AL
Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAEERR 2 @A T
Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRBIEERR 2@ AL
Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEERR BB AL

Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAAEERR BB AL

Related party of substantial shareholders of subsidiary(ies)
FRAEZRE 2B AL

Associate of parent

[SYNCIPS: o uiat

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FRAZHB LR

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEIZHERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FTRAEIZEE R

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FRAAZE LR

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FRAEIZHERE

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FTRAEIZE SR

Associate of subsidiary(ies)

FRARZE LR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % i B1& X HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AKEEHEHBBRINEE
related parties X5
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BELTERMSEHEIS
parties
Purchase of goods from related parties B EAR 5 i B B an
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
Company this period previous period
NG TERERE AR AR
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive BREE TR REGHS
Transmission Co., Ltd. BREMERAF SRR EIP A 3,179,492,714.11
Shaanxi Automotive Group BROSEBEAERRAA
Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd. 2,626,816,382.61 1,661,213,915.40
Weichai Power Westport HESETIR AL IRE) S
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd. ARAF 2,230,597,907.33 1,833,606,864.13
Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special BRESEERARE
Vehicles Co., Ltd. BRAF 1,861,281,671.55 1,879,652,332.69
Xi'an Cummics PO R HT 2 B
Engine Co., Ltd. BRAT 988,240,267.55 396,986,815.59
Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and BRPE & 5 BT E
Components Co. Ltd. BRAF 848,207,465.58 699,283,938.89
Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle PREE A REREBRS
Equipment Co. Ltd. BRAF] 632,863,717.22 419,836,584.23
CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special PERTER(ALR)
Vehicles Co., Ltd. HHEAERAR 565,993,695.45 289,408,053.10
Xi'an Deshi Vehicle AZEEABETHHER
Components Co., Ltd. HEERQA 456,882,941.42 371,585,256.85
Xi‘an Oude Rubber and (k=Y Sk
Plastic Technology Co., Ltd. BB 423,863,421.11 177,027,555.49
Shaanxi Tongli Special PRER @ ERARE

Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd. BREFRAA 387,878,344.88 386,984,734.10
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi¥i 7 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBBRINEE
related parties (Continued) X% (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BETERMEBRS
parties (Continued) (&)
Purchase of goods from related parties (Continued) B EE R (&)
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
Company this period previous period
A REREE T HiB A
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component — PRAAZEZEATFZLIFEFR
Parts Co., Ltd. NCT! 396,794,531.72 310,561,407.59
Weichai Group Holdings Limited MR EEAR AR 237,249,144.96 210,151,898.15
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., 11| B2 #4238 4 O A R A 7
Ltd. 495,776,654.45 489,054,158.01
Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., FaZ &L EHH AR A 7
Ltd. 180,192,825.19 119,303,925.65
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd. #£¢E # A& 1H GFR A 7) 170,836,540.12 158,512,935.39
Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., X7 EE B {EEEH R A 7
Ltd. 151,906,484.75 97,872,541.68
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special Vehicles Co., PR E/TRHE A REHR A A
Ltd. 71,122,512.05 415,145,885.74
Shaanxi Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking BR 75 X 17 {2 BB 4812 B B 1T
Information Technology Co., Ltd. BRAT 64,840,140.09 165,640,268.14
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd. BREGIEZHHFH A1 HR A 7 54,053,252.16 31,418,575.02
Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System [t 75 58 $4 25 8 X 4T AL (9
Co., Ltd BRAF 52,536,981.58 36,399,007.76
Eberspacher Exhaust Technology (Xi'an) 32 B ik &7 (P %)
Co., Ltd. BRAF 30,565,143.23 912,078.14
Shaanxi Deshi Electronic Equipment Co., BRFE/EHE FREER
Ltd. FERQA 22,718,883.98 5,227,801.94
Shaanxi Huazhen Automobile Filtration — PRFGZEEREBE B IE X5
System Co., Ltd. BRAF 16,552,355.42 13,732,353.00
Ballard Power Systems Inc. BRNESHEHZBR AT - 185,451,964.79
Others Hith 595,747,289.43 439,978,428.84

Total =1 WA LR EICEEVETS 13,974,441,994.42
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % 7 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBBRINEE
related parties (Continued) X% (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BETERMEBRS
parties (Continued) (%)
Sales of goods to related parties 1] B 77 35 & B dm
RMB
AR T
Incurred during Incurred in
Company this period previous period
NG| REREHE FERE AR
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive BRIEE TR R EEREE
Transmission Co., Ltd. BERAEEAR 1,512,645,662:67 " EERPElo LRt [ol::Tpe !
Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special BEREEBAEAR AR
Vehicles Co., Ltd. 1,387,298,585.50 1,291,853,112.70
Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial BR/SEEE B EAR A )
Vehicles Co., Ltd. 1,186,079,139.69 931,680,257.09
Shandong Weichai Import and IR AL E N OBRAF
Export Co., Ltd. 888,387,939.54 613,518,236.86
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. kAEBEAEROBRAR 468,276,273.93 431,192,412.33
Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and PREAE R AEZTEHER
Components Co. Ltd. A 254,867,443.01 186,507,492.55
Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose BREBOERARBEBREMT
Vehicle Co., Ltd. NS 254,731,015.05 37,665,234.94
Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle PRRE H RKiE/AEE S
Equipment Co. Ltd. BRAF 253,787,757.80 144,110,117.12
Xi'an Oude Rubber and AXRERERMER AR

Plastic Technology Co., Ltd. 251,213,441.74 87,314,876.86
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1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5.
related parties (Continued) X% (&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1)

parties (Continued)

Sales of goods to related parties (Continued)

Company
NE

(%)

Incurred during

Shandong Automobile Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.
Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd
Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
Weichai (Yangzhou)
Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
Weichai Power Westport
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle
Component Parts Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Huazhen Industry and
Trading Services Co., Ltd.
Dezhou Degong Machinery Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
Yangzhou Yaxing Motor Coach Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty
Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
Others

this period
I H B 4 BE
IR FEEEFR A A
228,771,244.87
LB NREBRAA 216,545,756.22

L TR D AR AR
HERERB N ERAR

204,382,285.55
114,826,612.22

B EEAR AR 105,091,805.14
HELE (BN

HFEBEARAA 102,132,683.29
ML T AR REIRE) )

ARAF 84,688,161.03

PRAEZAETHHER
A

PRAER T B RS
BRAF
EMNBITHRER AR
BRPg ) EEBR O AR DA
BMNEERERNDARRIA
BRAEAERTEFRAA

66,595,102.23

55,386,951.86
45,421,730.20
13,609,494.17
11,096,980.05

4,578,942.52
956,348,590.02

Total

= 8,666,763,598.30

+ BB 7 B R S 52 5y ()
FEERBEBHTNEE
AHTARANSEHERS

[ BE B 75 45 & B im (A8

RMB
AR

Incurred in
previous period
TH B A

185,723,974.81
134,809,165.03
171,697,895.33
113,302,182.91

46,587,990.12

104,793,722.92
567,104,439.13
81,634,541.94
34,712,061.72
46,748,073.09
683,100,133.10

121,775,137.44

331,743,297.32
907,281,347.19

8,561,356,588.84
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1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

5.

(1)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Receiving services from related parties

Company

A
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S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()
5. AEBEBBINEE

X% (&)
(1) BEEITEmMEBRS
(%)
RMB
AR
Incurred during Incurred in

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive
Transportation Co., Ltd.
Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd.

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
Ballard Power Systems Inc.
Weichai Heavy-duty

Machinery Co., Ltd.
Weichai Group Holdings Limited
Others

PRETBIE TEW R
BRAR
BIERMEHERR AR

IWEREESARAR
RETEEEEFRAQA
BENESHHIERERIA

HSERBR N BR QA

SRR EEBR AR
Hity

this period
HA R
Note1
= 242,685,667.86
Note2
52 111,899,069.74
Note3
53 108,392,830.00

45,562,153.31
39,881,630.00

35,855,732.08
14,948,295.83
54,928,536.34

Total

At

654,153,915.16

previous period

EHIZARR

180,414,010.41

51,859,901.22

61,919,316.00
44,848,720.03
29,355,865.00

44,861,790.29
14,693,915.61
62,313,086.74

490,266,605.30
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(1

Transaction of goods and services with related
parties (Continued)

Rendering services to related parties

Iltem
EH

Others HAty

Note 1 : Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.
provided comprehensive services including agency
procurement, warehousing and logistics distribution
services to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd, a subsidiary
of the Company.

Note 2 : Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd. provided Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, with
services of financial leasing. It was agreed among Shaanxi
Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd. and third-party distributors that for
the vehicle monies of related business to be receivable by
the Group from distributors, Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co.,
Ltd. may take up the payment obligation on behalf of the
distributors.

Note 3: Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides distributors and
ultimate customers of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of the Company, with services of financial
leasing. For details, see Note XII.3.

The prices for the Group’s sale of goods and provision of
services to related parties as well as purchase of goods and
receipt of services from related parties were determined with

reference to market rates.

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

+ B B 5 B AR B A2 5 (A1)

AEEREBRINETE
X5 (&)
(1) BERIOIBRMEHEXS

()

PRI 5 1R £ 5 7
RMB
ARET
Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
AEBAERE FEREE AR
10,718,374.95 18,680,304.96

i1 RARESEVMRABERAALS
ARBZFRBRAER TE
BRARRHAERE  BF
EMREASER R o

H2: EERMEEEARAN/ER
AZFRBARASBEAERR
AEREREBEEEY  BR
MEEEBRARNME=ZFLK
5 7R 0 5 0 0 AN R B R AR
FE AR X E - T A
REEHEERARMRLHD
EENRET -

H3: LERMEHEARAAR/ER
AZFRBARABEAERR
REREHEE R AL T PR
HBmEBEXY - AEEBR
AERBEME+T= 3

AEERBEBOHEERR 1R
HER  RBEAMREXSH
MERSEMGERRE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % i B1& X HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBBINEE
related parties (Continued) X% (&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (2) BEAHMEE
RMB
AR #T
Lease revenue for Lease revenue for
[tem Type of leased assets 1415 ol=idlele | the previous period
= HEZERA AHEE WA FHEERA
As lessor Buildings, equipment & land
ERHEA R &AL 7,896,380.41 18,229,872.03
The prices for the Group’s leasing with related parties were NEEHBHM A HEXBER
determined with reference to market rates. BEMIGEBRRE °
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) B LT EEEZE
RMB
AR #T
Incurred during Incurred in
[tem Particulars of transaction this period previous period
HH RHAR AHRERE LHREE R
Transfer of assets Purchase of fixed assets
BEEE BERETEE 183,195.18 171,287.23
Transfer of assets Sale of fixed assets
EEHE HEBEEE 65,241,291.48 124,923.04
The price for the Group’s purchase and sale of fixed assets AEBEWBEE A HBENEE
from and to related parties were determined with reference TFEEBRSETBERAT

to market rates.
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1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

(4)

Other related party transactions

On 30 June 2019, the Group entered into the Financial
Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy Industry Finance
Co. Pursuant to the agreement, Shandong Heavy Industry
Finance Co. provided deposit, credit, accounting and
clearing services as well as other financial services to the
Company and its controlling subsidiaries. The interest rates
for credit relating to financial services as well as fee rates are
determined according to the Financial Services Agreement
and based upon the relevant requirements of the People’s
Bank of China’s under which the lending rate shall not exceed
the minimum level permitted under the interest rates and
fee rates for money lending of similar types and categories
available to the Group from other major commercial banks in
the PRC.

Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Co. provides distributors
of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, with credit line to apply for establishing bank
acceptance bills for the purchase of products from Shaanxi
Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. In 2021, the credit line amounted
to RMB3,000,000,000.00 (2020: RMB3,000,000,000.00).
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference
between amount of notes and guarantee money. As at
30 June 2021,
bill was RMB1,378,263,798.00 (31 December 2020:
RMB708,591,800.00). For details, see Note XII.2.

open position of outstanding acceptance

B 5 i 3 M 5 (4)
20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

+ B B 5 B AR B A2 5 (A1)

5. AEBEBBINEE
X5 (&)

(4)

Hi@EE AR5
AEBMENRETHBHRAR
2019 6 A30H &< & R AR
BiHZE)  BEHRE  LREL
EM‘%“ETHZLV‘ET&@%%A
BERTER - EE  HERHE
theRRBEE - Bl RS
B EME ERIRIE(D R
BEIMETBRARRITBEEE
HAERERETNER TS
RAEETEEMPEBEANEE
BERTREMNREREXE
ERERBERITHRIENKTF
HE ©

miél,ﬁﬁ*“iﬁ%m‘ﬁz
FAAMRAERABERA
WEHERERERE EF'EIE}
ﬁiﬁiﬁﬁk%ﬁ?%ﬁ“ﬁ%ﬂ@é
ERMNREERARER
2021&&’9?%??%?7%)\&@%
3,000,000,000.00 7t ( 2020
# : AR#¥3,000,000,000.00
L) e BRAER RBEAERA A
ARHERHEESBEHR
FEvEERNEFRIBE
£ #H=E2021F6 308 -
WA BHNAREZROEA
A R # 1,378,263,798.00 7T
(202012 A318 + ARM
708,591,800.007T) - A4 %
BEABRAZ2ERT =2



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its
related parties (Continued)

Other related party transactions (Continued)

()

Amounts of transactions with Shandong Heavy Industry

Finance Co. are as follows:

ltem
EH
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RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()

5. AKREHEBEBINEE
X5 (&)
(4) HibBAR TS (&)

Bank deposit placed

Interest income

Interest expenses

Acquisition of short-term borrowings
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Acquisition of long-term borrowings
Repayment of long-term borrowings

Establishment of bank acceptance bills

BHRTER
FEMA
S
m 13 524

BB RBES
BR R EER
FEIRTT AL SR

Balances of accounts with Shandong Heavy Industry Finance

Co. are as follows:

Item
EH

Cash and cash equivalents

placed with related parties
Interest receivable
Balance of short-term borrowings
Balance of long-term borrowings
Balance of bank acceptance

bills established

FHEBTNEEES

FE W R B
2 HA {8 SR ER R
REME KRR

FARITENERRER

AEBENRETHB AR

EMBERSEMNT
RMB

AR

Incurred during Incurred in

this period
AEBAEHE

62,398,011,020.19
153,274,511.87
17,601,295.03
210,000,000.00
45,000,000.00
89,900,000.00

1,891,069,899.79

previous period
H A

39,071,137,784.84
101,955,748.42
7,501,365.36
45,000,000.00

199,630,000.00
1,743,553,154.95

REBERLNREIHFBRAD
BIRERGREAT

30 June 2021
20216 A30H

32,904,706,647.96
101,603,950.67
830,000,000.00
239,900,000.00

1,937,244,218.28

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

27,868,215,353.63
7,513,885.58
665,000,000.00
150,000,000.00

1,956,725,003.03
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()
6. BAMETS BB FIRERE

30 June 2021
202166 H30H

Gross carrying
[tem amount
BH IR EREE

Accounts receivable

FE W B K

Shandong Weichai Import and
Export Co., Ltd.
IS QB R A A
Shaanxi Automotive Group
Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PRAEEEAEERAA
Weichai (Yangzhou)
Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
HSE (BN BSEEBR AR
Weichai Group Holdings Limited
HEEREEFRAR
Shaanxi Automobile
Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RASEERAERRDA
Beiqgi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
EAEEAERDERAR
Shandong Automobile
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
LR AERERRAA
Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
TR AR AR AR
Weichai Electric Equipment Co., Ltd
HLEENRBEERAF
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle
Component Parts Co., Ltd.
RAZEZTEZHHEERRA
Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.
RABRGFFIERDERR A
Weichai Power Westport
New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
HELETR BT RE IR N BR A A
Others
Hftp 377,570,170.60

475,667,198.00

473,775,267.79

88,015,963.41

50,832,880.47

47,856,444.60

46,633,926.12

39,341,122.28

35,247,530.45

29,232,504.77

17,062,487.00

11,054,559.03

12,980,632.07

Total
BEF 1,705,270,686.59

Provision for
credit losses

ERBAER

4,636,899.57

11,464,209.68

1,008,430.29

254,239.65

938,609.35

434,425.78

1,203,249.45

444,398.47

178,779.63

9,583.75

11,054,559.03

283,713.81

7,119,110.79

39,030,209.25

RMB
AR

31 December 2020
202012 A31H

Gross carrying
amount

RmEaE

Provision for
credit losses

ERAKER

293,135,460.94

325,280,125.43

4,884,245.20

63,551,266.43

56,632,501.10

15,275,758.18

7,983,538.58

15,158,799.36

20,452,627.00

12,129,459.02

7,236,037.44

343,844,186.67

1,330,638.87

6,489,543.69

99,300.96

653,705.07

304,344.22

159,670.77

74,868.87

11,487.94

12,129,459.02

187,670.99

6,611,042.66

1,165,564,005.35

28,051,733.06




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

6.

Amounts due from/to related parties

(Continued)

30 June 2021
2021%6A30H

Gross carrying
[tem amount
EH IR E SR ER
Other receivables
HAb UK 165,170,591.29
[tem
BH
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+ B Bk 5 B AR e R 5 ()

6. BEELTEWENREKRE
(#%&)

RMB
ARBT

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H
Gross carrying

Provision for Provision for

credit losses amount credit losses
EREXRES REfTE  ERBRER
(SfEEEICBs s 264,545,443.41 13,801,792.44

RMB
ARET

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

31 December 2020
2020912 A831H

Dividends receivable

& g B
XCMG Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.

FIKBETREEMBROAERAR

36,795,713.90 44,154,856.68

Total

At

36,795,713.90

44,154,856.68
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

[tem
HH

Notes receivable

[ ES
Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
I HE TR (D B IR 2 7
Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.
POTEEEmAERR QR
Weichai Lovol Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.
HMEEARETRHERRAR
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
AREARERNBRAA
Shandong Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
WHRTERERR A A
Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.
IEREEBR A A
Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
BMEEZERMHBR AR
Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
EREMEHERR QA
Dezhou Degong Machinery Co., Ltd.
EINE T AR A A
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.
WS BERBRNER AR
Linyi Shan Zhong Excavator Co., Ltd.
BT BZEE AR A A
Weichai (Yangzhou) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
(BN EBEEEFRAA
Others
Hfth

Total

At

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()

B8 B¢ 75 BB WL FE {9 SR TH 6R BE
(%)

RMB

ARBT

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

254,205,557.93

206,749,202.00

200,590,000.00

187,490,000.00

139,024,979.54

77,826,024.23

60,975,000.00

60,000,000.00

50,403,000.00

50,155,179.25

40,914,492.42

61,746,396.89

1,390,079,832.26

31 December 2020
2020912 831H

147,297,865.20

145,963,577.79

12,432,812.32

60,975,000.00

64,150,000.00

72,337,599.87

43,284,000.00

45,980,154.20

592,421,009.38




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

ltem
HH
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S5 R WA o (A

202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R
T BT B AR S AL 5 (4])
6. BHLTEWENRERE

(%)

30 June 2021
2021%6A30H

Receivable Financing
W ERE
Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.
POAEEMAERRRARF
Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
EIREBMEHEERR QA
Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RASBERAEGERAA
Shantui Construction Machinery Co., Ltd.
I HE TR B IR 2 F)
Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.
HNEETERHBR QA
Weichai (Yangzhou) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
W (BN FEEAR DA
Others
HA

509,076,000.00

220,000,000.00

54,073,740.00

25,026,000.00

6,410,200.00

6,146,295.20

39,758,095.11

Total

At

860,490,330.31

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2020
2020%12A831H

198,140,000.00

61,420,000.00

96,000,000.00

3,345,405.84

31,278,380.00

19,337,444.00

74,052,583.55

483,573,813.39
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

[tem
HH

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()
6. BAM T MEWE N RIHRE

(&)

30 June 2021 31

RMB
ARBTT

December 2020

2021%6H30H 2020512 A31H

Prepayments
ANRE
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR EEL OFR QA
Shaanxi Huazhen Industry and Trading Services Co., Ltd.
PREEHZTERBERRA A
Shaanxi Yuanxing Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
PRPEITHEEER AR AR
Ballard Power Systems Inc.
BHREBNERERAF]
Suzhou Foresight Energy Technology Co., Ltd.
BN ABERRBEROARAR
Others
Hfh

46,188,594.23

46,171,000.48

32,888,761.05

32,045,046.58

14,705,840.83

40,544,286.79

Total

At

46,001,372.57

55,292,009.86

213,313.85

35,004,871.56

31,913,873.15

212,543,529.96

168,425,440.99




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

ltem
HH
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6. BAME T MEW B RIHRE

(%)

30 June 2021 31

RMB
ARBTT

December 2020

2021%6A30H 2020912 A31H

Accounts payable

FE 4 BR X
Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.
POTEERAERR QA
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.
REELRTEEHEEFERETLQR
Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components Co., Ltd.
PREE T AES M BER QA
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
IWREBTEEFBERRIF]
Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
pREEim O HERAEEREMEAT
Xi'an Deshi Vehicle Components Co., Ltd.
ARELTETRHEREERA
Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.
PREGIEEE SR AR AR
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.
PREEZ AE T BR DA
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PREERHERAEERAR

1,119,044,671.67

561,919,982.60

217,923,369.23

194,036,652.92

193,162,417.67

188,953,693.88

131,542,830.54

122,019,089.55

110,386,651.92

865,409,804.41

438,107,753.88

209,664,612.70

557,218,624.46

336,984,662.13

226,424,796.94

88,848,268.79

153,351,853.76

104,760,489.97
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BHMLTEWENRESRE
(Continued) (#8)
RMB
ARMoT
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
EA 20215 6A30H 2020912 A31H

Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

POTSEEATERRAT

Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.

HSRTBFTRERE N AR A R]

Xi'an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.

ARRPITEBRERDF)

Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle Equipment Co. Ltd.

RAEE R REAEERERAF

Xi'an Oude Rubber and Plastic Technology Co., Ltd.

PXRERER M ER AT

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

PREES B SN EA R A A

Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd.

AZEREEEDARAF

Shaanxi Tianxingjian Vehicle Networking Information
Technology Co., Ltd.

PREGRITIR SR A BRI B R A A

CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

hEPRTER (BR) EREFRAF

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.

PREGEZRERHALM AR AE

Eberspacher Exhaust Technology (Xi* an) Co., Ltd.

BREBPERLM (FR) BRAF

Qinchuan Machine Tool & Tool (Group) Corp.

Z)IIHKRTAKERMD AT

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.

IR OB R A A

Others

Hith

Total

At

106,485,090.09

94,858,984.02

89,373,509.31

87,875,077.17

75,994,908.21

63,058,022.79

58,498,524.44

47,195,466.91

31,892,218.11

29,274,545.86

23,658,695.18

15,201,265.85

1,407,070.80

218,576,012.14

218,564,179.45

272,222,708.49

278,728,272.25

34,423,610.06

56,098,592.55

96,365,359.22

25,926,841.24

51,062,990.41

2,990,998.30

33,441,023.77

5,686,577.39

12,651,667.19

333,523,452.05

184,659,398.46

3,782,338,750.86 4,

587,116,537.87
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi % i B1& X HAZ 5 (5)
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BAB T EEWENRIBESRE
(Continued) (&)

RMB

AR

ltem
HH

Notes payable

e R
Shaanxi Automotive Group Commercial Vehicles Co., Ltd.
poTEEEmAERR QA
Weichai Power Westport New Energy Engine Co., Ltd.
LTI EERB N ERAF
Shaanxi Automobile Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.
PSS EERAERR AR
Xi"an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.
A REAREHEBR QA
Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Component Parts Co., Ltd.
REEZRAEZHHERAF
Xi"an Deshi Vehicle Components Co., Ltd.
AZEENETHRHEREEAF
Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle Equipment Co. Ltd.
BREEE S REREERERAF
Shaanxi Wanfang Tianyun Vehicle Equipment Co. Ltd.
BEZBEEE RN BR AR
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.
PR E LR AEEHEREREERA
Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and Components Co., Ltd.
BB TETHEAERAR
Others
Hfth

Total

At

30 June 2021
2021%6A30H

1,202,300,000.00

999,334,917.93

788,400,000.00

251,660,000.00

246,250,000.00

228,750,630.95

137,603,014.99

100,740,000.00

105,000,000.00

94,700,000.00

332,026,021.38

4,486,764,585.25

31 December 2020
2020%12A831H

547,900,000.00

631,212,833.10

799,000,000.00

94,272.21

5,850,000.00

72,166.62

14,705,599.57

1,998,834,871.50
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

[tem
HH

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

+ B Bk s B AR e AR 5 ()
6. BAM T MEWE N RIHRE

(&)

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

Contract liabilities

EREE
Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR EEL OFR QA
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.
EAREARERN ARG
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
PREAEEE RN ERA A
Others
A

54,198,012.63

737,334.09

21,678,264.51

Total

At

76,613,611.23

[tem
BH

30 June 2021
2021%6H30H

Other payables
Htb 1K

77,507,441.07

RMB
ARBTT

31 December 2020
2020912 831H

700,301.92

81,696,623.02

38,098,993.41

62,177,005.31

182,672,923.66

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 831H

92,129,692.61
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1 January to 30 June 2021

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

ltem
HH
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6. BT EWENREKRE
(%)

RMB
ARBTT

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202146 H30H 2020%12A831H

Dividends payable
FE A BR R
Weichai Group Holdings Limited
WK EEERA A
Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
PREAEEERMNERRA A
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

BREELH AEEHEEREREEAR

331,454,294.46 _

115,466,388.68

139,198,832.08

Total
A&t 331,454,294.46 254,665,220.76
RMB
AR T
ltem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
BH 202146 H30H 2020912 A831H

Lease liabilities

HEAE
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.
REET R AEEDEEEREEAA
Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
REAEEZFRAA

5,713,667.89 5,713,667.89

114,505.93 785,714.12

Total

At

5,828,173.82 6,499,382.01
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions  ~Bi ¥ 5 B8 L HAZ 5 (5)

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BB AT EWENSRIERE
(Continued) (&)
RMB
AR #r
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
BH 202146 H30H 2020912 831H
Long-term payables
REEMAR
Other immaterial associates
HIFSE A E 404,578,509.40 399,789,450.00
RMB
AR¥T
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
BH 202146 H30H 2020912 831H
Non-current liabilities due within one year
—FREHNERBDEE
Other immaterial associates
HFEEAME L 217,604,008.20 229,282,275.00
Other than long-term payables and non-current liabilities due within BEEEM - —FRIHBIER
one year, amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest BESN - U BE < BE B 75 RRIE
bearing and unsecured, of which the terms of repayment for DEAE - EmEH - Hp - EHEK
amounts of trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of MWERBEREZERTIRTE - FEH
trading, while amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms FREETERE -

of repayment.



Interim Report 2021 FHiFkE 259

o 5 i % M 5 (48
2021F181HZ6H30H 15 R

T ety 3 AF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

XI. Share-based Payment

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

As at 30 June 2021, the number of bonus shares issued by KION
amounted to 40,172 shares (31 December 2020: 40,529 shares). The
number of shares decreased as compared to previous year as 357 shares
(2020: 2,118 shares) have lapsed. The total costs in respect of equity-
settled share-based payments related to such project was recognized
as EUR338,000.00, equivalent to RMB2,620,195.40 (previous period:
EUR446,000.00, equivalent to RMB3,481,151.82) for the period.

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers

As part of the cash-settled Share Incentive Scheme of KION, managers
were granted virtual shares over a fixed period of time (3 years). In
2021, a share incentive scheme operated by KION became applicable to
managers from 1 January 2021, for a term of three years (“KION Senior
Management Long-term Incentive Scheme 2021"). On 1 January 2021,
250,142 (2020: 264,191) virtual shares with specific fair value were
granted to managers. Such virtual shares were apportioned in proportion
to the total annual remuneration of the respective managers who were

granted such shares.

The cash-settled share-based payment granted in 2018 is subject to
appraisal for business performance during a period ending 31 December
2020, and has been settled in March 2021.

KIONEIR#®BX{SEE

#H Z=2021%6 A308 © KION 2 77 7£ 4h
B) 4T % 40,172 8% (2020 12 A 31 8 :
40,5290 ) - R LF R RHMNER
357 B B K (20204F : 2,118[%) » &
HHEZEEMABNUESEENRN X
R HE R4 % % JT338,000.00 ¢
i AR#2,620,195.40C( L8« BT
446,000.00 * #T& AR % 3,481,151.82

7T e
KIONZ 12 % fE B B 5+ 21

EALLIE ¢ & EKIONPR # Z Bt 81 5
—#My o KEE—EEEOEEANE)
W T ERRGD - £2021F © KIONE &
BE®RTBE21F1A1TBRAHZFYN
f 4 B A &) (KION 2021 F & B R HE
BhErEl) - 2021118 - KEBERT
250, 1M EBEEAABENERRKMN
(20204F : 264,1911%) » ZEHBH LR
BB WE T RMDFEALTFEHIEE
AT YR

2018F B FHNR S LEENRD I E
EEZEAE2020F 12 A31BEER - 12
R2021F3 AFEMEIM »
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XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) T B 2 A (48)
Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION KIONA I iz R B =t 21 (48)
Managers (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

HZE2021F6H30H " WBEL2HEHE
MERENEEHNRFEABESLEA
B 7T 29,175,000.00 e ARE

As at 30 June 2021, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR29,175,000.00, equivalent
to RMB224,244,885.00 (31 December 2020: EUR17,290,000.00,

equivalent to RMB138,752,250.00). In particular, nil belonged to the
2018 tranche (31 December 2020: EUR3,480,000.00, equivalent to
RMB27,927,000.00), and EUR18,209,000.00 belonged to the 2019
tranche, which was equivalent to RMB139,958,015.80 (31 December
2020: EUR9,409,000.00, which was equivalent to RMB75,507,225.00).

224,244,885.00 7t ( 2020 % 12 A 31
B : Bt JT 17,290,000.00 @ T &4 AR
# 138,752,250.00 ot ) © E A 2018
FETHURSEENROINEAE
MARFEEL2E AT (2020612 A 31

EUR8,573,000.00 belonged to the 2020 tranche, which was equivalent H : B JT 3,480,000.00 @ T & AR

to RMB65,893,792.60 (31 December 2020: EUR4,401,000.00, which was 27,927,000.00 7T ) * 2019 F & F #9 A

equivalent to RMB35,318,025.00), and EUR2,393,000.00 belonged to the REeFEORMINEENRFT AR

2021 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB18,393,076.60. % %8 /& B 7T 18,209,000.00 © 1A AR
# 139,958,015.80 7T ( 2020 F 12 A 31
H : BUJT 9,409,000.00 @ T A AR ¥
75,507,225.00 7t ) © 2020 F & T &) BA
RefEONRNMINELENRFT AR
% % & B 7T 8,573,000.00 © T A AR
¥ 65,893,792.60 st ( 2020 F 12 A 31
H : BUJT4,401,000.00 - T & AR ¥
35,318,025.00 7T ) + 2021 & T # A
ReBFENRNINEENRTSEES
% /& Bl T 2,393,000.00 © T A AR
18,393,076.607T °
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1 January to 30 June 2021 20211 H1HZ6A30H 17
XI. Share-based Payment (Continued) F— By AT (5)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the cash-settled Share Incentive Scheme of KION, members
of the Executive Board were granted virtual shares over a fixed period
of time (3 years). The remuneration component measured over the long
term of members of the Executive Board is on the same basis of the Share
Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION Managers above. On 1 January
2021, i.e. the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, 85,051 virtual
shares (2020: 76,656 shares) with specified fair value were granted
to members of the Executive Committee by KION and apportioned in
ways stipulated in the service contract of each member of the Executive

Committee.

As at 30 June 2021, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR11,797,000.00, equivalent to
RMB90,674,101.40 (31 December 2020: EUR5,187,000.00, equivalent to
RMB41,625,675.00). In particular, EUR7,379,000.00 belonged to the 2019
tranche, which was equivalent to RMB56,716,469.80 (31 December 2020:
EUR3,753,000.00, which was equivalent to RMB30,117,825.00), and
EUR2,896,000.00 belonged to the 2020 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB22,259,235.20 (31 December 2020: EUR1,434,000.00, which was
equivalent to RMB11,507,850.00), and EUR1,522,000.00 belonged to the
2021 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB11,698,396.40.

KION# 1T Z E R E BT &

EBIAIR S & EMKIONR A ZUB) 5T 8180 —
By TEZEGREE—EEEEE
NOEF)HEETERRKRSD - MITEEEK
BRI RAMEM AR 2 8 L KION£E 1 fk 7
ENETE A - - 2021 F 1 A1 HE&E
WA Z A E - KIONRFHITRE /K
885,051 AEBREARBENERRKRSD
(20204 : 76,65610) * ZERKRNHILREE
UHITEZEEERENRBERTRRENT
HAH °

HE2021F6A30R  LLBE2EEHE
RO ENEENRESAEBEESEAR
B JT 11,797,000.00 @ #T & A R ¥
90,674,101.40 7t ( 2020 & 12 A 31
H : BULJC5,187,000.00 @ T A AR ¥
41,625,675.007C )  H /A - 2019 F #&
THUReHEENRMINEEN R
afE &% AMIIT7,379,00000 © A
A R #56,716,469.80 7t (2020 12 A
31 H : B JT3,753,000.00 » ;T& AR
#30,117,825.00 7t ) * 2020 F &% F &
LR EEORNDITEENRT A
f& & %8 B BT 2,896,000.00 © T & A
R #22,259,235.20 7t (2020 % 12 A 31
H : BUJT 1,434,000.00 @ T A AR ¥
11,507,850.00 7T ) * 2021 F &% T & KA
ReFEORMINEENRGFEES
%8 5 B 7T 1,522,000.00 - A& AR
11,698,396.407T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
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XII. Commitments and Contingencies +ookEE A B IHE
1. Significant commitments 1. EEARER
RMB
AR
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
BH 202156 HA30H 2020912 A831H
Contracted for but not yet recognized in the financials statement
BENBERRYBER SRR
— Commitment on acquisition and construction of long-term
assets
—EERAEEAR 5,207,555,644.97 3,285,028,991.71
— Commitment on external investment
—H MR E AGh 681,712,100.00
Total

A 5,207,555,644.97 3,966,741,091.71
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XI.Commitments and Contingencies 12 &% LA FHHE(H)

(Continued)

2.

Exposure to confirmation risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors
and endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money
of no lower than a certain proportion to the bank and apply for
establishment of bank acceptance bill for the purchase of products
of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. according to the amount
of credit facility provided by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Co., Ltd. assumes security obligation in favour of the distributors
for the difference between amount of notes and guarantee
money. Products are delivered to distributors and revenue is
recognized when Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. receives
the amount representing the aforementioned difference from the
distributors. As at 30 June 2021, open position of outstanding
acceptance bills was RMB3,698,511,384.00 (31 December 2020:
RMB3,587,010,040.00). Further, pursuant to the tri-party indemnity
agreement entered into among Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co.,
Ltd., the distributors and the guarantors of the distributors, the
distributors shall indemnify Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. in
respect of the aforesaid security obligation for the said difference
in amount or losses suffered, and their guarantors shall be jointly
liable for the same. To date, distributors under this arrangement
have hardly had any default. The Group is of the view that the risk
exposure related to the provision of these security obligations is

minimal, and thus no accruals and provisions have been made.

RE 2O R

KRB ZFRAAKAERREERA
BB ARBIT S AR A
GEmE - KHEERRTHFEATK
R—TEHHNRES  RIERTH
FTH—EEREE  BBEMLRT
EAEERAREERASENTEE
RARIER RAERTEEFRAF
RIEHAREERSERRES ZME
EHENERREBEEMT - RAERR
BRAGBERIEHEFA L E
ENESK  MEEARNERIL
R A - EHZE2021F6H308 ¢
MABBHNEALEZHOEARAR
#3,698,511,384.00 7t (2020 4 12
A318 : AR%3,587,010,040.00
To) o BN REBEBRREERABEHR
NE > EHEEREHEANREAN=Z
FIRFAR - EHEEEEREER R
BERABREMNEZFERS TRE
STHEK  ERBARESETRES
F-BEBR  HETBETEHEEL
TRABEERENER  AEERE
HEHZERBFECHEBNARER
N EEREREAE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XII.Commitments and Contingencies
(Continued)

S5 e R WA (A

20211 81HZ6H30H 15 R

T2 R B FIE ()

Business related to finance lease company

Regarding the outright product sales to distributors in cash by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. entered into a cooperation
agreement with Shanzhong Finance Leasing. It is agreed by and
between the two parties that Shanzhong Finance Leasing shall
provide finance lease service to distributors or ultimate customers
of Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Co., Ltd. shall jointly guarantee repurchase of physical assets
upon presentation in respect of the leasee’s (ultimate customers’)
failure to pay the instalment payments and interests under the
finance lease, on condition that product quality required by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. is satisfied. As at 30 June
2021, risk exposure in respect of possible guarantee for joint
liabilities was RMB4,204,540,000.00 (31 December 2020:
RMB3,550,000,000.00). To date, the Group had not received any
request for repurchase under this sort of business. To date, the
Group is of the view that the risk exposure related to the provision
of these guarantees for joint liabilities is minimal, and thus no

accruals and provisions have been made.

HBEEHEAAAHEN
E¥ 3

HNARAZ FARKRAERNREHR
BRARRGHEEN GKHEHENE
m RAERREERAGE LIS
BEHERITaERE  EHHNTEILE
MERERRAER TEFRDFIH
EEEmREOREPRHEBERER
% RAEARAEFRARRMEMR
ENFERMAF(KnEP)REZNE
MED BN RENER - f£m ek
FAREERAFANENERE K
HTREEFTOEMOESTE - BE
20216 A30H  EHEFRER
%k O B AR 4,204,540,000.00
7L (2020512 A31H : AR®
3,550,000,000.007T) - HEB A ¢
REERRERBILEER THOE
ER AEERSHERHZEETE
EREMBEORRE /D - FRER
TBETBE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

1 January to 30 June 2021

XIII. Subsequent Events

1.

Profit distribution

Distribution of interim dividend for year 2021

On 30 August 2021, under the authority granted by the
shareholders of the Company, the Board considered and approved
the distribution to all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.85
(including tax) for every 10 shares held, based on the total number
of shares of the Company of 8,726,556,821 shares, without any

capitalisation of reserve.

External investment

On 13 July 2021, the resolution in relation to the acquisition of
certain equity interest in Weichai Lovol Heavy Industry Co., Ltd.
("Weichai Lovol”) was approved at the sixth provisional meeting of
the board of directors for the year 2021. The Company agreed to
acquire 38.62% and 0.69% of issued shares of Weichai Lovol from
Arbos Technology (Group) Co., Ltd.* and Qingte Group Co., Ltd.,
respectively, at a cash consideration of RMB985,497,900. Following
completion of the acquisitions, the Company will become a holder
of 39.31% of issued shares and second largest shareholder of

Weichai Lovol.
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FEAREEHRFH
FME D EER
k220214 1 BR 4T A
20218 H30H * ARBIEEER
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185 (EH) TEEAE®EE
AR o

HIIRE
2021978138 © RAQAF20214
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(LTHBIEREL])BLKREDN
BE o ARAINBRSFR DRI
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XIV. Other Significant Events
1. Leases
As the lessor
Finance leases: As at 30 June 2021, the balance of unrealized
finance income was RMB1,133,822,106.80 (31 December 2020:
RMB1,124,607,450.00) and was apportioned over the lease periods
based on fixed periodic interest rate. Pursuant to the leasing
contract signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables

under non-cancellable leases are as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

M3
1.

fth ¥ 2L 2 T

HE

YEREMEA

FhEFME - 202168308
AEAMEWNZNHERARKE
1,133,822,106.80 7T (20204 12 A
31 H - AR ®1,124,607,450.00
) REBEEMEBRNEREERE
Hi S @AM T & - RIFEAR
AFNAEAR - T REEER

Lease period

THEH

Within (and inclusive of) 1 year 1FAR(E15)
1 to (and inclusive of) 2 years 122F(E29F)
2 to (and inclusive of) 3 years 2E3F(F3F)
3 to (and inclusive of) 4 years 3EAF(E4F)
4 to (and inclusive of) 5 years AZESF(E5F)
Over 5 years SFA L

Total a5t

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.17.

RIEHEEWHENT

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

3,726,318,741.95
3,312,199,929.08
2,818,421,311.11
2,189,448,671.04
1,470,159,726.77

854,186,036.05

14,370,734,416.00

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

3,625,542,525.00
3,222,623,325.00
2,742,198,675.00
2,130,236,250.00
1,430,400,075.00

831,085,050.00

13,982,085,900.00

REAHBEEEE  2RMER -

17 »



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Group organises and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@ manufacturing and sale of engines and related parts

(“Engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and automobile
components other than Engines (“Automobiles and

automobile components”);

(c)  Forklift trucks production, warehousing technology and

supply chain solution services (“Intelligent logistics”).

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reported segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted
total profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently
with the Group’s total profits, except that finance expenses,
investment income, profit or loss on change of fair value as well
as other unallocated income or expense are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, derivative
instruments, dividends receivable, interests receivable, investment in
other equity instruments, deferred tax assets and other unallocated

head office assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
2. Segment reporting (Continued)
Operating segments (Continued)
Segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments, borrowings,
income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated

head office liabilities.

DEEHNEEEE  2RAE=TE
TR SARBEERGIE °

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.

RMB
AR #T
Automobiles
and automobile Intelligent Inter-segment

Item Engines components logistics elimination Total
Y RBE  RERAESHM BRI ARBEH CHES 3
Incurred during this period AHREE
Segment revenue: FIYA -
Sale to external customers NIREHE 32978502,416.62 5470351373453 38,705,879,256.38 - 126,387,895,407.53
Inter-segment sale HHEEE 9,334,850,550.19 558,481,021.19 6388501842 (9,957,216,589.80) -
Total Aif 4231335296681 5526199475572 38,769,764.27480  (9,957,216,589.80)  126,387,895,407.53
Segment results PHEE 5,622,815,452.83 1,436,993,200.99 2,841,340,990.03 (697,021,166.88)  9,204,128476.97
Adjustment: FE
Interest income FEMA 738,609,251.70
Dividend income and unallocated income 8 M\ & 5 624,768,622.56
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 2% RE A DER X (52,451,379.51)
Finance expenses HBRE (542,913,666.96)
Profit before tax BATHIE 9,972,141,304.76




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

tem

1R

30 June 2021 202156430

Segment asses PHEE

Adjustment HE:

Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ CEREMAHEEE

Total assets BEE

Segment abilies AHaR

Adjustment HE:

Corporate and other unallocated liabilites A% R E AR REE

Totallabliies B5fE

Incurred during this period THELR

Other segment information: ArFER

Share of profit and loss from: EBETHAANBARES

Gainfloss) from associates and joint BENRELE
ventures s/ (B%)

Reversal/loss) of impairment of FERESR/(8%)
inventories

Impairment loss of credt of RUSENERRER
accounts receivables

Loss of impaiment of non-cumrent assets  FEEHEEFERE

Depreciation and amortization REREH

Gainfloss) from disposal of ErEERE
fixed assets fle/(8%)

Investment in associates and joint ventures REETALAENRE

Capital expenditure

BARX

Engines

a4

65,718,020,946.56

52,505,673,898.80

(19,978,206.98)

(45,244,079.50)

(59,311,235.72)
(18,448,895.69)
(592,145,953.89)

79,954,142.94
3,920,796,105.73
954,826,277.01
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2. DEHE ()

REDE (&)

M=

Automobiles

and automobile

Intelligent

Inter-segment
elimination

2 e

components

NERAERHH

logistics

ERNR

71,668,137,497.05  98,204,883,41646  (23,652,971,710.67)

59,913,107,198.29  58,183,400,28550  (12,470,389,226.65)

97,731,818.76 80,568,661.90

5,008,550.31 (52,856,874.40)

(72,927,644.92) (13,901,255.00)

(780,291,591.93)  (3,829,981,718.54)
(15,985,962.09)
1,374,850,714.35
2,024,498,218.08

21,602,333.80
772,217,141.60
5,019,793,744.40

RMB
AR

Total
AHAEREE

211,938,070,149.60

92,244,247,535.62
304,182,317,685.22

158,131,792,155.94

45,032,763,690.69

203,164,555,846.63

158,322,273.68

(93,092,403.59)

(146,140,135.64)
(18,448,895.69)
(5,202,419,264.36)

85,570,514.65
6,067,863,961.68
7,999,118,239.49
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
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XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T At EE B A (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DHmE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) REDSE(E)

RMB
AR #T
Automobiles
and automobile Intelligent Inter-segment

Item Engines components logistics elimination Total
&R REH  RERAESHA BRNR PHEEE CHENEER
Incurredt in the previous period 12 Ea
Segment revenue: AU -
Sale to external customers NPEPHE 23120449235 42,03983942420  30,082,495,177.14 94,494,559,093.69
Inter-segment sale HPREE 8,890,816,976.96 620,341,480.78 75,554,595.67 (9,586,713,053.41) -
Total Bt 31,263,041,469.31  42,660,180,904.98  30,158,049,772.81 (9,586,713,053.41)  94,494,559,093.69
Segment results A% 4,699,216,049.44 1,538,888,249.51 531,331,647.36 (380,988,782.49) 6,388,447,163.82
Adjustment: gE:
Interest income L 9N 619,198,001.23
Dividend income and unallocated income 1R 84U A Bk A U 528,345,248.88
Corporate and other unallocated expenses 1% & E (1 A BB % (46,006,159.00)
Finance expenses BBRA (785,393,300.08)

Profit before tax BAF|E 6,704,590,954.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) T Al R BE SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEHE (&)
Operating segments (Continued) LB SE(E)

RMB
AR T
Automobiles
and automobile Intelligent Inter-segment

tem Engines components logistics elimination Total
EH RER  RERAESIH EENR AREES CHES 3
31 December 2020 20205124318
Segment assefs PHEE 6149518150171 5949136449528 9587438984438  (22913,076,057.19)  193,947,859,784.18
Adjustment: FE
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AEREMAAEEE 76,802,309,167.11
Total assets hEE 270,750,168,951.29
Segment liabilities AHaR 46,849,031,11889  49,994,949,079.93  58,625,165715.00  (11,343,252,095.55)  144,125,893,818.27
Adjustment: FE
Corporate and other unallocated liabiliies % REHAAEEE 46,190,946,757.00
Total liabiltes ek 190,316,840,575.27
Incurred in the previous period LEEEE
Other segment information: ArFER
Share of profit and loss from: EETIRAAERER
Gainlloss) from associates and joint BERAL g

ventures &/ (B%) (3.882,329.33) 92,634,694.04 55,008,257.90 144,700,62261
Reversal/(loss) of impairment of inventories Z &% EZE /(18%) 3,668,906.96 (100,805,146.76)  (100,674,777.22) (197,811,017.02)
Impairment loss of credit of accounts ~ EMFBHERRER.

receivables (97,160,896.80) (196,101,953.91) (65,356,381.50) (358,619,232.21)
Loss of impairment of non-current assets  FERHEEFERX (208,658.57) - (1,033,934.58) (1,242,593.15)
Depreciation and amortization HEREH (555524,141.58)  (638,790,690.30)  (3,096,058,377.72) (4,290,373,200.60)
Gain from disposal of fixed assets ErEERENR 4,184,819.3 4,256,923.71 18,452,958.20 26,894,701.14
Investment in associates and joint ventures REETALAENRE 2,979,626,513.21 886,029,694.00 789,566,659.43 4,655,222,866.64

Capital expenditure BARY 1,750,849,647.03 909,450,067.57 4,457,861,480.10 7,118,161,194.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)
2. Segment reporting (Continued)
Group information
Information about products and services

Revenue from external transactions

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
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O~ A B I ()

2. ZEbERE (M)
SEEE
ERNEHEE
HI R BN

Incurred during

RMB
AR
Incurred in the

previous period
FHiE A

RMB
AR T
Incurred in the

previous period

A

[tem this period
HH AHE R
Powertrain, complete vehicles and B MK - BRERBEK

machines and key components BT 71,393,349,048.52 54,115,941,632.71
Other components H = 3645 9,124,031,756.16 5,826,633,860.21
Intelligent logistics BEem 38,705,879,256:38 Wl CLR VAV
Others Hih 7,164,635,346.47 4,469,488,423.63
Total = 126,387,895,407.53 94,494,559,093.69
Geographic information {5 8
Revenue from external transactions HINZHWA

Incurred during

[tem this period
HH AH 4R
China AP B K R 85,055,038,237.78 62,998,805,496.83
Other countries and regions Hoth B R M= ARPEEPICE IS 31,495,753,596.86
Total &t

126,387,895,407.53 94,494,559,093.69

Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas

where customers are located.

HINRHBARBNEFPAERSE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)
Group information (Continued)
Geographic information (Continued)

Total non-current assets
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SEES(E)
HIEEE ()
FRBAERE

RMB

AR

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
2021466 H30H 2020912 A31H

27,531,488,007.38 25,293,786,327.23
72,474,493,769.52 74,413,730,626.97

[tem

=

China A B K R

Other countries and regions HoAth B R AN b [
Total a5t

100,005,981,776.90 99,707,516,954.20

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets
are located, excluding long-term receivables, financial assets and

deferred tax assets.

FRBDEERBRZEEMERS, -
TERERHEKR  REEMEL
FIEHEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements
1. Notes receivable
Classification of notes receivable

RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

IEAVAEES JUp/ £ SIS

1. EREE
B Z 1% 5 K
RMB
ARE T

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202146 H30H 2020912 831H

[tem
HH
Bank acceptance bills RITHEAIEE

27,434,126,221.44 22,933,423,164.99

Notes receivable pledged by the Company at period end

HIRARREEHAOEINER

RMB
ARET

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202146 H30H 2020912 831H

[tem
1EH
Bank acceptance bills RITRAESE

13,379,334,579.16 10,674,221,892.99

Notes receivable endorsed or discounted by the Company
at period end and not yet expired as at the balance sheet

HRARRCBEEHMAEHE
EERBXRA WK EK

date e
RMB
AR BT
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
B H 20216 H30H 2020412 H31H
Bank acceptance bills BITERNIEE 3,842,451,843.30 5,757,178,611.80

As at 30 June 2021, the Company had not transferred any notes
into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure in performance (31
December 2020: nil).

The Company considered that the credit rating of the bank
acceptance bills was relatively high and there was no significant

credit risk. Therefore, no provision for losses was made.

MR2021F6A30H ' ARREREE
ANENBAMEZEEARKERN
Z1R (20205128318 : &)

ARBRBBAFENRITELEREMN
FRBITERATERS » TFEEK
MERER - AUt RETRIBRER -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

2.

Accounts receivable

The Company trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,
and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new
customers. Credit period for credit customers is generally one to six

months. Accounts receivable is non-interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

RS 25 BT 5 (%)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

Tho A B R R IE H RERE

(78)

2. EWERR
KAATRESENE S ERAEER
5AHE  A—REXFELENRR
RN R REST  BEESH
ERMEEA1Z6MEA - RUER
FTEE -

FEWEEFIRIEFR R B BRI BRE o T
™

RMB
ARET

30 June 2021 31 December 2020
202146 H30H 2020912 A831H

Age

BREQ

Within 1 year 1F AR

110 2 years 1824

2 to 3 years 2F3F

Over 3 years 3FE

Gross carrying amount FRE#REE

Less: Provision for credit loss W EREKER

2,786,197,962.79 748,541,485.80
1,993,211.87 323,398.34
165,363.24 2,972,000.00
4,308,684.00 1,336,684.00
2,792,665,221.90 753,173,568.14
54,779,504.23 11,900,401.60

Carrying amount REEE

2,737,885,717.67 741,273,166.54
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % 0 % #) % H H 1 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
2. Accounts receivable 2. BEWERR
Disclosure by category of provision for credit losses RIERBANRAEDERE

RMB
ARBTT

30 June 2021
20216 A30R

Gross carrying Provision for Carrying

amount Proportion credit losses Percentage amount

Item RERE bl EREXER R REEE
EB (%) (%)

Items assessed for expected credit  RERABREHEA
losses by group with distinctive FEEHEREL
credit risk characteristics 2,792,665,221.90 100.00  54,779,504.23 96 2,737,885,717.67

RMB
AR# T
31 December 2020
2020124318
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount Proportion credit losses Percentage amount
Item RHHE Wh o ERBRKER sHELL B FEEE
AR (%) (%)

ltems assessed for expected credit  R{ERARBHMAL
losses by group with distinctive TEESBEREX
credit risk characteristics 753,173,568.14 100.00 11,900,401.60 1.58  741,273,166.54




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
2.

Accounts receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2021, the Group's accounts receivable for which
credit losses are provided for using impairment matrix based on

aging analysis are presented as follows:

Age HR 2
Within 1 year 1R
1to 2 years 18224
2 to 3 years 2E3%F
3 to 4 years 3E4AF
Over 5 years S

Total

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

T2 ) R B R I H Rk

(%)

2. BUWERMR(E)

U Bk

30 June 2021
202146 H30H

Carrying amount
estimated to
be in default

fhETEAEEN
B9 AR BR HE

1,313,052,315.65
1,993,211.87
165,363.24
2,972,000.00
1,336,684.00

1,319,519,574.76

Lifetime
expected
credit loss
Z{E
FREBED
ER\EX

33,369,257.41
298,981.78
49,608.97
1,486,000.00
1,336,684.00

36,540,532.16

M2021F6A308 - KRB EREH
HAREERTIREABRERNE
HIFERMT ¢

RMB
ARBT

Expected

credit loss
rate (%)

ABER
BAR
(%)

2.54
15.00
30.00
50.00

100.00

2.77
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +f /2w &5 %0 % #£0E H 5 B

Statements (Continued) (7))
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2. BEWERH(E)
As at 30 June 2021, provisions for credit losses for the Company’s M2021F6HA30H * AR A{zAEHk
accounts receivable with good credit history are presented as EBENEWZFIBHRAETIREAIBRE
follows: HOBERAT
RMB
AR #r

30 June 2021
20214 6H30H

Carrying amount Lifetime Expected

estimated to expected credit loss
be in default credit loss rate (%)
Z2{E
At BEEDN FREBED EHER
HY B T B HR EREX Bi=x
Item EHH (%)

Accounts receivable with good ERESEEN
credit history FEURIEHEE 1,473,145,647.14 18,238,972.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 1R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial 1% A& 2EBEHREEH B

Statements (Continued) (%)
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2. EBEWERF(E)
Movements in provision for credit losses: ERBRERZFHBN

Lifetime Lifetime

expected credit expected credit

loss (without loss (with
impairment impairment
of credit) of credit)
EEFEY BEZES
AHEREX AHEREX
(RBE (B%&
Provision for credit losses EREXER ERRE) ERRE) CE
Balance as at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31B4E 11,900,401.60 11,900,401.60
Balance as at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31E4E
for the current period ERE
— Transferred to receivables with -BABBEERRE
impairment of credit
- Transferred to receivables without ~EEREEFERRE
impairment of credit = =
Provision for the period NEIEHR 42,879,102.63 42,879,102.63
Reversal during the period AHEEE =
Transferred out during the period AE =
Written-off during the period AEZH =
Balance as at 30 June 2021 2021456 A30B #% 54,779,504.23 54,779,504.23
As at 30 June 2021, no accounts receivable had been pledged to R2021F6A30H + AR EHEW
secure bank borrowings of the Company (31 December 2020: nil). BRF (202012 A31H : )EHA

REUSIRITRERAIER
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +f /2w &5 %0 % #£0E H 5 B

Statements (Continued) (7))
2. Accounts receivable (Continued) 2. BWER(E)
As at 30 June 2021, top five balances in respect of accounts MR2021F6A30H - BARFHE
receivable by closing balance are presented as follows: B BACR 82 58 A 1 2 MY FE MR BR FRIB R 10
™
RMB
AR #r
30 June 2021
2021%6H30H
Gross carrying Provision for
amount  Proportion credit losses
ERMEGRER £t 1 FERIBXER
Name of entity BvEE (%)
First place F—% 303,689,399.26 10.87 1,507,774.50
Second place F-F 236,312,424.58 8.46 3,544,686.37
Third place F=F 216,623,726.23 7.76 3,249,355.89
Fourth place s 207,271,336.69 7.42 =
Fifth place FRHA 200,495,945.41 7.18 3,007,439.18
Total &t 1,164,392,832.17 41.69 11,309,255.94




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

3.

Other receivables
Presented by categories

Interim Report 2021 FHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

T2 ) BB B R I H Rk R

(%)

3. HttEWR

D RIHIR

30 June 2021
202166 H30H

93,576,539.10
12,060,875.87
162,796,968.38

268,434,383.35

e FI 2

30 June 2021
202166 H30H

[tem

H B

Interest receivable FEULF 2
Dividend receivable i LSt % )
Other receivables E 4th B WK
Total =
Interest receivable

[tem

HB

Fixed deposits TEHTF R

93,576,539.10

Dividends receivable

Investee entity

WIRE BN

JFE U8 B A

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

Weichai Power (Weifang) Equipment
Technology Services Co., Ltd.

Maz-Weichai Limited Liability Company

Weifang Weichai Power Technology
Co., Ltd.

Weichai Power (Beijing) International
Resource Investment Co., Ltd.

Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel
Engine Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd.

B ) Ol ) KB
BR%5 A R~ 7]
BUMBEBERRAT

TSRS M EEREE

NG

HEB N (AR BERERKE

BR A
SR (S ) P B S
BRRA

BRAERTEFRAR
PREEBERERAA

BRAEZLHERBBERIERF

4,794,726.06
4,013,750.42

3,138,415.52

113,983.87

Total

att

12,060,875.87

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

2,763,825.94
265,256,869.81
307,848,362.47

575,869,058.22

RMB

AR ¥T

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

2,763,825.94

RMB
ARET

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

197,150.22

144,880,417.07
110,999,302.52
9,180,000.00

265,256,869.81
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HRE D RHBRAF

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

3. Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

S5 e R WA (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

T2 ) BB B R I H Rk

(#1)
3. EHittEWEK (&)
At 8 M 30

H i UK BRER D AT A0 T

30 June 2021
2021466 H30H

[tem

HHE

Within 1 year 1 AR
1 to 2 years 18224
2 to 3 years 2E3F
3 to 4 years 3E4F
410 5 years 4Z54F
Over 5 years SF L
Gross carrying amount BRE AR

Less: Provision for credit loss

B ERBRER

23,800,349.66
406,490.46
2,700.00
140,095,687.45
11,550.24
499,757.94
164,816,535.75
2,019,567.37

Carrying amount

FREEE

162,796,968.38

Classification of other receivables by nature at carrying amount:

RMB

AR

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

169,116,777.24
397,475.53
139,094,889.23
3,556,515.11
781,725.21
312,947,382.32
5,099,019.85

307,848,362.47

Hip RS RE SRR AT E DB

W

30 June 2021
202166 H30H

9,000,000.00
138,036,939.77
4,504,956.33
367,039.16
12,907,600.49

[tem

IH B

Technology development expenses RiTFEE
Advance to subsidiaries FREIEER
Reserve fund HR®
Deposits e

Others HAh

Total =

164,816,535.75

RMB

AR T

31 December 2020
2020912 A31H

145,602,676.95
138,036,939.77
4,785,605.43
670,113.04
23,852,047.13

312,947,382.32




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables (Continued)

3.

Change in the provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

based on 12-month expected credit losses and lifetime expected

credit losses is as follows:

[tem

EH

Balance as at 31 December 2020
Balance as at 31 December 2020
for the current period
- Transferred to Stage 2
- Transferred to Stage 3
- Reversed to Stage 2
- Reversed to Stage 1
Provided for the period
Reversed during the period
Transferred out during the period

Written-off during the period

2020F12R31HEE
2020F12R31B4%E

ERE
-BAZZRE
~BABZRE
-BEEEE
- BB
REER
REER
REEH
REE

Balance as at 30 June 2021

2021F6A308 4%

Stage 1
Expected credit
loss for the

next 12 months

F-RE
FIR1218 A
RAGREX

1,046,476.58

1,046,476.58

Interim Report 2021 ARHEAZRE

S5 R WA o (A

202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

T2 ) R B R I H Rk

(#1)
3. HfttEW (&)
At 8 MK ()

Hitp W FIRR1218 A FEHERIE
KR BEFEREHERERED
ERBREFNZESHNT :

Stage 2
Lifetime
expected
credit loss
(without

impairment of

credit)

E-KR
BEFES
RHERBX
(RBEFRAE)

Stage 3

Lifetime

expected

credit loss

(with impairment
of credit)
A
BEFES
RHMERARX
(BREFRARE)

4,052,543.27

(3,079,452.48)

973,090.79

RMB
AR

AL
=X

5,099,019.85

(3,079,452.48)

2,019,567.37
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FEHS ik R Mt 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 202141 A1HZ6H30H 12 R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +fi A% EEMEHREIEH 3B

Statements (Continued) (74)
3. Other receivables (Continued) 3. HihEWR(E)
Other receivables (Continued) H b Uk (48)
As at 30 June 2021, the top 5 other receivables are presented as M2021F6 8308 - HibERFKEE
follows: BIREBAT :
RMB
AR

Percentage

of total closing ~ Closing balance

balance of other of provision
Name of entity Nature Closing balance receivables (%) for credit losses
A
BRZERGE FRAXER
BUAR RENKE BABE K B BMLLA MR EAER
(%)
First place £-% Advance to subsidiaries 138,036,939.77 3 to 4 years 83.75
FRAERER 3E4F
Second place £-4 Technology development expenses 9,000,000.00  Within 1 year 5.46
1ELAR
Third place £=% Tax refund receivable 2,689,254.76  Within 1 year 1.63 74,854.34
YRR 1ELAR
Fourth place EIES Reserve fund 749,525.35  Within 1 year ; 37,476.27
kA 1R
Fifth place E14 Reserve fund 686,454.70  Within 1 year ) 34,322.74
ik 1R
Total At 151,162,174.58 . 146,653.35
4. Long-term equity investments 4. RUBERE
RMB
AR#T
[tem 30 June 2021 31 December 2020
HH 20216 H30H 202012 A31H
Investment in subsidiaries HFREIEE 12,523,602,834.13 12,422,802,834.13
Investment in associates HESEPEKRE 2,054,794,668.94 1,423,292,947.75
Gross carrying amount BR T R %E 14,578,397,503.07 13,846,095,781.88

Less: Provision for impairment of B REIRERE REEE
long-term equity investments

Carrying amount FRE{EE AT E e A 13,846,095,781.88
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PO 5 i 3 I R (4)
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial 1% A& 2EBEHREEH B
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2021, the breakdown of long-term equity investments R2021F6A30H  AERENE
EARRRER BRI T

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

under cost method was as follows:

RMB
AR

Investee entity

HREED

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International

Development Co,, Ltd.

8 (ER) BRERERAT

31 December
2020

2020
128318

2,087,069,782.12

Changes during this period
1549

N OE

investment  Other increases

ENRE At

Other decreases

Afee

30 June 2021

2021564308

2,087,069,782.12

Cash dividend

declared during

the year
KEEERRN
RERA

Shaanii Heay-duty Motor Co, Lid REEHTERRAT 1992,116,000.85 1,992,16,000.85 5,734,381.08
Huzhou Yingean nvestment Partnership LLP INERRERRLE(ARAR) 1,138,365,000.00 1,138,365,000.00
Shaanyi Fast Gear Co,, Ltd. REETEEREREALT 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59
Shengrui Transmission HHEY 761,946,619.00 761,946,619.00
Weichai America Corp Weichai America Corp 743,099,228 57 743,099,228 57
Weichai Power (Shanghai Technology 590 ( L8 MRERARDA £50,000,000.00 £50,000,000.00
Development Co, Ltd.
Tsintel Technology FRRK 611,256,000.00 611,256,000.00
Thuzhou Gear Co, Ltd. HilEREREEAR 532,334,431 532,334,743.21

Weichai (Weifang) Material Forming and Manufacturing
(o, Ltd.

Weichai Ballard Hydrogen Energy Technology
Company Limited

Weichai Power (Beijing) Interational
Resource Investment Co,, Ltd.

Weichai Torch Technology Co, Ltd.

Weichai (Weifang) Medium-duty Diesel Engine Co, Ltd.

Weichal Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control

Technology Co, Ltd.

B IHRESETDERAR

HAEHEEEN AR

BEN IR ERARRARRLR

HRNERBRAERAT

BROH P URERAERAR
BEn(ENBERIERAT

460,150,000.00

413,100,000.00

300,000,000.00

245,452,010.97

471241583
150,000,000.00

40,800,000.00

460,150,000.00

453,900,000.00

300,000,000.00

245,452,070.97

2411247543
150,000,000.00

11398387

Weifang Weichai Power Technology Co, Ltd X MRERERLE 140,770,000.00 140,770,000.00 3,13841552
Thuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co, L. EAAERAEERRETAR 130,898,993.14 130,898,993.14 =
Weichal Power (Wifang) Reconstruction Co,, Ltd. BUE T (4 BREERAR 122,000,000.00 122,000,000.00 -
Shandong Synergy Oil Co,, Ltd. LREERRERAT 109,509,458.68 - 109,509,458.68 88,687,994.29
Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology Co,, Ltd. EEBNERFLHRERAR 100,000,000.00 - 100,000,000.00 -
Other subsidiares Efp 728 40746378157 60,000,000.00 46746378157 9,17,710.85
Total At 1242280283413 100,800,000.00 12536008413 10679248561
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RS i 25 BT 5 (48
202141 81HZ26H30H 1F 53R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +#i A% EEMEHREIEH 3B
Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 4. RERERE(E)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
1 January to 30 June 2021

As at 30 June 2021, breakdown of long-term equity investments R2021F6A30H @ EmEARENE
under equity method was as follows: EARRREIR BRI T
RMB
ARET
Changes during this period
s 1
Investment gains Among which,
and losses Other Declaration dlosing
31 December Increase in Decrease in underthe  comprehensive  Other equity ofash ~ Provision for provision for
200 investment investment  equity method income changes dividend impairment Others  30June 2021 impairment
0205 ERET if if WNE
Investee entity FREEM 12318 BNRE RORE KSR fahE RE2D EERERA  HEREER it 6A308
Shandong Heavy Industy Group LRETEEEBERRT 93058846618 8092741280 - 101151587898
finance Co, Ltd.
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co,, Ltd LERERERRAA 264,985,127.56 - 11,754,706.05 - 27673983361
Other associates and joint ventures AfpEagts PARAESXIN 597,124,666.67 (58,305,064.33) - 766,538,956.35
Total ait 14232994775 WELIAVIELN) 34377,054.52 - 2,054,794,668.94
5. Revenue and cost of sales 5. EXRBARRKE
(1) Revenue and cost of sales: (1) ZBEWAMEERKBR
RMB
AR T
Incurred during this period Incurred in previous period
rHRER FHELR
ltem Revenue Revenue Cost
EH KA 2 WA A
Principal operations TEED EERN VANV R N W Y WOl 28,037,462,474.89  21,637,685,653.44
Other revenue Hip¥5% 606,382,825.45 480,896,905.65 512,013,429.31 390,642,657.80
Total &t EZRNORY R RN LN YR E YR 28,549,475,904.20  22,028,328,311.24
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS ik R M 5 (48
1 January to 30 June 2021 2021417 1H26H30H 1F 7R

XV.Key Notes to the Company Financial +i A& FZEBZERFHEH B

Statements (Continued) (%)
5. Revenue and cost of sales (Continued) 5. EEWARKAK(E)
(2) Other information of revenue: (2) EERAMEMEE
RMB
AR #¥r
[tem Total
AE At
Classified by major regions of operation: &= Z4& & [RH 48 ¢
Including: Mainland China Hep o KR 34,116,548,485.94
Other countries and regions E B K At (@ -
Classified by time for recognition of BRI TER S48
revenue:
Including: Transferred at a certain Hep: ER B ZEE
point of time 34,031,138,301.39
Provided over a certain period of time FEXE —RFERRREME -
Revenue under the Standard on Lease &R T U A 85,410,184.55
Total &5t 34,116,548,485.94
6. Investmentincome 6. REW=
RMB
AR T
ltem Incurred during Incurred in
this period previous period
R REA S AR FHAB A
Gain on long-term equity investments A% E W R B AR
under the equity method AW 34,377,054.52 70,189,156.45
Gain on long-term equity investments PR AN A 1% ) &= B AR A
under the cost method AW 106,792,485.61 516,673,071.62

Total &5 141,169,540.13 586,862,228.07
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Supplemental Information

1. Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss

1~ FRASH Ph4R 45 W AR

Item
HE

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those closely related to the ordinary
operation and gained constantly at a fixed amount or
quantity according to certain standard based on state
policies

Expenses on corporate reorganization, such as staff
resettlement fees and integration expenses

Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated from
financial assets held for trading and financial liabilities held
for trading, and investment income received from disposal
of the financial assets held for trading, financial liabilities
held for trading and investment in other equity instruments,
other than effective hedging business relating to ordinary
operating business of the Company

Non-operating income and expenses other than
the above items

Tax effect

Effect on minority interests

FRBEERERR

FRAE MBS B (EIESR
REXGEVRE  FaBERK
RIRTE - BB EREEEITE
EREZROBITHEBERIN

TESHER  NZXERIN
it BEBASE
BREAAE &S X EEEN
BREHREEBI  HERS
MeREE RHUESHAEE
ERRABEZEHER  URE
ERXGHECREE  RHESR
BEMEMERT AIREREN
& Yz
B b5 18 2 Sy E At 8 SN A
Ik
EREE AT
LHRRBETEY

Total

ast

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information

Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 —

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43).

RMB
ARBTT

Incurred during

this period
AEBAER

79,186,329.13

170,467,047.18

(16,776,998.80)

327,306,057.89

93,073,097.00
(72,329,439.51)
(119,787,694.58)

461,138,398.31

AEEBELCEMHBZEEBENERERB(A
FETESNARAEERERELAEE
- FELEHEER)(FEERE[2008]43
5% ) BIRE AT
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i SR E R ()

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and 2 - B&EEWSEME RIS

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

From 1 January to 30 June 2021

Item
EHE

BER AR LB
PSR B0 7% A A
MERFFAE T IR R IR

Net profit attributable to the
Company’s ordinary shareholders
Net profit attributable to the

Company's ordinary shareholders FEERAR TR
after extraordinary profit and loss % 3R B89 F 7 E

From 1 January to 30 June 2020

20211 A1HBE6A30H Lt
HA

RMB
ARET

Weighted
average RONA
hnE ¥ 19
FEEWRER
(%)

202051 A1BEZ6 A30H Lt
A

RMB
AR BT
Weighted
average RONA EPS
5
FEEWRE TR =
[tem (%) Basic Diluted
| BN wiE
Net profit attributable to the FEBN AR T ERARRE
Company’s ordinary shareholders b= 9.83 0.59 0.59
Net profit attributable to the HBRIEEEMEREREB
Company’s ordinary shareholders JAVNEIR=S 51 S S 0pes
after extraordinary profit and loss ) E 9.02 0.54 0.54

The Group holds no potential ordinary shares that are significantly dilutive.

The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules
No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the
Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings
per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.

AEEESABELEELBR

A B F B A U R M AR 5 51 R
KRPEZEES(AFAETESFNARES
BERBMRANEISR —FEEREXTMEK
W ET H R EE ) (2010FEFTERE -
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Other Information

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2021, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

oAt &R

O N B R I A Sk R R Ay
i) RE 7
RZZE_—F A=1tH EZ =HEEAB
REFERAARREBEEZE (TR RESFRE
EGOI([EH RS EXVEB) MRS - 18
AR RESFT  BHERBEEFLATKHE
32 EARRBFENS LML - iR
BEMARIEFRITELFRZHHEESFR([1BE
TFRIDEEEHNEARARE BB IR R
ReE(ma)WT

Percentage of

the issued share

Number of Number of capital of
Name of Director Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held the Company
IEA DT
EEpA 87 i TAl REEBE  Fi% [H] REE BITRABDL
Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 58,842,596 (Note 1) - 0.67%
BEK ERBEEA (BfFEET)
Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.16%
R % ERBEEA (BfFEET)
Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.16%
I E ERBEEA (PRFEET)
Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 13,684,324 (Note 1) - 0.16%
HRLE ERBEEA (BfFEET)
Yuan Hongming Beneficial owner 1,000,440 - 0.011%
i ERBEEA
Interest held by spouse 444 - 0.000005%
T8 R A 2 s
1,000,884 - 0.011%
Yan Jianbo Beneficial owner 1,097,904 - 0.013%
B ZE A ERER A
Wen Daocai Beneficial owner 21,940 - 0.0003%
BB EREA A
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Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)
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HoAt E R ()

o3 MR R By M HE B B A
A RE 2 (7))

Percentage of
the issued share

Number of Number of capital of
Name of Supervisor Capacity “A" shares held “H" shares held the Company
EERAT
EEpE g7 i TAl BRBE FiE [H] REE CERTREAESHL
Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 600,000 - 0.0069%
B3R EnEA A
Wu Hongwei Beneficial owner 4,789,516 - 0.05%
RtE EnEA A
Notes: B e
1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The 1. ZERMDZAARRATRNER - RER AR QA

domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A" shares of the Company
upon the “A" share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. All the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.
3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 8,726,556,821 issued shares

of the Company as at 30 June 2021 (comprising 6,783,516,821 “A" shares and
1,943,040,000 “H" shares).

TOEBEE  UARKIIE SREBAR®E1.00
T UARBERBREHRIARI SR - ZER
MRARBAABRERINESR SR ETERKABAR
Rl Z AR »

ERMAIIBMABEERSRER -

BEREDLEIREAQRIAR-_ZE-Z—F <A
=+ H#8,726,556,821 R E BT M (B
6,783,516,82 1% AR% & 1,943,040,0000& HAZ ) 5t &

=
=
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Other Information (Continued)

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company

HoAt R (2)

TP A 7 ) AH B 325 1 M oy ) i

Approximate

Class and percentage

number of interest in the

securities entire issued

interested share capital

Name of associated or deemed of associated

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest to be interested corporation

BEERRER HEEEE 2R

REEREEN ERITRAN

EEpng HEEEER ERtE BEERREE EHEENEIL

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG (“KION") Beneficial owner 146,460 ordinary shares 0.11%
(Mt (TEV)) BB A S

Interest held by spouse 93,940 ordinary shares 0.07%
M REE R & AR

240,400 ordinary shares 0.18%

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 146,460 ordinary
shares in KION and he was also deemed to be interested in 93,940 shares in KION which
were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

& &R

Mt : JE$17T E E Gordon Riske & 968 146,460 A% B 15
EmEA A - WK AREZE FBenita Riskez +
BRFEM93,940 LB DR iT B HER -

B EXFriEES R

—®XXA=+8"

BEEE SSTHABREEFNARARLEE

fa] $E B = B B9 B 1

FHFNEEEMIEIS2EHRTE
MiFEME LA @

AAHME R R AR EER

- HERORESFTEERE
Eﬁ'ﬁé%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ

C RRFIR A
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth & R (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial i Z< 5 B} A1 = 25 B o R5 i 1 Ul
Shareholders’ Shareholdings

() Changes in share capital () BAZSHHER

Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2021) BAESEFHBFTIR(BEE_ZE - —F <
A=+8)
Before the movement Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -) After the movement
TREDH FREBEH (+-) TREDH
Percentage  New shares (Capitalisation Percentage
No. of shares (%) issued  Bonus issue of reserve Others Sub-total ~ No. of shares (%)
#8 HB(%) Rk #R o AEEER it gt #8 B (%)
l. Restricted circulating shares - BREEHER 1,746,518,070 201% 792,682,926 - - 2816293 795559219 2,542,077,289 29.13%
1. State-owned legal person shares 1. EEEASK 1,642,531,008 2070% 199451216 - - - 199451216 1,841982,224 2.11%
2. Shares held by other domestic entities 2L EbmERR 103,987,062 131% 387,195,128 - - 2876293 390,071,421 494,058,483 5.66%
including: Shares held by domestic non-state-owned Heb BRERE - - 387195128 - - - 387195128 387,195,128 4.44%
legal persons EAFR

Shares held by domestic natural persons BRERARR 103,987,062 131% - - - 2876093 2876293 106863355 122%
3. Shares held by foreign entities 3. SMEBR - - 206,036,582 - - - 206,036,582 206,036,582 2.36%
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons EBINEARR - - 206,036,582 - - - 20603658 206,036,582 2.36%
Il Non-restricted circulating shares o ERERERG 6,187,355,825 71.99% - - - (2,876,293) (2,876,293)  6,184,479532 70.87%
1. RMB ordinary shares 1. AREEER 4,244.315,825 53.50% - - - (2,876,293) (2876293)  4,241,439,532 48.60%
2 Overseaslisted foreign shares 2. BEOETESMER  1,943,040,000 2449% - - - - - 1,943,040,000 2.27%

lI Total number of shares DG 7,933,873,895 100% 792,682,926 - - - 792682926 8726,55,821 100%
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial
Shareholders’ Shareholdings (Continued)
(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as

at 30 June 2021)

Total number of Shareholders

The number of shareholders is

340,248 among which 340,015 are
shareholders of “A” shares and 233

are shareholders of “H"” shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

HoAt R (2)

F£XA=1+8)

iR 3R A B

JBE A< 528 Bl A 2 2B AR B 1
(#)
(I EBRRFB|ER (R=FB=—

£340,248F - EFAKK
$340,015F * HA%R% %233

J=I

A 104 IR B IR B R

Approximate
percentage of Number of Number of
sharesheld  Total number of restricted  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BREAEI BRERH ERSREN
BRREHE BRRME (%) BRE" RipgE RpEE
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 22.22% 1,938,725,526 N/A
BEAPREEREAERLT SERR il
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.30% 1,422,550,620 1,345,905,600 -
HEEREEERAT BEZEA
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited Overseas legal person 6.81% 594,499,438 -
BERREEERAA BENEA
Weifang Investment Group Company Limited State-owned legal person 3.40% 296,625,408 296,625,408 -
EFTREREBRAR BEEA
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited Domestic non-state-owned legal person 1.87% 163,608,906 -
HEEFeRRNERAA BRFEEBEA
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. ~ Overseas legal person 1.31% 113,938,700 -
B RIIVME T e mER A A BEINEA
UBS AG Overseas legal person 0.85% 74,264,401 72,137,804 -
BINEA
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.67% 58,842,596 44.131,947 -
Et BREAA
Hu Zhongxiang Domestic natural person 0.58% 50,804,566 -
fikiak:: BREAA
GIC Private Limited Overseas legal person 0.55% 47,712,814 47,313,414 -

BINEA
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and Substantial i Z< % B A 3 B B 3 5 B 1 Ot

Shareholders” Shareholdings (Continued) (%)

(I) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as (II) FERFERZFREBER(R=_==—
at 30 June 2021) (Continued) FXA=+AH)(&)
Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders AT10% PR & IR AR R FERR 1B R

Number of the
non-restricted

Name of shareholder shares held Types of shares
BRREE BEEREKREROEE ROEE
HKSCC Nominees Limited 1,938,725,526 Overseas listed foreign shares
BEBRREEREABRAA BN ETINE IR
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited 594,499,438 RMB ordinary shares
BEEPREEBRAT AR LB
China Securities Finance Corporation Limited 163,608,906 RMB ordinary shares
PREEFESSRROHERAQF AR LB
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H. 113,938,700 RMB ordinary shares
B FIVME M B A NG R A A ARBEEBR
Weichai Group Holdings Limited 76,645,020 RMB ordinary shares
HEEREBBR AT ARBEEBR
Hu Zhongxiang 50,804,566 RMB ordinary shares
#E AR B BB
China AMC - Agricultural Bank of China — China AMC China Securities 33,002,800 RMB ordinary shares
and Financial Assets Management Plan AR EL B

FEES -RERT-FEEPIFoREEEIEE

Dacheng Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — Dacheng China Securities 31,855,600 RMB ordinary shares
and Financial Assets Management Plan AR LB
REES - BERIT-AKFBLREEE RS

Harvest Fund — Agricultural Bank of China — Harvest China Securities and 31,831,295 RMB ordinary shares
Financial Assets Management Plan ARBEEBR
REEES - RERT-ZETECREEEEAE

Bank of Communications — Rongtong Industry Prosperous Securities 31,423,090 RMB ordinary shares
Investment Fund AR EBRK
RRBIT-RMBTESABFREED

Notes: B 5

1. Among the aforesaid shareholders, Mr. Tan Xuguang is the chairman of Weichai T A ERERF - BEAEERBERIEREERR
Group Holdings Limited. It is not certain whether there is any connected RARESR - NRRIKRMEAMA +BRE
relationship among the top ten shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted REMA+EEREGRERREZHEREEFE
shareholders or whether there is any acting in concert relationship among them. AR hRANERTER —BITBHAL -

2. Among the top ten shareholders of the Company, Hu Zhongxiang holds 2, AP+ EBRER - HPEBRBATPEAR

48,804,566 shares through the client credit trading guarantee securities account. SERFHRF5H48,804,566/% -
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2021, the following persons (other than the

directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:

HoAt R (2)

FEEKER

RARRBECEF LB GEIE336E)FENT
ERRELCM(BAEMBBEZMARDME)
R M-_ZT-—FXA=tH  TIAL(E
£ RREEABREFHRINEARRRND R
HEROTEE TR RER (INE) ¢

Percentage of Percentage of

share capital share capital Percentage of

Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued

Name Capacity position Ashares  only Ashares Hshares  only H shares share capital

FEARKAK EHREA EEEARA

£R Ly e/ %A ARHE Aol HE&E Bk L ER

Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 1422,550,620 2097% - - 16.30%
HEBREEERLA EafAA 7E

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long 1,422,550,620 2097% - - 16.30%
WRETSEERAR (1) Uligeks o e

Brandes Investment Partners, LP (Note 3) Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.60%
(MzE3) RERER e

Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 4) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.30%
(Kizta) REAR e

Barclays PLC (Note 3) Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.02%
(MzE3) FERRHREERNA e

Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.17%
{RATE S EE S e

25,978,602 535% 1.19%

Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.10%
il we
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Other Information (Continued) HoAth R} (48)
Substantial Shareholders (Continued) R ()
Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  only H shares share capital
FEARKAK EHR KA RET
£ 5t #E/ %% AR%E BO HREA Bl Rt
Morgan Stanley (Note 2) Interest of corporation controlled byyou  Long - - 49,335,508 5.08% 1.13%
iE7)) {RAFARI AR e
Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Short - - 42,078,545 4.33% 0.96%
i He
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 328,810,940 16.92% 3.77%
e e
Schroders Plc Investment manager Long - - 196,702,854 10.12% 2.25%
REAR e
Citigroup Inc. Interest of corporation controlled byyou  Long - - 1,896,483 0.10% 0.02%
(AR A BRI e
Person having a Security interest in shares ~ Long - - 14,672 0.00% 0.00%
RERDOFREEENA e
Approved lending agent Long - - 134,033276 6.89% 1.54%
REREREA e
135,944,431 6.99% 1.56%
Interest of corporation controlled byyou ~ Short - - 610,499 0.03% 0.01%
{RAFARIE A BRI S we
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved lending agent Long = = 115,720,915 5.96% 1.33%

RERHREA i
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

1. Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd., being a subsidiary of the State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province, held the entire share
capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Weifang Diesel Engine
Works).

2. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 as there is no disclosure of interest obligation
under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings for a substantial
shareholder.

3. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017 and 20 August 2015 as there is no disclosure of
interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage of shareholdings
for a substantial shareholder.

4. The number of H shares (and the relevant shareholding percentages) reported above
by the relevant substantial shareholder does not take into consideration the Company’s
bonus share issuance on 21 July 2017, 20 August 2015 and 17 August 2012 as there is
no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in percentage
of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other
relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2021.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

HoAt R (2)

FER ()

GEX

1. WRBEEZOHBRARILRETEMERARARKA
SR I SR AR A B (A7 2 M 07 SR ) B 2
BBRA o

2. LRRHZAMIBREREZAREE (REWR
BB L)L RARAAR - F—EF LA+ —
BEALIRR S T8 « 1T i IR 838 % B 0 5 15
Pl MEBREZRET AL EED - HIBAR
B -

3. 252 ERERRRESE ZHREE (RERR
BEA) Y EFARARAR-_TE—tFLA - +—
AR-ZE-—AFNA-TENARIKETE @ WD
HRREEFRPEGRN  MEERRZBRERD
tear B - BB AR E R -

4. T2 EEEEERRFE 2HREE (RAERER
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Other Information (Continued)

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises five
independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee is Ms. Jiang Yan, an independent non-executive Director.
Ms. Jiang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the Company’s auditors the reviewed consolidated financial

statements for the Period.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance With Corporate Governance Code
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan"”), and that
certain directors of the Company did not attend the Company’s annual general
meeting or extraordinary general meeting(s) held during the Period due to other
essential business engagements, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the

Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the aforementioned code of

conduct of the Company for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 30 August 2021.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2021 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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www.weichaipower.com
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WEICHAI POWER CO.,.LTD.
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Address
Tel

Fax

P.C.

Service hotline
E-mail
Website

D ILRB ST S R E R R B RS R 1975 F
: +86-536-8197777 (#Hk)

: +86-536-8197073

: 261061

1 400 618 3066

: weichai@weichai.com

. http://www.weichaipower.com

: Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
: +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

: +86-536-8197073

1 261061

: 400 618 3066

: weichai@weichai.com

: http://www.weichaipower.com
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